SAMANTHA BRESLIN

LIVING WITH MUSIC: AN ETHNOGRAPHY OF SESSIONS IN ST. JOHN'S, NEWFOLKBLAND







Living with Music: An Ethnography of Sessions in St. John's, Newfoundland

by Samantha Breslin

A thesis submitted to the School of Graduate Studies in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Arts Department of Anthropology Memorial University of Newfoundland

> April 2011 St. John's Newfoundland

Abstract

This shed soften as orthoropoles account of the emission low of municians who play traditional this and Sewdon-dam mines in "sections" in St. John 5, Nevfoundates play traditional this and Sewdon-dam mines in "sections" in St. John 5, Nevfoundates probessing interview and participated orbivations, orbit some size of the manifest or municians to tense of their addefinitions, social networks, sense of place and belonging, and fleedibook, i. Abow bow, in tenning and played monitor, interviews and learness becomes a participate type of promo, with certain sandelists, efficient, and behavious associated with four of "maldism", "municially," "community," and "place" lade segment measurements, and existing a segment of the segment of the

Acknowledgements

Acknowledgements

First and foremost, many longith thanks so the ministem in St. Julin's who welcomed on into their lives and their mentic, without which this thick is suited not lives been possible. More than that, you have given me a mainted home in this city and anywhere do in the world that I might find a sension. To my wonderful Falfact Group, for so warmly accepting this anteropological that expect that you bookly knew into your first so sample, and the proper fast and proposed more specified to the proper fast and the post and play made with. Thanks to Greg for minister and in part to the group a man do nearly greating to the fore fast your reminist and procooned convergement and support and to Margarett for your enthulisms must for visiting and checking in to one me. You both always made sere that I took the time for a few tunes and delivery great tools in the beaupressed adverses.

Thanks you also teal my authorophoticy professor and peron for your intellectual and personal guidances. Robin, your always that insighted inaggentions, helpful advice, and words of support throughout this process and in my occasional moments of points. Thank you for being such a great supervisor. Diame, Drow, and Laura, you have all been autuating sources inspiration in every augreed of our programs. Thank you for your finedulings, without a manufacture from dupling allowings and challenges, agree and small. Thanks also to Jill, for your help with just about anything in the world. To Trucy, for the wise, huge, songs, and for your confless enthusiants for everyphilag, I also could not have finished this process without the holp of Crossouch, who always had the extensible of life, it can ad cheecking, on hand, but had you also to August Chromothia, Kee

Clark, Reade Davis, Wayne Fife, Kathy Gordon, Alison, Greg, Josh, Ken, Sol, and all other members of the anthropology department.

Another essential contribution to this project came in the form of funding generously provided by the Social Sciences and Hamanities Research Council (SSHRC), the Institute for Social and Economic Research (ISER), and the A.G. Hatcher Memorial Scholarshin.

Certainly not to be fragation are my friends and family who, even at a distance, have been of great help. Thatk you to Beverley for your 18 years of friendship and to Josen for rever anderging to inspire me to try and do more with my life. To Colin, your unfailuring belief in my academic and non-academic abilities was always a comfirm when I was more than a little doubtiful of supposed. To Stoph and Fox, for the clinic, the laugh, and for visiting, Also, nor gradingly included not interested me to the vest and wasneful world of traditional link music to start. Faully, and above all, thinks to my powers for your support throughout my life. This thesis is a tentament to the independence and courage that you taught m, as well as to your continued institute that I followed my deman, wherever those may be. Think you for always being thore.

Table of contents

Table of Contents		
Abstract		
Acknowledgements	W	
Table of contents	v	
List of appendices.	ix	
Chapter 1: Playing traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music in St. John's.	1	
1.1 Tunes and sessions	9	
1.1.1 A note about tenses	13	
1.2 Existing research and theoretical perspectives	14	
1.2.1 The anthropology of music		
1.2.2 The study of "tradition"	19	
1.3 Thesis outline	25	
Chapter 2: A brief history of traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music in I	Newfoundland28	
2.1 Early settlement to confederation		
2.2 Post-confederation	34	
2.3 The folk revival.	38	
2.4 Pub sessions and professionalization	45	
2.5 The St. John's traditional music scene in 2009.		
2.5.1 The downtown sessions		
2.5.1.1 Ezin's Pub		
2.5.1.2 Nautical Nellie's.		
2.5.1.3 Shanrock City		
2.5.1.4 Bridie Molloy's		
2.5.2 The Georgetown Pub		
2.5.3 Auntie Crae's		
2.5.4 Fiddle Group		
2.5.5 Other venues and events		
Chapter 3: Methodology - Playing the field		
3.1 Early introductions	65	

3.2 Research goals	67
3.3 Fieldwork methodologies	69
3.3.1 Participant observation	69
3.3.2 Interviews	75
3.3.2.1 Participant demographics	79
3.4 Living and writing in the field	
3.4.1 Performing fieldwork	
3.4.2 Writing in the field.	84
Chapter 4: Becoming a traditional musician	87
4.1 Learning the ideal	
4.1.1 The aural archetype.	92
4.1.2 "New" methods	99
4.2 Musical lives	106
4.2.1 First beginnings	107
4.2.1.1 Music in the family	108
4.2.1.2 Straight ahead	110
4.2.1.3 A winding path	114
4.2.2 Later introductions	117
4.2.2.1 Music lessons	118
4.2.2.2 Introductions to traditional music	120
4.2.2.3 Learning a tradition	122
Chapter 5: The politics of musicianship.	133
5.1 Negotiating status	
5.1.1 Talent and ability	
5.1.2 Musicality, professionalism, and authenticity	
5.1.3 Evaluating status	
5.2 Playing musical politics	
5.2.1 "Egalitarian" sessions	
5.2.2 Professional sessions	
5.2.3 "Getting it"	154

5.3 Political pathways	158
Chapter 6: Playing music together	162
6.1 Social music	
6.1.1 Collective music-making	168
6.1.2 "Give us a tune"	
6.1.3 "You feel like you're inside the music"	172
6.2 Structured relationships	176
6.2.1 "They're not ladies, they're session players"	177
6.2.2 Bearing the tradition	183
6.3 Musical social lives	185
6.3.1 Creating networks	186
6.3.2 A global network	189
6.3.3 "Belonging"	191
Chapter 7: Experiencing Newfoundland	195
7.1 The music of Newfoundland	196
7.1.1 Different perspectives	197
7.1.2 Making distinctions	202
7.2 A musical place	206
7.2.1 Music that "belongs to us"	
7.2.1.1 Experiencing the past	208
7.2.1.2 Re-presenting Newfoundland	212
7.2.2 The place of Irish (and) Newfoundland music	218
7.2.2.1 Ireland and Irish (and) Newfoundland music	219
7.2.2.2 Experiencing the past	221
7.2.2.3 The St. John's music scene	
7.2.3 Places and memories.	229
7.3 Paths to and through places	
Chapter 8: Playing to work and working to play	
8.1 Representations of traditional music	238
# 2 Feeding on Income from music	244

245
250
258
259
264
272
278

List of appendices

Chapter 1: Playing traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music in St. John's

St. John's, the capital city of Newfoundland and Labrador, is home to musicians from across the province, the rest of Canada, and other countries who play traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music. 1 Musicians come from a wide variety of musical and regional backgrounds, ages, and genders and participate in this music in multiple ways. For example, along with numerous professional and semi-professional performers, there are many musicians who play primarily in private or informal settings. Musicians also delimit and define the music they play in various ways - leading to my awkward but useful term "Irish (and) Newfoundland music." What unites all the musicians I spoke with, however, is that playing this music is a meaningful endeavour and an important part of their lives. This thesis offers an ethnographic portrayal of the musical lives of these musicians and their interactions as they meet in different spaces for the performance of this music, based particularly on my research at sessions during the late spring and summer of 2009. In the process, I explore the multiple ways that traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music is implicated in musicians' lives, addressing both individual and

This first chapter provides an imroduction to the significance of this music to musicians and to how I will approach this significance analytically, I also provide booksignound information on this gener of music and its performance that I will draw on throughout this thesis. I present a brief description of traditional trial (and)

¹ While the political boundaries of the province incorporate both Newfoundland and Labrador, this thesis focuses specifically on the island of Newfoundland. I frequently use "the Island" to refer to this particular part of the province.

Newfoundland music and of sessions, which are a primary venue for the production of this music. I then undertake a review of the relevant literature and explain the theoretical approach guiding my thesis. I conclude with a preview of the subsequent chapters.

As a way of introducing the drop personal relationship maticians have with traditional third (and Newfoundation dunie). Despit by considering the life of Newfoundation dline player Georg Stonag. Georg grow up in the Life like plantsh in New Dame Bay, Newfoundation. It is insensed calonical pines as a child be in its new a professional matician who plays traditional matic in several banks, as well as in session, has related as shirt CII, and appears on several other recordings, Georg's introduction at institutional maticia way foundation at many and the material for the state of the s

At the cline of my falshwark, Geory had a fill time non-mission currer, but one conclusion played at much no be could be field out the in St. John's, Neuvers, no was unable to stand essions on others no be would have liked. We, the found other ways to enjoy his must end team now incend. One day when I called him, he yold not be had just attend on Cincer PM, an firth indice station, no literate on Cincer PM, an firth mids nation, no literate only parking. When I naked him why he played this music, his response was "Vis His entiting and drinking and broothing—

²I use pseudoryms throughout this thesis in order to protect musicians' privacy, except where I have received onlyick permission to use musicians' real names or their names are already found on the public record. In those exceptional cases, I will introduce musicians using both their first and last names, as I have done with Gerry. A more detailed discussion about my use of pseudoryms can be found in chapter 3.
³Plurody was a traditional-folk music hand from leveland using the 1970s.

just one of those things you got to do." This statement is clearly demonstrative of how

According to the Oxford English Dictionary, "life" refers to "vitality or animate existence embedied in an individual person or thins" (OFD Online 2010;s.v. *life, n"). That is, life is both the act of living and the quality of being alive. This thesis therefore considers the different ways that the performance of traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music is tied to both musicians' "animate existence" and their "vitality." In Joins to I. discuss how ideas such as "tradition." "authenticity." "community." "relace." and "leisure" influence musicions' experiences of the music and the meanings they attach to it. Sessions as a particular performance configuration, for example, are intimately tied unwith the idea that playing traditional music was and should be an egalitarian and communal endesyour. Vet I also show how musicisms practists these meanings associations, and practices with themselves and with one another. Far from simply being a source of entertainment, as music is often conceived. I aroue that musicians make their lives in various ways through the music they play. That is, even for musicians like Gerry who do not play in a full-time professional capacity, they nevertheless organize their lives and create their selves in relation to the performance of this music. This occurs as they navigate their own position amidst a nexus of ideals and social and musical practices.

I use the concept of "mustical pathways" as an analytical tool for exploring this life-making process by musicians (Finnegan 1909). In interviews, participation, and discussions – forming the core of my ethnography – I asked about musicians' "musical biographies," bening to usun an undestrading or the champing role of music in their lives and where traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music figured. These biographies offered insight into the many different musical experiences lived by musicians. They also revealed many patterns in how musicians, "discussed their musical experiences. As such, these biographies acted as nurratives through which musicians illustrated and constructed their life-ways—wast, present, and future.

"Musical pathways" captures precisely this idea of change and of direction (both linear and non-linear) in musicians' lives (Cohen 1993:129). Virva Basegmez explains,

A pathway is like the history of a musician's life. It is a kind of hiography that, importantly, is connected with processors of identity. Pathways inform about where the musicians come from, what they have done, where they are now and what they are doing, and what they would like to do in the future.

(Rasezmez 2005:70)

Paths can run straight, wind, circle, erron, or even double-back, just an municiam' munical lives can change courses, returning to put ideas, places, and experiences or creating new ones. The pathways of different musicians can also converge in shared spaces, overlap in similar directions, meanings, or experiences, or run completely different courses (Basagune 2005; Finespan 1989).

The encourse of "musical pathways" originates with flush Frengues (1999) in her exploration of "gastrootin" musicams in Millon Keynes, an English trees. Florespan come before of "ret world?" used by Howeld Roders (1982), where musicans play in "worlds" of shared meanings and conventions. To Frinnegue, "pathways" are "a series of Enome and regarder moter which people chose- or were led into- and which they both keep upon and extended through their action" (Timengua 1999-309). For example, many musicians who are from away, meaning not from Nevfordinated, only

stand to play raditional music whom they moved to St. John's. These musicians were often referred to a periodic resistic known in Fldder Groun, bell weekly by a group of mustner musicians, as a moure of learning their music and its social conventions. This seasion has therefore served as a "regular roats" for many beginners new to the city. These roates remarkle Becket's worlds, but the conveyer of a goal allows for a garter once of change within grown and life-way (Demogran 2005-97, Français 1989-306).

Viva Bacquired (2005) also uses the concept of musical pathways extensively in discussing the music making practices of young musicians in Delita and Colways, leteral Size follows Vered Anna Tadia (1994), who adapted Finnegun's encept of collective, shared routed by adding a rotion of individual agency (Bacquire 2006.61). As such, individuals can create new pulmbays for femalews, just on temper (Bacquire 2006.61). As such, individuals can create new pulmbays for femalews, just on temper patientar route, or context and change those dward pathways (Bacquire 2006.61-62). Bacquired, for example, explores how musicians change musical garners over the course of their lifestime, in text changing between the different routs lad not for those pure Bacquired 2005.62). Musicians in St. John's make similar individualized choices, as Gery did in pursuing his interest in traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music after learning plans on a child.

My approach to munician' muicial pathways follows both Amir-Taliai and Fineagen. That is, these pathways may be individual and collective. For example, each munician's pathway may vary control for the fill-time, but multiple individuals' pathways may also overlap and become shared and "familiar rootes". "Some pathways are narrow and individual, oftens are wider, swell-todden and more familiar" (Busegmez. 2005.60; Caben 1993.126; I see those routes or "wide," well enables pathways" as pieces of consistently overlapping or partial peths. Modiscient and the choses that productions in relation to soliton structs, to do not always have in break not see They may also choose their pathways in relation to conceptual routes – shared ideas of what the pathways to becoming a "mailtistent amulsion" should be, for example. It is the interplay of the comicion and individualized neure of pathways with the idea with the complete of the comicion and individualized neure of pathways with the idea with interactional times are to explore how monical gathways used in minimized. In interaction allows me to explore how monical gathways were visible and different, why manistians may choose orbital pathways or are led drawn others, and how these choice influence musicions* overall life spaths and life research.

While the motion of pulmony and motion allow for a source of necessoral and obselved. Busingures points on the Bucker's new collection and static concept of "art world" is useful in terratio continues. Sension our one example, where monitors from all over the world can meet and shows in the production of music as a result of shared over the world can meet and shows in the production of music as a result of shared presentation and commental Resultance (Sension and Sension and Sensio

from many people and places, as well as the negotiations over meaning and experiences that result.

Further, as described by Basegueze, there are seens within scene Obsequeze 2005.92-93). The session seen of St. John's could be considered part of a wider traditional field insurie scene within the city, as well as part of a yet wider some of traditional mass in NewGoodband, in Comain, or throughout the world. Similarly, sensions at two different pulse could be commend as secres uses themselves that are both part of the larger network of this through pulse and sensions in St. John's and of municians and professions are for the contractions of them in twices expension. Thus, scene are corelapping and executed, with thilling connections and boundaries amongst them.

Throughout their lives, musician: paths can move through various scenes in a hyping different games, in different patient, or with different musical paths. Their paths interest with those of other musicians at certain times and places and new scene and paths can themselves be extended frough those interactions. The scenes contribute the million for pieces of musicians' paths, which our, it does not made, seems contribute the million for pieces of musicians' paths, which our, it does not made, seems of similar contents and networks (and floorly similar conventions and respective). In addition, since musicians' pathways are inhumbed within a larger robot designing social content, these pathways are influented by factors relating a sage, paths, and class (thoughness 2000.579-80; Fanospan 1997-308-316). The existence of an active and visible multiformit most seem in St., Mark's, for example, may provide young manifests with apparent paths for partials for a musicians with apparent paths for a market and a manifest and manifests with apparent paths for a market and a market path of the paths and a market path of the path of the paths and a market path of the path of the paths and a market path of the path of the path of the path of the paths and a market path of the paths and a market path of the path of the path of the path of the paths and the path of the paths and the path of the paths and the path of the path of the path of the paths and the path of the paths and the path of the paths of the path of the pa

musicians growing up in many other places. *Thus, I explore the interweaving of individual and collective paths, of structural influences and individual choices, through musicians' musical pathways and their movement through various music scenes.

Loundstonedy municious who yet we have played malificial intermental music (hermally defined) in St. John's, in the image projected by arts, culture, and workin industries "malificialism atminis" eften appears so be the primary form of musical production of New foundation. The musical practices within St. John's, however, we not identical to those across the bland, though they are also not auromotocial. In Addition, St. John's those adverse musical sense of which traditional municis unity a part. "Many of my participant themselves play other gener of music in Addition to relational music." However, that on the commission of an MA programs, I focus on the meanings are threated to the performance of traditional first (and New Foundational music.

⁴ Various facets of these structural opportunities and constraints will be explored throughout this thesis. ⁵ There are, for example, musicians in Sc. John's who play classical, jazz, gypsy jazz, blues, folk, rock, bluerger, resonance, annues many, other musicial enters.

sessions becomes "just one of those things you got to do" as part of making and living their lives.

1.1 Tunes and sessions

What happens in a session is someone enters the pub with an instrument, they put it down on the musicians' table, and they order a pint at the bor. They might chat with the hartender for a minute until they see another musician arrive. The two pick seats at the table, set up their instruments, and update each other on news. A few other musicians come in and join the table. Everyone is sitting and chatting, about music, about the weather, about when the cardin are rolling, or about their week. There might be a full in the conversation and someone will start a tune. Other musicians, who can hear over the buzz in the bar and recognize the tune, ioin in. The tune repeats. On the third round, a musician who just started to practice the tune that morning finally gets the feel and starts to play along enthusiastically. Another sits out because sibe has not heard the tune before. Yet another adds a distinctive variation. Someone calls out a key change or makes a yeln, indicating a new tune is coming. The leading musician starts the new tune and everyone else stops playing to listen. One or two join in and the guitar player works out the chords. ioining in more loudly in the second turn. The others listen quietly or chat with one another. No one calls out or starts a new tune after the third round and everyone ends at approximately the same time. The pattern repeats throughout the night. More pints are ordered, more tunes are played, and more chatting occurs, until the night's stage performance starts or the majority of musicians decide to pack up and leave.

This sketch offices a sense of how a sension would unfold at a pub in St. John's. Sensions are one of the printery venues for the production of reductional finds (used). Noveleandand music, White there is a "way good-off-the three pices or "Gellicy's fields." Noveleandand Psh. a pub bound on Coneps Storet downtones St. John's, the sensions I consider focus on playing intermental music, referred to as "huns," As Burry Foy describes in his False Glades on the John Manch Sension, the sensions I've productive in the False Glades on the John Manch Sension, the sensions I've productive in his False Glades on the John Manch Sension, the sensions in the pumple of Hoth traditional musicians for the pumples of elothering their common interest in the music by project plants, Informal sensing, — as in deliberate exercise for grating out of the house and speeding are cereinly with fine-sho over a few pinns of boor" (Fary 1999-13). While the musicians are accessed in Sension in St. John's vertically ser not all John bur of the music played exclusively firsh, this is a sension in St. John's vertically ser not all John bur of a sension. As seen in the example above, they are generally not formul stage performances. Radate, municians play second a table or two in a pub or radii, in a rough circle, and often will delike, example above.

One of the features said to define a session in its spontaneity. That is, while a manician may come to the section planning to play contain thates that they have obber recently learned, thought of, or hand, so one losses detail of time what means will be played throughout the night, in what order, or by whom, in addition, in public sensions it is generally bett that any musician may pion and purshe in the music. "As a result, the municians and instruments that will be present at any given sension can vary significantly. I observed one do jo in way field-notes:

⁶ The actual inclusiveness of sessions and the ability for musicians to join will be explored later

Every time I walk through a pub door to attend a session, I never know what I'm going to find, no matter what I hear outside. How many musiciam, who sthree, is incredibly uppedictable even given that certain musicians are supposed to host with musicians being away for gigs overseas or elsewhere in Newfoundland. (Field-notes, July 12, 2009)

The degree to which this statement is true also varies among sessions with some being more variable than others.

As mentioned in this excerpt, many of the sessions in St. John's have one or two
paid hosts. Other musicians who attend the session are not paid but may be given a free

pint or two by the pub or receive a discount on drinks. Gary, a part-time professional

musician who has been playing at sessions in St. John's for several years, described to me the various types of sessions that can occur:

There's three different types... One of them is it's a gig, you know. There's someone hosting the session and he's only there because he has to be, there could be fifty other people playing, he's the only person getting paid, you know. There's a few free pints up in there [for the other musicians], that kind of thing...

Then there's the closed rivinte sessions, which only kind of effice relavers

are invited to or are welcome at. I don't see that happening a lot around here now, but I know it happens. They're fan. Iki ke hose because they're fast and the music is kind of non-stop, which is I guess another attribute of what I like in a session. Vox know good firmed, pood turnes, good dimme, good dimmes, Late nights, you know, just shut out the world and play music for two or three hours. That's nice. But then, you know, the whole point of a session entity, and this is the third category I guess for ms, from my perspective. The whole point of a session is a social learning event... of the prophe don't just have to practice in their

playing with [other people], that's how I learned anyways. You learn from playing with people who are better than you.

While Gary described three types, from my experience these are not completely distinct.

A session that is a gig could become a private session if no patrons are in the pub during

the session. Similarly, a session that is a gig could also be a social learning event for musicians of various levels. The overlap amongst types again relates to the spontameity and dynamic nature of sessions. The dynamics of specific sessions in St. John's will be discussed throughout this thesis.

The moste played at those sensions in primarily what I have termed "radiational Iritia (anal) Newfoundined moste." Clayer 2 will explore a dentile the interps of this late of most in Newfoundined moste." Clayer 2 will explore a dentile the interps of this dentite of most in Newfoundined for the cent to the first dentile with 15 early selfert and have origin primarily in England, Sortland, Healerd, and France (Orderna 2007;1189). It has changed over the time since in a nerd on a the music developed armost he finds, the composition were created in Newfoundined, and new seconds and music was the finds, the composition were created in Newfoundined, and new seconds and music was the finds of the most he finds from the compact by more recent visions and settlens, also be founding music from other places (Pyrna: 1991s, Cohorne 2007; Quigley 1995; Smith 2007; Wolds 2008; Webb 2008s; Webb 2008s; The filteraces of firth music and follow musicians on music in Newfoundined are of the prescribed or presented armogen musicians.

This massic was originally used as an accompanionate of active but later came to be played priorigally in a listening centers (Orborne 2007)152, Quigley 1976, 1986, 1987 to be played priorigally in the situation of the control of the 1986 and 1970 as when shall fore-class musicians in St. Andr. Sugar performing this music on recordings, radio, television, sugar, and is necessor to (in example, Sugarera 1991). Common forms include, year, both perspect, sudice, singles, and adoubtes. Commely in St. John's, the tunes that one played are considered to be primarily fish and Newfoundated to origin, though a Scortiniar Openeous time will also sometimes be Newfoundated to origin, though a Scortiniar Openeous time will also sometimes be

tunes where two or three tunes are played consecutively. My intention throughout this thesis, however, is not to investigate the technical details of this music beyond what musicians themselves have described. I focus instead on musicians' understandings of this music and its performance.

1 1 1 A note about tenses

My facts what was place during the opting and numer of 2000. Yee, many of the original fact of continued to participate its sensions are consonant on empirical and empirical the period of writing. My choice of tenses throughout this sensions series the eight placeage that period of writing. My choice of tenses throughout this original to the continued to the processes. In particular, I within the between part and present tense appropriate to the changeages, for companies, then is assistime a first in part or Firlday evenings that I often attended as part of my fold-over. This sension, however, continues to be ledd with much the same munic, musclems, and would and musical presents on an eveninger yoursearch, As a result, I members served to the sension in the part tense to discuss operation and the presents are not originary resourchs as sensity in the part tense to discuss operation of the continue and experiences that concernd during my field-overly, and sumerimes in the present tune to relay the empiring performance of muscle the process of the continued and the continued and the sension. The long through these guarantical decision of the process true to relay the empiring performance of muscle the process of the process true to relay the empiring performance of muscle. The next according an decision and the continued on the position I talk the tenerolically in experient general relative time and the transformation music cover of St. John, typerdiage an andermating of where I were the process of the process true to the process of the proc

place my own research within various streams of thought.

⁷The number of times a tune is repeated can vary depending on tune length and complexity, with two to four times being most common. Similarly, the number of tunes formed into a set varies based on the length of the tunes, the complexity of tunes, and whether municians can think of tunes they want to combine. A common length for sets, however, is two or three tunes.

1.2 Existing research and theoretical perspectives

This thesis is situated primarily at the intersection of two bodies of literature: the anthropology of music and the study of "tradition." Discussions in these areas have been developed extensively by the fields of ethnomusicology and folklore along with anthropology. I focus here particularly on anthropological explorations of these topics, but I also consider other fields where relevant.

1.2.1 The anthropology of music

My analytical and theoretical attention to music is based on its study situated within a particular cultural context (Merriam 1964; Nettl 2005:12). As my focus is the performance of traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music by musicians in St. John's, I draw particularly on the literature surrounding musical practices in Newfoundland, as well as the performance of traditional Irish music specifically. In doing so, I do not mean to suggest an essential connection between music in Ireland and music in Newfoundland. Yet, there has been extensive research conducted on the performance of traditional Irish music that provides useful insights into the traditional music scene(s) in Newfoundland.

My approach is multifaceted but centers around interrogating the experience of music. As an experience, I see music as simultaneously site for, subject of, and source of negotiations over individual and shared meanings and practices. As part of this perspective, the performance of music is therefore individualized, but also situated in and influenced by a social/cultural context. This approach allows me to explore the meanings and practices that musicians associate with their music and negotiate through their music and how these are affected by the wider social, cultural, political, and economic miliou in which they play, Many musicians, for example, focus on playing specifically.
"New Southfulf" trans. I explore what it means for a test to be from New Southfulfact, the
significance of this association for musicians, as well as how engutiations over "this"
various. "New Southfulfall" music and over different understandings of New Southfulfall as a
place recent through the performance of iraditional this (and) New Southfulfall music. Ver,
as I will those, the significance of distinguishing New Southfulfall music can also only be
understood in studies to historical circumstances that devaluad "New Southfulfallows" and
local practices, Including the performance of machined New Southfulfallows and
local practices. Southfulfalls the performance of machined New Southfulfallows.

There have been numerous approaches to studying music in the fields of

anterspolagy and oftenomialology. The early study of music (notable of "Western' classical mass) often involved the collection and description of the music of "where classics. Robin musician and solvedens. Robin musician was an advanters. Robin musician extensive a musician effects to document, preserve, and presente the "music of Necdonalland". It his book The Johnston ("Mestern') Robin Robin and the "musician effects of the "the study of music and counter of Mestern's Robin Complaints about 11. Its suggested that solveden should explore conceptualization of music, lacification and gauge behaviors in extinct to music, along with the musicy of music lacific (Morrison 1944-123, Morrison therefore insportantly considered the suday of music lacific that the study of music with the study of

⁶ Later scholars claberated on and added to Merrian's approach. John Blacking (1973) similarly argues for the contextual study of music. Using his research with the Venda of South Africa, he discusses how massically and music are stuped by and erflect culture and society. This idea that music may reflect "outher" of "Society", "reversite Merian's facus, was further developed by Anthony Seegar in his book.

The notion of "culture," which Merriam used unproblematically, however, has been widely critiqued in anthropology and other disciplines (see, for example, Abu-Luzhod 1991; Clifford and Marcus 1986; Gupta and Ferguson 1992; Rosaldo 1993; Said 1978; Wolf 1982, 1999). Still, as Martin Stokes suggests in his discussion of music, identity, and ethnicity, "music is socially meaningful not entirely but largely because it provides means by which people recognise identities and places, and the boundaries which senarate them" (Stokes 1994b:5). In other words, music is a means by which musicians form a sense of something they describe in terms of "culture" and assert differences and similarities among "cultures" In turn, many scholars have come to focus on performance rather than the structural or functional role of music within society. This has allowed them to explore differences and tensions in meanings and experiences within musical and societal practices and how these relate to broader issues of power (Stokes 1994b-2-4). Many ethnomusicologists (and anthropologists) therefore consider the performance of music as a social event, where more than just music "happens" (Stokes 1994b:5).

The performance and creation of Admittis through music has perfocially been of interest to many scholars (Manganez 2016, Cohan 1994, Densing 2004-2006, Filt 1994, Leanus 2005, Sobias 1994a). Then has been some consolutation of how music in New foundable to used as a measur of expressing an article criminate a manifest coherchandland density (Care 2007, Georgey 2004, Perloss 1994, Saugeres 1991; Thorse 2017), Some research is also beginning to analyse the connections

 $B\lambda y$ Sayd Sing? (1987). He explores how music both creates and reflects the whole of society, mirroring the structural turn in anthropology at the time. He describes the focus as "musical anthropology."

between bis and Nordstandard mains and how this relates to an experience of "fisheron" in Nordstandard (Hyme 1991a; O'Comed 2000; (Aschindenia 2000, O-Obere 2007, 2010) suitable, much scholarly for malforal leifo much low explored to see an armost of expressing "fisheron" and of reclaiming one's birth roots when performed saided of leifard (Husepinz 2005; Dowling 2004-2006; Leminal 2006; O'Tylym 2009; O'Shan 2006-2007; 20000; Reguess 2009; Ulimar 2006).

Take servicely the critique by largent Brokher and Trederick Corper (2004) regarding the analytical tree of "identity," They state, "identity,... tends to men to the made,... too little,... or sorbing at all "Orboher and Corper 2004-203 (Februing their leaf, Lini throughout this their is "a beyond identity," endorsoming for "conceptual clarity" through detailed descriptions and the use of more precise terminology (Brokher and Corper 2004-6). Brokher and Corpe, for example, suggest ming terms such as "identification," "auragentation," and "indentending," "social bustion," "cummonling," "concentration," and "goognous," among orders, as a means of gaining analytical apposition," and corporate and corporate production of the analytical apposition and desired the corporation of the corporation of the analytical apposition of an other corporation."

Burning these cereatia in mind, of the descriptional developments of a shadours washing manic and identify provide a valuabile basis for exploring how individuals shape their lives through the production of minic. Of particular startflows are Simon 19th (1998) discussions on how individuals and groups construct identifies through the experience of performing music. He states that "manic...-describes the social in the individual and personal to the control of the individual or the relational in the reaction "first 1998; 1999. This understanding of music is better the tool to the individual and the reaction of the control of the c

music is a means of experiencing this "off-in-process" ("richis 1994-1907). Through music, musicalism experses and create their own meanings yet, these meanings are receivedly happed by the historical, social, cultural, political, and economic context within which they play (First 1996-190-110). First's approach therefore allows not to explore individual meanings and practices followed by musicions in relation to the music they play, as well as the musy ways that there are influenced by the context of musical reduction and the mass ways that there are influenced by the context of musical reduction and the mass in late!

This perspective she addresses there is egisfacted theat of missical performance in classical performance and included performance and in the first field (1998) theoretical developments, music is not exert for the performance and contractions of other mentige and practices, such as individual identities, for example. The second factor, discussed below in greater detail in relative to idense of "undition," both the identities, or example, and required and supplicated in relative to the music lenst An Frith discusses, for experience of performing mosis rescensibly involves both methods in the contraction of the cont

A flow on or markains we begin intermental traditional links (and) Newfoundard resols, in particular, once readily allows for an exploration of their enumings. This convenibility is because intermental musihan to obvious meaning, stallar usung where the team themselves may express meaning to which markeds or other may relied (Fermal 1850.2M). Since 1981. The time of more may be array meaning to which may be a support of the stallar of the stallar of the stallar of the stallar of the here meaning for the resolution who play them, but it is not measurably the case, Marketson are often at parties to remember the titles of transact among a mean how multiple market. A well-known and respected and the stallar of the parties to remember the title of transact among a mean how multiple market. A well-known and respected and the stallar of the stall

the definition of "main!" as a concept and earlierly lainful as application (or, for example, Amali 1985; Blacking 1977; Kingheyr 1988; Finally, for main: theyer muticions" experiences through mount control, the both y markets necessary for its production, and the social configurations through which the main is produced. The section and its practice as a primarily homogeneous mainlaid performance, for example, enforce certain related and amusical conventions that it into adopt mainlained interactions with one another. These replications are approximately homogeneous mainlaid performance, for example, enforce certain standard amusical conventions that it into adopt mainlained interactions with one another. These explores the virious factors of the experience of polytograms units of the control of the contr

1.2.2 The study of "tradition"

The concept of tradition is a significant component in agentations over the orderinance of "raditions." In vide (and. Noviconstand name). There is hold number and popular interest on expering the term, which has been applied in many ways. Since the 198th, solution have focused on "sulfations" in a "symbolic contrastion!" (Inteller and Lincola, 1984; Lincola, 1983). May one approach inflores this lates in expering Jon matricions use folcas of tradition in assigning meaning to the music they play and in requiring the meaning with one menter. This approach addresses have the qualifier of "infloress" in mudical role (and Inteller Contrastion and practice this music, 1 therefore also consider in this section some of the differing definitions of "raditions" in these been used and the agingfactar implications where have had intelled and conducted and the section of the section some of the differing definitions of "raditions" that have been used and the agingfactar implications there have had intelled acconducted account. These discussions will attempt and the characteristics.

not know enough tunes. The meaning associated with instrumental music is then primarily created and asserted outside the music itself, by those playing it and listening to it, or associated with the context of the music (75thea 2005-2007-8). However, I consider how the music shapes musicians' experiences through those associated materings.

exploration of the concept of "tradition," as well as the ideas and debates held by musicians.

In his well-known book Keywords: A Vocabulary of Culture and Society, Raymond Williams observes that "tradition in its most general modern sense is a narticularly difficult word" (Williams 1983:318). Nevertheless, Williams continues his exploration of the term suggesting that, "tradition survives in English as a description of a general process of handing down... But the word tends to move towards age-old and towards commons, duty and respect" (Williams 1983-319). Dan Ben-Amos (1984) also traces seven Artinizions of the term that have been used in the discipline of folklore, many of which are similar to those described by Williams. Ben-Amos, however, additionally specifies that tradition can mean any or all of the process of handing down, the material that has been handed down or the quality of the material that is passed on (Ben-Amos 1984-99-100). These approaches conceptualize tradition as a bounded entity that a person or group possesses and that is passed down through generations. Such concertualizations were prevalent in much anthropological, ethnomusicological, and folkloristic scholarship until the later port of the 20th century (Handler and Linnekin 1984:273-274).39 Musicians in St. John's also apply "tradition" as meaning the process of handing down and the "material" or music that has been handed down, as well as drawing on ideas of "ageold, ""duty," and "respect."

³⁸ The fields of ethnomissionlogy and folkfore have had a more cuplicit interest in "randition" and its relation to mask. Nevertheless, authropologic Marsh and had a long relationship with the concept. Anthropologic Marshille Benkwishels once proclaimed that "one systemy fine cubars is availating (Bossner 2000-97), Alternatively, madition in often seen as a part of culture (Bronner 2009-97), An a result, the focu of authrepologic in authorization; authorization; which made included considerations of "fundation."

This predominant conceptualization has two significant consequences. First, in understanding tradition as bounded, it is often opposed to modernity (Handler and Linnekin 1984:274). Renato Rosaldo discusses how the concept of culture in anthropology has been conflated with difference in defining a valid anthropological subject (Rosaldo 1993:201), "Primitive," "traditional," "other" have been used in contrast to "civilized," "rational," "us." As outlined by several scholars (Handler and Linnekin 1984; Sahlins 1999), this dichotomization is seen, for example, in EB Tylor's stages of cultural evolution; Karl Marx's stages to capitalism; Émile Durkheim's mechanical and organic solidarity; and Max Weber's traditional, charismatic, and bureaucratic systems of authority. Although Weber romanticized "traditional" societies, he nonetheless separated them as a distinct and earlier point of cultural evolution (Wilk and Cliggett 2007:124). With the later turn toward modernization theory, "tradition" was again contrasted with "modernity" and simultaneously devalued as the thing that was holding the "others" back from development. For example, W.W. Rostow's (1991) well known The States of Economic Growth: A Non-Communist Manifesto ranked "the traditionalist society" as the first of five stages to economic development. As part of these distinctions, "traditional" is also often associated with nostalgic ideas of "community" and "place" and such associations have had a significant impact on how musicians interpret and experience the music they play. In addition, the devaluation of "tradition" extended beyond academia and was applied in social and economic policy and popular thought. As a result, musicians themselves have contended with such ideas at various noints in Newfoundland history.

The second consequence of conceptualizing studious in "a core of inherited culture tains" or an 'y secons of hundring down" in that is also becomes something that can be identified, described, an evidence of Uniform and Liminatis 1984-273.

Anterpologia if many Dans, for example, heped as offered the tradition and the culture of the Kewhish and so there saving something material learns and end accounts, before they were lost to the exerciseding influence of "moderal" society. Solvious therefore they were lost to the exerciseding influence of "moderal" society. Solvious therefore they were lost to the exerciseding influence of "moderal" society. Solvious therefore they were lost to the exerciseding influence of "moderal" society. Solvious therefore they were lost of the exercised includes an embode of "moderal" society in the first the interest of the "moderal" society in the first the interest of the "moderal" society on these of "moderal" society" and the quantity of the original society on the original society or the original society of the original society or the original society or the original society or the original society ori

In the past several decades, however, the concepts of tradition and submittidity have come into more critical from in methopology and other scademic desciptions. Most now recognize that "submitted years are deviced soudd not matter in interprets to understand and appreciate culture" (Bandis: 1997-16). Bather, subsides have explored the various ways that "valutions" and "subdissins" are constructed and interconnected (Cilified and Marcos).

¹¹ "Authenicity," like "tradition" has been applied in many ways over time. I discuss throughout this theirs many of the ways this concept is used by manksians, drawing on acudemic scholarship hat explores varieties ways that include all the proposition of employ the idea of "mathenixing" (Edemon 2002, Fide 2002,

1944; Lineckei 1953; Bundalo 1995; Said 1978; Waif 1962, 1969; 2005; Handler and Lizockin, for compile, argue strongly squints the "naturalistic" view of braddien, discounted above, and suggest we explore tradition as a "symbolic commerce". "we suggest that there is no executed bounded realistion, tradition in a model of the gest and is incorporable from the interpretation of braddiens in fact present of the gest and incorporable from the interpretation of braddiens in the present (Blandre and Lizockin 1942-276). Through Blandre and Lizockin 1949-276, Through Blandre and Lizockin 1949-276, Through Blandre and Lizockin 1949-276. Throug

Others have also explored how tradition can function as a whick for power, considering how it is used in various projects such as nationalism or class themistation (Handler 1981, Hobbshaws and Rauger 1982, Ronalds 1993, Williams 1977, Wolf 1982). Regunned Williams (1977, in his hook Marviss and Literaruse, discusses the except of reductive tradition." He explores how the leaguestic class creates the dominant Marcy fisherizing it from the range of available binarious buildings to edition the dominant Marcy fisherizing is from the range of available binarious buildings of the explores to be the Quilliams (1971) 113; The discontinuition of this desictive tradition depends on its instantional function, that is, the availables of the desired trade depends on the instantional function, that is, the availables of the desired values of properties of the world binough who books, the finally, and other wars of furning (Williams 1977):117-118.

For the binous and Termora Ranger (1970) also introduce the course of of "inclined for the collection of the horizon of Particular is the combination in the colour, Hobberts explores how certain." Seddings of the colour of Particular is the combination in the colours how these "traditions," which appear or claim to be old are often quite recent is origin and constituent in the colour extension for readitions, the confident in the quite recent is desired and of students extension of the confident of the colour of traditions of reading the confident in the great or of transitions.

Several scholars, however, have critiqued the idea that some traditions are obviously invented because of the implicit assumption that certain other traditions are "authentic" whereas those that are obviously invented are "inauthentic" (Handler and Linnekin 1984; Linnekin 1983; Ray 2005a, 2005b). As Celeste Ray argues in her work on those claiming Scottish ethnicity in North America: "that tradition is invented does not detract from its present meaning to those who emotionally invest in its practice" (Ray 2005s:6). In addition, Handler and Linnekin point out that all traditions have an element of selection and invention (Handler and Linnekin 1984:276). These various scholars shift the focus from the study of "traditional societies" or of "tradition" to a critical focus on the role of "tradition" in societies and in individuals' lives. They consider how tradition is used, by whom, and why. Scholars have also importantly explored how concepts such as "authenticity" or "tradition" are employed in legitimizing activities, how these are related to the commodification of culture, and how the search for the "authentic" or "traditional" are important in shaping peoples' lives and experiences (Bendix 1997; Edensor 2002; Fife 2004; Handler 1988; Kaul 2007; Lindholm 2008; O'Shea 2008b; Ray 2005a, 2005b).

Following Header and Linchia, I can "be understed our own and our adjects' interpretire model," about "midste" and "maderation," of linder and Linchia 1942/21, interpretire midster Sugara Reschairs' (2009) suggestion to consist from proper form around categories such as "chinicity," "materiabout," and "noo," and Oupst and Ferguson's (1992), etilique of interruptions that cultures and communities are field as regions of place. As Brobulear argam, "as manyles, we should certainly by to account for the ways in which, and expedition under which.—this practice of refliciation, this

powerful crystillization of group forting, can work" (Breshair 2004 H). Thus, while I discussed above some important ways 'malifort' has been defined and seed in popular and candenic looking. Hother than societies is declined seems. It will arrise to the different ways that moskins interpret these concepts, how they apply them to the conceptualization and practices of "maliform" first (seed). Newfoundland mosic, and how to its sacone these this time is the first ways the seed of the conceptualization and practices of "maliform" first (seed).

I acknowledge that there often in such a failing as "tradition" or even "culture" and
"authention" in the hearts, minds, and bodies of municians, other individuals, and other
myself too, in relation to the performance of this music. As suggested by Regord
Phothater and Treedires's Cooper (2008) and argued by Regins Bendist (1977), however,
these terms should not be employed succifically as "categories of analysis."

1.3 Thesis outline

The next two chapters provide additional back growed information to contending the thirds not only officients of articulation. For large 2 of lifes in nover-view of traditional music in \$8, bolar's, New-Boudhard from the 150th to the time of my flobbook in optical process. The same and the same and with bloom 2 florabilities. Chapter 10 floration for methodological approaches I used during my flobbook, which though pillutions the relationship with the manife and with bloom 2 florabilities. Chapter 10 florabilities with the same indicates. The chapter explores the processing and the processing of the processing and the processing and

Having enablished an historical and methodological context for my explorations of the performance of traditional Irich (until) Newfoundhand music, this thesis considers musician; musical pathways and their interactions as they meet in various music scenes in St. John's. Each chapter, or set of chapters, explores a different supect of musicians' lives that are inflamented by these nethodors.

Clupters 4 and 5 work as a set to consider how, as motioned now to play undisional most, their self-definitions and nature become nervised with the mostic's performance. Clupter of explores musician is belief or wheat a stallistical musician should be and present the different musician photosys bread by musicians in St. John's. Those discussions by a foundation for an interpretire analysis of musician's pathways in the regions. Clupter 5, is practical, considers how tensions and comparisons between the ideal roate to becoming a musician and the livel pathways of musicians considers with ideas of professionalism, authenticity, and latent and lead musicians to telium or angion attention to the control of the control of the musiciantity is negative them. The clupter therefore forces on the politics of musiciantity is negative their angions. The control of the control of sensions. I also show how, through those politics, musicians paginise their own position within the music scene politicity, would, and musicians.

Many musicians emphasized the important social connections they have formed through jety in traditional music. These for range from easual acquaintances to marriage. Chapter 6 sherefore explains the different types of social relationships that musicians develop, the importance of fore-connections in their five, and how they are influenced by the music and by section. In puricular, I explore how musicians'

experiences are structured according to gender, age, and musical status. I thereby show the different ways of belonging in the music scene that musicians create and experience through the performance of this music and the social connections they create.

Many musicians also spoke about a sense of belonging to Newfoundland as a place that they developed florough ploying this music, which I explore in Chapter 7.1 consider the many ways that musicians define "trish (and) Newfoundland" music, how they come to make such distinctions, and the rule the music and those distinctions play in creating a sense of destifications with the place.

Finally, Chapter & offers a housel overview of municians' mutual gathways. It adhesses, in particular, two possible routes chosen by municians: to rely on music as a primary source of incomes ere to rely on athentes mensos of employment. Expérier the tentions among labas of "music," misonism," mathenticity," "mardation," and "music," how these contributes to struggles on the part of musicians in persuing their musical particular in sudmerstanding on the of otherse pathways in their lives. I conclude by discussing how, for professional, sumi-performinal, and annature musicians allab, their musical pathways contribute to their sense of well-being and to the contrastitute of their lives yet.

Chapter 2: A brief history of traditional Irish (and)

Newfoundland music in Newfoundland

This chapter offers a rough historical outline of "traditional" music in

This chapter effers a rough historical cultime of "haddinous" mutch in Noncinculand from the 1800 to 2000. This cultification of the chapter of the chapter

2.1 Early settlement to confederation

The munical binary of NewGoodmand from the 1500s to 1949—the fines of the biland's unifiest European settlers to the year NewGoodmand Source as province of Canada—is characterized by continuous interconnections mixed with board developments as a result of settlement and continuod contact with places beyond the Island. European interest in the Island Degan in the 1500s when florts from Western Europe were attracted

¹³ Such categories are, of course, difficult to define, but I use them with the intention of discussing the various interactions and influences of different musical styles in Newfoundland, rather than to reily and distinguish these types musically. I will explore later in this thesis how musicians coenider "teathioeal" music as a cuterary so opposed to "Suk" or "postpad" or others.

to the area for its fishing grounds (Nemce 1991/73), ¹⁷ Settlement soon followeds, starting around 157-5s whe English established a hose along the east cours of the Ishind (Mannion and, Assort 157-5s whe English settlement of the Start (Mannion and, Assort 167-5s to English better means and south of the English settlement of Mannion and, Assort 167-5s to English better to work on their fishing vessels and they increased this recruitment following the Treaty of Droeds in 1733 (Mannion and, Nemce 1917/23, 19) 1720 these to become had also formed permanent settlements in NewCoundland, sentention out of choice and constitutes as a result of being stranded by their manters (Devlin Trew 2005/54; Mannion n.d.; OfAstInshairia 2004/5-3). This settlement continued in growing numbers from the 1700 in 1313 (Mannion and, Namee 1914/73). So all "wis was priarrang proint of abstraction for many fishs, though they also came to settle in several other areas including the Southern Show, Trepassey, St. Mary, "Resentin Bp., Harbore Grace, Bosnoista, Notre Duma Brs. While Broa. and to so of the Start Start (Start Start Star

Personnelly only settlers brought music, song, and intensenses with them and continued to pitch pitch music in local communities, in relation to the binarcial influence of firth music in NewFoodmiland, Control Offschindmin, for example, discusses the processor of firth language songs on the labard that were likely brought by firth visiting and artistive lengthning in the FOOD and lateral to some communities until the first Wilson and artistive lengthning in the FOOD and lateral to some communities until the 1970s. (Oh-Minhariti 2008-35-56), In addition, local musician Cristiana Smith observes in her artistic "Crockeds at the Road in Branch" that NewFoodmiland music has high quantities of singles (orleader) speaks and doubles cortexed sypology, which is single recommended.

³³ Newfoundlind was, however, previously inhabited by native groups such as the Beofink and Vikings briefly settled the Northern Peninsula of the Island around 1000AD.

Ireland (Smith 2007;140-141). On the other hand, reels, which were only beginning to gain popularity in Ireland at the time, originating from Socianal, are relatively rare in the New Socialized Agencies (© Sailleabháin 1981;84; Smith 2007;140-141). These examples indicate the influences of early firsh settlers and Irish music on music in New Sociality.

Yes, music in Newtoundand was also influenced by music from places ofter that cloud. An amerismed, the English and French both sented on the Island and the Buglish, in particular, framena a significant proportion of Newfoundland's wall-population. Obtamion of al., In addition, most emigrant from Island by population (Ostamion on A.): In addition, most emigrant from Island Supervised Newfoundland after articles (1991-17). Seatlorn from Island Supervised Newfoundland after articles (1991-17). Seatlorn from Order areas, however, continued to arrive on the Island after this time. Highland Soots, for example, settled on the south-west coast of Newfoundland from the 1880 to 1860; Higgins 2009. The music hought by these various settles would Blady have been combined as a seem of one analyzament settlement and time transms and now vernious changed over time as a result of the end process (Simila 2007-164). "Currar analyze of music in Newfoundland to meet being, as well as Influences and time transmiss and the Island futuring certain of these influences more prominently (Osborra 2007-184). A professional Newfoundland musician who sword briefly in Ireland resultations.

¹⁴ Through this process, tunes are learned by ear, which allows each individual to add their own personal style to a tune in addition to changes that occur through the transmission process (similar to the broken telenhore name elived by eliform).

kept stirring it and then poured it out." The music that was "poured" out, along with local compositions, is generally accepted today to be "traditional Newfoundland music."

Mostic cares to be played in various contents including community dates or "lines" and the purpose of instrumental music was primarily as an accompanion of fire dursing (Osborne 2007-188-190, Osigley 1985, Smith 2007):184-150). "While faddes were originally the instrument used to accompany dates, in the first part of the 20th century they were largely replaced by the accordine (Smith 2007):19. The accordina is imported to the latin in the 19th enemy inspirat date and transport enterwises with Europe, where the instrument was initially invested (Fair 2000, OshAlishatain 2008.34; Smith 2007.1510)." This shift has used of the accordine was associated with a shift in the performance content of dates;, into larger halls where the loader instrument could be better heart (Smith 2007.184)."

As see with the introduction and operand of the accordion in Novelemellands, although common tropes portion communities as being included and having little contact beyond the Island, memoress sources continued to influence ramic in Novelemelland throughout the 20th contacy. Commophene or planningsulps because multilable in Novelemelland beginning in 1897 and were wiskely destinated throughout the Island by the USP and 1891 (Societies 2019 1892, 1892 1893). Radio also because wiskly

¹⁵ See Quigley (1985) for an extensive discussion of the different contexts in which dances were performed in rural NewYoundland.

IN TEXT IN PROPERTIES.

A streament for two ordered to see according and that was similar to a resident reduction was force.

A streament for the sign of the second secon

available by the 1920s, providing people on the bland with access to a vide variety of musical spic from Canada, the US, Egaland, and elsewhere (Dobress 2007; Power and 1977; Nobel 2006; Radio Solve Solve

The American military presence in NewGoodmand admirg World Wer II also brought new perferences to the Asiant and new dence contents on the Astroy boxes, as well brought new Jeen Goodman and the Asiant Asiant See Asiant S

mainted Owns and Tel. 1973). The, for from being industed and remote, people in Newfordingland had access to mostic from a wide variety of sources that they adopted into their reporties and that influenced the mostic they performed. At Web secretify states, "madisonal" main had been transmitted from generation to generation, but breaking, been most; may book, photograph; ratio, and illustrant musician continuously introduced personal "tel." 2009.

However, while many musicians were adopting new music and rounds into their repressions, others were concerned with recording, preserving, and premoting the traditions of Newfordmalland. Lie Sangeres suggests that the following revival in Newfordmalland was a continuous presence that he plan with the publication of The St. John's Newfordmalland was a continuous presence that the following previous in Newfordmalland was a continuous present that the plant with the plant with the Persons Storet American Mart in St. John's (Geogrey 2004 at 10; Sangeres 1991 92). Several manne following collections were published in the early 2004 at 10; Sangeres 1991 92). Several manne following collections were published in the early 2004 the centre probability of Control of Control of the Control of Control of Control of the Control of the Control of Co

Some individuals also began promoting Newfoundland folklore in the early 20th century. Best known is probably Joey Small wood who began broadcasting as the

¹⁸ Karpeles, however, was primarily interested in collecting old British folk-songs through her fieldwork in Newfoundland (Gregory 2004).

Burchism beginning in 1597 where he aired to made "Needloudisable better lower to Needloudisablew" (Webb 2008-96). He discussed mendetes, notice, ficts, and tall takes (Needloudisable, sizing both as is folkedes and a promote of Needloudisable, "sizing "(Webb 2008-96-96). Similized stopped breakcaring in 1643, reporting that "six sock had been accomplished need the Needloudishers to langer leads confidence in formattees" (Webb 2008-1963, However, the point is that a correction interest in the "maditions" of Needloudisable hopes as only as 1894 even as many manifestions where the production of the Needloudisable hopes are only as 1894 even as many manifestim was religious game from Neylord theory.

Thus, is the long period from \$157 to 1949 autient brought music to Novefundland that they developed fire local dance contexts. Throughout this time, musician also incorporated aspects of music from other places. Registring in the late 19th century, however, people began to self-consciously collect and promote "Necofundland radioism," preferablely foll-sough. The decades following confideration was a continuation of this internal yourse, in the "traditions" of the latest. Ver, many Necofundlands not also enjoyed and listened to other genres in preference to "traditional Newfoundlands music."

2.2 Post-confederation

Newfoundland joined Canada in 1949. The post-confederation period is often talked about as a period of modernization that led to a decline in adherence to "Newfoundland traditions" (Cox 1980:153; Saugeres 1991:70; Smith 2007:139). 19 One

After confederation there was a looking down on Newfoundland culture in general and Newfoundlanders didn't want to be at it, you know. "Ob, you wouldn't want to be caught dancing that way, that was old fashioned. Those old songs, you wouldn't want to be listening to those old songs."

As recounted by this musician, in the time after confederation many people in

Newfoundland communities no longer wanted to dance "old" dances as they once had (Ouiselev 1985-104: Smith 2007:140). Dancing was also frowned upon by the Weslevan

Methodist church, which had strong influences in some areas; some Newfoundland

outport communities were resettled to larger towns; and radio and other musical sources

continued to influence music in Newfoundland – all leading to the decline of "traditional" dances as a context for this music (Cox 1980-57: Onireley 1985). With a changing context

and content of dance in Newfoundland, many musicians stopped playing the "traditional" Newfoundland dance music, no longer having a reason to do so (Osborne 2003:10.

2007:192).

Although Newfoundlanders were less interested in local traditions, "traditional" music from beyond the Island, along with other genres, had considerable popularity in Newfoundland (Onborne 2007; Smith 2007;140), Irish American music, in particular, had

Autociaria; cordiciration and modernization with a devolating of Newfoundard strations is a customal feature of maniciaria and effects' entersides in Newfoundard. The intensities in the study is single, as a "cabusal" practices were changing, devolated, and recovered long before cordiferentian, as seen with Juny. Sensitivosal's proceedings of Newfoundard conductors and the Burbardon in Addition, speech of "recolorization" such as substration under the prediction of the procedural conductors and the procedural conductors.

a strong influence on music on the Island. The of "sidd-time" lishts and Irish American recordings by musicians such as John Kimmel and the Mohily family were available throughout. New Good Hope 1991;465, Ocheen 2007;1977, The Mohily Family as pericically popular addre music was sold and ploped over the rails across the Island. They also visited St. John's in 1953 (Byrne 1991;451). As in indication of their enabring influence, several of the times ploped by the Mohily Family are still polysed at scalaring in St. John's 1907;861–978.

As a sensit, during the 1940 to 1960, John and John American more, despited with sensition order music obtained from media source, becames privileged by municians over local discue music or foots of the post 1974, and 1970, and a sensitive of the 1970, and the 1970 to 1974 to 1970, and a sensitive of the presence, the attent associated with ploting at abance was after lost, but performances could have be validated against correcting (Otheror 2007). By a discussion of the 1970 to 1970 to 1970, and 1970 to 1970 to

Yet, despite the decline of traditional dances and the associated music in rural communities, interest in preserving and promoting such local traditions, particularly in St. John's, was growing. Omar Blondahl recorded close to fifty of the songs from the Gerald

 $^{^{30}}$ "Fiddler" is often used to denote a musician playing any musical instrument, though many musicians display fiddle or accordion.

S. Dojok Songhook between 1955 and 1965. He also collected local and popular follosongs, performing them on the local risk states VCCM and not betwien (Recorded) 1971). Blendald theoryly populated much of the reportive from the Dojok songhooks and other muck he preferrand (Tali 1975;vol); CRC began the abow All-Around the Chricke 1866, famining bands from 58; John's bet also sowing amount the follows and promoting muchinum from mustles communities (Egypartick, 2001). These were also a small number of musicians who recorded and performed some of the Nor-foundland dates reportive. Accordionis WIT Dojok, for example, relaxed his record "Figur and dates Nor-foundland" in 1867 CLR 1975;vol). These was therefore an interesting interest in performing beed "multilinual" and "folk" music in more formed contexts, such as recording and radio shows. by musicians, even as this music fill time difference and disturb by many popular and memoriates from popular between the foundation by many popular and communities.

As part of the generaling (trainmally when it interes in this immedia, the decoder after confidenciation also brought new venues for the performance of "multinesse" mains with the beginning of creations held in parks in St. Ashiri. Well-known musicians Frant Matter became the manager of the Harbour Insi in St. John's is 1999. He would often tables musicians to bring their interveness and held unrechabled sensions, joining in himself musicians to bring their interveness and held unrechabled sensions, joining in himself musicians bring the strength of the head the Matter Radiers recounts: "most of the clientide were longulocenses and trademon but musicians were always welcome. Frank head his host houly behald due her and was forever thinging it out for a haza and counters sensions" (The Matters Bathers Frank Matter al.). The Harbour Ins., then, increduced the pash as a venue for the performance of this music.

Thus, even as the professessor of "andiciousd Newfoundation study" performed in the centres of alexecs was declining in rend communities, there was increasing interest in the centre of the centre of

2.3 The folk revival

Despite growing interest in collecting and prescring fish weap and "multicound music," and the countion of stone new contexts for their performance, the dominates orf styles other than "multicolated Newforthford music" continued into the 1970's and later. Alex., a musician who was a temage in Sol. Joh's at the time resulted, "multicound musician area as by thing been," was not at all popular. If you have for tablished musician point during the channel on the radio, or whoever. Smalleyly, musician Billy Sotton resulted how the two us folic indicational music to be loard in Harbour Grace where he grow up in the 1970's and 1970s.

There was one gay when I was growing up... he was a box player and he loves traditional music, and he could play a few tames... Other than him by 1 dor.? I know of any holy he in Harbour Grane than the box of the state of the

Interest in music from "other" places or local non-"traditional" music therefore continued in the lives and practices of many musicians and listeners.

The late 190s and 1970s, however, also saw mulcians, particularly in St. John's, deliberately trying to increase the popularity of local flow and traditional mulci. They dulls en the efforts of those in the previous descended when the longely to consciously present and preserve. It. This priced is widely referred to as the Folk Revisid, though In may ways the goals of this inverents were a continuation from previous descends. As discussed, municians and others have been collecting and descendanting manifest from Newfoodinalasti since the late 19th century. In addition, despite a focus on "Social" traditions, music and municians from Ireland and other places, as well as local developments in other muscial agreems, continued in influence music in Newfoodinalastic and the second in the late 19th century.

Nevertheless, Pad., a modelin who was a tenugar in the 1970s, resulted how may people trained beauting more areas of florents and first hersings during this time. The establishment of the St. John's Folk Arts Council in 1966, have to become the Neverloomilined and Labouder Folk Arts. Society (NLFAS), much as formal variations and approximate of this assessment. A mesupper uniform the Daily Neves in 1968 trentars have "The St. John's Folk Arts Council has succeeded in making the public fully contained a Folk Arts and the dangers of these Arts becoming in state that security areas stated in the preserve them and to forter the contrive expression of Folk are art? Chally News, December 3.1, 1963. The lates expressed in this quote and one in the desire to contain the contribution of the Council Processing of the council and the contribution of the Council Processing of the council and the council processing of the counc

³¹ The St. John's Folk Arts Council (SIFAC) later became the Newfoundland and Labrador Folk Arts Council (NLFAC). In 2008 it was renamed to its current title, the Newfoundland and Labrador Folk Arts Society (NLFAS).

a bounded entity discussed in the previous chapter. Folk Arts were something being lost that needed to be saved before they disappeared. The Folk Revival movement therefore brought a greater consciousness to people in Newfoundland about ideas of "theritage" and "tadition" and their significance.

The influence of SIACNIALS and local discourses in suppose of "feringe" and "traditions" in the 1970s to the tap with of bands that performed Newfoundland "midsions" and "SiA music." These bands were part of the unquise conventual shift in the performance of this music to an urban setting and from peoples' homes to public performances. "Hom the kilcules to the engel" as one musician subverval. The St. John's Folf-Music Chief CASTINC, for example, began in 1976 with weekly garberings for the performance of inclinitional music, among other type of their and Murphy 1996. This "Side.

night" was later taken over by the NLFAC. Performances also became a regular feature of the St. John's Regunt and the NewSoundland and Labouher Felk Ferriral officially began in 1977. While the festival at that time had nowhere near the formality of large staged microphonol performances seen today, it represents a formal urban performance content for traditional and folk mosis.

One group that forward prominently in the revisal is NewGoodmade was Flagy

Delf Flagg Doll friends to 1875 and aution's speaks to the six-NewGoodmade was Flagg

Bell Flagg Doll friends to 1875 and aution's speaks to the new NewGoodmade with the continued and provide generations, such as the own of Harry Illustration and Will Doll, so the being Googname 1981-188-189, brande, following being break and Will Doll, so the being Googname 1981-188-189, brande, following being break and Will Doll, so the being Googname 1981-188-189, brande, following breaks the break and the size of the size of

Similar popularizations and revivals were also occurring in NewYoundland instrumental music at the time, to which Figgy Dulf also contributed. Musicians, such as foldlers fimile Benoit and Rufus Coinchard and accordionist Minnie White, were "discovered" from outport communities and they and their music were promoted throughout the bland. All learned their make is no endy support dance outset and continued to plot the music after diseases were no longer both, finall Poscoli, is periodical, in all not recognised for composing bit own tomes (Pringenick 2001; Mayaned 2001); Quigley (1995). As these musicians performed in field, festivals and concern, the performance context of Newfoundland donce music increasingly daffed to ploying for a linearing audience rather them as an accomposition of the community dances. Through these processes, are no successed of and interest in load "multileasile" and "diff" music was

growing in Newfoundland.

throughout the Island. As Gary told me,

Concurrent with these revivals in "traditional Newfoundland music," there was also growing interest in "traditional fish music." in Newfoundland, following its revival in the United States in the last 1960s (Saugers 1991:101). Several musicians from Protein musician to Newfoundland at that time and started bunds that became very popular

A whole brash of Informers, probably about six or eight of them who had been in Treorino and who had either met people from Newfoundards or who had, byt'd visited here, decided to come here and go to university or decided to more here and play mails. Angleb O'Brien, Chell Homencoey, Fegus O'Byrne. Dermot O'Beilly, Demis Ryan, a whole bunch of these goys. They were in groups like the Storn of Elin, Sullivar's O'Syne, E. gayn's Fazer, yearing the that All the same time that was happening there was a ket of Newfoundlanders here influenced by recursi like the Clares Horders.

Pat Byrne suggests this was therefore a second revival of Irish music in Newfoundland, with the influences of the McNulty family in the 1950s being the first (Osborne 2010:52).

The Sons of Erin played their first show in 1969 and Ryan's Fancy in 1971.

Ryan's Fancy also began their own television series, airing on CBC not long afterwards, that some musicians remembered watching. One musician from St. John's recalled:

Ryan's Fancy, they were a real big hit because they were on TV as well as in places like the Strand Lounge at the Avalon Mall. I would have been a little bit under-age but you could get in and hear them play a show, it was great fun. It was all new.

These bands further populational fields (and) New Goodshadt materia, for coining primarily on fifth soungs, adoing town throughout the Initiated and professioning regularly in N. Mork v. Another municiare contributed bits and pre-served finishing via Another municiare confidence of this and pre-served finishing via primary or communical heritage' and strend singing Rym's Timey soungs." The Irish (and) NewGoodshadt music jupped by Pynn's Timey and other groups than some to be viewed by reamy records in NewGoodshadt and Section 1.

Mouse from behaved also continued to influence intersecental mote in New-Youndard, Along with the memy tunes, pleyed by finalit benotic, Battle Guidardurd, and electromisticism beta had leich wright or the were a version of an Irish tune, municians were forming their respective around the tunes they were benefing from behavior. In their translations were forming their respective around the tunes they were benefing from behavior. In their translations were forming their versions are stated as the behavior of bright human, and othen played with municians visiting New Soundfard from briefland (Otheres 2007-1198). Bothe stores for Table Humbour also began reconsing tunes by bright began being a first human, and a translation of their present played around the property bright and the Chiefman. Table Humbour formed as a band or of centrom or version festivation and tracked municians from behavior and and Newdonalfund, verseling their first atheres in 1979.

The Irish influence, however, extended beyond simply the inclusion of Irish music and musicians. A professional musician named Jeremy explained to me how techniques of arrangement for instrumental tunes that originated in Ireland were also adopted in Newfoundland by bands such as Tickle Harbour that were playing and

recording Irish (and) Newfoundland music.

Something really extraordinary happened [in heland] – a classical composer tools a serious interact in randicional links music, Part of this is swapped up in the political climate and particions and breland wanted to have a music that was different from the foll results of the say going around in all these other countries. So anyway, Soin O Kinda decided that ... the decided that it would be even more as the countries of the co

He just said, well why not instead of having everybody play at the same time we kind of feature people, you know, like soloists any so usualther in a symphony. And, rather than having a blast of recish that starts load and fast and earls load and fast, well start with a slow air, we'll go into a reel and somehow we'll manage to go book into a slow air and into jigs or something... he actually formed Coolbirt Conlaman... he put these ideas into practice and he hired a bunch of musicians, including many of the founding members of the Clierthinas shid.

Of course, Paddy Molonow from the Chierthinas shid well can do this.

And so you got, it caught end And you got groupe like the Chieflains and Planxy and De Duman, A lot of those groups in the 70s figured, sow this regly is better. This really is more cool. It really does make the music more expressive. There is a deagure for fiddle tunes to so und all the same and it is with arrangement and accompaniment that one tune can be distinguished from another...

Of course, NewSoundland has always had such foodness for firish music,

And that's still true. It's engoing. In other words, a lot of Newfoundland music, or what's commonly played in Newfoundland is Irish. So, you know that some of those ideas about arrangement are certainly being used in Newfoundland music.

Jeremy's history discusses how Irish music came to influence music in Newfoundland in subtle ways, but also explores some influences on Irish music in Ireland as well. Tickle

Harbour's band biography illustrates these influences as it explains their music is "a

marriage of Irish and Newfoundland traditions. The band is acoustic, but doesn't shy away from fresh approaches to tunes, some familiar, some dug out of oblivion" (Tickle

Harbour n.d.). Thus, Irish (and) Newfoundland instrumental music began to grow in popularity in Newfoundland as a result of bands like Tickle Harbour that incorporated

ideas of arrangement used in Irish music, along with Irish music itself and Irish

musicians, but also featuring Newfoundland music and playing it in a Newfoundland context (Byrne 1991b).

Its ram, in a continuation of processes from the previous decades, traditional music was reviving firms a community context in the firm of local dances to an orbital modern process proceedings of the context procedy by predicted his bit. Johan's, Some groups such an Figge Duff were actively trying to promote and preserve Nordonalizad music, collecting tenses, sungs, and musicians from support communities. Other groups such a partial "Fine Processes" in Proceedings of the context of the processes of the processe

2.4 Pub sessions and professionalization

The revisit of more Vivile and 1980s against the growth of a variety of music secrets in St. John's Killering the popularity of grows like Ryan's Pinery, many other happing primarily and this facility for a first principal primary and the facility for the principal primary and the facility for the first principal primary for the first primary for the first principal primary for the first primary for the first principal primary for the first principal primary for the first principal primary for the first primary for first primary for the first primary for first primary for the first primary for first primary for the first primary for first primary for the first primary for first primary for the first primary for first primary for the first primary for first primary for the first primary for first primary for the first primary for first primary for the first primary for first primary for the first primary for the first primary for the

While mulcians had recorded alterns in the previous decades, the number of recording and by article in New Youndard continued by gree. Many of the beach continued above here moved antennees CD. The music cheerly because interestable preferentiand about recording inches were founded togetiming in the late 1970s. Pageon their Production by members for New York of the September of the late 1970s. Pageon their Production by members for KD green with members of 1970s. Suppose the was started by musician Jim Payne in 1980, and Anther Mails formed by Pameda Morgan, Anita Bots, both members of Figgs DM, and Anther Wall in 1981. Howevereding studies also because meeting that the Payne is recording studies also because meeting that the Payne is New York of the Payne Anther Sept. Sept.

In addition to the bands that performed and recorded mostly songs, new groups also formed to play and record intermental field (and Newfoundland mais. Sonly Variant Concession), and the concession of the part of mentions who paped supported support for the first at Forestry Canada but then recorded an Eart Const Manic Award (ECMA) for their 1997 record. ¹²⁸ Municians from briends and Newfoundland also collaborated on a 2001 CD that Record on personning the connections between finish and Newfoundland music, mutiled Manie of histories. Treatistical flower is connected in the Newfoundland "Vonce municians have also been learning ploying, and recording motional transcent mine. C: The Deducted to the Conference of the Newfoundland "Vonce municians have also been learning ploying, and recording motional intermental main. C: The Deducted who related and defidied CD in 2009 represent one such group. Finally, individual manifestim here also conference and conference of mention links (and Newfoundland Sentence).

²⁷ The East Coast Music Awards began in 1989 to promote professional music from the "East Coast" of Carada.
²⁸ See Obberne (2010) for a detailed exploration of the historical, personal, and musical processes involve

music including Duniel Payne, Dave Penny, Alan Ricketts, Kelly Russell, Christina Smith, Graham Wells, among others.²⁴

The perfusional trained and selection of the music, along with a flow on a preservation and promotion, the brought a shift in trainformal music to written most first trainformal immuneral music has been a written down for over a century. Furnish O'Noll's work allows the law book for example, were first published in 1903. While the coupling of the first map published in fill song qualification, only in the part three decades have books that focused primarily on Newfoundhard stores (as reposed to followage or time originating chewhort) new written and published in Newfoundhard. Actly Read and Carlification forth, many a few orders, they produced not evidence that

White many matrices met to play at house partice housed by house like Takle Halves, the opening of Erich 7th is 1986 indicates how pube became an incruningly important content for this matrix. This pub, which will be described in partire detail later, is counted and not by an information and, at local manifest for governed and "not by matrix methods for about 10 years of this pub life." By provided a venue for person made "on their tento", as well as for recold interaction and restorting. Along with the growth of pubs, sensions became an important content for the preformance of interaction materials. White protocol pubs, the public of pubs, the public materials are important content for the preformance of manufacture and information retained and existed proviously, formally scheduled sensions began in St. John's in the 1990 and 1990s.

³⁴ Well-known Irish piper Paddy Keenan also recorded his CD Na Know Affair in St. John's in 1997, produced with the aid of local musician and member of Tickle Harbour, Don Walsh. The CD includinges and ruspicions from NewYoundland (Paddy Keenan. com 2002).

Several scholers segges that the ensoiner has a context for the performance of traditional mosis, natured fitnessly the frield subspect in England and the United states in the 1950 and 1950s. These sessions were then transported back to Federal and 1950s and 1950s. These sessions were then transported back to Federal and 1950s and 1950s. The Several Severa

The first formal sessions in NewSoundland were started by two well-known Irish musicians, Seamus Creagh, a fiddler, and Rob Murphy, a thate player, who moved to St. John's in 1988 and 1982, respectively. A group of NewSoundland musicians I spoke with recall of:

Sam: So where did the idea of a session here come from?

Stever Oh yeah. I'm loxing it.

music across Ireland.

Erier All that Irish crowd. Chrise It was an Irish thing developing, it was an Irish influence, yeah. Erier Yeah, that's where the idea came from. It was Roh, and all that crowd. Chrise Seamus and all them. It was a great idea. Erier It was a good idea. turns out.

[&]quot;Generals Conduct Conduct (Excuses in a cognization formed in blendad in 1911 with the goal of procuring and presenting randison that he such Exc origination is now found interestantly, efferently investigates, period searces, and enterest relating to traditional field music. They shall be talk attend for footies, workshope, printed searces, and excuses relating to traditional field music. They shall be talk attend for the contraction of the contraction in the contraction. These congestions contracts in the Contract Contraction of the Cont

These sessions then took hold in St. John's in the late 1990s and 2000s as other local musicians joined in and, later, began their own sessions. Everlyt Orbonne (2010) argues that the influence of these Irish musicians on the music performed in St. John's and in the development of a local session scene thereby represents a third revival in Irish music in Newfoundinal.

The various sensions moved through a wide variety of research fromplot of 1990s and 2000s, some association with NLTA and their DNA light and others non-independently researches varieties (and their pre-independently researches). Bedinger is a Politic to longer in existence, Bedinger is a Politic to longer in existence, Bedinger is Politic to longer in existence in Bedinger is a Politic to Bedinger in Politic to Capital N. Bedinger is a Politic to Bedinger in the Bedinger in Beding

However, some musicians who regularly attended the O'Reilly's session realized the potential of busing their own sensions, partly as a source of income, and began several other scheduled sessions in St. John's. These have led to the prominent sension server greater in St. John's today. Brian, a musician who plays at many sessions in St. John's, recalled:

I remember when a group of kind of break-off musicians decided to start another [specien] at the same time at another bar... And here we are, you know, probably

for or in symmels are with six resultsons on the ga. And then you can literally read from one to another you. I follow almost reasons the sessions occur is had of the control of the con

Brian's narrative outlines how sessions became a commercial venture for musicians and pubs, along with being a venue for musicians to play music. He also discusses how musicians' travels to reland influenced the session scene here leading to the current "explosion" in sessions in St. John's that will be explored in the next section.

In som, in the part few denders, statistical martie in NewGoodsmide has become accounted and profession dendersors. This content of the optimization denough the influence accel argument preparating of their marks, as bands and hadrolands could move cars an income performing, as well as through the exclusing of ideas about the performance of mass in the final and elevenhers, accession and becomes a perform year only religious particular all five the constraints and becomes a performance of musicians from Instant. I now discuss the option agreement of the profession and performance contexts that force applied of other music accession (a) and a performance outside that the option of the music accession is all performance contexts that force applied on the performance outside that force of 2000.

2.5 The St. John's traditional music scene in 2009

During my fieldwork period, musicians could attend as many as seven public scheduled sessions per week in addition to private or less regular gatherings that would occur and other performances such as Folk Night. On Mondays, beginning in early August, there was a section at Erin's Poli. On Tuesdays, there were above sentimer.

Austic Carlo's in the alternoon and the Congrations and Nantical Natics' in the revening.

On Whendrought ower Partial Congo, in the one similars has been remomber, as well as fails Night at the Ship Pub Inter in the entiming. On Fridays there was a restine at Erin's pub. On Standardy them were two sentiments on Carlo's Standardy thous were two sentiments on Austical Natific's in the attention out of the one at Shameno, city as how atthreasts, although this later sension entitle in only Jose, Findly, on Sindays there was an afternoon sension at Drifte Mattler's.

I attended many of these sessions nearly every week from May to August 2009, with the exception of Tuesday evenings at Nantical Nelin's 1, provide a brief outline here of these key sessions and the pulso where they took place. I also touch on other venues and contexts for the performance of traditional brish (and) Newfoundland music in St. John's.

2.5.1 The downtown sessions

I um categorising the sensions within this section as the "downtone restions." These include sensions at Erick 7 Joh, Naradiol Mellir 8, Suemock, City, and Bridle Molloy's. They had an unwheer of harme featuress including a high level of prodosimation and municality, several municians who attended or housed all of these restions regularly, and a common location in the downtons over of St. John's on other Water Store or Gorge Storet. While I draw on examples from specific sensions throughout this thesis, I also refer to the downtones sensions in a general sense, where appropriate. The municious at these sessions were mostly in their late reservoir to early foolious, with the occasional younger or older municious. They were mostly professional municious with the occasional positious and board policy in foother bands, with the occasional buginers in attendance in well. Visiding municious from our of a trans, persione, or country also sometimes used to the sensions, persionley the Fridering inflate in Fridering Art and in Fridering Art and of municious from the foothermalized and eleventhe therefore regularly standed from sensions. The municious were primarily made. Over a total of 9 sensions that I artended at Bride Modelly, 's, the everage proportion of somes was 20 process, and over 15 sensions affects. And the everage proportion of somes was 40 process. I model are respectively made over 15 sensions and ever 15 sensions are fairly in the exercise proportion of some own and 30 process. I model are respectively and only once are or one women them tone, when there were two visiting female municious in twos.

2.5.1.1 Erin's Pub

One session that I regularly attended during my followless was the Tribity sight session at Erich York, because in Winer Steers. This session began officially in 2000, though one greates commented to see that they remembered operateneous unscheduled sessions at Erich's before this time, often on Tribity rights. The session was bested by Graham Welfe, a welf-shown local according piper who also piper with the Irich December of the Proprisonal y referred med in many other bands. The session unsulfy started around \$2.50 p.m., orders for musicians showed up for that work. It was the most dynamic of the downstron sensions, likely due to its long-running durinties, hereby built its required, and always approximate from a four Erich grided, I was be for the sensions sensions.

as fifteen to twenty musicians playing in the session on a given night. It efficially ended around 1.100 p.m. when the band was supposed to begin its performance, but on a good night and with an accommodating performer the session could run much later. There were regular audience members who often came to watch the session and the bar staff was smallly the same every fridar evention.

Exist's was known as a muticianic plus as many of the local musticians have outprigned hanging out and have played at open mine sights or in different band performances over the years. The pub opened in 1986 and was omend by Raight O'Hrien, binned fa musician from brinder who has much Everfoordinable his horse. He was also a monther of the hoad he from of Exist. The platest was related was mined with the platest in the back right corner from the entrance. Video Lettery Terminal (VLT) muchines and the back right corner from the entrance. Video Lettery Terminal (VLT) machines and the back right corner from the entrance. Video Lettery Terminal (VLT) machines and the back right corner from the entrance. Video Lettery Terminal (VLT) machines and the back right corner from the entrance. Video Lettery Terminal (VLT) machines and the back right corner from the entrance. Video Lettery Terminal (VLT) machines and the back right corner to the second of the will be back right or the second or the videous backing on time. Video Stock, The washes were painted green and opened various "Fishe" decorations powers for Calimenes been, a poster for the Michael Calime more depended on the front of the VLT of the North Calime moved and the same fine of the Michael Calime, and sharmous's painted on the front of the VLT of the North Calime moved as part of the North Calime moved as the second of the VLT of the North Calime moved as the contract of the North Calime moved and the contract of writing.)

From early August until early October, 2009, there was also a Monday veening session from 7:30 – 10:20 p.m. at Erin's. This session was horsted by Billy Satton, a well-known multi-instrumentalist who also played in Celtie-Rock band the Fables. The pub was often close to empty during this session. One evening when I attended there was no

one but musicians and the buttender for much of the night. For the few months it was held, the number of musicians that would join and play ranged from two to eight. The atmosphere on Monday nights seemed to me more cassal, with less drinking by musicious not authors the Feider night round in the most.

2.5.1.2 Nautical Nellie's

There were two senious held at National Notific's thousquisor or ficilities of an Taxolog receiving from 7.00 – 9.30 and the other on Standing durinous finest, so on Taxolog receiving from 7.00 – 9.30 and the other on Standing decision for the operation of 2.000 and the Taxolog senior in the spring of 2.000. (The latest changed to Standing creating from 8.00 – 10.000 in September 10.000 and both were stilling decisional close the design of 10.000 in September 10.000 and the senior standing creational design the changed creating in the late spring of 2.000). These sensions were both to hearted by Gathon Wells and Billy Solaton. I lavore standards on Taxolog as it consisted with the Georgienes photocology to be solated to the contraction of the sension of the contraction of the contr

The pub was located on Water Street, not far from Erist's, on the opposite side of the street. It labelled itself as a "ruse English-style pub," serving food as well as drinks (Nantical Nelliës n.d.), It was decreated with a nuntical theme throughout, with dark beavily sumished tables. The edge of the bir was carved to appear knotted and there was a chain stretched along its length. The but ran along the left wall from the entrance, with a mail space between the but and the windows looking out on Witert Street, cought room for a small table with call all around. This space was where the musicians would often sit. It was small, may be six feet by six feet, though I saw as many as seven musicians sources into the area.

2.5.1.3 Shamrock City

Shamest City was naturally see up the time spring of 2000. It was also because of Water Disease, but further was from the other two pubs and nature out of the entermost to the inflaments Gauge Street. It had laund must about this pub before I ever went from secretal people in town who thought it was very finity and fall of laths, with bright permeat any later, Californ is been with thought it was very finity and fall of laths, with bright meaning the secretary of the pubs and the mane intell "Shamest City," When I went inside, however, I was surprised to see that I was quite subshed with five decountions on the dark wood walls. There was a reside setting are maderly on the right time the enteror does, mustaked Pay a does rating, up and the law took up a large space directly to the laft. The musiciens set at the tables by the windows, beaking out onnow Water Street and, even though the windows we covered by the great and system is comed to the service of the state of the service of the state of the service of the state of the stat

The Shamrock City session was named early fall 2008 hat ended in early Jane 2009. It was also co-basted by Billy Satton and Graham Wells and took place fool – 8:00 p.m. on Saturday evenings. This session was similarly advertised as an advanced session on the Session eng: "all are welcome, however, this is not a beginners session. It is more of an advanced receive, and setting is generally limited to more advanced players, as it is

not a big venue" (was 2008s). I only standad this session more before it was consolled by the pub which wasted build singers as performers in order to compare with the contributions at other nearby pubs on a Satindary ceeping. That night's sensitive was standard by fire intermediates to highly advanced miscission. The space available to mutations was bigger than that at National Nellic*, where musicisms were bound in or all sides. I remember busing comments from the municious that sight that the pinn were very good, referring apprintability to the Coliness.

2.5.1.4 Bridie Mollov's

The session as Biolia Mediop's, Julic that at Firs's Pub. Apagin is 2000. (It was, however, cancelled in December 2010). The pub itself was located on Goorge Storest and formered a larger around anothe led file from the entrance, with the her right in the centre of the pub. There was sensing available throughout the pub, some with limited visual access to the stage. The area between the stage and the here are define the energy as an exact for densing during band performances. However, this was a does better the musicians would set up their table to play. The sension ran from 4.50 – 7.50 p.m. or Sindey attractions. It was originally so-bested by Goshom Wilds and Colle Carligan but Billy Status he tore solidor's place. The part's pramites beaution or closurge Storet often drew tourists for the sension as did in extensive means of Irish deemed pub-grab and menchanding for sale. The occasioned regular and ence member would come and wasts the sension, but not on any as would come or livin's early work.

The session was often small, usually with three to six musicians playing. I always thought it was more casual than the other sessions, being held on a Sunday afternoon. Sometimes there would be parents with their young children in the audience, having a late lunch or early dinner while listening to the music. In addition, although the musicians would drink their choice of beer for the day, they also would also often drink coffee and would often have plates of wings and nachos during or after the session. The audience was not as loud as at Frin's on a Friday night but often attentive to the music and musicians. However, the location on George Street also sometimes meant noise from other venues along the street interfered, particularly during the summer when many festivals were happening.

In sum, these doubtours sessions were quite diverse. The numbers of musicians in attendance, as well as the pub and performance atmospheres varied significantly among sessions. Yet, they also featured regular hosts, performers, and performances with a focus on professional quality music, as well as similar locations in downtown St. John's. These commonalities are narticularly evident when command to the other sessions in town, at the Georgetown pub. Auntie Crae's, and Fiddle Group.

2.5.2 The Georgetown Pub The sessions above contrast with the session at the Georgetown pub in many ways. The Georgetown pub session was the only scheduled public session in St. John's that I attended during my fieldwork that was not located in the downtown area, but instead is in the Georgetown neighbourhood on Hayward Avenue. While it was often thought of as a neighbourhood pub, one musician explained.

That pub, it has tamed a lot but it used to be the stories about it all involved drug deals and violence and very load drunken people. And basically nobody who lived in the neighbourhood would actually go to that pub. I'm not sure where everyone comes from who goes there, but it wasn't in the neighbourhood,

Inside, there were two pool tables to the left from the door and VLTs directly to the right. The har was located in the right corner from the entrance. The barracter was the entervery work and over had a finounite trant, called "Last in the Merning," The municians would air at two retremplate tables a few for away from the door. The pub cat, Tally, a white and omage calism, would either more in and out of the pub dring the sension. There were also frequently a cought of patrons at the VLT machines. During the summer, become, these sensemed to be a gowing unather of people who came for the pupous of section and internal to the call of the pupous of section and internal with machines. The audience also often weight to internat with manicians, mentime asking if they could rigg a song themselves, which was welcomed, to an extent. It be the case machine.

The session healf and no pull have. A couple of manter ministens, one of whom was from the neighbourhood, appreciated for her owners saking if they could use the pull not street. They usuald nonewhere they could get regular and play, where everyone was worken and to one was in change. This session was held on Tuesday receitings stating at about \$2.00 p.m. and usually ending around \$1.00 p.m. had there was no set attempt at about \$2.00 p.m. and usually ending around \$1.00 p.m. had from was no set of the country of the country

Monitorium et the Conegutows spot nargal it say from their resertion to the risked with most between their yau did fly. Many of the moistic mass she played at Conegutows were from "way," mensing they were not been in Newdomfland. Several visiting musicians from our of previous absc come to the Conegutows assists throughout the musicum. In contract to the chromitors to their contracts in the Conegutows pads sergond 44 percent women in stratedness over the ton sensions at which I recorded attentions. (Conegutows pads sergond 44 percent women in stratedness over the ton sensions at which I recorded attentions.) (The Conegutows sension is also origining throughout the time of writing a).

2.5.3 Auntie Crae's

There was a finite serious held an Tendary, sings with the Comprehens serious and the Tendary Namicial Nelivia's sension. This sension took place or a Americ Cars' in the early afteneous, sussip susuals 220 to 2-100 pc. In hal been menting since 11999 when Americ Cars' in more than their Sension was Water Store, one for them the enterous to George Store and a few soom from Office's Shades (Sens. Club sension emided in December 2010 when Austic Cars' s closed downs.) Austic Cars' was as "specialty front store," the facts to served their to effect of the store, and the size of the sension happening in the city, and must pleas and become a finite device the neighbor of designing wear that all become all their device of the sension of the sension of the sension happening in the city, and must pleas and become all their device the relative of the enterose or the enterose or the enterose or the sension of the enterose or the sension of the enterose or the enterose or the enterose or the enterose or the sension of the enterose or the sension of the enterose or the enteroor or the enterose or the enteroor or the enteroor or the enteroor

other side of the room was a display case featuring various items including fish hooks and a bothstin. The small round table below and to the right of the display case often had a little red "musicians" scarling" sign on it on Tuesday afternoons and this was where the musicians would til.

The regular musicions at the Americ Carl's restrict work beaves at the "America" House Banch, "featuring Frank Marbor and Mexicions naccordina, Andere Lang on mendels, and Rick Wart on bodhelin. Often one or two other musicions would join for this section, but those from fermed the over group. The comments on the Checkeniuming for the section annual: "Index with marter "fryou beave" Zunes are ZHO. Come to play, come to learn, or just come to little, and the first of deficient "(Andrea 2006, Occasionally) the musicians would sign some, or one of the regular andience members would as for someone case in the surface and pregnate and commenders would as for someone case in the surface and the surf

The sage demongraphic of the Austic Cark's audiences was older than that at the other sessions. Many regulars came every Turndary adversaon to here some hunds and watch the music, but purents also came with their levy roung dilutions for the same perpose, and there were many tourisin throughout the summer. The small common room was often so fill that Turndary administration was offered to transfer and the contrady and the same to the contrady to the same to the same to the contrady and the same to the contrady to the same to

and the arrangement of tables, people often ended up sitting with people they did not

Similar to the composition of the audience, the say demonspapils of the musicians and the idea. The ages of the Austic Care's beam members ranged from their fifter to eighties. Still, often dering the summer several young musicians in their trenders would attend as well. Given the time of day during the week, the audience and musicians were restricted to those without deprime, jobs unless they came on their hunds breek. The gunder ratio at Austic Care's was convenhentingly made with a weaper actio of 15 process women as the session memoded over oferon sensions.

2.5.4 Fiddle Group

In additions with public autismics, falso usught to explore more informal music sectors. I therefore attended what is known in "Fidditic Chings" during the period of region of the period of the peri

be considered exclusive in that only certain people knew where it took place each week and were invited to attend (one visiting musician claimed that it was a "club"), it was open in the sense that anyone with an instrument who wanted to learn and play was welcome, no note of till musired.

The group consisted of ansater musicians, with only one musician who played tradicional music preferringing on a regular basis and a small number of others who had pulped others spin of music gredinationally. Most of the musicians were not been in Newfoundand and the age range of those who atmoded was from their investion to eighties, with most being heteroes thirty and fifty. Several members of FAMAC though also and their contractions of the contraction of the prefer ratio was reasonably behaviour which had present of those to the Goorgettown sension, the genter ratio was reasonably behaviour which had present of those in attendance over elevant weeks being women during the opting and summer of 2000. FAMAC Crossp has also continued throughout the time of writing, as has my own pretrictionfies in the group.)

2.5.5 Other venues and events

These were also wares other from neurones where musclime played traditional brish (and NewYood and and many facilities). The follows. In all the were part of the traditional main exemedy in 8.5. Abrils. These included field for facilities, concern, I folk Night, and other performances in pals. There were several folk fortivals held throughout the previous dering the assumer that fouced on promoting and promoting traditional and folk manie. I standed two of these. The first was the Shammock Fertical held on John 25th and 25th in Fernylands. The manie and this fortival included a wide variety of other such as

pops, folic, country, Celice-ooks, Celice-bluegrams, and trafficional and was widely attended by local communities as well as some touries. The second feedival I attended was the 33rd around Newfoundland and Labracker fisik Feririo label in Buttermann Park in St. John's, an extensive feedival that featurated local and intensitional performers and diverse range of missional sples locately related with "Sidia" main, Examples of other feedivals that I did not amond include the Trails, Tales and Tunes feedival in Northi Point (bold May 14 – 23 in 2009) and the Busches According feedival held in Europeri (Job) 10 – 19 in 2009).

Fig. 10, Sight was a regular even for the performance of Fish² music, which of the middle million and final from Newtonialland means of the Hingmanny transfered during my findlework. As mentioned above, this weekly event was natural in the 1970s by the SIFMC and was later taken over by NLFAC. This here taking place on Webstenday night not the SiFMC place from Simple Park from Simple was been standed for Simple and worked fish sight either as an auditors member as performer. Other performance that it introduct over the summer includes concernly for cand O O Gelda, as folding from performer control and Lynah Jacksons and Bernadore ric Galbane, to folding from performance and and I related, requestively. The connect tool place at the Govern Store United charts. It was required by and also featured as land up or formers as word local minimies. They performed a variety of traditional intermental means from beland and the Sheland Mohals. While such formed occurs were reliablely interluped.

Pub, and Shamrock City also had regular performers on most nights of the week, often performing some form of Celtic/folk music. I attended these only on occasion.

As mentioned, the music sense is 18, Julia's also included more private and informal settings. Talkid: Group being one example, substaines would sensember as their homests to play music and socialize in a less scheduled numer. I had less access to such settings, though 1 de form or other musicians at their homes for the less access to such settings, though 1 de form or other musicians at their homes for the propose of playing some time on a couple of constains. I will down and liber to reserve and events throughout this thois to explore and understand for traditional music scene in Schabit's and musicians leves in sed frough these senses. However, as I discuss in the Schabit's and musicians leves in sed frough these senses. However, as I discuss in the mark sense and the sense of the sen

Chapter 3: Methodology - Playing the field

This obsper discusse the netholological approaches I used thoughout my fieldwock. I "mercure" the field, however, ingo before my research was conceptiational officiality began. This chapter therefore begins with a discussion of these early introductions to playing bith (and) Newfoundland music and interacting with musicious. These scalines my research guids at the hepitaling of my fieldwork and how they chapted in progressed. Hereing sendablesh how reason was remember high cliness my approaches during fueldwork in undertaking participant observations and conducting interviews. This discussion includes my own roles in relation to other musicions, how they changed droughout or fiddhords, and how they influenced my observations and expediences of the music and musiciant" interviews.

My field-work, however, was not circumscribed to a nearly defined "place," and to I also provide a theoretical discussion of my "field" and my place within it. I explore the performative nature of my field-book, shusting my self as a participant in the music and my own research. I also discuss how my situateshows within my field-book (and the situation of my feld-book within my fifely musilests in the swriting of this thesis.

3.1 Early introductions

I came to Memorial University of Newfoundinals with an interest in studying out traditions in Indual. Not long after moving to \$0. John's in September 2008 to long the Mater's in anthropology, however, I changed my research location to Newfoundinal. I was also invival to join Fallie Group, decorbed briefly in the previous depart, only a month after artiving in the province. A second year master's student in my program, who was already a member of the group, learned of my research interests and that I play flute; he brought me to the group for the first time on October 8, 2008. After this first meeting I continued to attend almost every week.

I was not an active participant municularly in ny first several months since I was beginner us playing traditional munic, despin many sean of playing classical and convent and musics on the first Non-members of Fladific Group, however, started as beginners themselves and were continuing to learn the music and their instruments, so my role within the group was appropriets. I also became an active participant windly, engaging with other numbers in classical municular desired production and social content. For example, I participated in the group's performance at the local Full Night held by the Newfoordlind and Labrador Fulls, the School principal content of the local Full Night held by the Newfoordlind and Labrador Fulls, the School principal content of the local Full Night held by the Newfoordlind and Labrador Fulls, that School principal contents are of the local play for an examining player's Heldudy.
Playing traditional brish (and) Newfoordlind music and socializing with municious then became an important part of the julic forming bring producing and socialized in the content produced and accident to the "Individual Indig Newfoordlind music and socializing with municious then became an important part of the julic forming bring producing and accident for the memory municious and socializing with municious then became an important part of the julic forming bring producing and social that for money municious and socialization and socialization municious for the School Report profession for forming fields social Report profession for forming fields social Report profession for forming fields social Report profession for municipal producing and accident producing municipal producing and accident producing accident producing and accident producing and accident producing and accident produ

I also gized once ethougapite insight into my research hope before my thesis followes began. During the full zero of 2008, concurrently with my early participation in Fiddle Group, 1 was taking a methods conce entitled Fidd-base, that Interpretation of Culture" from Dr. Wayne Fife. One minigrament entitled two self-reporting projects (see Fife 2005/107-116), by the time of this minigrament in Neuvelneb 2008, I had some left and my research would consider "miniformal form shows it in Networking and and to I

approached two members of Fiddle Group for the project. I saked them to take 10 - 15 photographs of what it meant to them to yelp fitch music and provide me with short descriptions of why they took each photograph. I was immensely pleased with the effort and creativity that they demonstrated in taking these photographs. This small assignment introduced me to the depth of meaning that individuals could attribut to music.

My suppose focused on the same of identification with Newfordandist due those two members, who had moved to the foliated in the previous decade, had found and created through plotting this massie. The assignment was therefore an early introduction for me to a themse that forms a component of this thesis: the sense of belonging and place that musciess form and copress through plotting first lend). Newfordandist music, discussed in chapters 6 and 7. My contact and involvement with Fiddle Group, while first bring an inoportion part of my fifs, became a usuful reasoners in epopulary to quantity the first bring an inoportion part of my fifs, became a usuful reasoner in expensing up questions about the St. John's music source, the musicians, and the music. These understandings belonged an elevelope my research groups and methods in a Propund my present proposal, and last permodels and productions for "budgeinging" my findlework.

3.2 Research goals My original research plan focused specifically on Irish music and exploring how

musicians related to ideas of "frishness" in St. John's through playing this music. I hoped to address these questions through participant observation, primarily at sessions, as well as through interviews and self-reporting projects with musicians playing this music. There were four main areas of investigation relating to musicians that I hoped to address:

 The musical biographies of musicians, including how musicians came to play Irish music and the role it plays in their lives;

- Musicians' ideas of whether and how choice of musical style relate to an identity
- as "Irish" or as "Newfoundlander";
 Interpretations of what constitutes Irish music. In particular, I was interested in how musicians distinguish or delimit Irish and Newfoundland music, and why such distinctions are important of at all.
 - Perceptions about the government promotion of arts and culture as an industry, including issues of "authenticity" in relation to Irishness and Irish music.

I also hoped to address several facets of the historical, social, economic, and political context within which musicians play "traditional Irish music," including:

- The shifting perceptions and popularity of traditional music, including traditional
- Irish music, in Newfoundland;

 The changing portraval of Irishness in Newfoundland by the tourism industry:
- The promotion of arts and culture, including the promotion of Irishness and Irish music by government policies;
- The influence of these policies on opportunities available to musicians.

As my research progressed, however, I realized that the boundaries between Irish and Newfoundard mateir were much more contented that I initially thought. Thus, rather than focus assley on measuring pelage "maintain prints" maintain information. Team to incorporate municians with varying fiel on Irish (and) Newfoundard mateir. I did this so as not to impose my own definitions of the general to include the many different understandings of color the Specifyronia are difficult in Color the Specifyronia are difficult in Colorado (in Colorado).

I also came to focus more on quotienes surrounding municiant lives and the meanings they expressed about traditional music, rather than broader debates about the tourism industry and government prictice. This shift was partially due to time limitations. But it was also because, while I continued to ask questions in interviews about those broader issues, the musiciant I pape with also focused most on saturdives about music in the live for the supported, the dynamics and importance of sessions, and the music they played. Rather than being simply a window conto other topics and the primary locus of my fieldwork, the sension inself therefore also became a primary focus of my research. Sensions were significant as a vesue for the performance of frish (and) Newfoundland music, as a site of interaction among musicians, and as an opportunity to see, bear, or exercisence toxics discussed in interviews.

3.3 Fieldwork methodologies

My ficklowsk officially began on May 7, 2009, the day I took my fern field notes. When I began my research, as discussed above, I had almady enthilided contexts and knowledge of the place and loydic, Since my research took place in the steme only as my asadomic studies! also had my supervisor and friends study for feedback, support, or company at the paths. Neverthelaes, like many field-horders, I was occerned throughout much of my field-hord with questions show whether I was "today it right" in terms of parting my planned methodologies into practice. Regardlers, I discuss here my experiences and methodologies into practice. Regardlers, I discuss here my cupricesces and methodologies into practice. Regardlers, I discuss here my conferences and methodologies into practice and methodologies into practice.

3.3.1 Participant observation

I upon the finet meand of my fade-work exclusively on participant observation. Wayne Fift describes this process as one that starts with learning "through observation and analysis; then we text these analyses not by attempting to participate in the life world that we are currently analysis; "Give 2005.72.). This brief definition provides a highly associant summary of my fide-bawks. During the first nearth, proceeded to immerse any participating in the seasons as Erin's, any appeal in observing and then sometimes tensifiedly participating in the seasons as Erin's,

Nautical Nellie's, Shamrock City, Bridie Molloy's, and Austie Crae's, as well as Folk Night. I endeavoured to meet and interact with musicians and to learn about musicians' lives and the music they olaved.

I also continued to attend Fiddle Group on a member and munician However, while I informed members of Fiddle Group of my research and the nick I hoped they might play in it, my participation in the group on and my relationships with its members changed linke beyond wheat I had experienced during my first seven members of playing with them. From the exact of my fidelever it also streaded the Georgetown poly sension as amoniform. In all provisions who has been similar by a member of Fiddle Group who helped ment the Congettown sension. I have sensioned and fit is easily with the regular memicians partially because I had a compatible skill level, repertoire, and existing sensions.

With the exception of these two groups, however, I was an auditone enterbrief man do from field-book. I limitally observed the downstroam and Austic Can's sensitive from a nearby shall. I also sport much time of a Austic Can's talking with members of the audience, several of whom were regular struckers. I minifely that additions towards between may position in the audience and the inward facing circle of moistiens at the various section. As a result, I worted about holy gas audience member becaused was surrout that would have enough contact with musicious. After structing the First's ensuine for a couple of words, however, I began to pull up a chair jost notable the circle of musicious actor to amendment already shows. The boundary was not as send at I had

originally imagined and I was introduced to several musicians and met others due to my proximity and regular presence at the sessions.

After approximately a month, I became acquainted with several of the regular musicians at the downtown sessions and I told some of them that I play the flute and had also begun to teach myself how to play the tin-whistle. Many of them encouraged me to bring my instruments and join the sessions, supporting musicians' assertions that the session was a learning environment - an issue discussed in chapters 4 and 5. I spent several weeks answering to them that I felt I could not keep up and that did not possess the repertoire needed to participate while they responded that it did not matter. I did eventually join in the downtown sessions as a musician, beginning one evening in mid-June when I was citting just outside a very large session at Erin's. The session had already been going for a couple of hours and a tune that I knew came up. I had my whistle in my purse, pulled it out, and played along, tired at this point of just sitting and watching. After this initial time, I would sometimes bring my instrument to Erin's, as well as to Bridie Molloy's, though often only after again being told to join and play, Eventually, I also began to play at Auntie Crae's, in a similar manner as I had at Erin's one afternoon in late July I joined in on a tune I knew after sitting listening through much of a session. Yet, while I began to join the table of musicians and play along with tunes I knew, the skill level and repertoire at the downtown and Auntie Crae's sessions vastly exceeded my own. As a result, I continued to spend much time sitting, listening, and watching even if I was seated within the circle of musicians.

Being an audience member who made the transition into being a musiciar provided me with perspectives on the boundaries created and enforced between the two positions, how they can be crossed, and by whom. I draw on these insights in chapter 6, where I discuss the various social connections musicians form and the different ways musicians and others can "belong" at sessions. In addition, identifying myself as a beginner musician and joining the session allowed me a better understanding of the internal dynamics of a session. As mentioned, I gained insight into the importance of sessions to musicians as a musical and social context for the production of traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music. At first I conceived of the sessions reimarily as a venue for meeting musicians who play this music, with some conception that perhaps the spaces were important in terms of the symbols displayed and boundaries asserted among musicians. Through my observations, discussions, and especially through participation, however, other dynamics seemed to emerge in terms of etiquette and interactions among musicians that brought the sessions much more into the central focus of my research, as will be evident in several chapters of this thesis.

Anthropologies Michelle Riginales, however, critiques in he ratide "Wey I'm not an Ethnomaticulgie: A View from Anthropology" the privileged nature accorded to minimizens an followines (Riginale 2002-2913; Exempt has more in order mixtukenty seen as sumething that can only be understood and authoritatively discussed by musiciacul (Riginale 2002-29); Ethnomaticologie Bur Ferinste, in discussing bia strempts to learn the Northunderian small-pipes, suggests, for example, that privilegings and experiencing provided a different way of "reviewing" that has based more or Testing. enotion and experience." (Felimak, 1995.503), I will discum below the role of "mindout" and "washing" positions in anthropological field-took, but briefs), I do not clim that I completed a surjeas or experience in longitude now to more inclinately participating as a marician. An montioned, my participation as a marician was infinite in memy wesy to any participation as an audience member. Freeling, emotion and experience." as ways of a "horouring" are also quely wailable to audience members as ministime, origin from a different prospective. Participating are a monician, and had disubstrategras. Such participation means, for example, that others were more up to freger that I was due to recenture. In addition, there were certain questions that I found more difficient to suke such as questioning perfectional maricians about the opinion on beginners are underly assistant to experience and and also received in the procession of the found more difficient to suke such as questioning perfectional maricians about the opinion to religioners are noting resistant to each of the also requires a maricinal position to exclude the about new areas for my personers.

While estation became my primary focus and for key locus of my participant is observation, I did attend and participant is actions capacities in other versues, such as board performances in piles and Teil Night, as well as concern, the Sharmorth Feitwird, and the 33rd Annual Northenselline and Lebrader Teil Teil-old. There I would often join monicious in the suddener to would the preformances, allowing me to most others and discouss various topics sometimes relating to my research. It was also all the to observe what networks would consense for certain performances, allowing me to most others and discouss various topics sometimes relating to my research. It was also all the to observe what networks would consense for certain performances, in what expection, any symbols or boundaries that were expressed and assented, and how performances differed from sections as a contest of "Amilitant Innic."

There were several other spaces that I could have attended regularly to meet musicians playing Irish (and) Newfoundland music, including a Women's Accordion Circle that meets weekly at the St. John's Arts and Culture Centre, another weekly gathering of according players as the Mews Community Centre (though this was not active during the summer), and several public performances. However, due to limitations of time and scope I close to concentrate on the note of sensions as a space of production for this music, with the occasional forcy into other venues.

Through my participation I became further integrated into certain social networks of musicians. I also became a more skilful musician, with a larger repertoire as the summer progressed (though I still feel as if I have much to learn). One significant reason for this improvement is that I was taking time to practice at home. I justified this practicing as a form of fieldwork, partially to allow myself to indulge in the activity. However, it was also an appropriate endeavour in my assumed role as a beginner musician, essential if I were to continue learning, participating, and contributing at sessions. In addition, it provided insight into and experience of the learning processes involved in playing traditional music. My increasing proficiency also allowed me to become a much more active participant in Fiddle Group and the Georgetown sessions. This, in turn, allowed me a greater understanding of the interactions among musicians of various skill levels as I moved from being a relative beginner and occasional participant to an active contributor. These insights will be discussed in chapter 4 where I explore the process of becoming a "traditional musician" and chapter 5 in considering negotiations over hierarchies based on ability and status that take place at sessions.

The participant observation portion of my fieldwork formally ended on August 17, 2009, when I stopped taking field notes. My participation in sessions, however, continues now throughout my writing process. This participation is no longer "field-work" but is an important part of my life, just as Fiddle Group was part of my life before my field-work legam. What lobserse and experience at sessions now does not form part of my research date, but in exerciseless continues to inform my ideas as I write this thesis (Guidner 1999; Hamper 1992;124-125).

3.3.2 Interviews

Starting June 1, 2008, I began interviewing participants in order to gain greater insight into the meanings missions antibuted to playing light (and). New-foothealmen and their reflections on scriences as a context for the porformance. Interviews and participant observation did not complicitly overlag as interviews included discussing aspects of manifestim 'municial' lives beyond their participation and sensions, as well as topics that could not be easily magaged with while as a sension. I draw no both these parts of my research throughout this thesis. Chapters 4 and 7, lowever, m/y more estimately on interview material is considering municians' munical experiences throughout this lives and symbolic meanings associated with place and culture that municians stands to their munic.

I chose participants from the municipan I next of the sessions and I Falfe Group, as well as musicians sub-wave aggreded to no because they had played at sessions in St. John's in the part. My guid was to explore the mensions as bond range of musicians authorised to this musician and to it attempted to choose participants of drivers ages. And the contraction of the musicians are formed to the contraction of the musicians are until to the execution. I musicipant of energy played are profited in the next section. I musicipant out of the interviews by obtaining participants' contact to the next section. I musicipant contact to

information at a session and then whethfulg an interview by phone or e-mail. I endeer-mored to be discrete about this process, to help maintain the asseptively of those who I did atterview. I also did not epock about interviews while at assession, again to maintain the principe of principation. However, perincipation (as season again to participation (as performens in a public place) and the fact that my topic was not considered to be participatively sensitive. I foll conformable making requests for interviews while at assessions. Everyone I epoke with was willing to be interviewed, though most another maintaines commented that they were not sen why broadly want to speak with them, asking, "fort' you want a and placyer!" Output's discusses how those commented that they were not sen why! broadly want to speak with them, asking, "fort' you want a neal placyer!" Output's discusses how those commented that they were a warm of the property of the content of the property of the content of the property to open a sent after explained any guide.

Despite the willingues and enhancism of more participants, scheduling interviews often proved to be a shallenge. This was participately the case during the peak of summer in high and Angant. Many participants were on wastelins, had finding visiting, or were trying he halance summer cancines with they work or main schedules. As an indication, I enchacid seven interviews in the month of Jan has be only from interviews in the month of Jan has be only from interviews in the months of Jan has been supported by the interviews as the months of Jan has been supported by the interviews, refuting to the challenges musicians face in behavior; work, firmity, and music in in their livex, we discussed in chapter 8. As a result of my scheduling difficulties, I continued conducting interviews after my formal participant observation provided an endod on August 17, 2009.

²⁰ Two weeks of July, however, were not spent enclassively on fieldwork. I merelled to Gross Morne National Plank with my parents who were visiting me. Our truests through the binand, however, allowed me to occasionally speak with other musicians and gather information on performances and events outside St. John² (x.

Living in St. John's, of course, allowed me this flexibility and I completed my final interview in October.

I conducted a total of twenty interviews with seventeen different musicians, plus an additional two interviews, one with a pub owner and one with an NLFAS board member, for background information. Throughout these interviews I tried to allow participants time and scope to answer questions in ways that were meaningful to them. Vet. I also had specific issues to address and so the interviews followed a semi-structured format.27 The questions addressed in all interviews were therefore quite similar on a general level, although how each musician interpreted the questions and the depth of their answers varied. (See Appendix A for an interview schedule outlining the general questions addressed with each participant.) This format then allowed me to compare participants' perspectives on different issues, such as how they delimited and defined "Irish" and "Newfoundland" genres, for example. For some interviews I also had individualized questions to ask, either relating to a specific observation made at a session or pertaining to a musician's particular experiences. As my fieldwork progressed, I also developed additional questions to ask participants, so I conducted three follow-up interviews to address these questions with early participents.

Interviews were done in a wide wierey of locations, depending on participants' preference, including my home, participants' homes or work places, coffee shops, and pubs. I also conducted three interviews by phone with participants that were not presently residing in St. John's. I recorded all except three interviews using a digital recorder and

²⁷ See Fife 2005: 95-101 for a thorough discussion of semi-structured interviewing practices that is reflective of how I used them with participants.

transcribed the recordings. Two of the unrecorded interviews were done by phone before
I had arranged a method of recording phone conversations and one was done while
wakking, making it impractical to record. I took copious notes during the phone
interviews and wrete down as much at I could remember of what was said after each of
the three interviews were finished.

Interviews regard from force, for estimates to two and a left flower of recorded discussion. Onthe 1 works of with participants there and after the interview, sometimes having distance or as coffice with them. Most participants who did not already linear or as coffice with them. Most participants were also expert for least flower and why I had debene this reject. Predicipants were also exact of the digital content in whose linear linear flower in the content was an experiment of the state assent on the world near writings on the table between us, often septime flow would not state assent on the recording or epoch about specific costs. We would sometimes talk about these contents for the recorder was a record off and which for permits in my memory, they are excluded from the discussions in this theory, they are excluded from the discussions in this theory, they are excluded from the discussions in this theory, they are excluded from the discussions in this theory of the permit of the discussions of the content of and with their permits in my memory, they are reclaimed from the discussions in the discussion of the content of an extra as minimized. They pumple me about the behavior of the mass, different techniques, metabols, and mourours for families, and compenyation behavior as assissant. Thus, the interviews almost orchibed as become and tolds contributed and force prompting the high contributes as a minimized profit to as a member of public to a section.

In addition to interviews, my original research plans had included asking participants to perform self-reporting projects that involved taking approximately ten to fifteen photographs of what it meant to them to pilsy Irish (and) Newfoundland music. My hopes were to expand on the insight I gained from my original course assignment of the same project with the two members of Fiddle Group. Several participants were very enthinisation about the find softeness were archivater. However, principants 'bow leves and my desire not to hande them meant that no self-reporting projects were returned to me. While! Think these projects would have added a facinitating dimension to my research, participant observation and interview provided me with a significant amount of data and to decided not so prome them may further. Data from the two self-reporting controls that were commonly form my decided me, members of my controls the self-reporting the provision of the my decided members of the my decided member

3.3.2.1 Participant demographics In this section Louding the demographics of participants with whom Loudsheed

interviews. These demographies provide an indication of the diversity of musicians and perspectives that I draw on throughout this thesis. They also provide an understanding of my participants relative to the broader demographies of musicians at sessions in St. John's, discussed in chapter 2, who formed the groups of potential participants.

Participant ranged in age from their twenties to their cightien. Two participants (12 precess) were in their twenties, between participants (19 precess) were between the agent of theiry and feltry, and there participants (18 precess) were over the age of they agent feltry, and there participants (18 precess) were remark and a lot 30 precess) were fromtal. From GI percess) green upon its K. John's, severe participants (14 precess) green upon its Newfoothing and a consider of St. John's, severe participants (14 precess) green upon its Newfoothing and a consider of St. John's and St. O'N precessing and motion and motion devices.

³⁸ The ages of my participants are not as varied as I originally intended. Numerous musicians is their twenties play traditional russic in St. Iobn's, of whom only two (12 percent) are included among my participants. These musicians did attend sessions, but not regularly, as they were often busy tearing with hands or occusiond with other current remotest.

Eight participants (47 percent) were married during my fieldwork and eleven (53 percent) were not, while five participants (29 percent) had children of varying ages.

I also included participants from each of the essistence again implies to very page opinions and experiences from different sensition. Twelve participants (VP) percent) played at least ence in the development passions (haused on my own direct observations and participants of Sperontia). These participants (17 percent) played at Conceptoms, sixparticipants (15 percent) played and autoin Care's, and fine participants and of Competitions (15 percent). Evolution, several participants play at several venues and this also played and in my obsised of participants at they themselves could effect comparative refreshestenes on the different several participants play at several venues and this also played and in my obsised of participants along the articles of the confidence articles of the confidence estimates and the differentiation on the different several participants (15 percent) played are more frame one extension. Competens, Austric Caré or Eddid-Compe), In addition to sections, note participants (15 percent) had offere attended or played at 16 its Night and talk some excension design prifered was, or I was told they had done on in the parti-

In terms of profession, for participants O'P presently were professional musicians who reflect on music in various carquicites (e.g. performing, teaching or townley) to miss a laring, it is difficult to comment procisely been more participants would be considered unsel-professional, meaning they make some money from music but also rely on other employment to make a living. Some musicians placed preferriously in other syles and others have played as few sign for muscy but do not consider demonstrate the professionals, the control of see gips for muscy but do not consider demonstrate on the professionals. However, nine participants (2) presently but comprision contider of music, one (6 present) were retriefs. My

session attendance, family commitments, skill level, among other factors, on the meanings musicians attribute to playing this music, how they define it, and its role in their lives.

3.4 Living and writing in the field

Having outlined how I came to my fieldwork and conducted my research, this section explores, on a theoretical level, the performative nature of my fieldwork. I thereby situate myself as an active participant in my research. On a practical level, however, the performance of my fieldwork also made it difficult to distinguish between "the field" and "my life" outside of fieldwork. I discuss how these complexities created ethical dilemmas for myself and participants in understanding my role as a researcher and how they affect the writing of this thesis.

3.4.1 Performing fieldwork

Rather than being a distinct "place" where I went to do my research, I performed my fieldwork in varying roles, times, and places. In the past decades, many anthropologists have critiqued notions of "the field" as a "place" that is an objectively bounded entity to be studied (Clifford and Marcus 1986; Geertz 1973; Gupta and Ferruson 1992, 1997: Rosaldo 1993). In discussing her own fieldwork, Deepa Roddy suspests instead that "the field" is a collection of locations, events, and situations, "an almost random assemblage of sites that come into coherence through the process of fieldwork itself" (Reddy 2009-90). Reddy's definition fits well with the varied circumstances and places that became part of my field throughout my fieldwork process. The defining feature of this process was, however, my performing the role of researcher. As previously discussed, many of the propie, places, and times where I conducted fieldwork were regular function of "my life". Feder cample, what had previously been a causal Webenshop sight or Fiddle Group, a ripo the place of the proping of the place of

However, my nike was not only hast of a researcher, as I related to participants from a wider variety of positions. While I perferrend only received in the perferrend notice, claiming the identity of a beginner muscine. It was often an audience members and pattern at the har as well. I was friends with many of the musicians – friendships that had other existed prior to my fidelewisk or that developed through it. I could therefore be construed as a recease's participant in my own recents, in more than the small sense. I could, for example, how interviewed myself as port of my fidelewise.

The hallmark of authensylological fieldwork, participant observation, has always included the idea of embodied participation. The goal of this method is precisely a practicipate in the life world that we are currently studying." in order to gain greater insights into the "makes" hill world "(IRE 2005-72). This participation, however, was once meant to be accompanied by an objective detachment. As Remon Rosskho points

out, "then traced to Malinowski's legeratory field-work, this view asserts that the optimal field-works bould since on the edge of a parador by simultaneously becoming used for the people' and emissing as machanif' (Robatho 1970-181), Authorophopian were represent a goard against "point and edition of the simultaneously with those they were studying theority searching the edjectivity of their research, but they will the work years studying theority searching the edjectivity of their research, but they will be the simultaneously the student date ones "quiters" were considered to have the insiders except the could not an advice the objective distance necessary for a clearlife invertigation (Robatho 1973).

Person-lay authorphosphical are increasingly alturating themselves within find-federock, both in methodological practices and in Friend (Abec Lighted 1909; Companyano 2005).55:-557; Harmany 1991; Narugun 1993). As apposed to dischaemining-"minders" and "markinds," methodological consider their different role and identication fromagonic and infrastructures and inclusional formagonic and infrastructures and inclusional productions. The anthorphosphical in theory see this consider manylogy "the other" but formed of "markiples and piecelvision," precisioning thermorbers and being positioned by professor, with various identifies according to the center (If shim 2000; Norugen 1993). Thus, may participation within any find meet that "was not always on "markine," where view is a selection of a markine piece of the center (If shim 2000; Norugen 1993). Thus, may participation within any find meet that "was not always on "markine," where view gas you are interest and participation. I results are subject to the content of the same of the view of the content of the co

These roles therefore created for me continuous a sense of ambivalence. I was often welcomed among musicians as a musician but in certain circumstances, such as "hanging-out" after sessions and pub-hopping, some musicians light-heartedly expressed concern about whether I was also researching. There certainly were many circumstances where I was a researcher as well as a musician or friend, among other roles. These "multiplex subjectivities" then created issues surrounding confidentiality and consent. Participants were very likely to forget that I was researching, particularly considering it was only my own act of performing fieldwork that separated my "field" from "my life." Yet. I did not wear a sign at any time labelling myself during the times I was researching. Attempting to balance ethical responsibilities to friends' and participants' confidentiality and privacy with my research interests is the challenge of this thesis and manifests in various ways throughout the writing process.

3.4.2 Writing in the field As I write, I endeavour to ensure participants are aware of and comfortable with how their lives are included in this thesis. Kirsten Hastrup suggests that ethnography, in both senses of the word, is necessarily intrusive, saying "we hardly respect our informants' right to fall silent... for all our rhetoric about dialogue, ethnographic practice implies intrusion and, possibly, pain" (Hastrup 1992:123). I acknowledge the potential disturbance to peoples' lives as I theorize about them and imprint them in text. Rather than seeing my research as nothing but an intrusion, however, I prefer to consider my various roles and interactions with participants/friends/musicians as a continued negotiation over our relationships (Whitaker in press). Thus, I continue to obtain consent throughout the writing process, which is, of course, made easier by my continued involvement within my "field." A continuous consent process also allows for this continued neotiation in our relationships with each other and my research.

Nevertheleas, I are cautions above that is include in this feels and how, In order to protect the assumpting and confidentiality of midviduals, pseudosyma are used to protect the assumption and confidentiality of midviduals, pseudosyma are used. Before a confidential to the confidence of the individual englishing gave mer permissions to use their real names. In these cases, the feel confidence of the individual englishing gave mer permissions to use their real names, in these cases, the feel confidence of "madificinal" musicians in \$5. John's is relatively small and most musicians have and case easily identify musicians in \$5. John's is relatively small and most musicians know and case easily identify musicians in \$5. John's is relatively small and most musicians know and case cases judgedly musicians in \$5. John's is relatively small per protect for players before the musicians in the confidential period operation of the protection o

Finally, I also attempt to provide an understanding of my own role within my field-west, and how I came to understand the meaning of I firsh (and) NewSoundland music in musicians. I iver, I therefore include my own experiences with the music, attempt to portury my interactions among musicians, and consider how those affected my experiences and observations and how they may have affected participants' responses.

and actions. I aim to situate myself within my field throughout my writing as I was situated throughout my fieldwork (Haraway 1991).

Chapter 4: Becoming a traditional musician

Chapter 4: Becoming a traditional missionan
"I deal ready confidence profit ministing sees; But I have always leved
must and done something with it, ever since I was little," Also said most at the beginning
of no interview. Many other ministions I speke with similarly distanced themselves from
the labels, mining me why I was speaking with them and not the "real" ministions. Outside
of the context of chein! I would not call importal a ministin either. Yet, Also, for example,
has played traditional music (word and intramental) for many years and has played the
ministend two of the context of the conte

Following the kine of "musical pathways," discound in depart I, this chapter provides a firity straightforward presentation of musicies; ideas of what the routes to browning a traditional musicies a should be, the different musical pathways taken by musicies throughout their lives, and the trainess and comprises to brown to brown the trees. I add consider how musicies meant their relves is relative to these ideals of radicional musiciessity, the role of musicies are contributed to the most of musicies and a musiciessity, the role of musicies "autritives in contracting their musicies places" and how these are connected with the larger contents within which musiciess have lived in their lives.

These discussions by a floatdation for a more interpretive analysis of how more/aims "pulm-says influence and become part of their lives in later chapters, Chapter 5, in particular, continents the exploration in this chapter, considering how monitones are evaluated on their motical gathways and their personnal and musked preferenances. It contained now some monitones are granted attain and authority based on these evaluations, leading to hierarchica among municions, politics over municionship, and thereby to attempt the statements that "I don't resulty consider report? a musicion" by musicions like Alex.

4.1 Learning the ideal

Ablough there are many varied ways in which municious are introduced to traditional mains and go about learning it, which it explores in the next corticus, municious had finity consistent opinious about how traditional mains' was "traditionally" learned. Most insided that even with the introduction of short masks and recording technologies, traditional main continues to be revoted in the mallous and process (CVCP 2001.132-131). 133. Valdes 1994-22(7). That is, the main's is learned and ployed by or. It explores bow this process constitutes the fall matter the boursing a "multimost main" by it, this process in section of the classicals be to seller or and antiferrodistic fiftheces.

A registration stream in cases simply to defined a sourcers shot pages builties of most in special modern moder

By and segmen about Learning to play traditional Turklish marks on the sar, "Learning to play the sax and data introdes learning to play notes on an intersement, it involved learning to play notes and the beautiful play of persons who could play for an ellipse. The Dayse 2005 2259, Plans, it is as much about the process of "emperiorization," of Learning to be the "type of persons" who performs the folial neutrinois, edition, and embodied behaviour involved in playing traditional briefs (and) NewSocialization main; as it is about learning and playing the most instift (thy sup 2005/22524; Sommers Sainki 2001111).

Musicians then show ideals of a conceptual surbotype representing a "radiousal musician" that includes simultaneously in ideal path and model end point. Many musicians four and perform the ideals recovery to be recognized as a "auditional musician" keep them the ideals recovery to be recognized as a "auditional musician," keep them to apply the production of 1988, 1991, 1999), becoming and being much a musician is an empiric, baselening on continuous, performative process (Hoyant 2005), ²⁸ That is, those leads and musicians' musical percodensive process (Hoyant 2005), ²⁸ That is, those leads and musicians' musical percodensive process (Hoyant 2005), ²⁸ That is, those leads and musicians' musical percodensive processive comparison of the continuous percodensive processive comparison of the continuous percodensive for continuous percodensive comparison of the archetyse. The performance of music, "gives us a read experience of what the ideal could be" must discuss percodensive for what the ideal could be" must discuss percodensive for what the ideal could be" must discuss percodensive for the third 1994, 1992, 217, 417, and interreguents had then "an oppositional Husboon on

³⁰ By continuous I am not suggesting that musicians need to be performing masic every hour of every day, or even a single hour every (ay, 1 disease how, even while not playing, musicians may perform not represent hemselvies to the ideals of being a multilizeral musician, through numritives, discussions, and sorious best offer lives and the music they play. In addition, the valuation of performance in a cursular process. A musician may have a hald without a fulfillent consequence on the stants, provided they

³⁵ As discussed in chapter 1, Simon Frith (1996) also discusses similar ideas of self-creation through music to Bryant's (2005) idea of empersonment by connecting the performance of music and the construction of

object of belief" (Jagger 2008.22), Nevertheless, musicians must be aware of these ideals in order to participate in sessions and the traditional music scene in a manner that is seen as "correct" or "authentic" (Basegmez 2005;199).³²

Musician learn those ledes through their regulitive performance - including hrough musicians' marratives about florenders and their lives. With the growth of hands, public performances, and recording, these ledes are increasingly arro of CD little notes, based and individual biographics, performances, popular books such as Bary 1903 Fall Guida to at the Noil Music Sexistive (1999), and academic discussions. In discussion that the Marratives, the Fersianal Narratives Group observes that "these exclusings and the knowledge they impurt about emutional and physical well-beding, communal values, apprintions or power become pair of our reality" (Personal Narratives Group 1999-28C). Thus, an emissions are expected on the vision feed of traditional

musicianship through these different mediums, they simultaneously come to incorporate them into their lives and their selves. In addition, following Butler, the repetitive

performance of such ideals makes them seem self-evident.

earnis Islantiis. He conclude the "music constant on sense of identity through the direct reportees on trainful trainful through "Child Plant 13.11 Island because how musiciare constant their identities through the 1986-111.13.13 Masis, according to Print, herefree offers musicians answars to "type-of-different islandis 1986-111.13.13 Masis, according to Print, herefree offers musicians answars to "type-of-different islandis 1986-111.13.13 Masis, according to Print, herefree offers musicians answars to "type-of-different islandis 1986-111.13 Masis, according to Print, herefree offers musicians and the offers of different in 1986-111.13 Masis, according to Print, herefree offers musicians to off offersations on 1986-111.13 Masis, according to Print, herefree offers musicians are all the 1986-111.13 Masis and the sense of the print of the 1986-111.13 Masis and the sense of the 1986-111.13 Masis and the 1986-111.13 Masis and the 1986-111.13 Masis and the 1986-111.13 Masis and 1986-111.

"Other scholars who have traffed the production of trafficional fish massic in Perland and eleverhore bases assigned a silteral interest of an ideal type (Hangarez 2005; OSBaz 2008; Espana 2008). My conceptions of an architecture for the contrast in contrast with Vera Basespeer's blass of "silted language of the first the trafficion (2005) 1992-100; See was against seeing this "model" as static and considered for the blass of the contrast and the contrast also have knowledge of the model to perpendy participate in societies (Basespee 2005) 1992-1992. See we relevant to the perhamsone of traditional finite (Interest 1000) 1992-1992 1992-1992. The contrast the Although the ideals of realistional municionality are not nearly so naturalized as the ideas of grantform in Hards in trying to content, there are also we spin which these ideals are enforced (Jugger 2008:18). I discuss exhibited by the highest 5 how municions might status notifies to the local, which is a rough projectable to social searchism discussed by Budler for recepting consider the norms of the ideal categories (Jugger 2008:23), in the same same, such searchism are not always intensional evaluations of performance but part or at this local searchism of performance but part of a tribing to the search of the three social encourage of the formattee of the part of the tribing of the reconsect discussions of the Vision 2002;24.

Detection use the word "side" in two internated ways throughout this besix. The first usage refers to the explanne of multimbho)—the archetypal image of a traditional multicin. The second refers to the judgment of low at studiental musician should look, perform, think, and below relative to the first uses of the "studiend musicianthy, Simon Fith discusses how these judgments are simultaneously aesthetic "this sounds good," and ethical "this is good?" evaluations (Fish 1996):22). Byour counts this loss to also incorporate the like of emperorements a "good" performance, musician adoptional personal, by a musician is thereby lished to a judgment that they are "good aff "music (Bryout 2005;24225; 33)-24).

I dissues below the specifies of this image among massions in St. Abort's which focus on emperousing and performing the proper arterities, ofthics, and behavior as at-ablewed by Jenning through the small process. I also discous how these ideals are changed and regarded to include "wee" lasted generated and perjoint at small control and the sort of reconstigue and formational beasons. The following sections these explores musicions from missed pulsarsys: exploring bor they integrate these ideals into their muticions front missed pulsarsys: exploring bor they integrate these ideals into their

lives and contend with ideas of what a traditional musician should be, I also consider how sensions, in particular, provide opportunities for musicians of all levels to internet, creating the sector for evaluations of musicians² performances based on which status and authority are granted, claimed, or contended. Yet, essension also provide the opportunity for observation, exceptionatation, discussion and informed trachities or of those ideals.

4.1.1 The aural archetype The ideals that form the archetype of the traditional musician are based on ideas.

of how muck was "traditionally" played in the past. One of the primary fice of such bloss is that traditional music was and should continue to be loamed through narial transmission. Even if a musician learns from "the dots" — a collequidism for other music — listening is emphasized as a necessary component of playing traditional music. As Annuada, a musician from away who has been playing for several years, tald me: "there's, a rate and a feed in our a sovements" life his in which the true that of extraord all

the time, in little variations throughout the tune you would never see or rarely see if somebody was just to pick up the notes and start playing it." Dave, a professional musician from Newfoundland, echoed Anunda's statement: It's just so much easier if you develop the skill or good able to listen to this music, which has always been passed on that way, to learn it by ear... There's so

much you four from lintening to it, you know, that it just doesn't. The whole character and the life of it, it's had for that to get on the paper, you know. As expressed by Dave and Arnanda, the ideal way to learn traditional music is through listening, in order to learn the "the character and the life" of tunes, along with the tunes

themselves

Peter a part-time professional musician from Newfoundland, also explained the

"little variations" that are an important part of this transmission process:

Sam: So what about the traditional part of it... what makes it traditional? Peters I game the way it's passed on, the way it's transferred. The fact that I and a whole lot of other people play tance differently every time... the other thing about playing tunes as I'm sure you know, you play the differently according to how you're feeding... So yeah, I would argue the way the music's transferred, the way it's changed by each person. Even from persons to neverson and within the same

Musicians are therefore also supposed to learn to perform traditional music with

dynamicm and "feeling "³⁵ What this ideal means is that one musician is not meant to

.....

repeat precisely the performance of another. Rather, while the essence of a tune is

supposed to be maintained, a musician can and should produce their own interpretation
(Kommers Smith 2001:112 118: Volten 1984/23). More specifically, there is an element

of improvisation involved in the performance of tunes. Musicians may add

ornamentation, such rolls, grace notes, or slides, to the base structure of a tune or vary the notes of the tune itself in small ways, for example, making each performance of a tune

Yet, as othnomusicologist Burt Feintuch was cently chastisted by his teacher.

"doing things deliberately is one thing – making mistakes is another" (Feintuch

unione 34

"Beep X-gaplary (1981) dissume have, the performence of located nexts, the "Feding" of the made been for purple, with Combine 1988 175 175 to class of the size of the combine the combine of the feding performance of the combine 1981 to the combine 1981 to the combine 1981 to the combine 1981 to the residual sear, the written sheet of fenical data collines what "fedings" are supposed to be created and bow (Combine 1982). The real experiment of the combine 1982 to the combine 198 Neordrickes, the observation in relevant to learning unbiased abid (and) Neofendhad main in St. John's. Even if each player must play with their even style, they also need to empress not accurately seed when the signal (1964) was 2006; frish 1990;). Precisely what contributes an aesthetically "good" performance is debated among musicians, as issue I will disease in despires 5 and 6. On a very basic and garned level, sowers, a stong will depict in contact in the operations of the same in the stone of the proper interaction of the same in the same in the same in the accompaniones for dances. With the influence of the music and recording industries, proper interaction, instrument training, and stream to technique are also significant to the error entermone of religion and said to the content of the proper performance of the content of the proper interaction.

Sections, recordings, and the proteins off massic isolatory of the spill cent recovers for fronce beging in hear and be requested to the amendatic islends. However, the "haddinoom" way made is search to be passed on its front family or commanity members, or from these context with massicians must habito travelling or working (20 Nbas 2008.64); Oberton 2007.1185, 1800.2005.198 Vettler 1992.15. Learning memtiress the color of the search of the color of the search of the color of the Beyond aesthetic connections, links with "tradition" are also supposed to be maintained and created through memories and lineages that are passed on along with the tunes (O'Shea 2008b:61; Sommers Smith 2001:112, 118), Hillary explained this process:

It's so much more than that and there's no way that can be passed on in sheet music or in recordings. I should be tample by people and passed down by people from people. Tm just thinking, peak, Jiac that's so important. It's hand to put in words what I know, about certain tunes that's about the experience of learning them, Jiac who did you learn them off of or where did you, what was it used for. Like, to learn the Rumning the Gost seat and not know about the dance or not see the dance performed or pechaps to not know how to do it yourself. It's almost a crime. It's not doing justices to the tunes themselves.²²

Through performance and "the experience of learning," musicians create memories associated with tunes and continue the lineages of transmission. The aural process is then also a continuous process of empersonment that gives the tradition meaning to musicians

in the present.

In her own apprenticeship of learning to play the saz, Bryant argues that the associated process of empersonment was a conceious endaneous (Bryanz 2005-223). This process law much in common with Subh Malhmood's (2005) discussion of self-formation in relation to the mosque movement in Eggyt.²⁰ Drawsing on Aristatelian ethics, as well as thereing of self-ford developed by Bullett and Foucault, the those how wereen in this

¹⁸ Running the Goat is a set of four tunes consisting of "Running the Goat," "Round Old Ruby's Geden," "She Sald She Couldn't Dance" and "Final Goat Tune." There is also as associated dates that is common arrang post-evival mancias and dateour in 82, John't, The set originated from Harbor Deep (Moyard 2001a).
The mosque novement is a religious movement that is part of the Islanis revival that has taken place in

[&]quot;The monopus movement is a religious missessment fair in part of the Binnis revised that has taking being for the part one to the relaxion in Eggious and for limitine countries. It is housed around the pathering of the part one to their decides in Eggious and for limitine countries. It is housed around the pathering of the closured Massiless about how to integrate religious virtues and others into their dayl lives, practices which the nevertern believes have been for ingrante and defininghed with the internanting secularization of the state. At Mikerson durintees, this colocution "means immunity Madition not only in the paper performance of the part of the state of the part of the

novement make themselves into pious subjects through their repeated acts of piots. Proaccumulate on "nequined excellence at either a moral or a practical early, tearned through repeated practice until the grantice leaves a personness transl on the character of a person" (Malmood 2005;156). Malmood therefire similarly focuses on the conscious efforts made by somen to become pious individuals, as discussed by Bryant (Malmood

I cycler how, as musicians loss this mais through the and present, the musiinflatness their lives in many ways as they lean to become dynamic and expressive players who are embodied within like in "mallion." While, in practice, I gave that the process involves some delibrates enables; of the self by all musicians. Fuggest that in becoming a musician who play traditional leafs and process involves and musician who play traditional leafs and musician should be an extra in deally successions. Journey explained the studiednal leange of and transmissions

When folk music was evolving, it was in regional styles and it did belong to everyone in the community and since people didn't have other options of entertainment it was the best thing going. Right, so everybody was familiar with it and they became fluent in that musical language.

In this idealized part, receiled nontificatility by many mulcicies, mains was just notional part of everyon's lives (OShan 2008). This idea of maconicious flowers contains which previous of responsions or self-flowation discould by ligrous and Madmond. Although the pain in forming a pieson off memag senses of the manage mercenter is to make piety an essenticious act, connectious training is membed assess and member pairs path to this assessments were of their Qubilmond 2006.1199, To the century, fair members, the ideal image is that of a "manufal" proposition from hearing the memic from others to beginning on describing just page and of her administing presents. The significance of this sound-freshow learning is discussed by both Doborah L. Pogamon (2005) and Holes of 2008a; (2008b), in relation to the performance of both mosts in Chicago, ISSA and sounties Clare and East Clerc, Jerland. They consider how mutations sho were born limit the most and grow up hearing and ploying it are before able to gain status and acceptance among the community of musicians than those who as about to deliberatiny adultate themselves an amountaine (OSMa-2008b-07-9). Equation 2008;123-139, in the case of those who grow up in musician environments, exposure to traditional most provided both most retire and means for learning and peloping (riented, 1982;104-123), in the case of those who grow up in musician environments, and peloping (riented, 1982;104-123), and addition, many musicians describe this "artificianal" way of learning by asping that were passed on by ear. "Such a description implicate linke effect involved in learning since everyone acquired familiative or fluency from continued exposure.

Performing the expreprised presented and musical syste denerby became, "evocad nature"

(O'Shea 2008b:37, 95: Ranuano 2005:126). As a result, they unconsciously and un-

reflexively "became" traditional musicians.37

[&]quot;Tables O'Ness and March Mochefy discuss than bell arough bids an existion and an infinited marks in the 10 per page of the 10

There is some discussion in Newfoundfaul about the links between goography and the production of mass that I will discuss infured in chapter. For example, Colin (oging) (1998) discussion of more in chapter. For example, Colin (oging) (1998) discussion street many tames imprised by his physical (as well as social) surroundings. Them was, between cystemic institution than beough the load who are recognized and accepted as traditional manifestam saming those who are from Newfoundfaul, dishoop in any off these cases the statistical manifestam saming those who are from Newfoundfaul, dishoop in any off these cases are supported to the contract of the property of the contract of the c

In sun, for maximum is St. John's, the ideals of becoming a stafficiand musician include assembleous learning through the sund process directly from other musicians, to become a dynamic and expressive player. Such as musician is furnifiered held in individual and in individual and in individual and indivi

Intelligen, which has the extractively bladed by appeting, he shallen, the amounts present of
group recoverance, decoused by the case has already as the extraction, and the contraction, but it is
"more are not present to the contraction of t

the ideals associated with learning through the aural process.

4.1.2 "New" methods

As discussed in chanter 2, pub sessions only developed as a context for the performance of Irish (and) Newfoundland music in the 1950s and did not become prominent in St. John's until the 1990s. As such, in terms of their historical development, sessions are not a part of the "image" of traditional music and its place in local rural communities. Yet, sessions can offer an incredible opportunity to musicians to learn traditional music and its ideals (Basegmez 2005:169; Cope 2005:135: McCann 2001:91; O'Shea 2008b:97-101; Sommers Smith 2001:120; Waldron and Veblen 2008:101). Gary, a Newfoundland musician who now plays professionally, explained You learn from playing with people who are better than you... So I like to

encourage that because I was encouraged when I was squeaking through... I mean somebody said, "no Gary b'y, you sit to the table and you give us some tunes." And if they were slow or you played the wrong note, nobody ever said "that was torollde man, don't more come hore penin " kind of thing. But I've heard that said to people. I've never said anything, heaven forbid.

Musicians continue to emphasize the importance of learning directly from other musicians. Apart from formal lessons, sessions are currently one the primary sources of contact with other musicians, providing the opportunity to play with those that are "better than you" (Basegmez 2005:169).

Sessions are also one of the primary contexts for the creation and recollection of memories associated with tunes (Sommers Smith 2001:120). When I asked musicians about whether they associated tunes with people or places, many of them recalled a session down at so-and-so's house a few years back or a night at the pub during a snowstorm. Sessions may also serve as a starting point for meeting musicians with whom to develop more in depth learning relationships, whether formal or informal. In addition to their benefits for beginning musicians, sessions are opportunities for intermediate and advanced musicians to continue learning by gaining new repertoire, bearing new musical ideas, experimenting with other musicians, and creating and muintaining musical relationships.

Senions have therefore been adopted whelshortedly by most mulcians ploying in St. Juhn's Chapter's "all discuss seguindations over the ratios should be in relation to locks of explanations and community in the ratio of policial seguitations solved as policial seguitations source many mulcicless sever status and musically. In addition, chapter 7 will befully touch on debutes over the "bloom's "if a contains in Navelenadhard, Fissily,", It also discuss below the contention and colorate produces of musicions in containing and learning sessions. Few musicions, however, questioned sensition thereof the sense of the process of the musician should produce a session of the musicians. The blood of playing at senions as part of the process of compensations that developing at senions as part of the process of compensations that developing at senions as part of the process of

The use of recordings for passing on tunes has also been widely adopted (Basegmez 2005;204-205; Cupe 2005;131-114; Osborne 2007;191; Smith 2004:173; Veblen 1994-26-27; Waldron and Veblen 2008:102-103). With recordings, musicians can still learn tunes by are but with the added advantage that this can be done at almost

traditional musician.

[&]quot;Short result was used as a method for documenting and pussing on tunes before recording. For example, Jahrard Bursting results of the report of a feeting of the finely need as feeting in feeting, feeting and 1996, 2008;19. Mancianas in Newdonastland would have had come tune books from hyperical the labed through attentional hand serveds. Ampally any purposes of the 1996, the post of the results of the contraction of the contra

any time: in the cur, while walking down the ment, shapping, in it the currue of any mather of other daily activities. Recenting have also allowed for a significance quantities to the mather and pole of mose the manifolism between bounded plant training trans from people with whome a manifolism has direct montact, mucliance can be preceded of music or listen to radio statism from all over the world (Otherne 2007, Waldom and Veleta 1000), In addition, recordings can be reposted or shreed allows to hear the interiorist of emanurations or to more usualy hear and differentiate the mose has the form the moduly. Currently many musicians use undrawar multilate on the computer for this. Trailly, musicians can record tunes at sessions that they can then take hower and learn. This limits the road to learn a tour on the upper or walk until someone buggeons to give it appears to the contract of the

The use of recordings and even the precess of aloning them down are, however, not new. While they did not provide the same accessibility to reporting tunes over and over, recordings played over the radio in Newdonizabilities in the early 1970, moreoileus provided ministims with a videly establish new reportine of tunes and anges to learn (Oshorne 2007-196-197). The gravine propulation of granupolpones in the early 1900s, and considerate to the control of the control

The system of direct contact for learning has been emulated as musicians follow other musicians through multiple altumal, learning their sple and technique and incorporating it into their pleying. Musicians would other cite the record from which they learned a tune and some had a vast store of knowledge about different alturns and players who then was recover have met. Parts. For example, resulted:

I've listened to Johnyy Cunningham for three years, I've listened to Paddy Gloskin for two years. Next as organized as that but 1 find myself, you know, sometimes you listen to this band or Frankic Gavin or whoever. I'm jout using fiddle players now but loved sky the same about any instruments. So, I try, I listen, I'll try to interprete that part of its playing into my own playing. But of counce I ok it differently, but something gest transferred. At the end of it, I'm not saying I sound like any of these gay, 'sussel don't. I sound like me. But my

Thus, extensive use of recordings can sometimes be seen as a substitute for or alternative to prolonged one-on-one contact with other musicians.

While recordings have been advantageous for municians in many ways and have been widely adopted, their use is nonetheless negotiated in relation to the image of how music was traditionally learned and how it should be learned in the present. For example,

musicians often emphasized how recordings are a single instantiation of a tune and should not be seen as the only possible interpretation. Dave commented:

One of my concerns with short make is, and recordings as well, is the listen that it represents a pold standed of a tame, see of the version of a tame. And that is something that I flinks it dengenous, in a way, because I think that what the tradition thrives on the sext of relineration, the constant relineration of Intell. And so, while I think it is great to have a version of a tame, know where it came from and everything, and be to delt to so my rettle this tide. If the little is so make the content of the c

Dave has concerns the both recordings and short marker will restrict the dynamion and expension of mulciain playing, as they have the posterial to soldly have settings and sea. "Billary is discounted above also expenses concern that recordings and short mains are adequate solutions for the lineage and memories that are following with justical parts of learning traditional masis (O'Shou 2008s-61). Yet, the also uses recordings for learning barditional masis (O'Shou 2008s-61). Yet, the also uses recordings for learning barditional masis (O'Shou 2008s-61). Yet, the also uses recordings for extensing bardies are usually years as made perfeatured to bether masis because over our converge more informations about the feet also and of a trans. In other words, they are more adaptable to the arrial process. Their proper use and acceptance is menucludes negational enough municians to fit with the ideal system of learning directly from order municians.

Another method of learning that is increasingly common in the use of format learns, offered other individually or in groups (Blasegmer 2006 2016; Ope 2008 1330-131), McCardy 1999(5), (Vehica 1994). The learning muscine employs a more advanced muscicas for each block of time, as epoposed to "madissum" informat encounters with other muscicass. For each block of time, as epoposed to "madissum" informat encounters with other muscicass. For individual product of finite or least formal apprenticeships. Taylor, who traches leasness, explained that shift,

What makes it traditional is, I guess, it always was music that was in the arral tradition, music that was learned from another person as opposed to from being tradition, music that was learned from another person as opposed to from being that's changing sow too. A lot of traditional, what has been traditional music, the way of learning is it is changing as well. It's becoming instructed and as it's becoming instructed it's being milted down a whole lot more. So, you know, the individuality or dear, but yet or may have been used in the beautiful traditional to the three's a teacher there's a teacher that the production of the property of the production of the production

⁴⁰ A "setting" is common terminology for a version of a tane. Some widely played tanes have multiple settings that could vary by player or regional style. There are, for example, Newfoundland settings of tanes that are also commonly shared in breland.

saying don't do that or do this. Whereas before there was no teacher telling you

While taught lessons formalize a relationship between student and teacher, many

In addition to lessons with a teacher, there are also lessons available through media sources such as teaching books with recordings, YouTube, and internet websites that provide online instruction available to anyone with access, without ever meeting in person (Waldron and Veblen 2008).

musicions attempt to teach in a way that is a continuation of what they see as the "old" or "traditional" way of learning. They teach students aurally, through repetition, sometimes also providing recordings and maybe sheet music (Veblen 1994;26-27). In her exploration of traditional Irish music-making in Ireland, Helen O'Shea discusses the teaching methods used by two well-known musicians. Mary MacNamara and Martin Haves. These musicians try to teach students through formal lessons in ways that transfer the essential melody of tunes but allow for "personal expression and spiritual transcendence" (O'Shea 2008b:77). In this manner, formalized lessons have become a Newfoundland and elsewhere, Teachers, like Mary MacNamara and Martin Haves in Ireland, try to maintain the possibility for variation in the aural transmission process that is often seen as a key component of "traditional music." whether Irish or Newfoundland or other. Through lessons, learning musicians are often able to improve their skills and abilities with their instrument and the music. Lessons can help a learning musician with technique and possibly also teach the ideal aesthetics, ethics, and behaviours that are part of playing traditional music discussed above.

This ideal, however, is not always upheld and some musicians also question how formal lessons fit within the tradition. Peter commented:

An interesting thing I see hopponing is when you have an interestor treathing an interment, fiddle or according or witnering, and hyper see you tension, to interest interesting the control of the property of the control of the cont

Peter's concerns are similar to Dave's concerns about recordings and theer music and ector Toples's comments about how lessons are changing the main. All three commentates below manifest mobable bad her binegers the music and play with dynamion and expression, adding their own personal style to the tunes they learn. Lessons, on the other hand, sentrict three qualifies in a musician to the extent that teachers into interest the standard state and the state has the proposal and which year wrappored to be, the proposal and with the proposal and which are wrapped to the proles good which were wrapped to the profession and which are wrapped to the profession and the proposal and with a part and proposal and the proposal and with the proposal and with the facility of the same as their teacher and as each other. Even Taylor, who teacher "what has been traditional music," is unsure about how the reve method of leasthing fits with the faciled vertex.

Basegmez presents these debutes as occurring between "partist" and "openminded" musicians in Ireland (Basegmez 2005;203-211). While I have heared the label "purist" used, musicians in Newfoundland could not be easily divided into two such comps. Musicians often have internally conflicting and changing views regunding ideas of "readition" and it is practice by musicians in St. John's and elsewhere. Some musicians who might otherwise he thought of an purints have no problem with the use of wheet music and have taught lessons themselves. In addition, as will be discussed, many musicians commented they do not worsy about tunes being "traditional" as long as they only playing them and they are played well. Being "played well" it, however, judged authorizably according to the ideals I have discussed throughout this section.

The archetypal process for becoming a stadional muscian is, thus, in muscians continual performance, continually negrotated ascending to technologies unablable and the ideas held by other muscians. There is no consensus, but there are nevertheless shared ideals of what a traditional muscian should be and how to become such a person. In the test section Lengthen deliftener galon muscians have taken to and foreign the process for a section lengthen the different galon muscians have taken to and foreign the process of emperorament, which thape their relations with the music and each other. I show how muscians still-definitions become end up with this shad image, as well as how muscians reported or challings after ideals.

4.2 Musical lives

Throughout their fives, musclaim "muscla hispapeline follow major probusys. No two are quit defension, is und person has different emperiums with the music, the spaces of production, and their interactions with different musclams. Nevertheless, in their justices of empersonment these pulsacys overlapped, differenting familier motest. I divide musclaim "experiences between those who we introduced to traditional transitional endoty on its life, the compile through growing up in a muscle family, and those who came to the general teaching and the production of the second production of the to the transition of the second production of the computing musclear "grant, in the broadest earne, prefixely in studies to the delicit designed the previous section. Nevertheless, many musicions with early beginnings took breaks from playing or played other spiles and were intermoduced to traditional music laters in Iti. Smillarly, musicions who began to play neutrinom funcion seems, because on exposure when they were foldison. Thus, the two sections of this chapter, as well as the two parallels most for musicions' pulsarous, were not mutually sections. Despite the variety of experiences, all musicions also contends with the ideals often. Despite the variety of experiences, all musicions also contends with the ideals often. Purposery that becoming a traditional musicion, envisioning durie self-add-attions with images of whet makes a "proper" musician. Some apply nutratives about their lives that follow the archetype, some content the nutratives about their lives that follow the archetype, some content the nutratives of the ideal path, and others struggle to underseast her whether exercises of fi.

4.2.1 First beginnings

As many arm participants who hope in playing millional marks when they were children's cause of an electronal members of their families who also prized as significant influences to beginning and learning up top." This new exceptional participant arms of the significant influences to beginning and learning up top." This new exceptional participants described in the significant influences their participants described in their participant participants described in their participant participants are described in their participant participants and an electric data for including the instrument as a feetival and his parents subsequently paid for learnes. He epide little of the early experience, pursuing other musical inverses here in life, he did upon of how the early experience, pursuing other musical inverses here in life, he did upon of how the early experience, pursuing other musical inverses here in life, he did upon of how the early experience, pursuing other musical inverses here in life, he did upon of how the house participants.

One additional participant, not included in this section, was influenced by a family member who played traditional music and began playing themselves at a young age. Yet, they learned traditional Irish (and) Newfoordfand music through the Szazski system of learning classical music. This method will be discussed part in this deaper.

Newfoundland music. Music in the family, however, seemed to be the primary means for musicians to be introduced to traditional music early on in life.

4.2.1.1 Music in the family

In Imagen's explosition of the factors influencing the music enables practices of musicians for found that having a musical family was one of the most influential factors to someone continuing to partner music, across many musical general (Pimergan 1995:195-11). Respect similarly found as musical family to be influential among musicians in Ireland, though not a necessary condition to playing music (Basegnez 2005.8-15). Among my participums, musicians' families were not encessarily solvier or difficult forms. Yes condition may be an adult to internesses and cries their third will follows the condition may be as adults' to internesses and cries their factors.

In particular, many of those musicians born and raised in Newfoundland, mostly outside St. John's, recalled having instruments such as accordions or guitars around the house, and sometimes a parent who would play or was trying to learn. Ian recalled:

I think the first memory I have of being connected to music at all was my mother was always humming and singing Newfoundland songs... But then, when I was still a child, my mother ordered me a little tiny pinon accordion from a Sears catalogue... And my mother could play it a little bit and I remember that was my first instrument. And my mother would show me stuff. cocasionally.

Peter similarly recalled music around his house from an early age:

children a basic introduction to traditional music.

I was surrounded by music... within my bouse, my household, everything from an early age, everything from church music to my grandparents whistling songs and singing songs. At family gatherings there was always some music being played and from what I can remember it was always traditional music and songs. Tunes and songs.

Peter's experiences are similar to Ian's, in that he recalls family members singing and playing traditional music from an early age. These two musicians and several others, who grew up outside St. John's, were exposed to instruments and some traditional or more secretal folk music as younce children.

Most muticians from St. John van beyond the Indució and they began music in grade school or through lessons. While beig most common for those from rund Nor-Gondflinds, their waver, however, some musicians who grew up in and around St. John's who also had family who exposed them to traditional music from a young age. One musician resulted. It stends ployed multi-loss of music at a young age, that's the age of a size of a si

In the primaries with massional following suggest where they should set at their contractions, only solving them to will one their "musical languagetine." All the massionars I spoile with began sometime in early shallshood. Those massions began with memories of their pureues and families and their exposure from an early age to traditional musical interments used to ploy the music. To these massions, how early memories were significant beginnings on their musical path to later play traditional music. In addition, they all fament music analy. None which allowed being frend to play in interments, they all to make the proper of the property of the pr In this way, the experience of ministicians who learned massis from their families fit with the ideal process of unconscious learning. I discuss below how musicians' narratives about their childhood also help create these ideals, as well as provides a mean of ascorting their authority and attent as traditional musicians. However, were claim to have experienced these similarities to the ideal biography more than others. In continuing their musical journeys, some took a straight path and others' paths wound strongth a valety of musical interests or they stopped playing abugether satil later returning to playing staditional music.

4.1.1.5 straight should
Second ministrates continued on a straight path from learning and playing
traditional masis with their families, playing throughout their trees and adulthoot, and
some later become prefereinsed ministran. "Our ministran, Devit, moved from playing
with this family to the respirate goals can be some joining banks, and playing
prefereinsemily. When I saked him why he kept playing and how he came to play
prefereinsemily he responded, "Just never integred. Like, I just always fits like playing
ments and so it undug to open entages and give some and I would never be reserved
and a hot of other ministrans and finy'd any came bank temperature all Tip my you."
Similarly, Perc continued to play with the finally, but later also not and aplayed with
moviniesm 18 h. And's beinging beautiful preference.

These musicians have also used recordings for learning, along with tunes learned from their families or friends growing up. Peter, for example, is

⁶⁷ These musicians are recognized as professional musicians by others, but precisely what that term means is debated, as will be discussed in chapter 5.

Self-taught of course... I learn by osmosis now. Like I'll buy a CD and I still buy CDs and I'll put it in the car and when I'm driving somewhere I'll just listen to it and listen to it and listen to it. Usually I can stell what key it's in, where to go with the fingers, I kind of see it before I play it, and I can play it, depending on the piece of course, but that's how I learn.

The specific recordings that musicians learned from changed depending on the musician's age. For example, those musicians who were learning in the 1990s and 1900had recordings of the McNisity firmity and John Ximmed while musicians learning in the 1970s and 1980s beamed from the Body Bank, De Daman, Plancy, Fallin Benst, and Rafin Cuinchard, among others. Musicians learning body continue to learn from those later musicians, as well as never recordings from group-coming out of Ireland, North-Goodfalland and Security.

progression from playing healthined marks as children and therefore corresponds closely with the exhetypal path to becoming a restriction function. Stone due present a mental or of their lives find the side his black, of consection and operations becoming and becoming. Chris says, "Element was read music in whool and smill. And [to play] mostly strongly finning and through playing with other people..." Just leaved what like." When I saked the begave long his beday is with other people..." Just leaved what like." When I saked the begave long his beday as the proposal of 3 just leaved into the latter. "When I saked the begave long his beday and with the proposal of 3 just leaved into the latter of the other strongly of the latter of the

musically or personally, as discussed by Beyant (2005) and Mahmood (2005). They had simply grown up learning the aesthetics, ethics, and behaviour associated with playing traditional music. ⁴³

For Chris and Derek there was therefore little question about being a traditional musician or how they got there. In the process of learning the music through their childhoods and recounting narratives about those experiences, their self-definitions have become entwined with the music and those narratives. When I asked Chris why he played traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music, his response was first that he needed to earn a living but it was closely and emphatically followed by a comment saying. "I also enjoy it, you know. It's what I do. It's part of how I define myself. I'd say that's true for all of these guys," referring to several other musicians present for our discussions. Faye Ginsburg, in discussing the role of abortion activism in creating women's identities, explores the role of narratives in constituting individual self-definitions. She comments how for women activists, "their sense of identification evolves in the very process of voicing their views against abortion" (Ginsburg 1989;78). In addition to the role of narrative in constructing musicians' selfhoods, Frith discusses how individual and collective identities are created through the very process of performing music (Frith 1996:110-111). Thus, as musicians express the proper narratives of their lives and

^{1996:110-1113,} Tana, as musecume express the proport matrixers of their tree said "The Tale is invention-assumed assumed as or about 1996 of measured with the set of the said summedically became trailinest manakine and who this these traveless. For example, those who provides to me and man sould worth the least to express of the first point of the significant trailiness of the set of the set of the set of the proper set of the set

perform music according to the proper styles, they create themselves as the "type of people" who play traditional links (and Newfoundland music (Bysanz 2005; Mahmood 2005). These "correct" performances of musicians' self-definition in turn lend them a self-confidence and authority in their status as traditional musicians, which I discuss further below.

These musicians also constitute the evoletyse through their narratives and mustical performances. As the Personal Neuratives Group states, "the personal neurative, whether it reveals as neceptized of or a challenge to the given raise, sho marks to an individual level the very process of reguedaction or undermitting of them raise." (Personal Neuratives Group 1997-8). This internet could be extended to incorrect individual musical performances as part of the process of constituting or challenging "rules" or ideals, which labe discuss further in the next despite. The narratives expressed by Crist and other musicians in this section reveal on "acceptance" of three ideals. When I first saked musicians to to time their "musical biographics" (say other contined the work, flustration, and time that west into beauting traditional friend (easy). New foundational musicians are represented by Crist Personal Conference of the contined of the

However, not all of these musicians apply a narrative of their lives that seamlessly follows this ideal. Peter emphasized the work involved in learning and the conscious choice in pursuing music. "I remember consciously trying to become part of the scene.

And I did over time." Pear is referring to his remains from playing with his family to playing with others in St. John's, Pear's year was not discuted for his minetyly became becamed traditional manage has fromly a sympacy. In his influenced his desire to practice that pulls in other scenes, such as in St. John's. In this manner, even though Pear gave up in a minical model environment and becamed for mounts from the pull his manner of the pulls in other models from the analyses of the analyses of the analyses of the southern and becamed for models of the models from the south of the server of the server of the pulls of the server of the server of the pulls of the server of the server of the server of the pulls of the server of the ser

In a milling matter, those who persuad winding paths in playing music also challenge the "subundense" of playing traditional music even if one is expected to it from the approach age. Yet, they often immiliates only above mits model when they apile perform traditional music and the proper archetics, ethics, and embodied behaviours later in 16f. The "shallenge to the given rules" freength their lived pulmary, however, also creates reversed for musicious whose pulmary also not follow precisely the underlying that to becoming a traditional musicious.

4.2.1.3 A winding path

Some musicians, who grew up exposed to traditional or folk music, chose to pursue other genres or other interests altogether before "returning" to traditional music. Their early experiences with their families, however, helped them when they again began to play this music, as they remembered tunes from their childhood or had at least some

ability to learn and play by ear. For example, full-time professional musician Billy Sutton

had some early exposure to traditional music as a child, but chose to play mostly rock music when he began playing on his own.

I grew up I didn't listen to Celtic music. I mean it was on the radio and I knew of it and I lanew some songs from being around the bouse that me faither or me grandmother would sing, or me guardinether also played, So I mean there was always a certain amount of traditional music that I knew. But I didn't grow up playing frad musics at all. I grow up a Septem heat. I grew up playing frad musics at all. I grow up a Septem heat. I grew that polymore is the busement all my teenage years to Led Zeppelin and Ozzie Osborne and Modelov Crew and oya music it. You show, I was into the busemier staff.

Billy was re-introduced to traditional music in his twenties through bands playing Irish (and) Newfoundland music, such as the Irish Descendants.

I just started playing stuff. Like, always could play the accordion I just hadn't, so I just picked up mandolin and kind of taught mysel' to play. From there came like bouzouki and stone banjo and the mandola, cause they're all tuned similar. So I kind of started doing that, playing a bit more box again.

Billy describes how, when he did start playing "Coltic music" again, he was able to draw on his early experiences and play the accordion even though he had not done so for a long time. Thus, it was simply a matter of reactivating the embodied knowledge and

long time. Thus, it was samply a manner of reactivating the embodied knowledge a aesthetics that he had empersoned as a child.

With Billy, we also see how different musical scenes can influence musicians'

pathways. Billy became interested in playing traditional music again because of the active scene in the 1990s with bands touring and playing on a regular basis. This scene and growing resease of sessions also influenced lan in returning to play traditional Irish

(and) Newfoundland music. Ian first learned traditional music from his mother but

through his twenties only played a little music while he was pursuing a non-musical

career and other interests. He was invited to the sessions in St. John's by another musician and that is what prompted his to attend and start learning traditional music again. The impact of an active traditional music scene is a theme that will be seen again that in this chapter when I consider musicians who were introduced to traditional music later in fife, other aster moving to St. John's.

In schooling to play other genes, or may playing for provide of time, these maricians. Tives contradict the necessity of the ideal path and demonstrate connections choice in playing and learning. We, these menicians also learn and play through the sand process. They continued the process of empercement as they sentence to playing traditional music. In also used "N's a connection with my mother, my past. So that's important. It's the becomescion lake results," He was no-integrating and ne conting the lineages and memories as he began playing again. The early exposure also best some manicians, like 1019, a similar endificient and archevily to those discussed in the memories can be also the source of the contradition of the source of the contradition of the source discussed in the CMT. While his comp pulmacy contents he island path, be performe his status partially in his ability to question it, simultaneously rentliming the ideal and his connection to it frough a narrative of simultaneously rentliming the ideal and his

As discussed by Finnegan and Basegmer, mosic in the family provides municians with only exposure to the syle, reportsite, and instruments for playing traditional music. It is important to note, however, that exposure from a musical family does not always lead someone to choose to pursue music. My participants were all musicians and so were amont those who did make that choice. As I have shown throughout this section.

musicians who learned traditional music storing at a young age also emperatured themselves to the folials of bring mach a musician in the process. Whether they present a sample or winding park to you were integrated to imprope of stream and musicians and drew on the embodied behaviour, anotherics, and ethics that they learned as children when playing later on in life. For many, before mustices about their early experience also provide a measure of securiting the archarges, as well as their own convention to its ideals. I now consider the experiences of those who consciously chose to learn traditional music later in life without the early exposure of these musicians who took a winding contains.

4.2.2 Later introductions

Many musicious, particularly those who came from swo or gene up in Ni, John's, began to play traditional main later in life. These musicious often had early experiences with music, but the season support of the classical garners I will discuss all appear of those musicians musical particular, which musical particular musicians gained as challents, even if this was about classical music, affected bow they stated to traditional resist in life. For these musicians, playing traditional music an cleanly a deliberate choice, althou intermediate particular to form and the state of the contract of the state of the contract of the state of the contract of the contract of the state of the contract of th

4.2.2.1 Music lessons

One way that many musicians first were exposed to music was through lessons,

either private or taught in grade school or high-school. Gerry, who grew up outside St.

John's and who was discussed in chapter 1, for example, recalled that his first musical

experiences were taking piano lessons. Frank who grew up in St. John's similarly recalls,

I was in grade school and my sister was taking piano. So, there was a piano all of
a sudden that appeared in the house and so I was given the opportunity to start to
take niano, which I did. And I stuck with if he a coupled of years, but as soon as I

Amanda, who is from away, also recalled how her mother put her in piano lessons that she did not eniov.

So my mom put me into lessons...I was about 8... So, I went into piano lessons and I hated them. And god, 6 or 7 years, and as soon as I had the option to quit, I

quit. And funny, because that's when I started playing the piano.

Many musicians shared similar beginnings to their musical paths and many often distiked

the experience, regardless of where they grew up (Cope 2005:128-129).⁶⁴

Classical beginnings, however, are not always a negative experience. Some

musicians actively pursued this genre early on in life and became active members of the

classical music scene. Nancy a musician from Newfoundland who played both classical and traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music from a young age recalled pleasant

experiences from both.

_

[&]quot;These very various measure these mentions dislated become or pluying and drost to quit. Many said they recognish of the few discussion of the collect the collect the collect the record to receive the strength of the few discussions of the collect the collect the collect the record to the collect the coll

It'd be like a family affair, we'd all be going to lessons back and forth and group classes and fiddle music and it was a big part of what we you know just a big violin... I don't know. I nicked up. like I started playing orchestras and chamber music regularly. So, symphony and chamber symphony. I was quite young but I did that for a while, and I played flute in band

Nancy shows that playing classical and traditional music are not necessarily contrary endeavours, though they are often seen as such. In St. John's, young musicians can actually receive an introduction to "traditional Newfoundland music" through classical

The Suzuki music program, called the Suzuki Talent Education Program (STEP). also offers fiddling classes run by teacher Christina Smith. Students are taught traditional

Newfoundland music and have opportunities to perform in various venues, such as cruise ships and the Newfoundland and Labrador Folk Festival (Smith 2009). The STEP

fiddlers program provides a good example of how classical training can be

complementary to learning traditional music, though, as I also discuss below, musicians also contend with differences in how music is conceived and in anotheries between

lessons.

Students' lessons, whether Suzuki, Conservatory, or less formally organized, shaped their paths and experiences in particular ways as they later began learning how to

¹³ My narticinants arimarily learned classical music through two methods: the Conservatory or the Suzuki is based on a "Mother Tongue" model. Students begin at a young age, they learn by ear, as well as through Education Program of St. John's 2008).

play traditional music. Before turning to that question, however, I will discuss how these musicians were introduced to traditional music and began learning it.

4.2.2.2 Introductions to traditional music

Many municious, report floathooth, typus playing realization munici hear is life and with the inheritation through all the making law bendandlist. If the three she report from sway, the active traditional munici scene that they were exposed to through living in St., below was significant past of the means for their interest in intering and playing. These municions had a second that the main was an appear of of the place. Among the other three municions had a second that the main was and part of the place. Among the other main and the main of the second that the main was and part of the place. Among the main many more mainless, that me, "I mean the home," so know, you can him be the without height exposed to realize the main." There is a series among many maniform, as well as many non-maniform, the work of the main of the m

to start playing—again myself included. For the founding members of Fiddle Group, the course offered in New foundation I fiddling as Monarchit University in 2001 was the imperion for beginning to lear. They "just kept meeting after that course was down," Taxy sold me. New meniclosis in town our referred to the group by others who recognize it as an avenue for learning and playing. Sindha reculied,

Fiddle Group became a common pathway for musicians moving to Newfoundland

[1] moved here and did nothing for a long long [time] with music.... I ended up meeting Tracy and the fiddle group, I mer her down at the Folk Club and [a musician] introduced us "cause I was looking for a group to play with. Irish music, 'cause I didn't want to go into the classical thing... And so when I went and stood in the hallway for three weeks. I was really why and then all of a sudden

the bug bit me, and I just picked that fiddle up and I'd walk around the house playing it like a rock instrument.

Erica, another member of Fiddle Group, similarly recalled.

Sandra.

Erica: I started off kind of just going at it, you know, just trying to figure out where the notes were, just getting accustomed to it myself and I was looking for a fiddle teacher. I was also playing with Sally on the weekends... and just playing with Fiddle Group.

Sam: So you managed to get involved with Fiddle Group and sort of pick up there?

Erica: Yeah, through Sally. Actually, I was talking with [a musician], and he's like you've not to get in touch with this lady named Sally, and that's how I got

involved with Sally at first and then with everybody rise.

Frica and Sandra share similar experiences in that both were referred to Fiddle Group by another medical not be plant not and the group everyed as a primary gathway for learning.

The group has not recently recruised new members, I am the most recent member to join—
—and Joined in October 2008. Nevertheless, Fiddle Group entitiones to most to Issura
and play. The mone is therefore they those who continue to walk it and by other
medicals who becomes grouples this route and frier forms to it, are occurred for First in and

More recently, Georgetown has began to serve as a similar roots that is more publicly available. For example, James had played 6th music for many years and had bedded with incomment and readinged music in the part had been played to find a product of the control of the contro

family member or friend that provided the initial impetus for learning. Dancan Cameron, a professional musclian, commented in a public discussion shown my research (November 20, 2009) that in the september expect of either are a single boar performance or CO that they love and this is what begins their interest, as seen with Gerry Storng at the beginning of this thesis, As seen in Sender's discussion, many musclean also use traditional music as an afternative muscle endorevour to classion muscle, which, and issuesdo, many did not enjoy. Following their introduction to traditional music, musicians began on the route of learning their introducents, learning new tunes, and learning the ideals associated being a traditional musclean.

4.2.2.3 Learning a tradition

I was at the Bolde Moley's season one Sanday afternoon in my usual position: stiling at the stable and lineating quiety. One of the municians, Store, asked me if them season as them that would be to pley I, did manage to think of a time to suggest, but then I refused to start it myself, too shy or named. Store then said be could not remember how that time started and asked me how it was. I immediately started the time not thinking to be reverso and only then scalings that he had tricked me into starting it. Yes, I admit, I amagilithe. The other medicates then joined in any folyout dange.

Learning to play traditional music involves learning a repetiotive of tunes as well as learning the aesthetics, ethics, and embodied behaviour to become the "type of person" who plays traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music (Bryant 2005). In the example above, Steve was teaching me appropriate behaviour at a session, to start tunes and to play with confidence. He was also offering me the experience of slong so. For musicians who begin playing traditional music later in life, the process of emperoxements is necessarily a contestore endocrose. In this sense, musicians' familier processes followed the best of the sense of the self-fermion of the control by Mathemod (2009) regarding the self-fermion understakes by women in the measure an enversement in Egypt. As with the goal of following as uncorrectionary priors life, although these municians work consciously to loans the music and in loads, they give in to use and pe a delte to perform those ideals whitten thinking about them. Sections contention as important context with barrain glates place.

I explore in this section several of the methods that musicious employ to solview the guide of musicious despressioners, Ved. 100 decisous how these musicious struggle in typing to model themselves and their pathways according to the "image" of a musicious who also learns smellionicious), simply absorbing the music and the sounds from thriesocial environment. A addition, many of these musicious had previously emperously added for performing classical music that they had to unknown with its thrie-playing of radiotional music. These discussions are significant in considering evaluations of musiciously performances and the policious emusiciously discussion in chapter 5.

One of the significant measure of training this musica and in ideals is attending sensions. The example given above, where I was tricked into starting a brane, shows how sensions can provide support to beginners, to shop them gave as players and learn from others, including learning the necessary confidence involved in playing. This learning occurs through experiences of playing the teams, as well an discussions with other markings and others related on those who represent the field image. Anne explicitled why she continued to play and so atmost Sensions. ""At the duffungs, the queet field gentless of the procession and the play and so atmost Sensions." ""At the duffungs, the queet field gentless. better." Sessions are also significant for learning musicians to develop connections with other musicians. Thus, with the lope of gaining the sound, the tunes, and the knowledge, along with the fina and the socialization that II will discuss in chapter 6, many learning musicians attend sessions enthusiantically.

Yet, sensions can also be a source of four and discomfort when learning municians feel they cannot participate or they are the flyelping above without the sense of confidence that those that claim an identify as a munician seem to embody. This tack of confidence was seen, for example, in my refund to start a time. One mutician, Adrian, who has been relating traditional number for many years, initially expedient.

Adrian: I'm so nervous at the sessions. If they ask you to play a tune, well I don't know what to play or I'll get like these memory slips Sam: ch. I know.

Adriam: It's the scariest thing. But it's nice talking afterwards and they're encouraging. They're like "oh that was a great couple of tunes," or "can't wait to play again."

The performance of certain behaviours, such as strating tones, continues to make Advin nervous even after playing for meany yours and with one noveragement of their musicians. Relevous logism suggests, again referring to playing the sax in Turksy, that "the cast memorization of thousands of even just not simply shout adverlaying ours." "the cast memorization of thousands of even just not simply shout adverlaying confidence of properties that also developing consort is not topp of persons who is expained or celling on that multicos" (Veynus 2005-239). Thus, Adons, I, and others who emointently experience memory layers at sessions and nervousness about our shiftly to certifiche and after loss to the control of tradition." That is, we are still empersoning ourselves to the ideals of becoming a traditional musician. 46

Yet, we also devise strategies to help our learning and playing at these sessions. We therefore supplies one own pathways in order to learn in a valeny of ways as we the "become" real-form aministims. Such entergies include sorting one tenses and practicing at home, strending sessions to learn from later, and sulting from all learns on them, meeting with each other to learn nor tones, recording sessions to learn from later, and sulting from all sensors. Other solution have observed similar strategies that learning musicians employ (Coppe 2005.135; O'Nea-2006.111; Smith 2006). Many learning musicians employ (Coppe 1556; Second 2006.111; Smith 2006). Many learning musicians time extensively to recordings and attend other performances of multitional main: Most members of Fiddle Group were, for example, present at the concert by Cound O Grida, Bernadent six claims and Linds Andrews, there musicians from beleast and the Schular Manufact.

These activities all offer musicians examples or direct instruction in the music and the ideals associated with it. As the Personal Narratives Group points out: "we consciously and unconsciously absorb knowledge of the world and how it works through

⁶⁶ The different performances of this self-confidence and knowledge are clearly seen when comparing Adrian's discussion of learning tanes with that of Peter, who is a recognized professional musician. Adrian and Peter both advanwledge they have more to learn. Adrian continents.

It beggies my mind how wanth them is to know about it... It's so intimidating and, well it.

which has been a simple of the second of the

exchanges of life stories. We constantly tool reality against such stories, asserting and modifying or own preceptions in light of flow? (Promosal Numerises Goney 1992-261). Through attending sensions and concerts and listening to recordings, amongst other mothods, fourning municiases consciously and momentum of whosh knowledge of the world." Annie "a knowledgement of the "a hallonge" of learning, for example, demonstrates her conceious effects to learn. Thus, through these nearns, municians loope to about the proper sounds and tochnique, the arterdition, etchies, and embodied behaviour susceinted with this munic, as well as the traven themselves, learning to "become" a "type of persons" who plays traditional from low New Gondand munic. We also constitutely a consensor own properties and that of other softening to these ideals, haping how we have improved and white move where to learn (Madmood 2006.139).

To considering the use of observation by yours musclaims we can see how harming musclaims adhere to ideals of expression and dynamism amounted with pleying traditional music. This occurs even through many such musclaims do not consider themselves to be "musclaims" and are not ansensed to here sufficiently emperoused the ideals of Prince of a sufficient of musclaim to be recognized as such. Many musclaims who makes to traditional musclaims to the recognized as such. Many musclaims who makes to traditional musclaim to the recognized as such. Many musclaims who makes the traditional forms to their distinct to the contract to traditional musclaims who makes also musclaims who musclaims who can extend music, such as a spitchest of time books and online websites unactions who can rend music, such as a spitchest of time books and online websites.

and sheet-music to tunes, and request notation from others. 42 I myself have used this resource extensively and many others have said they do as well.

Yet, many of those who use sheet music as their primary method of learning

struggle with the process. They see traditional music as allowing and encouraging

expression and dynamism. As seen below in the narratives of two musicians, however, the traditional transmission process is often contrasted with ideals of classical knowledge

that include seeing music as an entity distilled in a piece of written sheet music. Thus,

they struggle to achieve the traditional ideals since they grew up empersoning the

aesthetics, ethics, and behaviour required of classical music.

Frank expressed his frustration to me as we talked about the use of sheet music in an interview.

I was able to make sense of tunes that I was hearing by being able to read them. Voc loanse wingles entouted was, a bost of mean and that, a goar enabled me to continue on and then have assembling dots to refer to. I think that's part of what! or continue on and them there assembling dots to refer to. I think that's part of what! of the sense of the sens

⁴⁷ ABC is a notation developed by Chris Wahshaw in 1991 as a simplified method for writing out tunes using ASCII characters (Waldron and Veblen 2008.101). This allows notated tunes to be recre easily transferred across the internet than sheet music or the "don."
⁴⁸ The differences in seatheric, on thics, and embedded knowledge between classical and traditional reasis:

are not as gain as other perceived and percept by maximum. Indicate below to these main is used by many inflicted maximum in benefit, persing on and percenting team. Federical process are the important in the performance of their district and percenting team. Federical performance, Taylor, Supplemy (1981) as in general field in a team is made in quantitive and percent belowing formations. In particularly in performance of the p

I'd have to somehow get away from that, not use that as the basis for learning and the music, and I still find that that's a handicap.

As Frank expresses here, he actually feels his classical music training is a hindrance to his ability to learn traditional music. Rachel expressed similar struggles,

I don't think there's a problem in having it to start... But it's a hig problem in whole on it. In some waves think it's much here to never have, not to be able

to read music. Vich I, tours it is, I should's even up, "in one ways," I think it is to read music to the left to read music and allow not to have had not red formal classical maining because it's just, it's had to lose some of tout. It's hand to relace, think the real foldle players are, they just do what their lost's stilling them to do, or their fingers, not readly worried about rules or form and all that. While the influence of sheet music on traditional music was asserted by one musician to

What the uniform cell with many than 2000 kind of imme," some musicians continue to recognite via to rate of a 1700 kind of the recognite via the continue to strength with in rate in 2000, as we not in rock and Enchel's decembine, Both remotions expressed strengths with invaring to play by our and doing "what their body's belling than to do, or their fragent" — are embedded knowledge by off and fream from cutationd music, In addition, they also strength with the presentalization and variation involved in the performance of radiational music, accustomed to the laten that music is contained within * yages."

These municious recognize the ideals embedded in traditional munic. They each continue to munic the munic the most traditional municio. They each continue to munic the former recognized parts and the second traditional municion that would have unconsciously emperatured those ideals, to not not be become "restitional municions," however, they also felt they have to unloss previous municial blasmologie, which might mean un emperaturing themselves from the model of a classical municion or otherwise (OSMa 2006-06). This is a much more intrinse process than simply accessed configuration attention and unique to the part of the Aller Section and the support of the section of the section and the support of the section and the section and the support of the section and the section

to lose some of that." It is often held that fully trained classical players sound like beginners playing traditional moise when they first start (Corocans 1982-7). Thus, we can see how the beginnings of a musicians' musical path affect their later travels. Their musical Designings meant they straughed as they tried to emperson the archevere.

As a result of these municism' struggles and their now-ideal background, Frask, Rachet, and other musicisms in similar positions usually steen their own like of ability. Both questioned me about why I would want to talk to them as municisms when they are just typing to learn. Yet, just as municism' amarelies of their musicid abilithoods served as a neason of contributing their self-definitions according to the ideal path, discussed above, learning musicism' discussions about their musical struggles provide a neason of contributing musicism' discussions about their musical struggles provide a neason of contributing their self-definition according to the season follow. These occurs as musicisms think about what those ideals are and try to incorporate them into their playing.

As Nicholas Thomas (1992) upon about the objectification of tradition, as the rocial practice of a particular posity or group are described and discussed, they cent to constitute that social or group. The performance of traditional fields music and dance comes to characterize the social existence of read beland, for example, for Insiders and outsiders sall efficiency 2005; 57). Thomas states, "in a dislocation process, the group and the perfectled practices are needford as they come to connote each other" (Thomas) 1992;215; On an individual torset, as Rachel and Franch think and still about the practice.

⁶⁰ The narrative process differs in both cases, although the effects are similar. For musicians who grew up with musical childhoods, their narratives offer a way of reconstituting those childhoods according to the cided path. On the other hand, for learning musicians who surging with how when their that path, their curratives about their musical strengths entitled to the label provides a muses of integrating those ideals below the path of their contractives about their musical integration to be used on each about the path of their contractives are musical lives and their objects. The first is benefit or as who must contract the contractive and their objects. The first is benefit or as well as the path of the path of their contractive and their objects. The first is benefit or as well as the path of their contractive and their contractive and

of traditional monic, as well as through other performance of main found, those definition becomes "bedfinide." Learning municians' numbers about New-fronditude being a "maintain glaring" and ins influence on their performance of this monic, for example, respected a recognition and emperioration of olds monic and establishment of the monic, for example, respected a policy of the performance of this monic in the associate the design of the second tender to the depart of As must, done municians' live and manifester in the depart of the design of the monitor maintains on recommity must follow to become a manifester of maintain and reaffirm that goth as they by to be recommitted their where accordant to the follow.

As Thomas indicates, however, this is a two way process and the practices themselves may change. The process of change with negards to short make it partially underway. Many do not see the use of short make in amplicatly control with a partially underway. Many do not see the use of short make in an outpetacy control with other Allis at reading. For example, White has learned primarily by our even though he came to play traditional masks for me in fills. He is conversely a recognized multiformin amount of the major in the play performed in the fill and AICs because he can use the notes that he had not the fill and AICs because he can use the notes can be considered and intoins to a trust at the same time. He thereby continues to emphasize a literality coreporate to learning and admissional masks. Several other recognized traditional musicians actually said to they wish they could not dever emost; List White, they seet as a suttle skill for playing gigs, possing on tunes, and preserving the masks. These musicians, however, have always become recognized as a studioual municians. Short music, to them, would

is therefore negotiated within the ideal of playing traditional music and it continues to be debated as musicians form and reform ideal versions of what it is to be a traditional musician.²⁰

Similarly, a classical background in not considered a disorder for all minima was been plus good and an extra fine for the first fir

[&]quot;Through any own experiences I can see how thest music is both an aid and a lindenace. I began learning using short music, and do many other members of Fiddle Groups and flow with classical bedgrands. Net. I straggied to remembe prices in sometime when when that make was not assurptive, or even to keep up it a straight of the straig

As this classical method does not provide all the same toles for permothous, done who take up the performance of radiational music must all remain themselves, to they have already learned some of the ideal embedded knowledge. As more and more muscies from from a classical background ploy traditional music, the conceptual distance between the two generacy and terms wherevers the two generacy sections. Many musicians to war distriction between the two generacy sections. Many musicians to and centrative to the through the extraction of the discussions about the band Cochild Chaulian in chapter 2.1 is addition, the extraction of the control of the performance of radiational music study, evening with such three for desirated armines.

Yes, correstly musicians continue to uphols the idea of an and process that quantities vosition and dynamics in performance. Musicians like Rachie and Frank therefore continue to contend with the task of becoming a "multitional remission." remaining themselves and envirsing their ordiffedinates with traditional relia (and) before instantial musician is failed. The difference to take they musicians and the locals of emperorment of those leads, in tem, there a significant reflection on the locals of emperorment of those leads, in tem, there a significant reflection extent status within the traditional music scene in St. John's and Seyond. The rest seedin provides a more local-poly multiples of how musicians are evaluated in their musicial and personal professional contributions. The contributions are considerable status within the traditional music for how musicians are evaluated in the first musician provides a more local polyman layer. Seeding to policies over musiciantially samulticians or granted and analytic policies and by inflamments.

Chapter 5: The politics of musicianship

Sandra, a musician who does not describe herself as such, insightfully told me:

If you want to get into the politics of fit, everybody should be a mucician. Everybody is a mussician If you humaner on a coffice table, you know, there, that's your percussion. You could be a musician. So there's that whole idea of who is a resisting may way. Who has the right to pick up an instrument? Well, everybody should in the lated words. Who has the right to pick up an instrument? Well, everybody should in the lated words. Tricke right all right, I want to play way flast, you know what I mean. It's all relative. Learn play as fast as those goys."

Sandra comments that "in the ideal world" "every body in a musician." Vet, as seen in the example that opened the previous chapter, not everyone in St. John's considers themselves a musician, disclaiming the status and meanings associated with that label. Drawing on the discussions of musicians' musical pathways in chapter 4, this chapter

evolves the politics of becoming a traditional musician.

If first explore the different factors that contribute to assessment that a transition in product of piology manned and "posed marrisine," hospital positioning their enter and authority within the traditional music scene of \$8, John's (Bryun 2005, Fish 1995, Yet, authority is suby relevant within a social context.) Hoverfore consider manifoliar quality and the second the city and explore the may betterwhen executed and requirings and seconds and the city and explore the may betterwhen executed and reparticipation at seconds and the city and appear from any betterwhen executed and requirings and the second of the contribute of the many betterwhen executed and requiring the second of the contribute of the many betterwhen executed and participation. The contribute of th

¹¹ "Mussels in the Corner" is often perceived and promoted as a quintessential Newfoundland tune. As such, several musicians commented how they saw it as somewhat "cheero," and it is rarely played at source of the control of t

5.1 Negatiating status I was sitting at Fiddle Group one night. We were playing at a house out in the Battery that week. 52 I had had a lovely stroll walking there on a not-too-hot summer evening with another member. These were his hav windows behind me looking out into the harbour as we sat around the dining room table, assessing, and chatting as usual. We were talking about membership and doing introductions because there were a few people present who were not regular attendees. Tracy mentioned Derek, who had attended Fiddle Group once before. She said he was a really good player and that she thought he played professionally. I beaught up that I had properly analog him and he had mentioned be was interested in attending the group again. "Why?" Trucy asked me and I replied that I thought he liked to play whenever he could. The conversation moved on to other topics.

What Tracy really meant by asking "why?" however, is that she thought Derek was too good a player to want to play with us. Derek was accorded higher status, because he played professionally and because Tracy judged his playing ability to be far beyond that of most members at Fiddle Group. As musicians follow their musical pothways and learn to play traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music, they also emperson themselves to the archetypal image of a "traditional musician," as discussed in chapter 4. As port of this process, however, some musicians' musical pathways and performances follow more closely to these ideals than others. As such, these musicians both claim and are granted status and thereby authority as "traditional musicians." I explore in this section how the elements of the ideal musician are combined with a wide variety of other ideas such as

¹⁷ The Battery is a well-known area of St. John's located at the entrance to the harbour and hallt into the

talent, ability, musicality, professionalism, and authenticity that influence aesthetic and ethical indrements of musicians and their musical and personal performances.

5.1.1 Talent and ability

Notions of acquired ability and indom talent influence musicians⁴ ideas of how to achieve status as traditional musicians and whether it can be done. Ideas of how to achieve status as traditional musicians and whether it can be done, and cannot achieve place and achieve achieve achieve and achieve achie

Bear: Once you learn one tune, well you'll get another one. Once I learned to play a tune all it was a little bit of patience....

Same: And a lot of practice.

Bear: And a little bit of talent... and a bit of age. You've got to age with it too you see. It's no good learning to play for two hours and drop dead, that's no good. You got to elay it and live for a while so it'll, so you can get into it.

The self-reflexive project of empersonment is then a viable, if not ideal, path to achieving status as a traditional musician. Yet, there is no question that it is also a long road,

regardless of when someone started on it. As Bear says "you've got to age with it too."

Thus, one of the measures by which status is "traditionally" assigned to musicians

is age, now of the measures by which titled is "Intelligential ways suggest to assume and the plant of male from (Bengmet 2005;16), O'Shea 2006-2007-6). The presence in St. John's of many manicians who have been ploring traditional massic sizes of they were children, however, centra a configuration bear a significant matter of prouger massicians whose ploring from many older municians, at least in the context of sensions. This situation was also observed by Beneguez menus [her participants in brind (Beneguez 2005;16)]. Those younger manicians who tarted or confined this process them when they were free for air to extract the manicians who tarted or confined this process them when they were free for air to extract the manicians who tarted or confined this process them when they were free for air to extract the manicians who tarted or confined this process them when they were free for air to extract the manicians who tarted or confined this process them when they were free for air to extract the manicians who tarted confined this process them when they were free for air teams.

old, for example, have been expanding their repentive, learning technique, and empersoning the ideals of being a traditional musician for almost twenty years by the time they are twenty-dive. I, on the other hand, will be forty-dreee by the time I have twenty were separatione playing traditional music.

Thus, despite their age, many young musicians have had from to expite musical ability, reprovine, not thortique. This sometime takes to frantistrian show that we are part and lower confidence in one's shilly for older musicians who have revertheless been ploting for only a few years and similarly to some use for the young musicians played to have generated ability. In addition, the convening difficulty is leaving later in 16 may be compounded because many before learning music is an ensire process as a child.¹⁰ As a result, differences in albitry and thereby status between deler learning musicians and younger arboured missicians are enduced.

In addition, ideas of inhom latent are conflicted with ideals of successions learning and superisonment (Eugeneo 2005;155). Despite ecouraging worth of joint reading and emperoement (Eugeneo 2005;155). Despite ecouraging worth of joint reading "a bit of age" to sequipte mountal addition, as superison, beard on research conducted among the Vendu of South Allica, that musicality is culturally constructed. Ver, there was a sense among many musicians that some people just do not have. What to tild me of his wife that "is'; just not in how "when I saided him if the played. Others cited examples of family members who had been listening us bases for

³³ This belief was shared by adult learners of traditional music in the UK, studied by Peter Cope (2005:132).

decades who still could not tell the difference between two tunes, or different types of tunes, and so certainly could not play them

Henry Kinesbury observes, of the classical conservatory system, how "the various manifestations of talent... can be seen as manifestations of one "thing," namely hierarchal inequality" (Kingsbury 1988:82). This observation extends to the performance of traditional music in St. John's. In this manner, through ideas of talent and unconscious learning, requiring are created a higher status for their musical shilling as corpored to those who are not indeed to have been been in the right environments or with the right skills (O'Shea 2008b: Ramuano 2005). Thus, those who are seen to be talented are seen to be born "good" musicians and thereby naturally "good at" playing traditional music and able to produce music that "sounds good."

5.1.2 Musicality professionalism and authenticity

The emphasis on talent and ability is also compounded by a focus on musicality and virtuosity through the influence of the music and recording industries (O'Shea 2008b:27; Sommers Smith 2001:116). At one time in Newfoundland, the measure of a good musician was how danceable their playing was (Smith 2007:150). The shift in music to a listening context and the spread of recordings led musicians to compare their own playing to that on recordings, which emphasized the music itself rather than the social relations it helped create (R. Clark, public discussion, November 20, 2009; O'Shea 2008b:27).54 Standard tuning, clear intonation, detailed ornamentation, and improvisation have all become important to the aesthetics of playing traditional music in Newfoundland

⁵⁴ I explore in chapter 6 how requirious do create social relationships at speciees, but also how those differ

(Smith 2004.173). What it means precisely to be good at playing traditional music has then changed damastically in the past hundred year, integrated into the archetype through the production and consumption of recordings, professional concerts, and narticioation in sensions be predictional musicians.

The rise of a perfusioned take of musicians is another significant influence of the make industry, though this has begreat only receipt in St. John's and boogh in a natually very difficult to separate the categories of "mustor" and "performinant" (friengan 1998-13-14; Oshorea 2027-132; Sashion 1992-134-14). The question is not just whether a musician gets paid but includes their musicial 2018-134-14 and social networks, among other criteria. Nevertheless, self-proclaimed anstear musician almost always assign gener status to those they judge to be profusioned as seen, for example, in Tary's comment about Dearly's desire to participate in Faldes Group. This status is assigned in part because performant missions are usually deficient to have general musical adulty and musicality, although one professioned musician pointed out to see that this is not always the first of the Tary of the comment of the target of the procession of the second of the procession of the procession

All of my participants who are recognized traditional musicians in St. John's are also professionals in some capacity. ⁵⁵ As a result, a musician's status, derived from his her connections to ideals of tradition, is combined with their professionalism, continued by the professional profes

³¹ The confluence between professional and traditional musicians may be exaggerated arrong my participants, many of where I met at professional sessions is an orban centre. I am aware of recognized traditional runcicians who are not professionals, though they are rarely seen at the sessions in town. They are also usually older runsicians who are accorded respect for their age, as well as for their connections.

those who rely exclusively on music for a living are accorded special status as "full-

Thus, the confluence of professionallim, muscladity, index, and ability gust such musclican significant status and thereby surbority. By the same token, musclicans shed not feel they have part in the same refilter and sho or towart to do so dony their status as musclicans. And, who expend the previous chapter, explained "If I'm not a musclican, here, they include "If I'm not a musclican, the paint desiry in the most I'm to see that the town to be If I, is one to big problem) because I'm not a musclican." In during on, however, the significance of work that Alex nevertheless doop not into musclic government, the significance of work that Alex nevertheless doop not into musclicans obtained, since he is just doing in for "far" (Fulgamou 2005).

Acts's comment also contons' Turk' with "work," implying the five tow or contrary redeserous. The Ideals of being a tradition of manistics emphasize "melting" and "expression" and so performing as work run to the ideals from "authential" expression of relief pick up this discounts, as well as a further conductation of fall-time missions' status, is chapter it is relation to ladeal marinductals' must be preferred as a "distance" acidy and out work. There are also testions between the hermothes discounted in this chapter and ideals of community learning the are associated with predictions and melting and the status of the prediction in the professional and musclefly, but also on their sociability, particularly at restions. Others will comment that as used so is a "sively player," but they will also point out fun to play and get along with. Alternatively, musicians might discuss how another musician is unwelcoming, arrogant, and imposing.

Thus, many professionals attempt to re-embed their music within the relations of the archetypal musician, of playing with others and of creating memories and lineages by disassociating themselves from the professional status. As one full-time professional

I don't even, when I say I'm a perfectional muscient, I'm also not too attached to whatever that means, you know, I by music and I suppose, in the articlest sense years. I'm a professional, but that can mean so many things. I mean I meet players early all the fittee and I lain of don't like in in a way became they say, you know "old! can't play with you becames you're a professional." There's this intimation thingsing that the concess with and I don't think that way at all. I'm jout another person playing.

These musciams focus on a more exaltinement both att is about sharing music with one

These musicants focus on a more egantinane criton that a novol starring more wow was another, rather than competitiveness in their playing and ability (Blassegmez 2005:164; O'Shea 2008;97-101). Such ideas about sharing music and playing with others contributed to Derek's inquiry about joining Fiddle Group, even if he is a much more

skilled player than most members.

S.J. S. Columbring extens
The label of "immunican" of an Alex and several other people who regularly play
music disclaim, report finalhold, describe has a wide variety of associations with then
such as ability, steller, predesimentalium, mulculary, and substrativity, be the case of
traditional music, in It, in also associated with mulculary performances of the ideals
discussed in the previous clupter: a residencial registerimenses with the ideals
discussed in the previous clupter: a residencial registerimenses of the ideals
discussed in the previous clupter: a residencial registerimense of the ideals
discussed in the previous clupter: a residencial registerimense of the ideals
discussed in the previous clupters. The individual registerimens of the ideals
discussed in the previous clupters.

The individual registerimens of the individual registerimens of the individual registerimense.

The individual registerimens of the individual registerimense of the individual registerimens.

The individual registerimens of the individual registerimens of the individual registerimense.

The individual registerimens of the individual registerimense of

person" who plays traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland motic they assign status to themselves and to others based on their performance of the component intens and ideals. Performances are therefore simultaneously expressions of musiciants' ability, musicality, arthreticity, professionalism, taken, and connections with ideals of "tradition."

In nations to ploying the sar in Index, Robroca Playand Gaucen bow mattery is able expressed, at least pertainly, in a discovere of correctness, which includes both performing and injudging what "south right," as well as what is a good more or who is a good player (Playant 2005-227-210), Massicians will encourage and complismen "good" performances, or provide negative reinforcement to sunscended performances, and this too is part of what it means to be a musician. As Gary indicated in chapter 4, worse municians have been establed to knew the table for what their playing was "remineds." I also discous below the many other subdie and non-outded ways such judgments are enforced.

Yet, such judgments, as well in individual performances, are not joint about assetting matter, medicines are also assetting the active jobs content made in a particular way, in discussing the performance of clinical music in the United States, Henry Kingshary observes that "unstical performance... [10] insertainty internation with the approximation and reproduction of social topological (Supplemy 1988.1105). In discussing the label of "musician," learning musicians simultaneously grant the authority to make judgments to those who do clinical that attacks, We are, in effects, saying that we are less transaction, less presidentional, less municial, or less "variationess" than those who are restricted, less presidentional, less municial, or less "variationess" than those who are "musician." We then the particular of the second of the control of the con

As Studies observed at the beginning of this chapter, however, "It's all relative." Most performance and the properties of the studies of the properties their lower status relative to the "super state" of traditional friend music, in addition, practically with consistints "special" music is a matter of user deduct, seen with the various factors that consistent is used, as assessment. For one musicians "special" performance may involve a complex taster, played fast and with intrinsic ornamentation, morting predictional final state of the performance. Another may define it as a performance where all musicians were able to performance. Another may define it as a performance where all musicians were able to performance and musicians were executfully able to blond with one another. Another still may comised a "special" performance to be one than time too ideas of them times was lationalized played on the foliad—executily considered to be fast but with little enumeratation. The emphasis on different ideals of "agalizations" or "professionalism" energies residence value to different ideas of what is invertent in contain? "or" molic.

The performance of routfitted ansists therefore involves a politics in responsing different definitions of good music, as well as who has the authority to ansent those definitions, to make an assessment others of musical performances, and to enforce established hierarchies. As a result, the hierarchies among musicians, along with the measures used to evaluate a musician 's performance, use not statis." The treat section explores some of these publics, considering how musicians negotiate their relative nature at particular resistons and in the section scene as whole in \$0, John's and, in the process, assert different ways of pripage "good" musici.

5.2 Playing musical politics

5.2 Physique municial politics
As a could of the measurements with ideas about "commonity" music emitings
sensions are other potrayed on againstrous and operationous. It is not that generally
resistent flower prompting prosecutived or refunded than, they involve submit
resistent fillers prompting procuration of refunded than, they involve submit
hapteness. The measurement is principal for common as open, informat, and transmission
(O'Shao 2006-2007, 2006, 2006). She explores the supplications ever mensing within
sension and argues that admission folds makes as a foundation of produce in the
measurement of the common and the common of the common and the commo

^{10 &}quot;Consequeity." like "tradition" and "authenticity" is itself a very contested term.

to a session, which occurs at the downtown sessions in St. John's, adds additional lines of negotiation (O'Sbea 2006-2007-8; Rapuano 2005).

This section the confident low the different factor contributing to a mutician's state are applied in reactions useys in the content of specific sections in St. Jub's 1 talls of discuss how muticians regulate the testions between fields of egalitatismism and community music enabling and the bioenshead divisions that exist among muticians, asserting different bleas of what is important in plying this music, as well as how the propositions in influence the ways that mulcius are sub-it to puricipate in these sections. If consider the professional section the ways that musicians are able to puricipate in these sections, I consider for testions that amongly adheres to death of agultatismism. These consider the professional sections in time 1. equitors how these sections emphatical tests or mutically approfessionalizing, we in muticining connections with laten of community music-making, are accepting of licenses. In the case of consider how coverentions and related of edupate cultivate different ideals in practice and how the relative nature of sub-clust may influence the direction of a particular sense and the application of cools assertions.

5.2.1 "Egalitarian" sessions

Some musicians focus man expatrian and inclusive ethors when organizing a seasole. Different individuals may take a leading rule throughout the right. The temporary leaders are those with the most conditioner, represent, restriction, entrainment or simply someone who has a true they would like to play. Journahor P.J. Stock (2004), for example, provides an excellent analysis of how informal leadership from direct the composition of the condition of the window of the condition of

³⁷ Later chapters will explore further political negotiations regarding the social structure of sessions, the

over the sension. In St. John's, Fiddle Group and the Gorgottons sension contribute two such actions. These follow primarily a "sumeration" system, to use the descriptor of our mentions, whereby the lovel of althing and expension for the majority of mentions in attendance direct many of the tensor that are played and their speed, Yes, musicians at these senions are they generally attentive to ensuring everyone has the apportunity to mentionize.

In following mah a system, done sensions are often standed more widely by learners. An emotioned, many learning musicians are referred to these sessions and they constitute a familiar force for each musiciant to follow. The Georgetown sension was started precisely because some learning musicians in town watered a session that was open to everyone and where no new was in charge. Talkful Group is similarly known to be composed largely of learning musicians in addition, although an individual holds Talkful Group in their home each work, the session in generally seen to belong to the whole group. As a result of the composition of these sessions are are usually played at a shower pace. Musicians at those sessions are also allowed to rounding eightly along with tunes and storn them through playing with others. The private and off the boston track locations where Falde Group and the Georgetown sessions take place facilitate this focus on learning patch was one carding performance quality smale.²¹

³⁴ "Neoding" refers to the process of playing notes in the key of a tase in order to determine the "corner" refers.
³⁶ As discussed it chapter 2. the Coorgatown pub is located away from the downtown sure of 51, Juhn's whith the Coorgatown community. They his chought of as a "local" pub, that lew members of the consensate year there on a regular basis. It is therefore much more of a sociated warms than the publicly advertised and early accessible seasonics located of warms there, which is the much conversion rate of the procession.

James, who attends only the Goorgetown sension stated, "I love the idea that it's open and that you can be a l. to make ministens or whatever." While several musicism inclinated that the presence of a few wild musicism at any given sension provides an anchor for the other to puricipate and "suck ministens," musicism like James also emphasize that they like the fices on inclusion and tearning regardless of musical ability. Some amusicism attending Fdddf. Goorge explained that they push is their only opportunity to let and reneative beause of other obliquitions in their fives.

The particular convention that gaven these sentions, specific to each prosp, convenienchously participation and organize the unfolding of the central gaves time. From convenience, Tables (one) participation and now show by playing are july, the "Senal to Likolonomous" followed by the "Swallow's Tall Jag." The groups does not not not sention by playing "Verbor in the Wind," a watter written by familie themsis. Sometimes the ments of containes by person of the containes because the containes because the first sentence of the containes because the first sentence of the containes because the first sentence of the containes of the containes the contained first Stagle at the Sology. The adultions, our series of tense are restry because of an extra series in tensel first Stagle at the Sology Tallondon, our series of tense are restry because of the contained for the series and possible and the series of the

The goal of these sessions, reflected in their particular conventions, is therefore not on making great music. Tracy, who has been playing with Fiddle Group for many years, explained:

Of Stock observed a similar purpose of the closing tune at a session in Sheffield, England (Stock 2004:63-64).

We're not performing and we know the quality of our music. And I don't mean to bring everybody down with me when I Seel that way, or with the lowest common denominates ont of thing, but the fact is that, as you know, as a group that's how it is, You know, we are willing to include all those people so, or all of us me included, so that's how it's going to sound.

The other of the sension as whole is nesteed relative to "objective" evaluations of minicial quality and professional standards of performance. And Trax years, "we know the quality of our minicial quality may be provided to the property of the grant provides amough the "lower" doministur, in practice the group plays according to the ability of the majority of minicials. Registers have the experiency and support to become gast of this majority, but at the same time more advanced player must also adhere to convention that could committed their performances. These conventions explain why Texa qualitation Darks defent as level with the reformances.

The Georgetons nession is not so routilized, so players move in and not from work to work. As a result, there is no some way to know how beginner-oriented any mortural prediction sension with 10°C, continuity from the surginar players and common tunes and sets that are played, along with an active effort to include all individuals regardless of their ability. As one point, all of the tunes and sets played at the sensions were posted with a resulting of the competence of their ability, and competence are the Competence community weekler. This distribution of information provided advance knowledge of the respective played at the sension to suppose with internet access. The clintone of a finite and not to be large list is also some indication of the consistency of tunes and sets that are played deve. In addition, similar to

has not played many tunes that night, they will often be asked if there is something they would like to play.

The generous and policis vouse, however, also allows more advisored players to join. If such players from the majority for the evening, they may jo trans. It was bebeginness belind in their decisies to "play way that," in Sandra otherword at the beginning of this despite, we to play new and exciting tunes and not standards the likes of Montels in the Center. Vie. to illicious below, there are values upon the conventions and the are enforced, suscrining improperpieta behaviors, maintaining the openess of door sections, and emphasizing that what is important is that everyone is included and plays souther.

5.2.2 Professional sessions

Thus as the other sentions in St. Mont's are played former with more of a free product on the "quality" of music, in relation to preferential relating standards for performance. This offerment emphasis regarines best sentions in distinct ways to those discussed above. Bugineers are not offers referred to frees, but they may be invited by regular attendance, and is was, Such invincious require pre-ceiving connections to apply and attendance, as if was, Such invincious require pre-ceiving connections are a factors, attending the excession and all times, or even at their work-place. For learner, a factors, attending the excessions as a factors, attending to the continuous and application for the remarks who efforted the invitations as a sponters to the effect music who efforted the invitation are also produces to the other musical, particularly if they are a learner (see, for example, Init 200431), in, the was invited to a section devenous many any through exhibiting a continuous contractions are autically to the contractions.

crowd did. I just stayed. I think it was being invited and feeling that I had learned enough that I could probably play one or two tunes to actually offer something." An invitation legitimizes a learning musician's presence in the session to other musicians and to themselves.

Of course, infinitelate can also join a session without recreiving an invitation. In Include, it has been frequently observed that learning matricians reads: "Quidintegras" to assessing across the infinite and perioducity to sixth or "authentic" traditional matrix sea has Clare, in seast of matter manicians to have reportion and opin from OSNes 2008-054-99). They need to become part of precisjons lineages and to contrict their own materials and otices associated with the tame. This gains them "colorist capital" and natus back home along with new montal abilities (OSNes 2008/T-\$104). Laming municians into home along with new montal abilities (OSNes 2008/T-\$104). Laming municians in his pair of two opportunities to itam from players who are "better than you." In other words, learning municians assent done explains protectly because of the natus, ability, and musicianship of the abstract municians.

Hasel fashish, Newere, discuss how these sessions offer from other forms of musical apprenticeship in that maskisian are supposed to join by playing the fall models line, suther than being effends a different musical scale and shifty direction for 1944-586. This system is maintained by rales of estigants, shared by most musicans at professional sessions, building that you should not model. That is, you should not play tunnes that you do not already have been by high. This edgeants differs from the conventions at Congregation and Falds Group that allow was essentilling and accept that

some people will play along with tunes they do not yet fully know. A musician who began attending sessions as a beginner many years ago, but is now recognized as a proficient traditional musician, observed, "if you're a beginner then you sit in the session and mostly don't do a thing," Noodling muddles the sound and makes it more difficult for other musicians us hour and star.

Faithin suggest the this year, and the list year and relevant the bindered advelopment of validational most in brinds, seen the in Nivel-Goudland, shick was originally based on side performances for discess but has evolved line as gavey endorsover Orbitalion 1994;55:5777, While the history likely has a significant influence, the flower at these sections or quality was inclinement by minute abouting industries, significant sections or quality was influenced by minute demonstrating industries, significant the system. The professional musicians at the downstreas necessary learners to state. As forcy said 'you know these integration princip with people who are been than you. "Very day has went the season's to sound good, which necessity whether the princip of learning municians. This flows on quality vectors partially because it is a paid gip for some of the muscians and has implications for their repositions as professionals and their ability by gar gip last now.

The presence of a publishes is, then, a significant source of enguination at these sensins. The publish pays the host to ensure that the music is of a certain quality and that the sension takes place, thereby setting expectations for the music and the musicians in attendance. Homing municians insist that, to then, a sension is the same whether they are honting the accision or not. Ver, they have a vectod interest in ensuring the professioned quality of the music. As one regular musicians at these excessions said, Very was to be

adding always, not taking away. If you're taking away from what's going on, you should be quiet and enjoy the music." Such a focus, in turn, shapes the participation of learners.

Yes, the majority of maniforms of those environs are advanced physions. Does following a "democratio," system, these municians held the enginety of sens at the that following the contraction of the properties of the sense from the part themselves often supprising their relative status with each other. During my find-bent, for example, there were two skilled profusional municians from "puwy," losing in St., John's and attending many sensions. While these municians were grainsively and enthusiastically welcowed or the sensions by the local regular municians, the sensions nevertheless also several as a versat, at time, where these municians could competitively phorous that all higher. Hey yield for status as the best of the properties of the status in the local sensions are sufficiently as the sensions nevertheless also served as a versat, at time, where these municians could competitively phorous the part of the status has been designed in the properties of the status has been designed in the properties of the status has been designed in the properties of the status has been designed in the properties of the status has been designed in the properties of the status has been designed in the properties of the status has been designed in the properties of the status has been designed in the properties of the status has been designed in the properties of the status has been designed in the properties of the status has been designed in the properties of the properties of

These experiations take place frough the direct performance of motic. "The proportional distribution of the medicule lear" reflects bisenection among individuals (Harbatta 1944-855). Hosting municians generally lead many taxor or suggest that specific other municians text a set, denoity indicating to where they are giving leading authority to first those particular taxes, which is best far expension of authority and authority to first those particular taxes, which is best far expension of authority and authority to first those particular taxes, which is best of the expension of authority to their denoity and the expension of authority to their denoity of the expension of authority to their denoity of the expension of the expens

yelps, and comments of support during the tune. Often a guitar and bodhrán will join in

These various negotiations that take place are also reflected in the opatial arrangement of chains? (Wathins 1994-1845; CSMas 2066-2007; 2006b), While massission arrangement of chains? (Wathins 1994-1845; CSMas 2066-2007), 2006b), While massission from a mogle clinic, canterious posses are primarious observations to take of the past and other musicians. At Frin's, the hosting musician has a spee where the rise can be well, with his back is the well, though the door and some of the "malicians." Other abstracts musicians generally in reveal, a white this back has a been with the final tellular comments in tailing arrangements are comment as tessions where "musicians road to form a closed cities with seasion backer in the multile of the grow, If they are sensel in a first and closed cities, however, more will be friening the pursues..., and it will generally be found that the highest musicians... are usual to first a shortageness position" (CSBas 2006-2017), here "musiciand mars, a new much a part of the regulations over individual hierarchics as are an other aspects of performance (CSBas 2006-2007).

Yet, as officenced in object 4, for "traditional" image of how subdisonal third (soil) Need-foundated music was founded in board smooth office context with familiary or community members. As such, Noth schulars and musicians connect sensitions to the practice of community music-making and community dateses that more formed the schular context for the performance of this music included and Newfoundation. It considering the practice of sensions in beland, Hand's Tabilution concludes that "the sension recentre the intimate involvement between body opport as a hove domes?" or displains 1949-1979.

Similarly, in discussing this pole-sension in the Inflat States and their community of the schular properties of the sension recentred the intimate involvement between body opport as a hove domes," or displains 1949-1979.

sense of "home" in Ireland, Deborah L. Rapuano states "the pub session recrustes a sense of community that is essential for the continued connection to a homeland" (Rapuano 2005;113). "Several of my participants also assume a connection between the practice of sessions in Newfordingland and discrete or "lines" that concerned in raral areas.

Regulation of historical accuracy (see chapter 23, these assumptions notifice the last fast seems in a past of "multificual" multi-lang practice in a community environment. As a senti of these idealized paths, in which traditional music should be learned directly from other musicians, and because most advanced pipers were consumed to a position where "when you six in the sension and mostly don't do a thing," advanced municians are generally encouraging of beginners participating respectfully in the sension. It was invited to play at the downtown mentions as a learning musician no numerous occusions. Yes, I was always aware of the expectation that it should be good music that in played.

Chapter 7 will explore further the connections to "places" that musicians form through playing thi

expert natus and ability. Hiden O'Dines suggests in her analysis of the negotiations that take place are sensions that "Regimen Cheerfully accepted durie low natura" (O'Dina 2006) 2007). O'Dines - interest in pulseup shighly resignated. Nevertheless, Segimens who continue to attend are well aware of the eliquente governing their participation and they generally by to a failter to it to memor their continued acceptance and become of their own regions of the predictional mensions and they alloy of remine they place.

This respectful debureauce of elegants is also a performance of their risk as a lourning materials—another cample of Rebreck Blyout's observation has the process of approximately in a matter of both learning to become "past" and "pool of "Object 2005;25:25,23,23:24). That is, it is no simply bearing the leads to also performing them. Observing elegants observed to the size performing them. Observing elegants observed process and for other muscines. This is those more sense contrary to the leafs of "community" bearing and thoring, As will be discussed in chapter to be severe, a sensition who does not observe "common sense" and discepts the muscle also discussed the past of making good music topether and is thereby at only with the evolution of the muscle and industry of those reasons. ⁵⁰

5.2.3 "Getting it"

I was at Erin's for the session one Friday night. It was a busy night, not long before the Folk Festival. When I arrived around 9pm, the session was well underway.

⁴⁷ The Assistant Card's resistant is considered little throughout this chapter, for reasons of multiplied cluthy and spece. Yet, it previous in microming case trainly, and focusion of in phase; the sension of Assistant cluthy and advertised as special and installing and advertised as special and installing and advertised as a period point of learning assistant, adding them to continue establishing. Assistant of Lauring assistant, adding them to continue establishing, and contribute of Lauring assistant, adding them to continue establishing. Assistant contribute and the co

There were already sine musicians playing along with a few musicians in the audience without their interments. I pulled up a chair consider of the circle, pulled on my interments, sat, and little, it was a both their single, the air was down, and everything was riskly, I would get up from my chair and my plate would get off of the back. There was a sunf of sweet, but there was also it of musicia, most and more unail to sweet the single mention. The cours more air intermediate the single musicians, forward more unail to throughout the nails, time withing mostless the circle was a some recommend the musicians, there was no more recommend the musicians while the little pulled to the single musicians while the little containing. Many other musicians while the little containing. Many other musicians while the little per upon single in the pals to listen as they heard the musicians while while they a upon single.

Partures glovegh the exeming, a young most cause into the pole with an intermental. A mention in the was not ploying that stillage pure 100 seen for him. The young man was stiming behind and to the rights of me and I moved over no be could be a little closer to the critica. He said he was from away he may hill had the mains exement. He would propose that the said is the said to was from away he will have the white the mannies was poing be wardly play long follow unters. I waste in my glid and tone "the was readly uping being a fine to state in my glid matters "the was readly uping the said and fill a fine that after that after the said was pointing mission in my care. He said if all don't mind at fine that after more fines it was getting amonging right in my care. He said if the band just means around, that when the close it is made to the fact (it was still good in the matter hand) just mean around, that when the closes I follow the waste to greating a still a shifted my other in the closure to another associates, the third effectively blocked off the young man. "When equaling a few day have with Andy, a amonician who had been there in might, he agained when they was commentating and high had played when the part of many land, and make make had been there in might, he agained when they was how the formerstrating.

our own adoption and support of such rules of etiquette. Andy also commented how such people can be such enthusiastic players but have no sense of "decorum."

As discussed above, conventions and eliquent uphed by the regular missions at sension serve to direct the ession throughout the resting. Such eliquethe differs among sessions according the different emphases on inclusion, explainations and minute "uniform "boodings is groundly acceptable at Falde Conque en the Conquentum ensions, provided it in not disreptive of the sension. In it, however, much here acceptable at the discussion of the sension in its interests and competent of the sension in its in however, much here acceptable or the discussion and the sension and include all players required or distribution generally play regular sets of some and include all players regulations of ability. All the same facine, an adicidual may be comment for playing so many transes that others when there were not to the contract of the sension in the contract to the contract of the sension sension will play a vast special player and the sension in this, but missions will play a vast repressive of turns throughout the night, Augene in welcome to join in If they are able and provided the minimal reason accessive discovered and mention of the contraction of the provided the minimal reason accessive discovered.

2000b;130-130; As Androop McCome commence, the section "in the last of Floors for a complex system of order and edispeters, hamilitation and value relationements that are distilled from the whole content of the labit handland sector," (AsCome 20015); Certain individuals are thereby included or excluded from the sension in various ways, either explicitly or implicitly. Most massistans, however, entires reliquent and conventions to the sension of the content of the con

Yes, this suscissing is also a political process. No munician with any sense would strengt to exclude the houts of a session or their fishesh who are regular attenders, since the remoin, in effect, belongs in those municians. They also have states as recognized professional municians. In addition, the hosts have the authority garned to them by the politicant municians. In addition, the hosts have the authority garned to them by the owners as being "it thought of be sessions. Similarly, municians who are wederened regulars as accusions often have more finelshifty in pooling the boundaries of these refers.

In relation to women's participation in the mosque movement, Salu Mahmood (100%) discusses how he himped women addres to a standed conjust of leiting destroin, they are able to choose precisely have they follow this decroins where rules and practices are undear. Yet, the sland discusses how somen's ability to magniture and make choice are undear. Yet, the sland discusses how somen's ability to magniture and make choice of adherences to those two juntificions (Athinous) 2005;179; Immy models along quietly with a time at the downtown sessions [11 floids, 1 will not discuss the recognited as a respectful participation. In addition, susceining is not an everyday occurrence. Municious at all sessions are often very sectioning, perspective, and

unwritten conventions of participation – at least to some extent. It means being able to interact is an acceptable manner musically and personally. Musicians are then, in turn, able to negotiate precisely how they want to follow the ideals of musicianship, embasizing cortain ideals of inclusion, for example.

5.3 Political pathways

Munician closes which resistents arend based on the rootes available to their ordey may farge new pathways on their own. The politics involved in much choices are clearly colden in considering the cases when resistent everlap, as was the case? Tready evenings during my fidebook. Belon also discussed in chapter 2 how a group of musicians started a new session at the same time as another that was already being beld. He commented on the mental interval in the control of the first order that times.

I remember being not of this discussion and it all sweeds to important at the time, but in retrapped; two she followers, Ven know, where do you bryadine left Are you going to step here because you've been gain? for tan years one zy our going is usefully pack to pad up with thoo gay to venue they a good alonger? The choice discussed by Below was between "spallion" to certain mutciness and to a principal season, as opposed to warning to play with those "good players" who started the new sexions. Similarly, choosing which seasons to started on Trendey rights would

make a statement about "toysthies" as both the Georgetown session and Nantical Neille's session occurred at the same time.

Those advanced musicians who attend Georgetown or Fiddle Group, and there are a few, are choosing to emphasize sociolistic and ideas of equality over always making are transic. Similarly, learness who attend downtown sessions are actively seeking to

improve their musical ability and thereby their status within the music scene. Within

sessions, musicians negotiate their relative name and ideals through their choice of turns, keys, and specis. They may pley, for cample, a true the everyone knows or attentively synchrot two their object where the session server. Through a beautiful performance of a complex turns, a musician may increase their recognition and turns and paper within the session server. Through a beautiful performance of a complex turns, a musician may increase their recognition and turns an appear within the session, a musician may increase their completion and turns appear within the session, the form the session server to be simply showing off if the turn was named at an inappropriate time or with the knowledge that the volunt example their performance of the session of the se

As discussed in chapter 1, Simon Fish agrees that through the performance of mostin, meniciates center than ideal and medicinels behavior. He made in the "music-articulates in Italy" as understanding of both group relations and individually ("18th 1996: 118-11), likelan O'Shine (2006; 2008), however, entitiops and individually ("18th 1996: 118-11), likelan O'Shine (2006; 2008), however, entitiops and individually and entition influence and individual and entitions their fisher members are being he management in Italia Clare, Institute, to septime the transions in sufficient or make making. Shot concludes that I'this and several other schedules are of before include making makes together due to the art of solution to proceed and the solution are making makes together due in I'this and solution of the competitions of participants (as if envymen had the same experience) and so folds the experience of participants (as if envymen had the same experience) "CONDate 2006-2007.515.) The discussions

⁴⁰ These choices are not always "politically" metivated. Musicians elles choose the tasses that happen to come to mind at a given moment or once they simply rejuy playing. Similarly, other resolvant decisions join to runs are not always in collatable; judgment. A mental tasy againty have beyon the wholever point for some control of the work of the property of

of musicians' experiences in attending sessions in St. John's, also experienced by

Musicion do not necessarily once he space on the mensing or experience of loir masic even as they plo speaffer collectively. Negotiations are continuous and oughing and the social omission ramp be altered through them, as musicions counts new garbanys for themselves and others who may follow. I suggest that taking part in those regoritation and politics is also significant in enablishing a musiciar's membershelp within the traditional music scene and their understanding of and adversers to the shared ideals of its performance (Proc. 2019). It is therefore an important part of Neconing at traditional

⁶⁴ J draw here on Adrian Peace's (2001) research in a small village in rural Ireland where he explores how the process of debate and negotiation among individuals acts as means of establishing and maintaining community membership. I cluborate on this idea in relation to social connections among musicians in the next chapter.

musician. I elaborate on this point further in chapter 6, in considering the role of these political negotiations in creating social connections among individuals. I explore the feelings of "groupness" that musicians do experience while also taking into account the competing interests at sensions and different structural forces embedded in the music.

Chanter 6: Playing music together

It was Wednesday night, Fiddle Group night, Except, this week an e-mail had been sent to the group to say that we were convening not to play, but to listen. A couple of well-known and well-liked professional musicians were leaving town and there was to be an impromptu session featuring most of the top-notch players in town. The group was going to "say goodbye, have a pint, and be inspired." The session was underway as we all arrived one or two at a time at the Duke of Duckworth, a popular pub in the downtown area of St. John's. Everyone found a seat but made sure to leave enough room for the other musicians (the ones who were playing). There were at least fifteen musicians participating in the session by the end of the night. Fiddle Group was also out in significant numbers with at least ten members in attendance. We all sat and chatted, mostly amonast ourselves. Sandra was telling me about some of her experiences playing at different sessions, for example, while we also listened to the great music. Occasionally someone would have a short chat with one of the performing musicians while they were taking a break. Everyone there, playing or otherwise, was having a pint, a good time, and enjoying each other's company.

While the caught illustrate for influence of mass or ministainer points at the viction session discount in the previous depute, it also demonstrate to we session are important spaces of socialization for ministans, whether they are performing or not. This chapter therefore explores the social relationships that ministans from with one mother, particularly at seasons, and for not from extilizationships play in their ministal and nonministal pulsways. If fort consider the different ways that ministans developer pelationships ministal pulsways. If fort consider the different ways that ministans develop relationships and the second of the consideration of the contract of the consideration of the contract of the ministal pulsways. If fort consider the different ways that ministans develop relationships and the contract of the contract of the consideration of the contract of th at sessions. I also explore how these relationships are shaped by the structure and ideals of the mains and of sessions. In particular, moisioning powler and age have a significant influence on their social experiences. Yet, I also show the varied types of relationships the municians from and how these extend by sport the session table into different networks of relation and committee a significant part of monicional break or relation and committee a significant part of monicional break considering how sections produced as a final content to appear to the original by protectional productions a break or production as the content of the production and the content of the production as the production as the content of the production as the p

6.1 Social music

New York and the Company was the first production of multimost finds tond. New foundation state in St. John's sail, as such, their explicit purpose is to play make the white other musicians. The previous chapter produced bow different existents in St. John's emphasize different grads and ideas relating to musicality, prefereinmation, using other factors. Yet, as one advanced musician otherwell about why the attack Falidic Profession of the Profession of the Company of the St. Profession of the Profession of the St. Profession of the St. Profession of the Profession of the St. Profession of the Profes

Sessions are associated with drinking, socializing, and having a first time (Fairbairs 1994-533; Sommers Smith 2001:120-121). A good session is also good "crais;" to use the Irish term. ⁶⁰ The party atmosphere of the pub and the attentive playing of music are sometimes seen as opposed endeavours (Fairbairs 1994-588-589; O'Shea

¹⁵ Craic is a gaelic word, frequently used in Ireland, but I have rarely heard it in NewSoundland. The term generally refers to having a fun time and enjoying good company and good conversation.

2006-2007-10, Summers Sinth 2001;120-121). Nevertheless, the excitament of a finsight out, a few good print, and music among friends may also contribute to the energy of musicianity performence and an engagement with the most and other musician. Musicians at all socious therefore discussed and disconsistent throughout my participant observation how the people they must assume were an important part of their exercisence, along with the music.

Various scholars have explored how sections and the networks of muticiases playing traditional fields make constitute a community of histolation 1944, McCann 2011; McCann 201

Williams points out, however, that tensions can arise from the two definitions (OSbea 20086-99, Williams 1982-75), Using Williams' analysis, Holen O'Shen also observes that mather fine foosings in includios, Ideas of communitation are inverted in some sensions in lectural, exercing exclusive expressions of community (OSbea 20086-99-14). As I have discussed, the concludes that the sension is about "difference" as well as "ammerors" (OSbea 20086-19-14). Sea also follows that the conclusion by

questioning why many musicians and scholars insist on retaining such notions of "community" when there is clearly much more to the picture (O'Shea 2008b:139-140; O'Shea 2006-7:18).

O'Date totalisty's pageons that is aduring to the row picture of enciones as "assemblation," was freedublen the illusory treasure of authenticity through an imaginative cultural tenerative that such as shedness and community, a sense of home where the home is, yearning for what cultural theories laist Chambers calls the royths were to be royths yet continue to cling to, cherish and dream" ("O'Date 2000th 140). In other words, we simultaneously alther to idease of a world resend in so leafs "staffational" and "material" life that is closely due to this music. Lapse with O'Shin's reagonism. But life this detection is also have as conditional lemptes in shedge the sessions and musicians" participation in them, even if they are "illnowy" in certain regards. Chapter 4 discussed in detail how musicians" when become envised with these very ideals of what it means to be a radiction affection. In edition, for many musicians, the significance and strength of this "maginative cultural numerities," of horizog a stress of community with other muticies, may overside the politics, ferdings of ambivalence, firstension, and other less possible feelings and operations, in desiration, and other less possible feelings and operations, and continued in the contraction, and other less possible feelings and operations in internation, and other less possible feelings and operations in internation, and other less possible feelings and operations in internation.

I therefore consider how some musicians feel a sense of "community" through these connections and emphasize the important sense of belonging this has brought them. These who make these references are often musicians who have come from away or those who have left the Island and formed music communities elsewhere. Others,

⁵⁶ Musicians' sense of belonging in relation to ideas of place will be explored in the next chapter

however, prefer to define these connections in other ways. Most maintains refer to the mainta' varies, "which includes the activate of maintains, the pubs, the connects, and the maintains—include which the average count. This has the terminology that the two epited continently throughout this chair. Some manifolds also refer to the excital networks, with only prefix archimostrum, which," or intriply as their maint fetnels or the section revorts, with only prefix archimostrum, and which," or intriply as their maint fetnels or the section revorts. These, following now yourseness of "mailtime" and "malentime", "all support the section temper upon maintains not, in content with some adulance, do I see not a dispress the myth of community. This chapter rather explains the experienced feetings of "groupsym" or "communitime" held by maintains and how these are created or contented (finelskater "York).

As part of this exploration I also consider how this particular music and Its associated practices shape the connections that musicians covered "A 18 th strates," while music may be shapedly below from that it and not it, an an experience is has a life of it most "Disk 1996, bits preferences, music is a should practice (Dynk 1996, 199

⁵ discussed is staget I how my approach to the major of music explores to performance as "travialized expensive" Office [50]. Music is therefore a sail windows meet shall not must "happene," as seen is chapter 3 where I considered how the performance of massic was also a political process. Music is take a project corn which exhert desired measurement of massic was also a political process. Music is also a represent construction of the performance of massic was also a political process. Music is also a previous office which we desired the performance of the performance of

include calluses on musicians' fingers (mostly by string players), finger rails cut certain lengths (for string players, these are often different lengths for each hand) or muscular adaptations to the requirements of playing a particular instrument. Yet, as discussed in chapter 4, part of the process of becoming a traditional musician is to incorporate into one's self embodied behaviours based on particular aesthetics and ethics (Bryant 2005; Mahmood 2005). Musicians thereby incorporate every tune they learn into their bodies through both muscle and aural memory. One of the strangest experiences I have felt is

joining in on a tune that someone has started and being able to play it, while not having a In addition to these effects on the bodies of individuals, conventions about how

the music should be performed have an influence on how musicians interact and perform together Erith further states:

clue what the tune is.

Once we start looking at different musical genres we can begin to document the different ways in which music works materially to give people different identities. to place them in different social groups. Whether we're talking about Finnish donce halls in Sweden. Irish pubs in London, or Indian film music in Trinidad, we're dealing not just with nostalgia for "traditional sounds", not just with a commitment to "different" songs, but also with experience of alternative modes of social interaction. Communal values can only thus be arasped, as musical aesthetics in action 68

(Erith 1996:124)

⁶⁸ Trick's discussions here of the material existence of music are static. He argues in this passage for though the music and the social context are both homologous and suchanging (Frith 1996:124). Musicians do not necessarily agree on the meaning or experience of their music even as they play together collectively

The music shapes musicians' experiences based on genres and conventions, as indicated by Frith, but also the nabele and not-so-solute differences on emphasis in musical expression, discussed in chapter 5 (Frith 1996;124), I therefore consider how the relationships that musicians form with one another are organized and created in relation

6.1.1 Collective music, making

to the music and its social and material practices.

Connections develop, at least in part, through the simple act of sharing a space and through the collaborative act of sharing in a musical performance. Rachel, who attends Fiddle Group, explained:

It's also interesting because as much as there's this connection that everybody experiences with this, it's not like you're all best friends outside of this....So it's kind of cool that in spite of all that... there's something in some ways bigger than that....

I know some of those [musicians] that hang out together. But [some also] just say ok, that's enough of you, I'm glad we won't see each other until next week. But at the same time, [they'll say] you better be there next week. You know, they don't want to go unless you're there too, even though you [don't] completely model really well or something.

As Rachel comments, some municians would prefer not to hang out with one another outside the session. Yet, they nevertheless feel a connection to one another that is "in some wave bigger than" their differences outside the session.

As Hazel Fairbaim observes, "essions dissolve boundaries" musically and personally, providing an opportunity to establish such connections (Fairbaim 1994-583). Rates of ediquette also enthree the sociability of the session and the collective nature of performance. Vince explains, "Il mean, nobody minds if someone plays a new tune shockeds. But If You come and all we saw their is stiff that was care after, voir 've jost missed the most important thing about a sension, which is playing with other people." An inforbinal who only play by themselves is seen to words a sension as much as an inforbinal who is "taking away." from the quality of the music. Similar sensitions are therefore applied to such inforbinals. The missional conventions of playing in a group also ordines the collectivity of a performance, he performing music at sensions, all musicians perform the assen medical inci." This mobally in given only limited harmonic accompositions in sensions and at the discretion of the players. In addition, while each individual is meant to improvise and individualize a trane, in performing music as a group, the constitution on this improvisional new significant. Musicians do not "sole" as why layer musicial productional points positionare of the collective words.

Fainbuin therefore argues that through the process, musticans at sessions "coming from all valls of life, express their community through the activity of playing manic supplier," (Individual) 1994-1937, Fairbuin is referring the Floath sessions in Ireland, but her comment affers some insight for sessions in St. John's, Sandra, a member of Floath Coops shinling comments how "everybody there has a reason—their presental reasons for being thore. Mine was, well actually nine was to play the foldie, but what is became also was this link family." Even if flower muscious have melting due in common, they there the music. The process of a threat musclead using view rates a line of stars on the line of difference (CSNbas 2006-2007-17). For some, like Sondra, stars consecuting contents into clear rediscionally as mong musicious.

¹⁰ Rhythm instruments, including guitar, bodhran and sometimes beuzzuki, are exceptions.

In addition, through the process of emperorment mulcians come to that ideal about the mass and its performance, fallough, as discussed, they do not shows agree on the specific emphases of these ideals. Fifth intent that part of the experience of the performance in the victim many states of the experience of the performance which is a kind of "mulcition in action" (Fifth 1996 LD). As discussed in chapters 4 and 5, receives provide a versue for municians to learn and regrinter the present and cofficience in facilities of the mulcition in the competition of the period of the period of the period in a versue of the period of the period and the period in the period of the period of the period in the period of the period in the period of th

learned, simply by being there. 30

6.1.2 "Give us a tune". The sharing of music also binds people together through processes of exchange, which can be understood in the context of a gift-cycle (Kaul 2007:794-795; McCann 2001). The social function of the gift is best known in its exposition by Marcel Mauss, who argues that the process of giving, receiving, and reciprocating creates links among

³⁰ The circle includes all musicians under certain conditions and in different story, as explored in cluster f. Drough in intervention, however, non-modulints are mostly calcular (Futbilers) 1995-1954. The sudies in not recolousaft, but operations are supported by the contribution of the Post of the sudies and ser included in some of the final and occidancies (USNes 2006-2007). This is particularly two of regular suddence members, labor discuss below the fitters and post of the production and "solving" at a session that are not necessarily sufficient for the fitters also and another contribution.

individuals (Masses 1999), Andropy McCaren suggests their is sessions "beg gift in the risk of self, the trans, the source, the charge of each off, the trans, the source, the source of presental endeavour" (McCaren 2001(53)). Thus, it is not yet transo that are given. The gift is the performance of frame, of ideals, of excitations, or fision or or stories, and of present expression. Pater similarly nature that "music is a performance, it's ment at the behaved, it's agift, it's a table that was more to be above with other people." Certainly, musiciases will sometime say "give on a time," when saking a person to play a time or a set of frame.

Thus, pure of the social and miscolal interactions at essentions that each miscissan should be able to "rufts resembling," whether their wit, the result presence, or their misc it inhabits.) 1945-195, As has indicated in bodger 5, be only began standing sessions once he falls he had senething to contribute. In its precisely the ability to "rufter something," that through miscination for beginning miscinion in justings at table, resurre statest they have supplied to contribute. In other words, they feel shop or extends to recipionate any english go to contribute. In other words, they feel shop or or enable to recipionate any grid or produced to the other miscinions of the his here that the particular of the state of the production of the state of t

However, in becoming part of a session and offering their social presence and the few tunes they might know, beginner musicians nevertheless begin to integrate into the cycle of exchange. They thereby begin to become part of the networks of giving and receiving. As memories of people and places become entwined with the tunes, the spirit of the giver may then be passed along with the gift. The relationships that musicians establish are then maintained, at least in part, through the obligation to reciprocate (Mauss 1990; Wilk and Cliggett 2007:158-159). Rachel explains, "Would I keep playing if I were by myself? No. I think not, if I didn't have this group [Fiddle Group]. I feel like it's a responsibility to this group Ito continue attending1... I don't mean that I would be happy to give it up, but [playing with a group] forces you into it." In addition to "the quest for getting better," mentioned by Anne in chapter 4, the connections that musicians form with other people at sessions provide further reasons to continue attending. Once a musician has been to a session there is a sense that they should continue to attend in order to reciprocate the gift of tunes, drinks, or conversation they were given at previous sessions. Tunes, people, events, and memories thereby all become tied together in playing traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music at sessions.

6.1.3 "You feel like you're inside the music"

While the sharing of music creates connections among musicians, some musicians and some sensions emphasize playing "quality" music, an discussed in chapter 5. The focus among musicians in thereby less on the social function of the music than on the music intel (IR, Clark, public discussion, Nevember 20, 2009; O'Shaz 2008;27). This distinction is particularly evident when compared with how traditional music was used as

an accompanisment for dances. The measure of a good dence motician was one who was good as keeping time and keeping the dance print, not the one with the bott studie by a finished communication of this 2002-150. The presence of the music was to definite the communical activity of dancing. On the other hand, amensing the "quality" of music in relation to profusional intuitables of performance in based on seeing music as an exclusive of the contraction of the contrac

Yea, a focus on a centain quality of music may serve an additional social function in developing relationships among musicians. While this emphasis is related, at least in part, to the section's role as a paid gifg for the hosts, one professional musician explained "you notice sometimes it goes places that it doesn's go other times. And when it really gets policy and starts to work and pulsate the way the section should." Focusing on quality music therefore may also serve as a means of creating a certain quality of experience. When a sersion "proc places," the speed of the tames increases, the amount of chatter docreases, and the musicians we engaged. The session is "Uping" (Fairhaim 1994-66). Freak, a self-predictal amatteer musician who primarily attends the downstrows sections, similarly expressed that it.

Total escape from the worries of the world, if is an absolute escapade, like it's a departure. It's somewhere else, you're not anywhere else, When you're in the music that's where you are and you're nowhere else. So long live links music and sessions, you know. When it's somewhoody utiling across the table from you playing on the fiddle or bouncaids or whatever, accordion, your music then is alive and gets inside you and you feel like you're inside the music or samething.

Helen O'Shea refers to this "pulsating" or "escapade" as being in the "heart of the music" (O'Shea 2006-2007, 2008b). This engagement is emotional, cognitive, and physical. Musicians' bodies move in time with the rhythm of the tunes and their embodied movements create the melody. They are listening to and responding to other musicians and forlino and expressions the music, as an ideal traditional musician should.

The idea of this collective engagement has much in common with Émile Durkheim's (1976) theories of solidarity and "effervescence" that he explored in relation to religion and society. In his book the Elementary Forms of Religious Life, Durkheim argues that that individuals participating in a religious ritual come to share an emotional experience (Durkheim 1976; Rawls 2004; 168). He argues that they experience an "effervescence," which is "a sort of electricity... Every sentiment expressed finds a place without resistance in all the minds... each re-echoes the others, and is re-echoed by the others" (Durkheim 1976:215-216; Rawls 2004:169-170). Durkheim argues that these collective emotional experiences create the sacred, which in turn enforces social solidarity (Rawls 2004:170-172). This effervescence can be compared with the feeling that a session "goes places" as musicians create and experience the "heart of the music." The "sacred" can similarly be compared to the music and its collective ideals. As Rachel commented. "there's something in some ways bigger than" a single individual's narticipation. Frank's comment certainly echoes Durkheim's description of the

Helen O'Shea briefly considers how sessions in the context of "Willie Week," a yearly traditional music festival air Malbley, beland, we also permeted by a sense of communities among musicians (O'Shea 2008s-97-99). The concept of communities originates with Victor Turner who, using Martin Buber's words, explains it as "being no

Alcohol consumption may also contribute significantly to this feeling of "escapade."

longer side by side (and, one might ade, showe and below) has with one another of a multitude of proson. And this multitude, founds it moves broad one gast, yet conference everywhere transition as Asymmic theorem and the sides of the offers. A foreign from I to Those" (Turner 2008.127), Commonitor occurs theirsg periods of liminality and is thereby a temporary experience in "self-ormators." Wille Week, for example, provides a limited species experience in "self-ormators." Wille Week, for example, provides a limited species wherein the petitics and biometable in sections and the wider traditional main: scene are temporary suspended in the quite of advanted learning and opjournet, athough O'Shea also discusses how conflicts over different klock and good periori (O'Shea Victor).

Tim Officence (1001) agraes, however, that Tuman's concept of commentation and Darkhein's idea of collective efferencemen are closely related to each other, although a Charter's explanations are more developed and previoe. Both concepts relate to a table-ting a temporary reality wherein individuals have a collective emotional experience (Oleseon 2001-1107). Note concepts also experience the last that his collectively preferrinde music tappelers, menications are readily solved as compared of missical experience wherein Source in the contractive of the section in a "flowering" of shared experience wherein the sextion in ""playing" and municiation find a source of communitative leadings of the differences and becoming one with the most and each other.

The goal of achieving this emotional, cognitive, and physical engagement with the music and other musicians is an important factor in many musicians' participation in sessions (Fairbaim 1994:568; O'Shea 2006-2007:15-17, 2008b:136-137). However, not all muticious are interested in crunting post mutic and focus instead on simply playing with one another. Thus, different musicious at easients have different goods that structure for performances and maticious experiences in different ways. These varieties lead musicious to form different relationships with one mother. The sharing of music and other girls in common among all essions. The gifts may vary in quality, size or appreciation, but all musicious houses gare af the cycle of exchange to wear undepre. Yet a focus on quality may limit the access to this cycle for some musicious. There is therefore some tunion between the different types of relations musicious by a create at accessions and difference very disaboling them fortifisms.

As A dain Pose (2001) argues in relation to community membership in a rural town in Ireland, however, registrating these tensions, as will as the politica discussed in the perioon calquire, are also means by which connections among people are created and expressed. "What is ultimately important in that the ability to act as an interpreter of, and the expecticy of function as contributes to, the significant marriers in circulation with the expective political political transportant in circulation are contributed as the content of the expective political political transportant produces 2001/27). Thus, just an amenicans must learn to negotiate the politics of musicianship in order to become a traditional amusician, these regulations also play a part in the social relationship that musicians from with one another, as well as in the integration of municians is not for traditional musicians in our surface areas where seen.

6.2 Structured relationships

Although the sessions and the music both provide various means by which musicians establish social connections with one another, they also shape musicians' experience in particular ways. I consider specifically the participation of women and other modelmen of the cention in St. Moh. 1 follow how the main's "sucks antestition of the cention in St. Moh." I follow how the main's "sucks an antestition of the cention follow the participation" and sold produces of the cention follow the following the participation of paths as well as the influence of specific organs of pathing (17thin 1796). Thus, while minicipate shows their own minicipal pathings, the restate available to certain minicipate and restate the product ways.

6.2.1 "They're not ladies, they're session players"

As seen in Chapter 2, the needer divisions between the downtown sessions and Auntie Crae's relative to Georgetown and Fiddle Group are noticeable. The average percentages of women at Bridie Mollov's, Erin's, and Auntie Crae's during my fieldwork were 20 percent and 26 percent and 15 percent, respectively. On the other hand, the average percentage of women at Fiddle Group and Georgetown were 44 percent and 68 percent, respectively. Gender divisions at public sessions have also been noted in Ireland (Basegmez 2005:86-90: O'Shea 2008a, 2008b:105-118: Ranuano 2005:105-110). Throughout Newfoundland and throughout the city of St. John's I have been told that there are many women who play traditional music. There is, for example, the women's accordion circle, which is meant to be "an informal, safe, and supportive environment for women of all ages to perform, experiment, and share stories about making music with their accordions" (Newfoundland and Labrador Folk Arts Society 2010). I know little else about the accordion circle except that it has sufficient numbers and interest to meet every week. Yet, I only saw one female accordion player attend a session during the summer, at the Georgetown pub.

When I naked my participants why they thought so few women amout the public sensions, few were willing or able to provide a critical explanation. Many musicians commoned that the current gender distribution at sensions in "just the way it is" at the moment and the gender disputition at sensions are greater significance. Some suggested it was simply historical cultural trend or a reflection distribution of women being restricted by other responsibilities. Exactly, a musiciant who is from away and who plays almost exclusively as if EARC from customer.

I haven't seen anything where I think that it's discriminatory, I just think that it's just the way it revived, Just like women don't file. You know it's just part of, well, how are you going to learn to play the fiddle when you're looking after all of those youngeters?

It is cortainly true that founds muscleines discuss their many abilitations that interfere with

their musical pursuits. Other responsibilities are therefore a likely contributing factor to women's low attendance at sessions. Yet, male musicians also spoke of the many other demands on their time, as will be discussed in chapter 8.

As Rachel suggests, we muscless claim that the sentiess are discriminatory against summ and many of the regular muscless at the desentence sentiem said they avoid be largely so we more summa participating. As I have discussed, several making encouraged not to join the sentiems and full on that they beged I would continue to attend. Dought the encouragement, several factors may contribute to the different gender composition of of the sentiem in St. John V., including historical associations of the pub as a man leaves and the matter of the mains.

In relation to their research in Ireland and the United States, Helen O'Shea and Deborah L. Raguano both discuss extensively how the space of the pub, where most sensions take place, is gendered (CYShea 2008a-26-54, 2008a-16-112; Repusso 2008-16-111). Illimotecially in behand sweens oft and enter pals unless flowy were the "draps from the gains"—a King Leychen, and CYShea's participates, commented (CYShea 2008a-57, 2008b-57). Similarly, in New-foundland, I was told that in the 190s it was very successmen for sweens to be in plus and most plus flow and that in the 190s it was very successmen file sweens to be in plus and most plus flow of the relevant has a common's washerom, within this is no long real toology, the listorical tage of the puls as made spece remains, circumscribing aprepriate behaviour for sweens who attend (CYShea 2008a-59). From my owns represents and associated evidence, wemen centries to feet funcommentation entering a puls abune. Lind Guess below how some women also fact they have to change their dress or do not feel like they are fully accepted as females in the robot and are related as the part of the

The speed of the music and the emphasis on quality at some sections may also relate to a gendering of the music. Some musicians also commented about a competitiveness found at sessions that they do not particularly enjoy. For example, when I asked Terry why the thought there were so few women at some sessions, the exclained-

There's a lot of textosterone in the sessions. I'm not interested in playing music as fast as I can play it and I'm no interested in playing the music as lood at I can. I'm interested in music and I foy or I'm playing fast and lood, Itm's not music to me I don't know about other female musicians if they find it, you know, just a little too high textostrone for them. There's a sort of competitiveness that creeps in. I'm not interested in that, I'd soon go to the amateur sensions and play, if you go to the amateur sensions there's lost more warmen there.

Most musicians asserted it was the quality of playing that mattered for a musician to be readily accepted at the downtown sessions. As discussed in chapter 5, however, there are different wave of measuring the "quality" of music. Terry suspens that the focus on the objective quality of the music, rather than social relations, as well as defining "quality" as "fast" and "foud" may reflect pendered bias.

Sherry Johnson discusses how male playing in fiddle competitions in the Ottawa Valley, Ontario, Canada is seen as powerful, strong, confident, and aggressive (Johnson 2006:99). Some of my participants similarly indicated that there were distinctions between male and female playing. One professional musician, for example, said that women have "a different attack on it, a different approach to it like." Johnson comments that such differences may not actually exist between men and women's fiddle styles (Johnson 2006:100). Yet, she also observes that "the characteristics attributed to a masculine style... are considered also to be characteristics of good fiddling" (Johnson 2006:99). The pendering of musical style may therefore influence musicians' status at sessions as they are judged relative to gendered assumptions of how the music should sound. The perception that the professional sessions are fast and loud may also limit the participation of women who are "not interested" in performing in such a manner. Terry, for example, would rather attend the amateur sessions, where she acknowledges the playing abilities are lower, but she also commented how she finds the playing more musical (according to alternative definitions of musicality) and free of the competitiveness or "testosterone."

In addition, the performance of "good" music at professional sessions requires musicians to play with a particular personal, as well as musical, style. Kath Weston (1990) explores how labour productivity in blue-collared jobs in the United States is embedded with a wide variety of gradered assumptions. She discusses mechanics, for example, take up gendered displays, such as lineal muscle flexing, working with live circuits, or without safety equipment to demonstrate their sweigh and threeby entablish reputations as "bast" workers" (Weston 1990;145). At the same time, female workers are judged on their abilities as mechanics relative to these gendered ways of demonstrating skill and productivity.

In a similar manner, at professional sessions musicians demonstrate the quality of their music by playing confidently and assertively. They do so by starting tunes, leading other musicians in sets of tunes, and unfalteringly "going alone" should the situation arise. My refusal to start a tune at Bridie Mollov's, discussed in an example in chapter 4, was not a good performance of confidence and assertiveness. Yet, when Steve tricked me into it, he was informally teaching me that is how I should perform at these sessions. The difficulty for women is that such displays may conflict with female musicians' usual performances of femininity. One of O'Shea's (2008a, 2008b) participants in Ireland, for example, discussed how she was harassed by musicians and audience members in the pub for her confident and expressive playing (O'Shea 2008a:61). She then felt she had to learn to perform in an "acceptable" feminine manner so as not to draw unwanted attention to herself, which, in turn, interfered with her performance of the music (O'Shea 2008a:61). I did not observe any harassment of women who performed in Newfoundland. Yet, starting and leading tunes and "going alone" are, in essence, about drawing attention. As I have argued, in doing so, musicians demonstrate their empersonment of the ideals associated with traditional musicianship and assert their authority to create music a particular way.

Thus performing with assertiveness is a necessary component of participation in many

As a send, O'Shou suggent, in relation to her research in Eart Clee, briend, that there werener who are accepted at nomine are generally accepted as homeoury majes (O'Shou 2006;19-60, 2008;110-111). This observation also accept to a formation of the desiration as existence in St. John's A. Blinne, a founde municion who has armound the destruction as existence regularly, commented to me. "They's kind of accepted me as one of the downstrons assistence regularly, commented to me. "They's kind of accepted me as one of the bows, I finish, in one dayme." Endure than simply usings they accept the rat the session, the piezues in that she is "now of the boys," and only "no a degrae." Similarity, one evening at a section as follow municion objected when nother called reported and a friend "falses," and proposeding "they's not take, boy's re-sensing objects." One woman also commented that other days that the sension heaters the founds the would not be taken acritically. These in thereties intuition accided space for women to perincipate as women in sections. (Workers 1990).

Fermiet musicians in St. John's and elsewhere, however, device strategies semongst themselves and infestigately in order to learn and play (O'Shao 2008a). 403, 2008s1123-110, They meet in spaces like I'Aldic Group and Georgrapews to learn together, start their own sessions, practice on their own, and may attend sensions together for musical support and companionalse, it is important to emphasize that all musical for musical support and companionalse, it is important to emphasize that all musical granularly encouraging of finalse players and heapy to how them participates, Vev, the musical pathways of female musicians are influenced by structural constraints associated with the music and the contexts in which it is performed. 12

6.2.2 Bearing the tradition

influence older musicians' participation.

The sections is S. John's future many young players in their westless and thirties. Although older musicians are generally respected as "hourse of fundion" and may have been memors to some of the other sessions musicians, fower participate in sessions (Basegunez 2005 188, O'Sbaz 2006-2007-10). ³³ Again, the space of the pubinfluences this participation. Late slight sessions with some focus on partyling may appeal less to a sin older demographic (Basegunez 2005-80) in addition. In the meast and yeleters to a sin older demographic (Basegunez 2005-80) in addition.

As with most genree of music, the tunes that are popular one generation fall into different the next. This may seem contradictory in a rejie that is hased on ploying "old" music by definition. Neverthelenes, with a near infinite supply of fraditional tunes along with new compositions, the reportisire at a session can change dramatically over the years. From some tunes that were commonly ployed at the beginning of my field-swell.

We will be a supply to the proposition of the proposit

[&]quot;These body considerables gendered meaning associated with the social space of the poly, with the manis, and with promassi yois of performance subject women's performance per

previously explained, the turnes and sets played at Fiddle Group remain relatively stable over time when compared to other sessions. One well-execupative and respected older muscline explained to me that the does not often attend the sensions downtown became he no longer knows most of the turnes that they flag, commenting that the music changed but he did not. Other older musicians do continue to learn turnes and join sensions. In addition, because of the respect accorded to much musicians due to their age and skill, their participation would be accommodated off they did choose to join in a sension. Nevertheless, the change in turnes over time may affect the participation of sider musicians, participativy when considered on a broader scale in terms of the historical context of the musical on preferences are sensions.

There has been a channate shift in the gue sixty years in the performance contexts for playing traditional music in Newfoodland and in the music sylvigence that is played. As a result of the decidencial negodiards of a shifted mission and shoring in the 1950s, many musicians mopeyed playing traditional mass and spacedar. While the development of the action provides a new venue for performing traditional mass, the section differest from dissects in the musician play is proper arter than sole or in pain. In addition, the sylve of musec in the transitional play is proper arter than sole or in pain. In addition, the sylve of musician played at excellent from and more commented and the represents has an amount higher content of contemporary birth tumes (Basequera 2005.81; Fairbrian 1994.955; Ochora 2007.25). As an example of the distinction between relysion, Tody's Ochora discusses been Newfoundland musician Kevin Broderick was well versued in the little represents; he is was never employed for dances (Ochorae 2007.19). Ye, Bucherick was well-lowered and report and many confidence in S. Ador's and professional in S. Ador's and professional securities.

with several visiting Irish groups, illustrating the distinctions made between dance musicians and session musicians (Onborne 2007;193,198). Thus, many older musicians who were conditable and highly competent playing for dances may not be comfortable takeing at sessions.

Factors such as parter and age therefore shope musicians' paths to not floregapt sections and the ways musicians relate to one another. Musicians must regulate more than simply their relative status according to their musical ability and connections with tradition. They must also negotiate the social and musical resolves satisfied to these. Yes, I now discuss how the music and sections are recerchicates of great significance in all musicians' lives because of the social connections they form.

6.3 Musical social lives

Subshar have agreemed the soul process of emberty ments enable in written ways, as in expension of cultural-recising, and emberson ways, as in expension of cultural-recising, and cultural recision of cultural-recising, and as a means of central go other-locality (Blacking 1973; Martens 1984; Steger 1987). More recent theories also consider how, frompt on effective engagement with the munit, mentiones central their citation feature (British Polish 1984). This force on alteract consequential entire of "disching", "however, fish to account for the more substantial relationships the mentionships the mentionship to the content of the source substantial relationships the mentionships for entire discharations and compared by those central horizonships control beyond identification with one another or with shared mentions and the control of t

Relationships have substance in a connection, through the exchange and sharing of taxes and shrough negotiation of their meanings. I explore in this section how these relationships are of great significance in munician? lives as, for example, "second families" for municians, networks of report of virtums hinks, and even business networks. I also discuss how the presence of seasions all over the world allows municians to develop connections and field a same of "home" anywhere in the world dreer in a seasion taking place. I considerable to promistering best in muck and its performance at seasions provide mulcians with a place to "belong" musically and pocially, even as they simultaneously content with the structure and politics of the music season that deplace to their unlessors and their restrictions.

6.3.1 Creating networks

Sessions provide a connection for people, with a shared interest and love for the music. Vince, who has been playing at the downtown sessions for several years, explained:

I mean you get to socialize with people. I don't socialize a lot, I'm basy with week and so it's be one thing that I do that does bring [me] into contact with other people a fair bit. And, you know, there's a lot more to it than playing music as you've peoble's figured out. There's a cumranderic, there's a support and that we give to each other and it's just getting out and having friends who are interested in the same thins you're interested in.

Musicians create a wide variety of connections with one another and develop relationships of various sorts when they participate in sessions. Some musicians form close friendships or even family-like relations that extend outside the sension. Some have must their future wives or boyfriends at sensions, for example. Other musicians most each work at a sension and rarely have a conversation. Musicians support one another throughout their lives, offering advice, updating each other on news, or just having a fun night out and a bit of "camaraderie."

Members of Fiddle Group, in particular, strongly emphasized the social

connections that they developed through playing with the group. Rachel explained,

It was a connection for all of us, you know. It was probably more social than unusic. I don't means that we did more social thans, we did a lot more playing a music. I don't means that we did no how. But, you know, it was a connection because I had been here for two yours at that point and not really connected with people. And Sally was new here. Joe was new. It just formed a, I don't know, making a sense of a wron of community or beforeigned or something in the but at the time.

Rachel, and others, created a sense of belonging for themselves through playing traditional music with other records.

family." While lenothy, her full explanation is worth quoting

Sandra similarly commented above that she likened Fiddle Group to a "little

Sam: You said fiddle group has sort of become a little family, does that play into why you still play? Sandra: Oh yeah, for sure, why I still go to Fiddle Group. If Fiddle Group for some reason ended tomorrow. I'd still play my fiddle and probably I'd seek out other verues. But Fiddle Group was. like two things in one, you know like Certs. Two mints in one. You're too young for that, it's a commercial, Anyway, two mints in one. Fiddle Group was this outlet for me to get back into playing an instrument, which I'd abandoned, learn completely new music, which I really got into even though I thought I was going to hate, and meet these really weird but hilarious people that come from all walks of life. That, all of a sudden I'm networking people... And I mean it's not just a how you can use neonle but it's the friendships that have come from that group are unbelievable. So, absolutely I don't want to lose that... And you know I can't tell you it's just been this cascade of friendships that have developed from that group. Yeah, and friends that are family. Because most of us are from away and when you're not near your family at thanksgiving or Christmas or your birthday or whatever it is, it's really nice to have people who celebrate that with you or who you can celebrate with.

Sandra's comments touch on several ideas discussed in this charter. She comments how

the social connections she has formed with members of the group play a significant role

in her continued attendance, thowing the tice between people and music. "New mints is once." She also comments how Fiddle Comple insude from people of "mil different walks of 16c," also reflecting Faithards and O'Sloud's discussions of the "differences" meng and 16c, "also research "me, develop and come to thate with one another (Faithards at Section, as well as the "numeroscent" "me, develop and come to thate with one another (Faithards) after the comment of the people of the periodical resolution of the complex of the periodical section of the complex of the complex of the people o

members of Faldic Group, as well as by musicians who play music with members of fairle biological families, musicians develop onle connections at section that are significant as the facilities. Musicians often hang and atherwated, periodically on as Falcic or standay night, onlying later performances or healing to other hars. Musicians also network at sestimes. As Sudans says, "X's net jot how by see on our people." The world connections developed among musicians help then in other faces of their lives. Professional musicians will often more famire hand musicians and network for gig and the section can

While these strong family-like connections were emphasized primarily by

³⁴ The system of exchange at Fiddle Group provides some conjunction of these deep feelings that members develop, in assisten where there is less focus on the quality of music, the system of exchange is generalized, there is little accounting of how much each individual pericipators or the quality of their generalized, there is little accounting of how much each individual pericipators or the quality of their wide. A refrequency of the property of the pr

also provide a venue for a bit of additional practice in playing with one another. Others will meet contacts who can help them with computer work, offer tips on finding a place to live, help with renovations, ask about good places to visit, and any number of other ways musicians may network at sessions. The news that individuals share also keeps everyone up to date on the happenings in the city and throughout the music scenes. Thus, the connections musicians make through their musical pathways extend into many other aspects of their daily lives in St. John's.

6.3.2 A clobal network In addition to social connections formed within St. John's, the practice of sessions for playing "traditional Irish music" allows musicians to make connections that extend beyond the city limits to the rest of Canada and other countries. There is a roughly common repertoire of tunes played at Irish sessions across the world. As an example, I was searching for videos of sessions on YouTube and came across one in Istanbul showing musicians playing two tunes ("the Mountain Road" and "the Golden Keyboard") that I also know how to play. Taylor, who plays mostly Newfoundland music, explains the usefulness of a common Irish repertoire: "there's a wonderful thing about that 'cause you can go anywhere in the world and you can have a session and you can play the same music." Several of my participants suggested that the sessions are tempered by the local tradition, for example the playing of "Newfoundland tunes" and local settings of tunes at sessions in St. John's. Much of the repertoire played in St. John's, however, is derived from old and new recordings of Irish and Irish-American musicians, as well as from tunes brought by Seamus Creagh and Rob Murphy who instigated the practice of institutionalized sessions in St. John's.

This common reportation and the presence of continues in most major cities across the word, as well as in many sensitive locations, means that individuals can trust, join sections, and firm reside monorations with manipulation from supwhere. Ministerian similarly trust is Nordinaridated and means sensions while in town, resetting the local municians. These susceptional participants may not be completely readout, They may estably be equalisted with the regular municians and the sension through threshop estiting connections. Those connections could influence which sension through threshop estiting connections. Those connections could influence which sensions they attend, Ves, there are also many resources for fluiding sensions without per-calcular generate. Mony of the sensions in St, florit's we finded in the Scope, the board St. Abril 'contentianess' exception. Place are also many whether and finences that provide influence relationship and the world. The Sensions may, for example, has not extensive limiting of the restores in different places including most of the sension in Severandiand. The fining often provides descriptions and communities of the sension in the sension, which also may influence a municipal conference or more description and communities of the sension in the sension, which also may influence a

Musicians join ensions during their trench is connect with old acquaintence, and the next new musicians, and is her a five trace and a fin time. An Pyan commented You how, the traces are recognizable and flore's a communality to it. You go to another city and you know the true, then't an immediate connection." Persy, referring mostly to bit friends who town with bands and trent often, similarly explained "that's the thing, they are part and proposed profit in the city of them are ployable of that's to thing, they are part any anywhere, right, and a let of those are ploying the same traces. So, you is down.

meet the beys. It's a well little chil mess. ¹⁰⁸ Invitations and existing connections play as important not in situating a muscius within a sension. When authorse transition joint the thick, however, their feet notes someone will usually ask them where they do not Al this point the visiting musclaim can establish their relations within calcing networks and bug in source new connections. The presence of sections all every the world thereby provides musclaims with a glate to "belong" in almost up major visy.

6.3.3 "Belonging"

Deput this chapter by describing a particular session, functioning a pathwing of many musician in terms to play and fifth Group to linter. This cample is superically littlemetric of two intermitted islant about the development of social relicionships and social networks through playing multismal bith (and) Newfoundland music, particularly in the context of resultion in St. John's. These these are captured by two distinct definitions of what it means to "releage" (1)" to be a member of "and (2)" for the acceptable in a specified plate or environment" Gusson and Stevenson 2000.

As per the first definition, playing this music provides municians with an opportunity to become "a member of" the music secure of \$S_i , behar's, as well as anywhere else that a session can be found." In the opening example, the performing musicians and filled Group foll they were members of their respective social networks. We also continued so establish and maintain social relationships with one another as we listened

¹⁷ Perry's comment also reveals an implicit gendered assumption. While "the boys" is a common exercisis, it also implies that most participants at these sensions are generally reads.

**Manicisan ray in develop commissioning that the property of the

and were "implied." In addition, when a new matchin joins a sention and begins to exacilish increased of relations, or draw on already criticing ones. Since interactions provide a means to before on another biometable, and an exponentiar to integrate into these new networks. This chapter has explored the many different social relations that matchins from theory highing traditional motic. These include tearing relationships, from the relations or simply reput contact with other individuals on a regular beats for a shared purpose. These relations are formed through gift exchanges, through short activities, blooks, goals, and even through negativities. Many municious that all both is fairly and even through negativities. Many municious that all both to highlight care of these relationships in their performance of the both. The crustion of these connections is even integrated into the blook of playing traditional brisk could be Newtonial and manife through bear of community mails enabling practices and the crustion of these or of meaning and ministers and two.

In a solidion, as a result of these is solon, undisone members and non-performing manicians are conceptually included in the music, even as they are explicitly excluded from the intervent circle of musicians. This is institute leads me to the record definition, where musicians "belong" in the ansee that they are "acceptable" in the embourance of the sension. That is, all musicians, playing or not, have a place to "b" even if they do not recording belongers. There discussed exceptively how individuals are excluded from the sension in various ways and how hierarchies and negotiations over nature lead of different degrees of inclusion. In an allotte, These considered how the music, the social contents at accosions of this music, and various judgments or the with "should" be played contents and shope the peristication of multiplication along gas and gender from. The place contents and shope the peristication of multiplication along gas and gender from. The place to the contents and shope the peristication of multiplication along gas and gender from. The place times the properties of the multiplication of multiplication along gas and gender from. The place times. The place is a superior of multiplication of the simulation of the simulation of the sense. a munician "belongs" may sometimes be outside the circle, or at least not completely inside. The opening example illustrates this contradiction. Fiddle Group did not join in and play with the performing municians. Yet, we neverthelests had a place where we "fit" at the session — where we belonged — even if we were not playing.

There is, however, some tension between these different definitions of belonging, illustrated by Rachel's discussions about her participation in l'iddle Group. I asked Rachel, for example, if she would like to join the professional sensions one day. Her response was.

Yoth, bound love to, I would love to, youth, But, at the same time too, about this, Just feel it's only since there's all these different seasons going and everything because I feel like there are, it would be probably so different thus one group, it feels like there are both, either of smalls. I dan't know that I'm really welcome at something [dels]. Well, evening hot may I pley right me, with new people and suffer short [a bert of the like The, not infliging [both... Apwayse], just seems like it's a linke bit like different chies around the city but, it's shright, it's only because Lou't Jept but I feel that way.

Among all musicisms, Rashed was the most expressive about how important this music is in the life for folling like she belong in Novelmonfland and fire making "willing" however, by being a musturber of Fiddle Groupe, Yet, the also finds constrained to the "which" that the in correctly in. He mustain pathway has given be a place to fit within the social intravacts of musicisms, Yet, the wandows where the pathway might lead, if anywhere, hosping that "as one pump" will form where the may also belong (become a member) as the continuous to pump as a musicism.

Keith Negus and Patria Román Velázquez argue that a focus on "belonging" in discussions relating to music and identity ignores the experiences of "disaffiliation, ambivalence and disengagement" (Neguo and Romslo Volkapuez 2002;141). Neguo, Volkapuez, and other schollers, however, focus on belonging as the "powerful crystillations of approximation for preferring ("Inchabar 2016. In a last inseparate consider the various ways of "belonging" that do not always result in warm fuzzy feelings. That is, belonging does not always mean monthering and belonging on aslas simultaneously writing feelings of antibusezo. At the sense time, these feelings of belonging are nevertheless of great significance in musicians' lives and an important part of musicians' continued participation in sensions in various positions as musicians, literares, and antidocer members.

In segulating these transions, some musicians also creat new rootes and new revisionments² for themselves. Musicians start up new menions, develop new relationships with other musicians, and sook at becoming better musicians, thereby shaping their even guthenge, As a result, many musicians have multiple place to belong, the many different seasions that are part of their pathways. Some musicians are also quite happy with where they fit and where they are members. I continue this discussion on belonging in the next chapter as I explore how the performance of this musician belong musicians develop connections to Newfordind as a paire. Yet loss discuss how musicians interpret Newfoundinals in different ways, leading to different ways of "belonging" to the bland, as well as how those various interpretations constitute sources for debut among mensions.

Chapter 7: Experiencing Newfoundland

Wayne, a musician from Newfoundland, talks about the music he plays.

What my shart on it is that I like learning music from people, learning music from people here [in Newfoundland] and I like learning music that has a story attached to it here. I makes it meaningful for mer. And there is no many cost blings that learning music properties a many cost blings that learning when you surat doing that because you surt playing music, pulpaces where it has a story, it has a connection to that place. And you sare playing music, you know, sometimes by chance for people who recognize it and who have a connection with it as well. That is a really cost thing to have happen.

To Wayne, music has a steps in certain places and among certain people. Many other musicians also speke about how they fit connected to the fland through playing Irish (and) Newfoundland music or through playing music that "belongs to us."¹⁷ This chapter therefore explores the connections that musicians like Wayne make between music and "place."

If first consider how mucicians made distinctions among lists, New-foundinals, and lists New-foundinals main and musicians' Adusts over how these various musician and spile relates to New-foundinals. If then explore the different ways that municians conceptualizes and experience New-foundinals, how they employ distinctions in their mucicians are consistent of the second of the distinction of the distinction of the second of the distinction of the distinct of the distinct of the distinct of the distinct of the municians in places through the music they ply 1.5 whose, through those this between munician place and through the delimitation and performance of trink (and) New-foundinal music, municiation cursae a series interfitted and and belonging in New-foundinal and consideration where the distinction of how the certain of meaning relating to place is algorithm

in musicians' musical pathways and in their lives.

[&]quot;A third definition of belonging is introduced here, one commonly used in relation to ideas of place in Newfoundland. "to be a mative of; to come from," as described in the Dictionary of Newfoundland Engli (Story, et al. 1999a.v. "belong, v").

7.1 The music of Newfoundland

An Art after that by the explanation is the control of aftering.

To discussed in chapter 4, remindium here a namewow way of aftering "realized mentile" and several gapes against definiting and entirecting the boundaries of a transition. Verne must remark all remainium against definiting and entirecting the through through present and presentably discuss from other musicions. Though this process of handling-down taxes through permutions, the music heroscope limited to the places it has been plougle over must year. "Indificional" music in those generally accorded strong associations to "place" and "values." however the music is considered to "refusing" to a practical group of people developed over time in a supericle part. The second results in considerable way to the places it has considerable and the processing and processing comparisons that the control of the places is the surface of people developed over time in a supericle place. This section was the transition of the date of the best places in the section of the places in the places in the places in the place in the places in the places in the place in the place

In sometimenting the role of piles in maximar lines, I down so Mergurer C. Rodemar's (1997), such on "mail-security" and "mail-security" where the argure for admitted to consider the emailige way in which physical space can be imbated with meaning. She explores how "places, like voices, see load and maliple. For each inhabitors, a place has a unique maily, so m which meaning is sheared with other people and places" (Dokum 1994-65). That is, places are operationed and overgenization of an maliple and sometimes contented ways and through various means, which are based on connections among people, places, and through various means, which are based on connections among people, places, and through various means, which are based on connections among people, places, and through various means.

representations of Newfoundland held by musicians on the Island and the many ways they go about creating and expressing these meanings through their music.

The process of definiting mainled genes or splice is florefore lades with meaning beyond the competitation of monic limit.²⁰ An anthrophological and ethoremulciological definition foliates, between the monitoring of the contriby but largely because it provides meantly which people recognize identifies and places, and the broadcries which reported them? Obtakes 1996-15, Manicians regrested the form and control, as wall as the cook and foliated connections of the main they play, is term registring

different ways of intersecting and representing "Newfoundland" and "Iroland," among

7.1.1 Different perspectives The distinctions between Irish Newfoundland and Irish Newfoundland music

other places.

and their relation to the bland are not clear-out. Chapter 2 outlined how, throughout its history, music in New foundland as been formed of local developments along with influences from beyond the bland. Music, ideas, and musicians from Ireland constitute on particular influence that is often emphasized. Settlers from Ireland contributed to the early reservoire on the Island. In addition, music from Ireland and elsewhere continued

^{**}All a continues de la telificat de sis à briefs este conscion for the circures a briefs de sense de sissaités from et se est de la Consente Ris, a linké présente de sense de la conscient de la conscite de la conscient de

be imported through radio, recordings, sheet-music, and muricians' travels and then adopted and modified in Newfoundland by local musicians. "Iraditional Newfoundland music" is therefore a broad and nebulous category and difficult to define or distinguish from "traditional Irish music."

Monitories recognite this intrinset history and receptors that Topole with acknowledged that many is investigated that may be in and influences from many places beyond the Island. Monitories, however, have varying episions as to how to define the manie of Novelmondland. Some manisters focus on historic boundland and developments often the manie, whereas sorther inspectual to the inguine and historic connections with the places, and others will consequent to the suggest administration connections with the places, and others will consequentland what constitutions that lain's small, investigating in binary and technical details, how these emerges to manife from other places, as well as how they differ small efficient regions which for province (O'Countll 2007, Octabilisation) 2007, Octabilisation 20

Through the associations of "randitional music" with a "place" and "valuer," many musicians distinguished "NewSounilland music" by emphatizing the ways in which the music has changed over generations since it was introduced to the Island, to reflect the character of the place and its people. Andrew, a professional musician who focuses on playing this music, esplained:

⁷¹ focus or "Newfoundland" and "frieh" categories. It is, however, important to note that it is equally difficult to distinguish "Newfoundland" music from "English" music or "US American" music, which have also spitificately influenced music in Newfoundland. "frieht music" is mirrully "Heelfned as a creptory since traditional music in behalf as a managam of influences from places such as Scotland, England, and the United States over many centration (see O'Shua 2008)—52. O Sailleaballen 1981.)

The unique Newfoundland music is stuff that actually is ours and belongs to us and has been changed by Newfoundland. Thus' what I consider to be Newfoundland music. The other stuff is Newfoundland two. And of course, as I said before, it all depends on where you draw your boundary, and everyloody's going to draw it a different place. I can't tell you where to draw it. You've got to

Andrew clearly distinguishes "Newfoundland music" as music that "belongs to us and has been changed by Newfoundland." That is, the music is different and irrevocably changed from its Irish and other origins and is therefore the unique possession of

As Andrew suggests, however, other musicians draw these boundaries differently.

Many musicians emphasize the ongoing and historical connections that music in

Newfoundland has with music from Ireland and elsewhere. For example, Josh, a musician from away who plays professionally, commented:

Newfoundland.

For me the Irish music that they play is Newfoundland music and well, it's a part of it. Well it's not, it's Irish music. Then's a lange lirish influence in Newfoundland, in my opinion there should be. You shouldn't be separating out, well this tame was written by a Newfoundlander and therefore that's good and you on July it "it's Newfoundland and this for t.

Josh distinguishes Irish music and Newfoundland music based on the music's

development in Ireland and Newfoundland, respectively. At the same time, however, he emphasizes how "you shouldn't be separating out." Many musicians like Josh

commented on how the music is part of a "spectrum," "spans the gamut" and that it is "so

hard to separate the two," Such arguments are sometimes made deliberately, counter to

the position of musicians like Andrew. These musicians emphasize the connections between musical genres and styles as opposed to concentrating on the unique local

developments of the music on the Island. As such, they tie the music to the place where it

"originated" such as Ireland or Scotland, but also regard it as part of "Newfoundland music" through its historical and social ties to the Island.

Some people in Newfoundland also see little or no distinction between fields and Newfoundland music. Josh even states on by saying that "the Irish music that [minicians in Newfoundland] play in Newfoundland music." This conjunction has occurred, at least in part, through the extensive popularity that Irish music, including turnes and songs within the accure of frith new-hourd music, loss gained on the Island. Andrew explained:

People who sum't muscliams have an interesting way of looking at it. become freely a very interesting microscreption should thousait in New Goodmand. Since the seventies people think, a list of New Londinshaulten thin the list in muscle account of the list of the list of New Londinshaulten than the list in muscle statustily housed this of Develorational muscle. They know and they've been told that we have a heritage of womeford it multional music, list they haven't housed may of it to they asseme that what they reburning the list in muscle is to the list of the list of

Andrew is emphasizing his own perception of "Newfoundland music" but also discusses clearly how fish music has become conceptualized as the music of Newfoundland. Few musicians share this perspective, but nevertheless contend with it in negotiating their musical androws, as seen in Andrew's neuralive.

In non, while all modern acknowledge the influence of music from brident, they emphasize differently how such music retains to Newfoundland. Anthropological Anthropological Stations agrees that "subsess are generally foreign in origin and tool an person" (Saldins 1999-a). The different analysis discussed above focus differentially on "foreign origins" or "board patterns." In one seem, any music that is ployed by a local medical could be considered. "Moderable attoring," as if devolves a local connection medical could be considered. "Moderable attoring," as if devolves a local connection through in performance on the hinds, despite any foreign origins. Gincens have in this chapter how those connections are custed. Certainly many materials inscriptors make the originators from beful and elevenhers as part of the bland." music, coughuisting how Newfoundhard is constantly constituted through foreign influences. Others, one their hand, emphasize the historical development of "Newfoundhard main" on the bland, choosing on the boat patterns counted over three.

As a result of these different processes of local developments and foreign influences throughout Newfoundland history, musicians apply degrees of differentiation among genres and styles as they incorporate or exclude these various influences and developments in their definitions of the Island's music. Andrew, for example, commented in our discussions that he sees older Irish music as much more connected to Newfoundland than the "latest Sharon Shannon CD" as a result of the older music's longstanding performance and local development on the Island. 80 Irish (and) Newfoundland music that has been in Newfoundland for the past thirty years, introduced by bands such as Tickle Harbour and Snotty Var, as well as more recent groups, is not seen as irrelevant to Newfoundland and its people. 81 Andrew says "that's Newfoundland music too," Yet, for some musicians it does not have the same connection to the place as music that has been evolving here since its early settlers. "It all depends on where you draw your boundary," as Andrew clearly stated. Precisely where these boundaries are drawn is a topic of debate among musicians and I discuss below how different delimitations are based on different measures of authenticity and different ways of

Staron Shannon is a professional and very well recognized accordion player from Ireland.
If Son chapter 2 for a discussion of the historical contents of those bands.

interpreting and experiencing Newfoundland. First, however, I discuss the specific distinctions that musicians make in their music.

7.1.2 Making distinctions Musicians focus primarily on two aspects of the music in applying distinctions:

the tunes themselves and the professionance style. These composed by NewGoudlandards, woch is Ruffus Guinchard and finite Benoit, are widely considered to be NewGoudlands tunes. Mutations also that about the postular settings of tunes associated with nations or inbustional regions. Multiple, a mutician who has been playing traditional music since she was a Gold, commented that "the setting has this ready heavy lineage. It's corrected into a sheet of the setting has this ready heavy lineage. It's corrected into a sheet out all over the profession of the proceedings and the setting has the ready heavy lineage. It's corrected that a sheet and also receifed network, was how this mentional returns are used down.

played by certain players but passed down to the next generation." Hillary sees the versions (settines) of tunes as deenly field to specific places through their production by

⁵⁶ White in increasing number of trace in NewSoudland are within flows, when performed in an aural control data the risk influed separation between the structure of uses and their performance. O'Centrell for excerpts, includes taxes servature in her description of spic (O'Centrell 2007)413.
⁵⁶ Generally in traditional struct the composer is incomposed. Arrivoly McCaan discusses how the anosynthy of traditional struct in release in changing as municious copyright natural table, have composed or ordinated block and 2018/19.

and document of the composition particles of fairli Bount.

"Health Tainham point on the primerases of pairl Bount.

"Health Tainham point on the primerases of pairli Bount.

"Health Tainham point on the primerases of pairli poli-1649", As a generic term it often is anticular strength and primerases. The primerase of pairli poli-1649, "As a generic term it often is a unitarial factor, within which there are regional distriction." International translation with the primerase of the primerase of

of regional typles within New Goodland. Christian Smith suggests there are flour ryles across the Island. Assessment stated and scheller EVery. Observe mericism as Centified there to be to it or record (Dobress 2007-189). O'Centrall (2007) Ribbns Smith is analysing flour regional styles up has m'old-timer. 'falles soly lated to a text extreme an argueological posted. O'Centrall (2007) Ribbns Smith is analysing flour regional styles up has m'old-timer.' falles soly lated to the solitation to write timer state in the just played in a text extreme analysis. The solitation of the solit

players in these places over generations. The tunes are therefore localized through their variation or composition by local players, contemporarily or historically.

Newfoundined musicium Christian Smith (2007), for example, discusses how performalmed has a high quantity of "crocked" muss. A crocked true is one that does not fit within a symmetrical set of eight them, some an "normal" for most discuss trues (Smith 2007) 142). The tunes have extra or fewer beats added at the beginning or the end of a strain. Wegree, whose comment about music and place opened this chapter, exclusion.

But Newfoundland tanes... there's lots of little twists and turns in them; you know. Bite extra bars and extra beam... like off the surface you'd just say they're fucked up firsh tunes and I you can't get put that you may never appreciate them. But lackly now there's enough people who are actually plainly feem with rectualisation and respecting them for what they are... I don't think that any music is inherently interesting or better than another type of music. But it needs someone who digs it to play it, you know!

Smith argues that the considerables of those tunes is tited to load altering practices that constituted the contextual purpose for the performance of this type of music throughout much of Newthousehand's history (fromin 2001-133). As almoses were primarily accompanied by a sub-performer there was no read for musiciant to keep in time with accompanied by a sub-performer there was no read for musiciants to keep in time with seatons another in in members playing, allowing municiants to tented or rithorn the height of straim bused on the needs of the dancers (Smith 2007-135-134). "Creshold" times are therefore seen as tied to the character and history of Newtoundland through their performance by musicians and datesters.

Many musicians, however, point out that these and other "Newfoundland tunes" nonetheless have foreign origins and influences. Musicians regularly cited popular tunes on the Island such as "Auntie Mary," which is also known as "Cock of the North" and originates in Scotland. ⁸⁵ As Ben, who plays at numerous sessions in St. John's, said:

If dargue to anybody, including people who have studied this and been in the business way ingree this have that, show an at turn the is a part Newfoundland tame. And what does it mean? Does it mean a true that is a part Newfoundland? Encourage very loss are interested by a Newfoundland? Encourage very thouse, and they're pertry rare. Knowing who compared a true it prepriy rare, with the exception of storned the first the prepriy rare, with the exception of storned the first loss of the preprint rare, with the exception of storned the first loss with exception of storned the first loss with the first loss of the first

Newfoundland times, he also suggested to me that there is perhaps a Newfoundland style of polying holdget O'Controll discuss two winyle includes spectrum, as well as commensation, variation, instructure, (indirec, and tone production) (O'Controll 2007/91). ³⁴
Just as times and settings are seen as "controvided into a place," these tryles are also contained to specific hockes and sometimes related to the gaugestedul indiscape itself (O'Color 2006/06/6). O'Shan, for example, observes how for him ministion Mary MacNaturus, containing "he demandration only and he will be a supplied to the ministion and of "the

¹⁰ One musician commented that even "Mussels in the Comer" which, as previously discussed, is often promoted or perceived as a standard Newfoundland tune, has origins in a tune from Courty Kerry, Ireland. "Although there is limited distinction between the networks of tunes and preferences on syles, musicians."

mountains and drumlin hills of East Clase" (O'Shea 2008:66). Musical elements, specific note variations, specific types of sounds produced by instruments, or specific ways of playing a time are therefore embedded with meaning that are associated with and reduced by the place where they are commonly and historically played.

Been commented that the Newfoodband red jet in "very fact, way abrings," found in all capitains that traditional Newfoodband reasons "are played with free consuments and with a storoug prade which is equally divided, eighth notes and advanced notes are played with no "lid" or "neings" (Smith 2007-143). These qualifies are seen in the performance of policies as single in Newfoodband, where bean are emphasized differently in revolute a single in Newfoodband, where bean are emphasized differently in revolute a straighter sounds. Smith surgement the practice is not led up with the bittery of disoring across the previous. In playing for diseases, monicious "large little choice but to shring your shoulders and realise that the important integer for how on the flow is but their fee bit the ground in time with the manic's (Smith 2007-1518). As few diseases were foundly trained, the simplest means for keeping diseases in time with the manic is to the emphasite each but equally instead of subdividuous where diseases must complete a figure is a certain associat of first Chini 2007-1518. Thus, a "Sec-foundlated syping" of playing is stimilately connected to the history of the Inland and lay people.

Against the tendency to clearly differentiate rayles by region, many scholars have discussed how distinguishing regles in federal is an elssive process (Kenney 2007).

McName 1992, O'Shea 2008;5.5-9; Sommers Smith 2001;114-116; The debates over what contitutes "New foundlind minic" illustrate the similar difficulty of clearly connecding regionalism and munical rayle rationally on the bland and to more localized.

regions within Newfoundland. In addition, nylos change over time. I have heard some musicious on that music is \$2, Ankir's is increasingly being played in an left in tyle as opposed to the add Newfoundland syle, even when musicious are playing Newfoundland times. This is occurring an musicious four flow moved and beinging Newfoundland times. This is occurring an musicious four flow moved and bendujeu into their repentitive. Despite the difficulty of defining regional relys, heaver, those associations to their repentitive. Despite the difficulty of defining regional relys, heaver, those associations when the respective musicious and place continue to resonate with performent throughout \$5, Ankir's and beyond (Davsling 2004-2004) 15, Kamery 2007, OSBas 2008-15-77). The next section of the respective how the near means and different delimination of "Newfoundland manufe" allow musicious to identify with different idense of Newfoundland and create a some of place or

7.2 A musical place

The Armster prace Through effortune ways of interpreting how traditional link (and) Newfoundland music belongs in Newfoundland, musicians themselves create a some of connection and music belongs to Newfoundland, musicians the third. However, under the high and the present of the hinds and experience of the hinds are multi-vocal and multi-local, I explore how musicians both create and experience of the hinds are multi-vocal and multi-local. I explore how musicians such forester and definitions of this music. I fare consider musicians who focus on playing "Newfoundland music" and how they asser, experse, and growned being from Newfoundland through playing music that "belongs" to them. I then focus on musicians who play a variety of hinh (not) Newfoundland music. I explore how these musicians relate to the hinterical and counterpress profit from the one-formation of the remarkability and the sufficient process of the counterpress of the convectional process of the counterpress of the convectional formation and detectors are not how these counterpress in the convectional from the related and detectors and how the counterpress in the convectional from the related and detectors and how the counterpress in the convection and the contract and how the counterpress in the convection and the contract and how the counterpress in the convection and the contract and how the counterpress in the convection and the contract and how the counterpress in the contract and the contract and how the counterpress in the contract and the contract and how the counterpress in the contract and the contract and how the counterpress in the contract and the contract and how the counterpress in the contract and the contract and how the counterpress in the contract and the contract and how the counterpress in the contract and t

influences become part of their experiences of the Island. I conclude with a consideration of how the production of music in places also creates ties of memories and meaning between music, musicians, and place regardless of musicians' musical focus.

between manue, manuella, and pair regarders to minimize months manuella manuel for analytical clarity and so illustrates how maniform periodized sense of belonging may also be continued through delivate and exposition. These may however, which devermity of opinisms and practices relating to the distinctions among myles and genera and how these are tied to Newformilland. An discound, werent municious argue that "you shoulds" be expanding out "the maniformilla" maniformilla manuel maniformilla manuel sequenting out "the maniformilla" maniformilla maniformilla maniformilla practices, the maniformilla most illustration of the second manuel more maniformilla maniformilla maniformilla manuel and maniformilla maniformilla manuel and maniformilla manuel and maniformilla manuel maniformilla manuel maniformilla manuel maniformilla manuel maniformilla manuel maniformilla manuel manuel

in the St. John's music scene.

7.2.1 Music that "belongs to us"

Frank, a self-proclaimed amateur musician from St. John's who plays at several of the downtown sessions, explained his preference for learning "Newfoundland tunes."

I think maybe it's just a sentimental attachment. See, if they're Newfoundland tunes, then maybe that's when I feel file. I have to try a bit harder to know them all, because of that.... Yeah! "I'm not sure what it is but like there's some other reason to [learn Newfoundland tunes]. There's some extra meaning to a Newfoundland tune.

Several musicians in St. John's and across the bland focus specifically on playing "Newfordmell music," and others like Prain for all "melimental musicsmer" to his producted music, "explore the thic special "melimental" to sented as musicioned netwo on ideas of "historical authenticity," and "emotional authenticity," to establish a sense of continuity with previous generations and amort their leve of the music and the places in sensiciand with. Like diseases how musicianes ground enterest representations of Newfordmelland as a valued and unique place through those claims to authenticity, so well as through the composition of Newfordmelland music to other genres, particularly Irish music.

7.2.1.1 Experiencing the past

Charles Lindholm (2009) discusses in his book Chilor and Authoritity two interrelated ways that individuals employ the concept of authoriticity based on origins, in other worth based on accuracy to an original or past sower or at insensible generalogical lineage; and based on centents, such as emotional expension. Other scholars have make similar categorizations of the ways in which "authoriticity" in applied. Tim Edemor 20002, for example discusses the lates of "reministion authoriticity" in relation to Sostitubaces and the popular Biollywood movie threadward, the suggests that, regardless of the historical accuracy of particular "authoritics," the ability of a product to satisfy the emotional resolution and authoriticity for that product (Edemor 2002.156). Similarly, Celebra Ray (2005a) priem to Edemor and the product (Edemor 2002.156). Similarly, Celebra Ray (2005a) priem to Edemor and comments that "hostings" in not excessed by the same as "history." Yes, the also points not this feating which we form four "according confirm" in conscious reconstributy appealing and the literative with the feating "in not excessed mortally appealing or the same four "according confirm" in conscious contenting appealing and the same as "almost," in conscious contenting appealing and the same as "almost," in conscious contenting appealing and the same as "almost," in conscious contenting appealing and an according and according appealing and according and according and according appealing and according and according an according and according according and according and according according and according according and according according and according according according according according and according accordin

for many people (Rey 2016-16). But discours and Rey disconsiss relate to Lindhola's bias of authenticity based on content the bias that are encolored expension is the true expension of entiring marks at the "rel" or a "people." For example, an expension of Socialismon may not be biastically accurate to practice in Socialach but if it accurately reflects an imaginal date of what constitutes "Socialismon" then it may constitute extensionly authentic expension."

Most muscless consider "madition" and musical syste that here been passed from generation to generation on the Island to be Islandscally authentic in their feet to the development of Newfordscalled. The music dentry has a "sure" polen," as We year discussed at the beginning of this clasper. This connection is further extended as the music is son to be "of the place" and part of musicians, experiences of place, at least music is son to be "of the place" and part of musicians, experiences of place, at least music is loss to be "of the place" and part of musicians, experiences of place, at least the conceptually, franques for from "for "my forgo general for the least from "my forgo general for the part of Newfordscalled, musicians, in turn, create their www neuron of connection to the Island.
Using this late of "historical authenticity," many musicians another to remain a feet of the place of

¹⁷ I am not miking an claim about actual continuity or about genuineness of emotional expression on the part of musicium, only using the "historical" and "emotional" qualifiers to distinguish the different ways.

¹⁰ by a conceptual experience? I must that while musicians may not all directly respective. "Fastistives musicial early in their bow, then in somethican a wisk and gasteral states that Newtodrash as a transition of the properties of the Newtodrash and the properties of the Newtodrash and the properties of musiciant practicismis strain with Novel functional ratio of the Newtodrash and with period privilege and properties of the Lorentz and the Properties of the Novel function of the Novel

they know "eh yes, like there's a fiddle there's an accordion, ob yes that's good maske." The way in which this music features on the raids, TV, tourism ads, and festivals, among other media and vesses, lists." additional music's tolers and experiences of NewStandland even if the music is not materially a part of those experiences, Son, for example, Overtaen's (1996) discussions of the "romantic"

"Cooked on the Road to Breach: Asymmetry is Novincondisted Bases Masie," Tubes of us insorted in developing the Novincondist and Latendar-Titatining tradition's base the suppossibility to keep, and such these tensor as we discover them? Gridth 2002/100, Those musicions therefore muintain the "Associations" of loues, for example, and the transition of the such as a supplier is a top that they contest to the music's performance for commonly those us the past. Limblishes position on that state altonomes to notions of binariotic admenticity is impossible are music technologies, instruments, and performance contents change them for Limblishes 2002. Novembers, musical contract as some of belonging to the music and to the plant by substitute in the past of the substitute of the propriets of the past by substitute in the past of the

Manishma who focus on this manig generally identify as Newfoodsfluthors who plays music that "belong to them," in the same that the main's 'comes from' the plane of the played music is shallow Slimes Frish explanes for the falsis between musical performance and collective identifies. He commons," music... stands for, empheliese and effects of the commons, "music... stands for, empheliese and effects for instanciate experience of indicative identifies." He investment of the instanciate for the manifestion between the "apprisence of sufficiency identify," and music efficien Insight into how musiciates corner as some of Polonging or the play for this music. Fifth concludes "music mornation are some of Polonging or the play for this music. Fifth concludes "music mornation are some of Polonging or the play for this music. Fifth concludes "music mornation are some of Polonging or the play for the music." In the concludes "music mornation are some of Polonging or the play for the order conceptions or of them to body, form and

[&]quot;Muscician from away of afterigation between third (and) New foundated music, but I are massure of surant muscilians to the conspiration of posity." Performantification music." As desirously, restrictions emphasize the performance of "New-foundation funcial" as part of their identification with New-foundation at their staff-distriction. In Newfoundation." With New-foundation, before it both has a very significant influence as identifying as a "Newfoundation." I discuss below, however, how performing finish (and Newfoundation foundation) and the new foundation of the contraction of Newfoundation as well as

sociability, experiences which enable us to place ourselves in imaginative cultural narratives" (Frith 1996:124). Wayne, for example, discussed how significant and exciting it is to him to play music that is connected to the people and place of Newfoundland:

I don't despy the links (with friesh music), I think they're there certainly. But I sow of offer see them as defining the music, because thet would meany over just suying it's just lithin music... and I don't think you have to listen to it far very saying it's just lithin music... and I don't think you have to listen to it far very some interest when it is that seemed to be in the very music is performed by the people that I've men there and the kind of place then [the music]. In this that there is so muching exciting their with very two serve for done... I think that it is very excluding to faithful about, to approach the music as not just being lithin that it is very excluding to faithful about, to approach the music as not just being lithing that it is in a single and a certaing.

Through the active performance of this music and ideologies that associate "traditional" music with the past, musiciants like Wagne both mobody and conceptualize continuity between the music they are playing and the performance of that music by NewGoudlanders in reviews exercisions.

Thus, musticans also use lakes of emotional authorities) in contracting three "inaujataries cultural numerious." They emotion historically, "nathernite" musical forms revocated mosts and periodate musical edysts, for excueptly with routingle like are of two it was played in community dates centers. "what does it?"—and the lake of them it is a part of this place and in people. Musicious are thereby afth to place themselves within lives of continuity connecting them to the blank, its people, and their past As authorspologist Wayner File suggests, is relative to two turner experiences at I. Tame and Musakowa and Norsekan in the Norteen Persistand of Nor-foundation, it is the conjunction.

experience of identification and continuity (Fife 2004.149). ** There idens of authoritiely, in turn, allow Wayne (the musician) and others to fed a sense of federaging on the Island. The next section explores how the actions of those musicing, in distinguishing on the Island. The next section explores how the actions of those musicing, in distinguishing or distinguishing or distinguishing and preferring "New foundation music," also shape encoeptions and experience of the Island through the representation of the music and the promotion of its value and significance.

through the preparation of the music and the promotion of its value and significance.

7.3.1.3 Re-precessing Newfoundland

19 saturding and porforming "weidload Newfoundland music" musiciant also
faces on its uniquences and value, particularly in relation to the domination of Irish
music. As comidened in chapter 2: musiciant discuss how, prior to the full revival
music is an emission of the subject 2: musiciant discuss how, prior to the full revival
music is an emission of the subject 2: musiciant discuss how prior to the full revival
and individuals support playing and datexing the "old" way (Smith 2007;141-142). Through
the influence of radio, visiting musicians, and other factors, musicians and the people of
the influence of radio, visiting musicians, and other factors, musicians and the people of
the influence of radio, visiting musicians, and other factors, musicians and the people of
the influence of radio, visiting musicians, and other factors, musicians and the people of
the influence of radio, visiting musicians, and other factors, musicians and the people of
the influence of radio, visiting musicians, and other factors, musicians and the people of
the influence of radio, visiting musicians, and other factors, musicians and the people of
the influence of radio, visiting musicians, and the radio of the radio of the production of the musician visiting from the factors and the people of
the influence of radio, visiting musicians, and the radio of the production of the product

[&]quot;I feet trace to the second state of the secon

popularity continues through to the time of writing (January 2011) with the subsequent proveth of sessions. Irish dance, and Irish music in St. John's and around the world.

Bowever, with the innered is local "meditions" beginning in the Inte 180 century, columinaring in the fifth revival in the 1970s, musticism is Newfoodband began mention the validity and importance or "meditional Newfoodband amoni," Musticism from St. John's re-constructional meditional musicis to they softward from and Newfoodband with the aim of preserving and promoting is. They used various enthithed medition such facility, the configurations of the description of the properties of the contract of the c

Suggest-consideration of the hand shows how muscless can shape convergental actions and experiences of a place through the shaping of music and in meaning. She epistens how Figgs Datf intend by presents and preserve Newfoordhind "Raddistors" through helich they cliented and expressed identification as a Newfoordhinds. They simultaneously presented the legislatinety of such a form of self-representation by opticing times and sung from nead communities throughout. Newfoordhind and performing them is local communities, shorp with larger formal reverse such as the Arts and Challen Centers and intermediately. They also adapted the music to the contemporary generacy, particularly mack music for the rises (Sungere 1991-115), is doing up, they did not fection to Manufact admensionly in the form of their mick. For the size of the contemporary generacy periods on Manufact admensionly in the form of their mick. For the size of the contemporary generacy periods on Manufact admensionly in the form of their mick. For the size of the contemporary generacy periods on Manufact admensionly in the form of their mick. For the size of the contemporary generacy periods and mentionly in the form of their contemporary periods and mentionly in the form of their contemporary periods and mentionly and price and mentionly and their contemporary periods and mentionly and price and mentionly and periods a

were root an confineme with practices in real Newfoundhand in the part Unsugeres 1991;13(5), in their adaptations they also append in a "mentional authorition"; as they record on keeping their motice allow and angued that they were making in relevant to people and maniforms at the time (Hamer 2002; Suaguere 1991;13(5). The hand therefore attempted to reconceptualise and portors; Newfoundhand studions as a beginning form of disreposeutation, relevant to people's News to contemporary Newfoundhand.

These ideas of Newfoundland and Newfoundland music as unique and valued are,

however, also produced in opposition to other conceptions of the Island, Conterps to the sentiment discussed by Byrne, Newformfulland singer Ania Bace, who was a member of Plage Duff, hos argued against what the see as "birds outhout Imprediation" (Sungeres 1991/10); She asserts that Newformfulland's cultural traditions, including its music, should be undermost as distinct from their brish berlages. Despite the many connections between brish and Newformfulland music, the music of Newformfull as it benefices returned in compression to bold music, which have been seen to dominate musically as

well as culturally, In other words, a significant factor in defining Newfoundland music,

"Dis Hishshown point out that the historiest connections of any "multies" that is, per of a revised are recognized by the second of the

suggest, horsewer, points on this, it to time, many people throughout Neckonstand did not find (Figg DDF) reading appealing the from part New Generaling and State (Figg DDF) reading people in the part of New Generaling that the part of New Generaling that the part of New Generaling the Integer New Generaling the Inte

for some musicians, is precisely that it is nor Irish music. This position was seen in Andrew's narrative above.

Asserting these musical distinctions provides many musicians, in ture, with a mean of certain; a distinct representation of the Island and in people. In his introduction to the called collection, places of Collection (Schott), Shared Ital suggests that "Schottless are constructed through, not enable, of difference" (Isla 1996; 6.1) this suggestion is attained to 'Thise: a segment of the musicians simultaneously engage with "successes" and "difference" in their performance of music ('Shar-2006-2007, Distinguishing). Newfoodslands make from "other" opics, and particularly from trial music, is therefore projected from purimisation in contracting and exerging a certain representation for improved from the contraction of the complex and the project for many markets in contracting and exerging a certain representation of Newfoodsland (Stokes 1994). The place, its music, and in people are represented and experienced and unique and "just as good," other than singly a version of folishess that is part of the exerging certain representations for the proper and the project are represented and experienced and complex and the project are represented and experienced and contracting and contracting and the project are represented and experienced and contracting and the project and the project are represented and experienced and contracting and the project and the project are represented and experienced and contracting and the project and the project are represented and experienced and contracting and the project and the pro

This symbolic production of Nevfoundined also affected for music seen in St. John's and how later generations of musicians experienced the place and in music. The influence is deathy were in Audrew's restrative above. Audrew was learning fractifiated Newfoundined music in the 1906 and sous influenced by the review of neverener's interest in preserving and premoting the music of Newfoundined. He commons, "well youth, I an Newfoundineds and I feel that unless we step the repression, solvedy due is gaing to play it." To Andrew, polying the music is an important part of his identification with Newfoundined as a Newfoundineds. Water, a musician from Newfoundined who plays productionally also commented that he was important abor to be found in the Newfoundined who plays. music is just as good as everybody's music," again asserting the value and difference of NewSoundland music from Irish music and other styles. It is also important to them in representing and promoting the uniqueness of the place by performing music "nobody che is sooint to other."

Yet, Water also plays much forth music, indicating the impact of the representations promoted by groups like Figgs Daff on the studiental music score of St. After Study custom Securities who play a world variety of games and spless. For example, all musicious from Newfoundland that I spoke with who play professionally off the Island discussed that they make a point of playing "Newfoundland music" when the Island discussed that they make a point of playing "Newfoundland music" when the Island discussed that they make a point of playing "Newfoundland music and music comments and has a diverse repertation of Irish (and) Newfoundland traditional music comments:

When I play professionally, especially off the Island I try to put the focus on Newfoundland music because that's where I'm from and that's kind what I have to offer you know... that's not to say I wouldn't play music from anywhere else, but I tend to promote that [Newfoundland music] first.

Several musicians similarly mentioned that when they play at festivals on the Canadian maintand or Europe, they focus on playing the music of NewSoundland even if they play a mix of Irish (and) NewSoundland music when in St. John's or elsewhere in NewSoundland.

Evelyn Osbome (2010) also explores how NewSoundland musicians who performed on the Inland to Inland Trustitional Music from NewSoundland and Ireland CD emphasized the local developments of music on the Island. The CD was produced in 2001 as a collaboration between musicians in Ireland and NewSoundland. The lines roses explain that the album is meant to represent "the coming together of row traditions, which have more in common than might appear at first sight... a meeting of contains" (Browsez-2003). The NewGoodmile musicians who preferred on this CO are musicians who play and extensive repersion folks, and well as NewGoodmile, there. Despite these musicians who play and extensive repersion folks, and well as NewGoodmile, there. Despite these subcommunity, Oshoren shows how musicians mutatized the 'transductions' of food times and did not specifically focus on those originating in Tecland. Through these differences, local musicians emphasis the subspaces and distinction of the Island's music, though they also simultaneously acknowledge and incorporate historical and contemperary for a of the music in briefal. The promotion of this music off the Island and the musical choices music to restorting such as the Island's Johnson CDD yeals musician in functive part of the project expressed by groups like Figgs Delf, of promotion's NewGoodmile maps and they they to great and the place.

Thus, the performance of Newdondland most provides messions with a series of connection to Newdondland from philarization for the firms the series for the firms the series to be two Newdondland's past and to the people of Newdondland's Past and to the people who perform it, a reprosed to this mession that the name of the people who perform it, a reprosed to this mession that the series of the name of the contract of the series of the name of the series of the name of the series of the name of the series of the series of the name of the series of the series

section I show the many ways that musicians who play a broad repertoire of Irish (and)

Newfoundland music, like those who performed on the Island to Island CD, similarly
relate to and identify with Newfoundland.

7.2.2 The place of Irish (and) Newfoundland music

A yrong musician from Nordsundined named lilling related to me an experience of playing tunes as a session in St. John's Itilling explained "I played some tunes to relate day. It was a stratum of Nordsundinata trans and this haves in the set. And I was like "in that oh, is that cool?" and they've [the other musicians] like "of course, mix and match and it" all a part of our culture, right?" lilling's concern about whether to mix have demonstrated was up in which the perimense of different generace or rights is meaning-lades. Ver, the response of other musicians that "it's all part of our culture" also demonstrates that music that is seen as originating from braider becomes associated with a different content in Nordsundinat. This extens on played the Versicolated and the concentrates to the musicians from through playing both (and) Nordsondfund music.

I first consider how musclians occurred no to behand through ploting Info (not). NewGordandam music, Yie, I also show that the sense of connectedness that musicians form retines primarily to NewGordandar through music local exceptions for the Induct. I explore how musicians use likes of historical authorities primary which they connect their ploying to the music's bitney on the Induct, both express on emmission statements to find music as music than they love to play, as well as how musicians experience. NewGordandar through the situation of Irish music in the Ni. John's music stone.

7.2.2.1 Ireland and Irish (and) Newfoundland music

Justia n'everloundant music' is sona si coli si historical devolupment in Newfoundand, "froit music' is considered to be a product of its evisionis in feedad. As mush of face associates, more musicians cente connections with ideas of briest through playing this music. Secural scholars have explored how performing brish traditional music offers musicians otherwise a means of expressing, and crutting a wrose of "disheses" and a connection to a "homedated" in Indial of 2005. Statuse 2005. Security 2005. Status 2005. Security 2005. Status 2005. Security 2005. Status 2005. Security 20

found in areas of more recent migration from Ireland, such as the US.50

⁶¹ As discussed in Chapter 2, the majority of migration from Ireland to Newfoundland occurred before 1831, much earlier than migrations during the Famine to other areas of the Irish disappera. As a result, Irish reasis in Newfoundland has a longer bistory on the Island than elowshere, allowing more time for the reasis to develop local connections and "nexistic" on the Island, a more massicians discussed.

Musician, however, relates to located in other ways. Secretal musicians in NewFoundand, including some of those who focus on ploying NewFoundand music, howe two clinical and incending find musicians have also arrowled to the province and been shaping influential in the development of resultions and the traditional music executed to the province and been shaping influential in the development of resultions and the traditional music executed for the province of the shaping in the shaping and principle acquire destribed knowledge about music and municians in Industria, including registation lepto, bands and performance, lineage of musicians, and their musical and personal characters. Thus, musicians develop a relationship to brinded and please within the country through their formed develop architecture of the brinded and please within the country through their formed develop architecture of the present destructions, and their control of the province of the present developers, and their social circums and their social circums and their social circums and their social circums.

travel, Issue now tunes from recordings or personal contact. Several field muscleams, for cample, came to St. John's in 2008 for the North Atlantic Fiddle Convention (NAFCo) both by Memoral University. In the summer of 20100 muscleams in St. John's also organized the first annual Foile Somms Creagh, in horson of the Irish muscleam who died in 2009, furnising several well-known titch performers. There were many format perlate format assists make dainy fish of event when mulcidan exchanged tunes, developed format assists make dainy fish of event when mulcidan cockingped tunes, developed and the several performance.

Musicians continue to create new ties to music and musicians from Ireland as they

[&]quot;Muchine, of course, develop from with nebrolash from many different places through the performance of their (and). We obtained movile, and descent in others at The constraints made with mericans from Ireland are, however, often complained as a result of the eightfunct influence manicions to not here before the resulted libbor, which constraints are constraints and the resulted libbor, and the resulted libbor li

new social relationships, and renewed old ones. Yet, while municians in Newfoundland form connections with ferhand in various ways through ploying Irish (and) Newfoundland traditional music, I now consider how these connections also relate Newfoundland for musicians relating on the Island.

7.2.2.2 Experiencing the past

It is often difficult to separate presisely where musicians situate their music as most would jump between taking about music in bound to taking about the same music in Newfoundland, discussing the historical fees of the music and personal relations on both sides of the Admits. However, while many scholars see the playing of thich music in areas of the Irish disappear as a way for musicians to reclaim their lirth root (Rapuano SOS) C75bas 2008t; Leoused 2005; smill 2004, many musicians playing in St. John's claim quite the opposite. Most wave clear in Identifying themselves as bring from Newfoundland, or as relating to Newfoundland because of residence here, deepler the incrince musical, binderical, and interpresent actions with feedule.

A discussion black with Billy Storms will during my point. Billy plays at and both most of the discussion exclusion and has a variet representation of this day, and Stormson section and has a variet representation of this day, and the section of the form of the section of the

they wanted. I followed up wordering whether any assumptions bethered him and he said "it down't bother me at all, so, down't bether me at all. In 'from Newfoundland and I' II be quick to till somebody really fast where I'm florm. "From Billy's discussions in determ he knows much treland and has a relationship with the piace drough people and knowledge of its history. Yet, Billy identifies with Newfoundland, "where I'm florm."

In a solution master to those medication who focus on "Newfordhard matric," any municional list fills in their determinent of the fills white-self-mattle matric to Newfordhard a binary. However, different superts of this history are emphasized in portrajo gift on connection of the matric is Newfordhard. These musicions may emphasize the "tributes," for the hard despite in subset burings, their own family heritage or that of facts communities, or simply the long history of hish master on the bland. Again drawing on this (1996), shough these of the histories downsection of Hahmania in Newfordhard and though the performess of the histories downsection of Hahmania in Newfordhard and thought the performess of the histories of the hi

musicians discussed above, one wherein the Island's music is constituted through many influences and not its uniqueness. 94

The incorporation of "frish music" as part of Newfoundland's musical makeup and the employment of ideas of historical authenticity to establish these links are seen in

a discussion between Chris and Perry. These two musicians play a wide variety of Irish (and) Newfoundland music and learned much of their music from family members and

friends in Newfoundland, as well as from Irish recordings and musicians.

Perry: There was never a houzouki player in St. John's before—or there was never a pipe player, there was never a nerb majno. There was accordion players and fiddlers. But I mean, there was never the likes that there is now. And thut's not sopin' it better or wees, it's a different thing. Chris It's different all yeach. Perry: It's different allocarbor Still player' the same tunes, which is what kinds

gives it the continuity, right. So you're still playin' tunes that your grandfather might have played for a dance, but you're playin' in a completely different context. But it's the same music and it's of the place, it's part of it. And it's livin' man, it's alive. ⁵⁰

Even though the music is "different altogether" they connect it to the history of Newfoundland, identifying with the Island through their playing of music that is "of the

⁵⁶ Keith Negas and Patria Román Velázquez critique Frith's conception of musical performance as a processual expression of identity, in other words as a continuous process of identification (Frith 1996; Negas and Renals Velázquez 2003). They argue that schelars neetheless must assure the ethnicity of the group alwiving music, that the "frith" necessarily express their identities through "frith music" for countriel.

in order to analyse the identifies that musicious are constructing expensing (Origins and Rotain Volkages 2003): E1-16, The say aften to take though non-constitution states the same was well have to accept that any type of research used theoretic compension, and of construct it as not type and could invest the same of the same o

musicians who play jutz, reggie, blies, gypsy gaitar, rock, kiezner and classical music, among other genres, in Newfoundland, Several musicians that I spoke with played these styles as well as "traditional music." It is important to consider how such musicians not relate to different encerpoints and experiences of Newfoundland and places on the Island in their own ways through the music they play.

or Novinsurciants and pinces on the issues in their own ways through the misor tray pays.

"A bouszeldi is a stringed instrument that has Eastern European origins. In addition, Perry's reference to
"a pipe player" refers to the Uilleann pipes a kind of bag-pipe played primarily in Irish music.

place." Crist sucred earlier in the discussion that "I consider myself a Newfoundland player," similar to Billy's comment that "I'm from Newfoundland," despite many connections these muticians from with Ireland. The music may be considered "Irish music," but it is nevertheless seen as part of Newfoundland. Through the performance of this music, Billy, Cleric, and other musicians thereby create connections with their past,

their families, and the Island.

Municians also discuss how the music continues to he adapted to the local scene in St. John's and in NewFoundfant, creating new ties to the Island and shaping the music of the place. New music, musical ideas, or instruments that are introduced to the Jocal music scene are those aborded within these ledeus of continuity. An extract from a discussion found on theSeasion one; regarding the import of a CWD (triab-tunod)

accordion to the local music scene by accordion player Graham Wells is particularly illustrative of how influences from Ireland are adapted by Newfoundland musicians and related to Newfoundland.³⁰

Sightnessum [February 9, 2003]. Speaking from experience, the wast bulk of older corrollies in Newtondandar are inteller CG or AD. Single row accordinos are either D, G or A, with the old C turning up as well. Graham Wells and a few other younger gany who are into enturing first players are moving into CMD, but that is a very recent phenomena. Bob Hallett of Great Big Sea plays two-row followers, as does Mark Histocck of Shanneyganck. They wet-turned sound would

^{**}According in Norfice/Intelligence is the grant details using principly distinct, known chordwise as includence. These we engine over a double own according sails bug by in our robe layers and ended to see irreduced to the first chromatically traced bases according to the St. Abid's reasis seeze. Double half Paris SON products in broady disconting or the robe laws continued between associated with a contract of the first continued between associated with a contract of the seeze and the seeze associated with a contract of the first contract the seeze associated was confidence as and the traje is any key and are generally inseed either COLO or EX. steep the views. Fair extilities, do with the first according has according to the layer half produced in parties. In third of the contract, according to the contract of the seeze and the first produced in the steep. And with it, the sublimited mank? I produce of the produced in the seeze and the steep of the seeze as the seeze and the seeze and the seeze and the seeze and the seeze as t

probably be considered 'Newfoundland style' by most locals who have any interest in this...

Back [February 28, 2008]. — By the way, st_iohn/sman. The number of players learning or switching to 5470 er BC is a lot higher than you seem to know. These players are not emulating brish players, they are playing Newfoundland music. The box is evolving in Newfoundland may friend. The capabilities of the lith tuned boxes are a tremendous advantage and are in my opinion better suited to Newfoundland darme music.

Sijohnman suggests that players in Newfoundland are simply "emilating" Irish players by using "third" instruments and playing "field" tunes. Bock, however, separes they are not playing its simply became it in "finish." He maintains links of continuity in suggesting that massicians "are playing Newfoundland music" but are adapting new instruments to the music and so the local music scene. Interestingly, just as musicians who focus on

"Newfoundland music" argue against the conception that Newfoundland music is the

same as Irish music, so does Buck and many other musicians who play Irish (and)

Newfoundland music. They thereby see the music as "belonging" to Newfoundland, even
though it is also acknowledged as Irish music. These various influences of Irish music on

through it is also acknowledged as install music. I these various influence later musicians' experiences of the city, Newfoundland, and the music.

7.2.2.3 The St. John's music scene

Although many musicians promoted the playing of "Newfoundind music" in the 1960s and 1970s, contemporary music from Ireland also certifiated to be adopted into local repertoires. Musicians from Ireland who moved here and introduced sessions to the seene in St. John's also brought their own repertoire of tunes that musicians from the properties of the properties of tunes that musicians from the properties of the properties of tunes that musicians from the properties of the properties of tunes that musicians from the properties of the properties of tunes that musicians from the properties of the properties of the properties of tunes that musicians from the properties of the properties of the properties of tunes that musicians from the properties of the properties of the properties of tunes that musicians from the properties of the properties of the properties of tunes that musicians from the properties of the properties of the properties of tunes that musicians from the properties of the properties of the properties of tunes that musicians from the properties of the properties of the properties of tunes that musicians from the properties of the properties of the properties of tunes that musicians from the properties of the properties of the properties of tunes that musicians from the properties of the properties of the properties of tunes that the properties of tunes that the properties of the properties of the properties of the properties of tunes that the properties of the propertie

 $^{^{\}prime\prime}$ I have copied this excerpt as it was posted, including spelling and type graphic errors.

Newfoundland learned and began to play, Musicians in Newfoundland also learned music from Ireland as they exhausted the recorded material of Newfoundland music. Wayne explained.

There was just no more tunes to learn, when I was learning tunes. I just ran out of Rufus Guinehard tupes and Figgry Duff tupes and Emile Benoit tapes. I'd learned everything off of them. And, all of a sudden there was this really deep well of Irish music and of course I learned tunes from there.

There were a small number of recordings of "Newfoundand music" as Wayne indicates. Once musicians had learned the tases, they often transel to the vast supply of recorded firth music and active traditional music sense in breland. In the process, musicians restanted new sites to people and music from breland that were then incorporated into the traditional music sense of 58. John's.

Next) introduced both music furefree became a strong presence in the Scholland school beginning in the Planck all Planck allogated presented on "Sheedbookshad maske" by bands like Figgy Deff, and this preminence continued into larer decodes. For musicians intenting and ploying traditional masks in Sc. John's in the Planck and 2006, which doubly below-multime was unsighty apart for local furnise cream. Allough three musicians recognize that much of the masks has one from banded fieldy recentlyand continue to learn from contemporary faith musicians, to become part of the sense and to be you've don't be musicians as execution within the city precentitates learning this supervises. As exock, field (and 30) become faith of the properties of the properties of a sensely, field (and 30) become faith of the properties of supervises. As exock, field (and 30) become faith of the properties of the properties of a sensely, field (and 30) become faith of the properties of the properties of the properties of the properties of sensely and the properties of the properties of sensely and sensely and sensely are sensely sensel

The integration of contemporary Irish music as part of the Island's music and the influence this has had on conceptualizations and experiences of the local music scene are

particularly clear in considering musicians who have moved to St. John's from away. As one member of Fiddle Group expressed is "you can't live in St. John's and not be affected by Irish music and the whole Irish culture. It's an underpinning of this particular area"

(Gan 2007). The group plays a mix of tunes that are recognized as being from

Newfoundland and others that are part of the standard Irish session repertoire. Yet, Rachel who also nlaws in Fiddle Group discussed how.

It really does put you more in this place. If I didn't have that I the music I I don't

know that I would feel as connected to Newfoundland, definitely, definitely, Yednisely, Yednisely,

I will discoss siter how the playing at pactes forms an important part in pace-monoigh for musicians and creating a some of belonging in Newfoundland, Yet, several members of Fiddle Group, like Rachel, saw their playing of frish (and) Newfoundland music as part of Newfoundland culture regardless of tune origins. Aumire Mary, for example has origins in Scotland. ⁶⁸

Sheaukang Hew, an ethnomusicologist who grew up in Malaysia, makes a similar conclusion in locating the Irish, Celtic, and old-time music she played in central

Oklahoma. She reflects, "this music, be it frish, Celtic, or old-time has helped me cross the ethnic boundary and find any place in American society" (Hew 2006-211). To these musicians, frish (and) Newfoundland music is part of Newfoundland and part of their exerciseness of the place since it is part of the St. John's music scene. Interestingly, the

⁵⁶ These musicians acknowledge differences between "frish" and "Newfoundland" music and generally have an understanding of the significance of such distinctions to Newfoundlanders, but these differences have limited significance to musicians from away. The music (be it frish or Newfoundland) is all a part of their experiences of lifeting in Newfoundland.

connection Rachel makes to Newfoundland through the music she plays is stronger than the connection she feels experiencing physical geography of the Island represented by the East Coast trail, which she sometimes bikes.

Many of these muclicases alto expens their tow of finite fault) Newfoundland music, claiming an emotional authenticity in the music they play. Several musicians commenced, for example, that they simply insensed tuses that they lound and they liked regardless of tune origins. Walter, who assemted the importance of playing Newfoundland music, exercitless commented that "I yell wants is play the music. It's to provi," referring to his performed cell from music. Thus, there imply the lived with behand or elsewhere and musicians may relate to beload as a place through their family behinger, social connections, and symbolic associations. The primary musing that musicians associate with this music, however, effects to Newfoundland, by the same token, through playing this music musicians field "connected to Newfoundland."

Musiciones who pipe folds (and) NewGoodmend music in St. Allo's visite tribe playing to NewGoodmend music in many ways. They we folds music in contributing to und as a pray of the musicid and elevelopement of NewGoodmend and theoretire as part of the Indioxy and culture of the Indiox. There players also play music that falls white more restricted exception on NewGoodmend musics' who is marked to the NewGoodmend NewGoodmend on NewGoodmend on NewGoodmend NewGo

In duing so, they also content mensure conceptions of what and who "belongs" to NewGondmal, In other words, after that seeing the lined as subjected " little during little and the little and little

I now consider how musicians also create a sense of place in Newfoundland by creating and recalling memories and meanings through the production of Irish (and) Newfoundland music in specific places on the Island.

7.2.3 Places and memories

Another way is which musician convent their plenging to Newfoundland and to particular places across the island in through the active production of mosic. An discount chapter & musiciance contact memories associated with tuess that themselves become associated with people and places. The creation of memories associated with people and places. The creation of memories associated with place is not unique to the performance of radiational look (and Novelmentland manifes. Seath Cohen (1995), for example, provides a defaulted exploration of him was memories become address with places and with class of places through a seat of the contract memory and the life.

of an elderly Jewish man. The production of music in places is precisely how a "story here" is created, as discussed by Wayne at the beginning of the chapter.

The photographs provided to me by Senda and Raduck, two members of Fiddle Group, in their self-experting projects conducted for my methodologies cleas, we intentive of how people music in a place extresion the music with musicians' memories and experiences. I solid offices to provide must will then photographs of what it means to done to people find (and 5) New-Goundlann mass and best descriptions will be an experience of the project of the control of the provided on with photographs of places with the provided on with photographs of places in New Goundland and places representing New-Goundland. For causage, Raduck provided in New Goundland and places representing New-Goundland. For causage, Raduck provided in New School and Raduck provided me with photographs of places in New Goundland and places representing to select the selection of the selection of the New School and Raduck provided means with the New School and Raduck provided means and the faller and lows. She secretion the present of terming and ploying field (and New-Goundland smale with this pericular reconst, advantage they have no "the now-New Seet making that graphs and the provided reconstruction on the non-New Seet meaning that graphs and the provided reconstruction of the provided reconstruction on the non-New Seet meaning that graphs and the provided reconstruction of the pro

The succession of music with please spreads not from the single room. Rodell is provided a photograph of the boson where the group ments and socializing potent to precision. Such provided a photograph of the single single potential group of the locations in which Fallic Group has meet throughout 16. Julies, "printerly the bosons of members of the group have in significant public colors which is. Fallic and have been a first point of the source of members of the group have in significant public source wishins. Such as the Tax Ship Ino, O'Rolly's pub, and The Dale pub. An Roth Finneque observe in her analysis of food modellane" musical printerps in Miller Keynes. "The ministic problems are made problems and the production of the single public pub. (All the Single pub. public analysis of the Group in structure and and concessing from plat for the traves.)

³⁹ See Fife (2005:107-116) and chapter 3 for a more thorough description of self-reporting projects that is reflective of the way I used them with Ruchel and Sandra.

marical participants marked out their own social and spatial settings by the pathways they drew through the town" (Finnegan 1989;217-318). Thus, music becomes not only associated with a room in a house, for allow with buildings, venues, and other meeting places throughout \$5. John's. These places become familiar and meaningful as musicians play in them or puss through them a recuisions each week.

As one in the pervious section, the association of munic and place spreads both or presence New domailland as a whole. Buthof providing phosping for people St. Marty Inadmarks: evening entities of both St. Marty St.

These experiences, mennings, and associations can also be recalled through music. Sura Cohen considers the vivid evocation of memories through listenting to, duncing to, and playing music, in turn recalling the places where they were produced in the process (Cohen 1995-817-440). Frank, the self-proclaimed amateur quoted above who plays at many downtown sensions, similarly related:

The performance of Irish (and) Newfoundland therefore provides another way for musicians to situate themselves and their music within Newfoundland but also to recall places as they play certain tunes later in life or in another situation.

The revolution re-catalishes these connections along with making new one as men are replayed. But, who moved many for a time, for example, readil what's when I really started in practice, cause I was homesited, oh my was I ever homesick. And I found a really good thereup for me was to play main from here [Nevfoundland], you know. Then the polysy as when is of fairs than [Nevfoundland makin and one runny connections between the massic of Newfoundland and the massic of fairs and [Nevfoundland makin and see many connections between the massic of Newfoundland and the massic of Ireland. Through playing this masse while he was away he could recall a connection to the Island, to his home, and to he family there. Thus practices create accordant to between places and the massic they play in their own lives through the performance of massic in different places. They re-enablish these connections and associations, as well as create new ones, as trans are perfect at a later data in new places.

In sum, I have tried to show throughout this section and this chapter the multiple ways that musicians experience and conceptualize Newfoundland and the many ways that traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music and its delimitation are implicated in this process. Although musicians have a multitude of experiences and ideas about the Island and its music, sometimes in opposition to one another, the associations of music and place allows musicians each in their own way to create a sense of belonging. identification, and connection to Newfoundland. These attachments allow musicians to feel like they have a place on the Island, or to create one for themselves. I now consider the significance of the creation of meaning in relation to place as part of musicians' musical paths and as part of their lives. I show that the sense of place associated with this music is part of musicians' process of empersonment in becoming a traditional musician.

7.3 Paths to and through places

Most musicians assert that non-musicians do not distinguish between Irish (and) Newfoundland music. They commonly relate stories of how friends, family, or audience members, some of whom have been listening to traditional music for decades, are unable to distinguish between one tune and another and so certainly cannot distinguish the music of Newfoundland from the music of Ireland or elsewhere. For example, I was told a story about well-known Irish musician Beendan. Beendan was playing at a session in Germany at an Irish pub. He was there for a folk festival. The session had been running since midnight. At around six in the morning it was Brendan's turn to buy a round of drinks for everyone. As he was standing at the bar ordering, the bar-tender commented to him how 'you Irish, you're so amazing, you played the same tune for six hours and you still play with so much queto!"

These turies literate that the shilly to hear distinctions among tures and relyke as well as the significance among musicians of muching such distinctions, is learned, An musicians follow when similar plankays; in learning and playing traditional music and in attending sensition over multiple works, menths, and years, musicians learn to delimit the music, and the varying encocytions of place associated with that music. As with the political engoritations discussed in chapter S., musicians also about where to botter themselves and their playing mutile those distinctions. Musicianier pathways are highly influenced by the music socress within which they play and the musicians from whom they Juan. Recoming part of these lineages of transmission is part of the falled pulsway to becoming a randoissed musicians. Musicians, however, may also promote a style, or shape for playing by actively integrating the exples of centain other musicians therefore those or are led to certain pathways in their music.

Custing and learning smoothinot however place and music are threating and terminal process. The classical bytest also suggests, relating to her requirement of familiary the stars in Turkey, that this process is about becoming "as good Task et ap president of regiminal process." In the composition of the process of the control to the process of the control of the process of the p

discursive process. It is also part of learning the aesthetics, ethics, and behaviours associated with norticular places, incorporation them, and performing them.

For musicians from away, the social interactions and the playing of this musicwas a process of training and becoming more of "Newfoothmalland culture". Studias otherword that the "is warmsking a more more store, the Newfoothmalland connections go far." Through playing this (mail) Newfoothmalland music the meets and interacts with people in Newfoothmalland. She learns more than just music from other people — how to cook Newfoothmalland dishes, for example. Thus, through the process of terming music and the associated social interaction, the is becoming integrated mus the place and the "valuture." She even goes us for its suggests that "perhaps honomary status as Newfoothmalland in its joy of their finest." Thus, for many musicians, polying the music is also about empressed previously does and practice of Newfoothmalland and its people, frough precisely what here are me stiffed from powers to previous.

Beas are multi-local -they are conceptualized and experiences in multiple ways (Solutions 1973). Musicians' conceptions and experiences of New-foundard theorifore differ from one amount. To assem, New-foundardards in a suriege prize with a suriege moved that is difficult from breland and in music. To others bids music and connections with belond pipe a significancy part is constituting New-foundard. An emotioned, there is an popular conception that New-foundards is an "elif-al" place. Munician and solution General Ohk. Multimatis, for example, expresses in detail the examine" reliablement music in New-foundard demographous in history (Ohk. Multimatic 2005). These, however, are only two among many perspectives. Neither the idea of "elifs his postediation" nor that of Newfoundland as an ostensibly "frish place" capture the complexities and variations of how musicians conceive of frish (and) Newfoundland music and how it relates to Newfoundland and places on the Island.

As who politics never stans, the professement of this head). Newtonedland music is a political suggratulate over how to conceptualitie, experience, not represent professionalities. This is seen as muscliance schoose which music to play, with whore, and for what proposes, such as the performance of "Newtonedland music" of the blands, in term centraling certain images and experiences for the medicines. Threshy these contributions the open and through playing music they see as "belanging" to the bland in various ways, and through the process of emperiencement, muscliance centre a series of place and belonging in Newtonedland (Thresh 2001). They emperience contribution to be particular becades throughout the city. Musiciant' musical pathways provide them with a measure of "Newtonedland" (In several pool in 1001), they depresent contribution to be particular becades throughout the city. Musiciant' musical pathways provide them with a measure of "Newtonedland" (in swings plant). This, the performance of traditional frish (and). Newfoundland music is intimately internsteed with musiciant' stone of affects, their social networks, and their connections to place(s), thereby contributing their less in citizenteed and fighter measurement in place(s), theneby

Chapter 8: Playing to work and working to play

I went over to Rudell's house one evening to do an interview. Rudell is a method Friddle Group, who I have known since I first joined. She had made me disner and we were sitting in her brings morn talking about the importance of traditional frish (and). Newfoundland music in her life. I taked about when the first started playing and whether the connection between the music and the sense of belonging in Newfoundland that she now file, at discense in heapter," was a part of whych heal has unten loss. Her first response was, "I didn't think it would change my life, that's for sure." She had started learning interply because the thought it would be a fin and easy activity. She came back to this issue late in the interview, concluding that "I want't wise enough to know that [it would have such an impact]."

This chapter explores how musicians' musical pathways fit into their lives, in the modest tesses, diseasing survives ways the manician "make a laving," at musica. A living is commonly conceived of an either a means of earthing iscome to support oncedif (or the income itself) or a particular way of praviling mar's life. It consider two levels of linquiry or questioning the resultance of wirely," of 10 we maked the modest conceived and represented as a practice and an activity; and (2) the actual role played by this music in musician! Fives as a whole. I show how music is commonly seen as a "incision," activity, it is continuously seen as a "incision," activity, it is continuously assessed in their time," time for plasmar and enjoyment, as opposed to "work," which is associated with toil and exertion. In considering lived pathways of musicians, however, I consider two rootes musicians may take to become field in performance and replease and replease and resident and replease and replease and resident which is associated with toil and exertion. In

play music part-time (as amateur musicians, for example) and earn an income from alternate means of employment. A closer look at those routes shows that such ideas of "work" and "leisure" as opposed endeavours are insufficient for understanding the role of traditional first fauth Newfounditud music in musicians "lived."

These rotes are not wholly distinct, as differences between professionals and manteurs are not early definitioned and part simple professionals done consolver in between (Finnegua 1989, Stebbass 1992, 3. "Analyzing them separately, however, throws into which the different social, ideological, and economic ficers with which musicism to relate the different social, ideological, and economic ficers with which musicisms contents. I explore how the performance of this music is an integral part of "things" for musicism on both rotes and how representations of radional music as a "situate" activity actually contribute to straggles that musicisms experience in parasing their musical lives, Yet, I also show how musicisms support such representations, as the same time as they reinterpret the relationship between "feature" and "work." They limit at mapletying music is such indeed about the firm and enjoyable, but it is show much more in that it involves much work, it is an integral part of their lives, and, for some, a nonze of income. As Roadel sald, playing this music shunged her life.

8.1 Representations of traditional music

This section considers the different ways that traditional music is commonly represented and how these representations relate to ideas of music and tradition as

^{**}Put-ties profusional reactions, for example, one on income from their main, which are sometimes to a significant cerebation to their ownel arraings, Vet, they do not very or massic a three does were to income and done many straggles with annatur reactions in terms of floating time to play arrised other promobilities in their inco. Overlap between for coars of fill disting preferables and other paths in further even as musclass, change roates throughout left fives, were preferables muscless and other paths in further even as musclass, change roates throughout left fives, were preferables and early reproduced in terms. One of the profusional many cases of the profusional many closes to because their interpretables that are in the fillings, mattern and early reproduced to the profusional terms of the profusional terms of the other profusional terms.

"teinser" and "self-expression." Similar to what Steven Feld observes about the development of the "World Marin," industry, a "politica of representation" is entwined twich the performance and promotion of multimed this (and). Note-doubled music (Feld 2004;64.65), in exploring the relationships between music, tabor, rieture, and the image that musical performance should be "effectives," Keel Hagstrom Militer observes that concentration of the performance should be "effectives," Keel Hagstrom Militer observes that concentration in the concentration of the members as a former of recreation, self-expression and below-e. to imagine music as a direct configured to depressed points, natural tabori or even a simple product of one's social identity" (Oslike 2004; "Authentic" musics and multition are otherwise blank) seen as recentling that musicians schoos to engage in for for and traditional music, in particular, as a form of efficience version.

Chapter, for example, discussed in shealth the loked image of a radiation manifestion as someone who learns music almost by content from their studies development, is consecuted to lineages of manifesian fromigh the hums they play, and performs dynamically and with "feeling." This tools therefore contributes to and supports representations of music as "old experience" and "old "foundary the discussions of the various ways this music in implicated in the lives of musicians, hechaling their staffified relationship of the contribution of the contribution of the various ways the music implicated in the lives of musicians, hechaling their staffified relationship of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the Artificians and their second and based connections. The Newfordinal and all athasts for Artificians and the contribution of the contribution represents in their translation.

We are the folk of Newfoundland and Labrador. We have been for a long time. We are the folk who sing, dance, sell stories, create with our hands and play countless instruments. We are the folk and this is our arr... Dur new positioning is Living Our Traditions. What this means is that while we continue to preserve the cultural next we are well awave that artisions are certaing traditions at this very moment. Folk art does not mean old art. It means the expression of a unique people in a unique time. There is no greater time than now to live our culture. (Best n.d.)

"Traditions," including musical traditions, are portrayed in this mandate as an expression and a part of people's lives as they "live their culture."

These representations of traditional music are, however, also opposed to ideas of "work," even if musicians do rely on music to earn an income. Mariorie L. DeVault discusses how "folk" understandings of work often take it to mean a "necessary but uneleasant activity - what records 'boye to do'" (DeVoult 1991-218). As such "surels" often has negative connotations that contrast with ideas of traditional music as a form of self-expression and source of enjoyment. Part of these negative connotations stem from how commodities - products of labour, both paid and unpaid, that come to be "objects of economic value" - are seen to be alienated from all meanings embedded in their production and use (Appadumi 1986:3: Mary 1990:953,955). As Mary states, "when they thus assume the share of values, commodities strip off every trace of their natural and original use-value, and of the particular kind of useful labour to which they owe their creation, in order to pupate into the homogeneous social materialization of undifferentiated human" (Marx 1990:204). In other words, commodities are voided of any individuality and expression associated with their producers and production, "Music" and "tradition," on the other hand, are supposed to be entrenched with meanings associated with particular values, people, and places.

Frank, a self-proclaimed amateur musician who plays at the downtown sessions, very eloquently described this process of alienation in commoditization and how he sees

traditional music as a means of fighting and counteracting it. He therefore challenges any

Well Newfoundland music is, to me... It's a big part of the lives of some people.

The reveloped by the some people. "You can take it with so," we can take it with so," we can take it with sort people. So it's all part of that whost is the dark and was the it with other people. So it's all part of that whole side of one prophe and our humaness that we have to do more to keep allow, because the ference of the antiaphy dollar are noted to work to wrige all this may and to extract an much of our earnings from so for other people's purposes. And if we don't hang on to the few things that are deem and important and seventhells then wit'll be just standing in

Because the shall that comes out of the shopping centres int's worth much you know. That 's likely a joint time join intel glidghty intense knot of orthogony people, frontated people who have no real meaning in their lives and have no soul. They don't know what life is all about. They have no real life, it think, Sally Because they have nothing no. I guess nothing that they can love to that extent. Nothing that they can find that kind of dress meaning to a starch to.

As seen in Frank's discussions, it is important for him to assert a distinction between

traditional music and "the stuff that comes out of shopping centres." This is because, as

Frank sees it, commodities "have no real meaning" and "have no soul" and thereby cannot be the expression of a people or individual and their production certainly cannot

be fun.

There is some debate among musicians and scholars whether musicians are, in fact, madazine commodities when performing traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland

music, particularly in the context of sessions. 101 In sessions with a naid host, the

^{**}Authory McCara discusses how usen makins are copyrighting multitated trees that men obtained pore of the policy discussion (McCara 2003 1993). That place the must be the multi-ordinary emptory in a consended for endough (McCara 2003 1993). I will use be pressing this tree oil reconsignates on the consended for its endough (McCara 2003 1993). I will use be pressing this tree oil reconsignation on the consensed distance for season, as for exactions consensed framewhom with whether the trees they ploud surtine a policy distance. For exaction, pulse and how most pay a few to SOCAN, which covers my live or corrected make that it played due SOCAN 2009. Novembellow, McCara is suggested the sensions remain corrected make that it played due SOCAN 2009. Novembellow, McCara is suggested the sensions remain consistent of the sensions remain the sensions of the sensions remain the sensions of the sensions remain the sensions of the sensions remain the sensions of the sensio

performance of music is being exchanged for payment. Thus, for some musicians, the presence of a paid host is indicative of a session's commodification. Musicians are concerned that as these hosts direct the sessions and become more interested in creating a successful performance, the session will no longer fulfill its role as a "social learning

One musician who plays the occasional professional gig commented, for example: "assistons for me are much better without meno;" Terry, a professional full-time musician who does not host any session, also observed that she and many other musicians were pairing at amateur sessions where there is ought boat and it is less of a

event" and as a communal activity.

It's much more, to me, [the amateur sessions] it's much more about music and much more about culture. This is culture that happens in people's lives day to day. It's not a commodity to be bought and sold you know: That's, to me, much more interesting than you know, and ok, fine, I can play a lot better than all these people can. But I don't care.

interfacing that you cause, man, is, thui, can pay a not note than an onemost control of the paid sensions were more formed and more organized.

Similar to Trank's marries, all fonce commons refer to the idea that unsistens as work and maning performed and sold as commodifies are less authentic than those performed whicher "referrative" insertives souch as eneming an income. Instead, servicion not as an "married" and "Transon" with by a service as "much more about collore" and "much before" because the supplied efforts of municious express their genuine devine to pilty this music and in significant, in their lives.

negotiations and contentions among musicians and scholars as to the role of music as a commodity in

Asham R. Kard (2007) argues that sensions in beland, including those with publishment, base becomes commonitational for an commonitated. It makes a distinction between the two categories based on the cention of production control on the part of municious. The production control on the part of municious. The Debug Fack all multiple productions can be thought and control on the part of municious are being gained, all multiple productions provided in the control of the part of the par

Despite kines that work is no "meghanust activity" and that is products how "to some". To Visida between the work in event these "rides in a calcidist that those with public, publically powerful wireless that entirology as controlly accessing" (the Visual 1994/2236). That is, because work is associated with entiring an isome, it is not as more important than "ridestors" architists and as more, except when the intensit is not an work. In its relation to "public filmed" work has even entered a place in the disciousny as part of what it means to hear as "living" (Williams 1993/353-356). Leiture is nonecentral and first, whereas work is recovered by the disciplinary and the control and first, whereas work is recovered to the "medium".

music and tradition.

²⁶ Adam E. Kast repirem how examine fiftine a "winging for consumption" (Sach 2027/10-1711). The extensiveness provides a phone was with finding producing contourne, for mensions are provided with a prior to pix, and the audience are deligited by an "submit—"design of band mustic (Sach 2027/10-1711). The prior to pix, and the audience are deligited by an "submit—"design of band mustic (Sach 2027/10-1711). The prior to pix and the submit of t

Evidently, these distinctions are not so clear-cut in individuals' lives and experiences. Raymond Williams points out one contradiction in separating "work" from "leisure," in that leisure often takes much work in terms of effort, time, commitment, and often financial investments (Williams 1983:336). The senaration between "work" and "home," "work" and "leisure," and "public" and "private" is also often critiqued for ignoring the experiences and activities of women (DeVault 1991; M'Closkey 2002). DeVault (1991), for example, argues for a reclassification of women's activities in their homes as "work" and a better understanding of the concept in order to recognize women's unnaid labour and their many experiences of "carine work." Taking the lead from DeVault and other, primarily feminist, scholars who question definitions of work and leisure (Abel and Nelson 1990; Chambers 1986; Deem 1982; di Leonardo 1987; Henderson 1996: Luxton 1980: Mellow 2006: Seron and Ferris 1995: Smith 1987: Thompson 1990: Wearing and Wearing 1988). Lexplore how musicians reinterpret these categories in relation to the performance of music. I argue that the representations and distinctions discussed in this section are simultaneously essential to but insufficient for understanding the role of traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music in musicians' lives.

8.2 Farning an income from music

This section considers the rotot taken by full-time performined musicians. There are many musicians in St. John's who rely on music as their primary source of incorner anaking a "tiving" at music, economically speaking. Compensating musicians for their playing in not a new practice in Noe-fundation. Bellin Beauti, for example, was paid for playing at discess in and around Black Dock Brook in the 1920s and 1920s (Quigley)

1995:15). Relying on music as a primary source of income, however, only recently started to be common (Osborne 2007:192).

In "working" at music and emission pin income, the lives of musiciants on the route immediately complicate the distinctions between "work" and "distinct." I discoss, however, how these musicians struggles to are a still-distinct income and how representations of "authentic" music and realition contribute to three struggles. This occurs as municians are sent to war and allow to tyle; requestion of the money that it and to the thirty in the first position of the money that it and to them. Vig. List above how these measurement arther love for and additionate to their music through the sacrifices entailed in living as a professional musician. They theneby claim to be living the ideal musical life and are accorded entate and recognition for their resolution.

8.2.1 Making a living making a starving

Monks is not a genicularly way way of radius; a bring other in the seaso of commonic and fillings. Many ministions prisoned that the riching an music was for from a locative form of employment and one reformed to it as making your "starving," rather than making; in bring. There is a grant and ord commonic uncertainty in riching on music for income. Professional modestion therefore we made in written way to some a living. They perform at pip, including formed consent, hard performance, and existents. Some also teach music, creat and all instruction books or tume books, compress, recent, and also teach music, creat and all instruction books or tume books, compress, recent, and also teach music, creat and all instruction books or tume books, compress, recent, and also teach or a superior of the control of the cont Proping gips is seen as a particularly difficult way of entiting a fiving an those can be inequilar and appreciatedule. In addition, they registe less right and other involve a great cold of definition, for mustions who do see they find time neverthered with the second that "I was agained point, a let at the resistion. Do you know that frames I fall cheing a little bit hand on my body....!"\"," I see just the doubsetwest. I fidin, for more I fact being a little bit hand on my body.....!\"," I's not just the doubsetwest. I fidin, for me, the cotal fill, it's hand. It's had not maintain." Implif Transet (1981) explores in detail the experiences and struggests of musicians working in host in St. Adm's in the late [1990] and indicated the control of the control of

Session jay offer a more regular incomes to municious than most appelperformance gia, purchipir) in the case of resistant have been menting for many years, such as Fridays at Entir's Poh. Sessions also and earlier in the evening, allowing municious to maintain angular steep scholarle should they choose in. Neverthelans, sensions are easily careful by poh owners. The sessions are easily careful by poh owners. The sessions are easily careful by poh owners. The sessions are fined sectionly, for example, was causeful and ten to you in December 2010. In addition, intilline to other give, was causeful and ten to you in December 2010. In addition, intilline to other give, was causeful with the other "International to France-Sessions show also do not provide along with the other "Internation" international by France-Sessions show also do not provide full-time musicians with a sufficient income to support themselves. Thus, sessions are

As a roan of these difficulties associated with relying on music as a source of income, some modelium struggled to one as sufficient living and others worted what the finite would belong, he he made on a sufficient living and others worted what the finite would belong, he he made of musicians in beland. Vivin Basequene points not that most musicians which they ploy give one were between the age or of 18 and 30 because stake musicians to beinger enjoyed social pigs, both further away, and had more responsibilities one longer enjoyed social pigs, both further away, and had more responsibilities one she for the surface of the surface and a form and the surface of the surface and the surface and the surface and the surface and the surface of the surface and the surface and the surface and the surface opportunities for musicians who previously had other current to upon more time performing music, but which the functional states, Referenced by symmetry more interesting from the surface and the sur

These concerns are seen clearly in Dave's narratives about his music and his plans for the future. I asked Dave if he thinks anything changes about the music for himself or for other musicians when playing professionally. His answer was lengthy, but I will quote it in full because it captures a great many of the tensions that full-time musicians

Dave: I've always tried to keep my eye on that [love of music] as being the thing, that sort of feads me on though it. I've been saves the that it could be) correcting to just become drudgers, just become a job. So, I've tried to avoid [that]. I just try to prevent that from happening by parting too much pressure on it and by making it too much about the dollars and content. Duer Yes, I floid it does. You, and I can see they it would tappen. It in it is a bit is because the selection of the selecti

Amony states in ventral end of the state of a get in and get out antitude with it. And I think no matter how good that many appear on the stage when you've watching it, there's something that's missing when it's like that, For you and for other people as well. Yeah, I always just though it was sad, I never want that to happen.

So an I reach this point in my life, it's just something that I not of a specifion in my back. Like how do I rendge that time, pool know. I don't want to be in like my mid-fillies and still have no security in my life. No financial security anything, and that yearly for me apole just how the point in my life as well. I don't want to be a bushon on anyone if I langues in get sick or anything, and that it want to be a bushon on anyone if I langues in get sick or anything make each series of the time. I think that the life are to make get any the make each series of the time. I think that the life per ten in positions where I will have to rich the music so hand that I lose what it was, what it was about. I lose the joy in it and 1 don't want that to be appear.

Dave expresses several concerns, including being able cam a liveable income in the future and have financial security. He is also concerned that even if the music can provide him with a more than sufficient income that he will "lose the joy in it" as it becomes "just a job." Dave is therefore trying to behance a life of playing traditional music for income

and of playing for fun and love, contending with ideas that music should be a form of self-expression and played for "the joy of it."

The politics of representation regarding the "authenticity" of selling music as a

commodity therefore offers some insight into musicians' struggles to earn a sufficient income and the significance of balancing the joy and the job. The emphasis on "authentic" music as performed of out a "love for it" masks the reality that pulse gain profit from both musicians and pottons from the safe of decloid during performance, in exchange for a relatively small commission to more for fide solds of miles 2008; Regueno 2005; A Aced Hagemon Miller obsession inflation to views of musics a "differential" productions, "the supprisingly bread complexey of disease about musical labour... has pushed the work involved in making music to the murgino of both musical profit musical architecturally (Maller 2004; Safe, In other words, because of the idea that musicians perform traditional music for for and as a form of self-expression, their ideous in farming and performing goes unacknowledged. As a result, as Repressive, their ideous's their placehold are done that the musicians to experience that the surface of the placehold are done that the musician between experiences vietnilly everyone from viewing it otherwise. In turn, it enables those who besend from the musicians' unjust labor to seep the financial resolute vision.

As one in Dore's namelow, there is also a some that something in "mining" in the performance of musicians who pite or "just a job". It nould therefore be consolved that high wages for mensicians usual encourage more inferithable to pite for the money watcher than for love. It must notice considering wages for mores, economic Arthrop Hope (2005) argues, for except, control and makes the quality and quantity of vote because individuals would join the profession for the money. On the other hand, horse wages imply that those who because marked to as at a various"—consoling the control was a supply of the control of the pite was a supply that these who because marked to as at a various" or modified and control to and waste to do—mil, as a result, by who belone, longue, and more efficiently. Hyes useges that his committee analysis applies to vocation work in general.

which could include musical work (Heyes 2005:568). ¹⁰³ Thus, the confluence of ideas that "authentic" music is played for joy and is not "just a job" simultaneously hides and supports the use of musicians for financial benefit without providing a sufficient living the commission of the control of the co

However, an discussed above and throughout this thesis, musticass themselves contribute to and support such representations about the "authentia" present of traditional music. Expanse argues that musicianies about the "authentia" present of the shooling each parameters the presentences of the system of explainition (Reputum 2006-188). Vor. 1 think it is also important to understant muslation "are interpretations of other works and their performance of the music and tradition. I explain how, even if musicians are producing commodates for the music, the music continues to have meaning and importance in musicians" (we suppose to memory configure state). This meaning is singlessed in musicians" (some stopped in most producing units the musicians" support of professional players, and the attact of full-done musicians in white the music score (Opprovos 2005).

8.2.2 Reinterpreting musical work - "Just a fine life"

All five mulcium that limiterioused who use mains as their prinary source of income spoke about how they became full-time musicians because of their laves for the music they play. Dave, who discussed above his worsies about the future, comments: "I stated to rully, you know, really full fire that music and it was necessary to get all those [instruments] and try to make those sounds too, you know," Devel, another full-time.

³³ I discuss below traditional music can be conceived as a vocation, providing a useful means of understanding musicians' re-interpretations of their musical work and leisure.

motician from away also discussed his love for the music he plays and its capacity for emotional expression, asying "I like playing music because I love are and I love expression and I love sound." These musicians close to become full-time musicians because of the apportunities available to do so and because of their love of the music and the opinyment they derive from playing it.

These musicians also assert their dedication to the music through the financial

sacrifices entailed in performing full-time. As full-time professional musician Taylor comments: "I think doing it for the money just means that you're probably much more dedicated to it than, you know, the people that aren't doing it for money." In this manner, musicians assert that they are performing traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music because they "want to." As one regular attendee at the downtown sessions commented of the regular hosts at these sessions. "I think it's savine a let about what they want to be doing." Thus, through these assertions of their love for and dedication to the performance of traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music, musicians claim the emotional authenticity of their playing and insist the music is not "just a job" (see Edensor 2002). Claims to the authenticity of musical work are made norticularly in relation to the performance of Irish (and) Newfoundland music in the context of sessions, as opposed to standard staged performances directed at an audience. Peter explains, "I don't always like to be playing. That's the beauty of the session, you come and go, you can put the fiddle on the table for an hour if you want to go talk to your friend at the bar and have a pint and then sit back down and listen." Musicians discuss how, unlike in most workplaces, they

have control over what tunes are played and they are free to socialize with one another or to leave the secoion table, echoins Kaul's (2007) aroument.

Another professional musician explains why he likes playing at sessions: "I just prefer to sit down and play and play for meself and me buddies as opposed to havin' to get up there and play 'Dirty old town' for tourists or anyone else... Sessions are like, all about me. Or all about him freferring to another musicianl," Musicians distinguish between the tunes that they play that are "traditional" and the standard Irish bar-band then, the session is a venue in which they can play the "real" traditional music that they want to play, which is not the standard musical pub fare of "Dirty Old Town" that they are often paid to play in performances. These assertions therefore contest Terry's statement in the previous section that amateur sessions are "much more about culture." Thus, as seen in these parratives, full-time musicians support representations of "authentic" music as based on "self-expression" even if these representations are used by others to justify their exploitation. They insist that the session is the same for them whether they are being paid for it or not. Steve, a professional musician who has hosted many sessions, explains "I go to sessions where I don't get paid and play the same as I would if I was. It don't change it, like to enjoy the music as much. It changes it that it nuts [food on the table]." Yet. Steve makes one important modification in his comment

about the representations of traditional music discussed in the previous section. He insists

"Learning to distinguish traditional and non-traditional music is another part of the process of
erepresentat, as was the process of learning to distinguish local, regional, and natural styles, discussed
to Capter 7.

that the use of sexions and the music for money are significant in his life for providing food and other necessities of living, while simultaneously being a source of enjoyment. These musicians thereby complicate categories of work and leisure. They contest ideas that work is necessarily an unpleasant activity, insisting that it can be both necessary and

The fee for mine in a vocation therefore fits more cloudy with the experience of refine preprincional musicians than studiosal understandings of "work" that here the confidence for most confidence for most confidence for the second of the s

As a result of such re-interpretations of musical work, most musicians, full- and part-time alike, concluded that professional musicians deserve to be compensated for their music and are not being compensated sufficiently. Musicians recognize that others may sometimes attend sessions as "just a job." As Julie A. Nelson and Nancy Folbre (2006) segue of naming, however, content to Hopes (2005) side and "a bodly point towns in a good more," there are individuals who persure preferation) just for the movey in all facilities. They also point can the three ins so so them this however surger and performance and there is therefore little reason to assume that the performance of individuals in particular vocations, such as marriage or maint, with the differentially effected by higher super than a secondary or maint, with the differentially effected by higher super than any, company disference effectes (CEGO). Effect, Nobes and Forber homeously operation when there will be an article entitled "Why in 8 Badly Paid Executive a Good Executive", reventing the power assuments involved in defining wages in different productions (Octorion and Paide 2006) Consultation.

A manifestary structures or a section for the soft reason of enrich un toward the towards and to foreignization or of the stationary beaming music, work, which kniese and of regulations oner bismedius and who can define what constitutes in "arthertis" mustical performance. Despite musicional general support for princip field time processioned musicious and the status of code musicious which the statisticated musicious contractions of exchanges and detects from the excludity of a section. Musician will be appropriated to the state of the proper princip of exclusing and detects from the activities for a section. Musician will stayly the attention the session. The hours admitted by the section of exclusing a sent of exclusing a sentence of the state of

The narrative of a young musician named Pat from St. John's demonstrates the conflicting interpretations and internal debates experienced by musicians about what it means to use music for work. I asked Pat to comment on the practice of having paid hours

It is a bit strange, Youk, I remember when I first found, you know like now or proposed will grap in the newsyner's planes and contributing, it's to be proposed will grap in the new copies of the principal contribution and the proposed contribution of the proposed contributio

of egapitations and communit main enaling with the session, which are committed by the processor of a best who has assented over the sexulus. Path, between, conclude the term is a sectle first demandation to make recope, their stating that "now world is changing" in flocussing the marketing, selfing, and use of reconsibility in traditional maintain. Many other associations similarly explained the presence of paid sension by the executive of the first discussions for the energy and part field on the table, as seen in Serve's comment above. A few maniform some and between the flow would be foreer receives for exercise to such as less them the energy to the part for the receivers for exercise to such as less them maintain used to their metals were the paid to be not them.

But Ashatos within this narrative the role of "work" at a session. Musicians connect ideals

Yet, Put also tries to challenge the equation of paying horts with the music's and session's commodification. Put's discussion reinterprets payment as a form of gift-giving (K. Gordon, public discussion, November 20, 2009). The money is a gift in reciprocation

for performance of the music. Oiths are often contrasted with cosmodities in that gifts retain a spiritual remain of the give, binding people together in the exchange cycle (William GCliggar 1975-199, Later solvable see consequent this dealine) in expotential how objects can shift between gifts and commodities, depending on the context (Appathard 1916, Will and Cliggard 2007;161,163), in their exploration of economic anteropology, Will and Cliggard argor that gift exchange may simultaneously have conclosal, social, political, and economic aspects (Will and Cliggard 2007) 170, As such, the process or gift exchange captures many of the different roles of this music in full-time music internal.

In this exchange system, we can also see how municious may receive other "gills", in responsation of the "mour" and participation, Macissians are that gives the petint from the hor and sometimes a plate of fined. Vince explains: "the sension has pints as well, he followed to the petint of the pe

By moving the exchange of money for music into the realm of gift-giving, Pat reasserts the "authenticity" of musical performance, as distinct from the production of commodities and in support of representations of traditional music as "self-expression." In such an interpretation, the work that these musicians perform in learning and playing tunes is also simultaneously acknowledged alone with the necessity for these musicions to earn an income. Put and other musicians thereby also reinterpret the performance of music by full-time professional musicians. Musicians' support of representations of traditional music are therefore not simply acceptance of a hegemonic ideology that justifies their exploitation, but a challenge to the idea that work must be an uncleasant activity and devoid of meaning.

full-time musicians are accorded additional status within the session scene as "fulltimers" for the "guts" it takes to play music for a living. One musician who has accasionally been paid for playing said. "they've not perce" and "I've not a lot of respect for people who can do that." Musicians, in general, are accorded special status for their "talent" and "ability" (Kingsbury 1988). There is a mystique that surrounds the production of music, applied particularly to professionals, "Musicians" are separated out as a category unto themselves, uniquely "gifted" in their musical abilities (Bigenho 2008:29: Gaztambide-Fernández 2010). Chanter 5 discussed how these musicians are idealized as they come to represent the ideal images of being a "traditional musicians," 111 As a result of their musical abilities and empersonment of the ideals associated with

In recognition of these musicians' dedication to the music and financial sacrifices.

³⁵ Martin Dowling also observes how "regional styles are in fact derived from the characteristics of a 2006: 130). Those "virtuosos" are almost always professional musicians, noredarized and recognized through recordings. Regional styles have less popular recognition in Newfoundland as in Ireland to where represent the "authenticity of the tradition," they are also seen to embody the music of a particular place.

playing traditional music, professional full-time musicians come to represent the ultimate realization of living a musical life.

In this manner, professional full foliam municians are able to have their proverbial claim and it from They make a living—in the economic sense—from their munic, although this is not always an income sufficient to support themselves. The munic is also part of their living in providing them with fine, a source of self-expression, and various other supects of significance and menning. Thus, as full-time munician Sieve expresses, relating to uning sensions as a gig, "bertio able to do it a number of times a work and mental energy at its but finished than 20 years and the self-energy at the contract of the self-energy at the self-energy at the self-energy at the self-energy at the proposed particular. It visuals "even between other livings" and their

8.3 Marke for Jun
There are also many materians in \$8.3 ober's who rely on careers other than motic
to provide their primary iscome. Gurp, for example, whose story opened this thesis, was
an every technologist. Other muscless work as students, trachers, professors, medicines,
engineers, day-over managers, names, and doctors, among many other corrects. In this
section, I explore these musicians' studgels as they try to find fine and space to perform
their music. ⁹⁸ Although the performance of music for those musicians matched endry
with representation of "authentics" traditional music as a "distinct" activity, clossider
how these representations nevertheless contribute to musicians' reaggies as their curves.

¹⁰⁶ Lon using "space" here to refer to the idea that musicians have (or do not have) the opportunity to play music. A runcician may have time available, but if they also have expensibilities that conflict with music, then they do not have upone for its production. Musicians with visitors, for example, may have much "feet" time, but the structure of their circumstances often means they are unable to practice at home or attend weakings in which means Lannachy.

not use music as a primary source of income, the performance of traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music nonetheless provides a means through which these musicians "make a living" as the performance of traditional music becomes an important pursuit in

8.3.1 "Hidden musicians"

I was at Bridie Mollov's one Sunday afternoon. 107 As I took a seat at the session table. I was introduced to a woman named Anna who I had not met nerviously. She was in from out of town but was well acquainted with many of the musicians in St. John's. She had a baby in a wrap against her chest and a fiddle with her. She joined the table and played a few sets as the baby sat quietly. But when he started to cry, she stopped playing to soothe him. It was only when another woman, a tourist in the audience, offered to hold him for her that she was able to resume playing. I saw her again at other sessions and she was continuously contending with a conflict between the desire to play and the need to watch and care for her young baby when her husband was unavailable. Many musicians snoke to me about their struooles to find time and snace to play

music amidst their other life-oaths, such as their careers and families. They expressed frustration at being unable to dedicate as much time to their music as they would like. Frank, a self-proclaimed amateur musician who has been playing for many years. explained:

But, you know, family life and domestic considerations and commitments are not always compatible with music and so sacrifices have to be made. Means you can't do everything you'd like to do... Can't play every night, can't play every session

¹⁰⁷ Lars horrowing the phrase "hidden musicians" used by Finnegan (1989) to describe the activities of

in town, can't go sometimes even to performances you want to hear because it's stuff you don't want to miss but you've got to miss it.

Many musicians had similar comments about how work meant they could not attend sessions or performances or would have to leave early. I have also struggled with balancing the time demands of the writing of this thesis and justifying taking the time to go to one or two sessions a work, or sometimes more.

Having young children second or significantly influence motionian "mutual multipolars, particularly in the case of woman, as most the example of Nam. Some consideration was also given to how gendered spaces, mutic, and architects shape women's principation in sentimes and the different social relations by femmel is chapter women's principation in sentimes and the different social relations by femmel is chapter women. I principation in exemisms and the different social relations whose characteristics or no time available to deducate to music and other "sistems" activities, while also fulfilling their responsibilities of raining children, carries for families, and other "sistems" of Chambers woman social social principation woman mutual children, carries for families, and other "sistems" and social provincies when the sistems is fortained discussed difficulties in bring allow to yet music while and formate musicional miles, were also influenced by sintif family situations. Nastriens with children would juic grouper that generally did not go on extended burst but stoyed has de Su. Adult 1 on serve to mission.

Musicians' struggles to find fine to play music sometimes lessened as their musical authows; sinterstuded with other aspects of their lives. Their families would sometimes become interested and involved, attending sessions or dances, or, if they played music themselves, then family time was other combined with musical.

performance. Yet, much as musicians found ways to accommodate playing music, they wished they could attend more sessions or even had time to practice more often. Some musicians therefore expressed a sense of envy of full-time musicians whose primary

responsibility, as their primary source of income, is to play music. Peter explains,

I wish I had more time to do it and I'm envious of some of my friends who. I'm somewhat envious of some of my friends who do nothing but play music. There's days I'd love to get up in the morning and just play fiddle for six hours if I wanted to. However, that doesn't pay very well. So you do have to go to work to support yourself and that kind of stuff. So I try and balance the two. And luckily I have a wife and an extended family who support that. Cause it can be very demanding. So it's a big part of my life.

Peter says that this music is a big part of his life, a comment that I discuss further below. Yet, he nonetheless struggles to balance his music, his family, and his career, among other responsibilities and interests he may have.

Popular conceptualizations and representations of traditional music as a "leisure" activity and form of self-expression contribute to these structeles. Both play and leisure. which encompass the idea of "playing music," are understood as activities done during "free time" (Huizinga 2000:8; Williams 1983:336). 118 As a result of these ideas, "real" work is given social priority in these musicians' lives because this work is seen, at least in part, as a necessary component of "living" by earning an income. Play and leisure, on the other hand, are not (Huizinga 2000:8). In addition, while De Vault (1991) discusses

"socially necessary" than music that is popularly classified as pure "leisure."

how work is given social importance over family "care," both activities are seen as more 100 Not all leisure activities are play activities. Sun-bothing on the beach, for example, would generally be considered leisure, but is no way involved in "play." In the case of music, however, it is closely tied with ideas of "play" (see Huizinga 2000: 158-165 for a discussion of the similarities).

Many self-proclaimed amateur musicians also themselves insist that their performance of music remain in the realm of leisure. When I asked Alex why he did not

consider himself a musician, he explained:

Alex: Not considering myself a musician frees me to just have fine with the music and enjoy in free what it is and not have to put enough of an emotional and psychrological (effort). I. don't want to have to be stressed about being a musician. So, that's really the main reasons not to. If I'm not a musician it's simple, I'm just doing it for fin and if it's not perfect then that's too bad because I'm not a musician.

Same. Do you think people who are musiciants then have sort of that stress? Alex; Veah, I think a little bit. — The good enough in terms of natural tatent and ability, I could get myself to that level if I worked really hard. But I don't want to work really hard. So basically it's alg self-definition to allow me to just eloy it and have fan and to not actually have to work more than I want to or be stressed about it.

In his discussion, Alex contrasts music as work and music as fun. He prefers to maintain music as fun, insisting that his performance of music remain in the realm of leisure. He

thereby refuses the status and label of musician, which is associated with a certain level of ability, talent, and erofessionalism, and with work.

Interestingly, the pursuit of music for leisure (as opposed to work) is more commonly associated with representations of "authentic" music and tradition. Yet, it is

the professional musicians who are recognized within the music scene for their commitment to their music, in her exploration of musicians' playing of frish traditional

music in Chicago, USA and County Clare, Ireland, Deborah L. Rapuano observed that "musicians who are raid are not honouring the age-old "sacred" tradition. Yet, ironically

they are the professionals who are entrusted with carrying on the authenticity of the tradition" (Rapuano 2005:200). Rapuano further discusses how the significance of music

as "leisure" and "fun" creates a cultural ideology that enforces distinctions between

"professional" and "amateur" musicians (Rapusno 2005: 199-200). These distinctions are further recuffered as few part sime musicians would showe the life of a full-time professional musician for themselves, because of the work and financial sacrifice accessary to follow that rotate. As Peter says, "that doesn't pay very well" and Alex comments that it things "areas."

As a result, as feminist scholars have around of the domestic, kinship, and other work conducted by women outside of the "workplace" (DeVault 1991; di Leonardo 1987; Luxton 1980), the efforts, contributions, and labours of part-time musicians often go unacknowledged. This is one reason for Finneson's (1989) use of the term "hidden musicians" in the title of her book. She explains that the word reflects the limited research on local music-making practices, as well as how these practices are "hidden" from musicians themselves in their naturalization in every-day life (Finnegan 1989:4). The next section, however, shows that the performance of traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music is a significant part of musicians' lives and provides them with a means of "living" in terms of pursuing their lives in a particular way. Collectively, the contribution of part-time musicions to the traditional music scene is also significant. As such, the performance of this music does not simply constitute "leisure," but what Robert A. Stebbins (1992, 2007) refers to as "serious leisure." In such a pursuit, musicians have a "career" and "vocation" in the performance of traditional music, even as it is their primary activity for fun, enjoyment, and socialization.

8.3.2 Serious leisure - "It's like eating and drinking and breathing"

A common experience for many mexicients in an "obsculative" with the miner. The predictably relief entering misculation whosh empty paint are lift for all who must contend with the obligations and responsibilities of their other pathways. This obsession is nonetimes referred to as "unabling the long" and also leads musiciants to pley in semantic communities, which are with valueing as to policy. This experience is also not restricted to musiciants playing in 8th. Ather's or in Newfordsmilland. An bith time-balled as produced to the semi-simple produced to

Thin-'mbestion', however, in operand in many more menders and solid ways. Some muscleins will listen solime cellurability to stilling them can the reful, Cho or MFAs, shills waiking, deloing, working, and in many other deportmentances. Hillery, for example, comment 'who integrit laws: It fair's lower - semending about that muscle, which it's played well the, In Carl Velones, 'Est law leave - semending about that muscle, his, It's offers I could listen to the same trace too times in a row jort to j Dawn the tone). A bet of peorie beinh the's amonjugh. 'Massission therefore speed a great sold of frome pilving muscle, sementions to the demonstrate of the recognition such arming at the pilving on gatting to a meeting on time or to the amosystee of friends, family, and other rowMusicians also come to organize their lives around playing music. Some choose which cities to live in based on the presence of an active traditional music some or will

which cities to live in based on the presence of an active traditional music scene or wi drive several hours to attend a session if there are none nearby and many attempt to

arrange their daily and weekly schedules in order to attend sessions. For example, during much of the writing of this thesis, I would not schedule any other activities or obligations on Fiddle Group night in order to attend and I would plan my day accordingly.

Thus, although playing music is often considered a non-essential to life, as

Huizinga argues, of "play" in general, it nevertheless is a vital part of living:

It becomes the accommuniment, the complement, in fact an interval part of life in

general. It adoms life, amplifies it and is to that extent a necessity both for the individual — as a life function — and for society by reason of the meaning it contains, its solutions, its excessive value, its serious account as a contains.

(Huizinga 2000:9)

in short, as a cultural function.

Finnegan similarly observes of her "hidden musicians":

Far from being the kind of marginal and unstructured activity often suggested by the label "leisoure", with its implication of residual items somehow left over from real" life, these musical practices [of amateur musicians in Milton Keynes) were uptheld not by isolated individuals in an asocial vacuum ev by posple mereby trying to fill the inten to "show' the "poshem of leisure", but through a series of socially recognized pathways which systematically linked into a wide variety of settings and institutions widehin the life.

(Finnegan 1989:299)

[&]quot;Finnings did not observe the strongles to find time for their musical pothways among missistant globing as with variety of musical garden in Million Keyers. English as reported by musicious in \$1.00 MeV, and the strongles of their musical and provided by musicious in \$1.00 MeV, and their strongles of their strongle

Even among musicians who did not speak so explicitly about a need or desire to play or listen to this music all the time, they generally accorded a high importance to playing this music and their musical pathways influenced or figured as a major component in the "..."

Musicians' performance of traditional music therefore follows closely to what Robert A. Stebbirs (1992, 2007) refers to as "serious leisure." Stebbirs (1992) outlines how this type of leisure can be pursued in the capacity of an amateur, hobbyist, or

volunteer and consists of six characteristics:

- The "occasional need to persevere" and contend with struggles over learning, technique, or fear of performance, for example;
 A career in the particular pursuit, marked by progressive achievement and
- continuity;
 3. The output of effort in order to gain particular skills, technique, and
 - The output of effort in order to gain particular skills, technique, and knowledge;
- The attainment of "durable benefits" such as self-actualization, social interaction, belonging, and well-being:
- The development of sub-cultures with particular "beliefs, norms, events, values, traditions, moral principles and performance standards"; and
 The tendency to be highly involved with the particular pursuits, demonstrating areast enthusiasm and frequently talking about or meticineting in the particular

(Stebbins 1992:6-8)

This list of characteristics clearly captures many musicians' experiences in relation to the performance of traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music in St. John's discussed

throughout this thesis. As such, similar to professional musicians, the role of traditional

pursuit, often to the annoyance of friends and family.

¹³⁸ Manicinari discussions of their strengths to find time to play music can also be seen as a performance of the erapersonal ideals of Decoring a traditional musicion. In contenting to assert the importance of multi-leval Irish (and) Newfoundland music in their lives, musicians are maintaining that significance, even if they are not having.

Irish (and) Newfoundland music in part-time musicians' lives is akin to a vocation (Stebbins 1992;8).¹¹¹

In this manner, although part-time musicians framed their performance of this

music in terms of leisure and fun, it is also a necessary part of individuals' lives.

Musicians, for example, also talked about how playing traditional Irish (and)

Newfoundland music was closely tied to their happiness. As Alex expresses:

I've always recognized that having music in my life is a very rewarding and wonderful thing. There's many times when I feel like if Japayed music in a day it's a good day. And if I haven't played music, then I feel kind of grumpy and like I didn't accomplish anything. So, I don't know if it's like that for a lot of people, but certainly I recognize this in myself. That, if I'm playing music regularly, that's a good thing.

When musicians do not find the time to play music they feel "grumpy," indicating that playing this music has broader affects than a few minutes or hours of fun while playing.

Peter similarly explained that he is more productive at work.

But again, I started off saying I've been really lucky, and I have been lucky. Because I've always had an employer that understood that when [Peter] is playing music he's happier and he's more productive. And it's still that way, you know... and people know it's a huge part of my life.

[&]quot;The terr imports influence between states and profusional massiver great of epitials and for a distance of the control of the

Musicians' musical pathways therefore significantly influenced their 'unimate existence'
and their 'visiolity,' even as part dime musicians strugged to find time to play, Stabbles
actually argues for the general encouragement and promotion of "serious leisure" in the
21st century as a source of personal fulfillment and an enhanced quality of life (Stabbles
7007-134).

Annaeurs' (and past time professionals) permit of "melous binnes" is also significant in contributing to breader resid structure and cultural functions (see also significant in contributing to breader resid structure and cultural functions (see also structure) and contributing the residence of bed annaelicans in British society at large "no others the major flows in recognition" or 'economic' institutions, while activity that can be blacked as "isoure' or even cultural" is taken as peripheral, not a sorious part of "real" social structure... It is partly through the data them invisible work of may be profit... But, altimately, the institution and traditions of our receity are propriated and reconstant? Ginnegan 1999-331.

Similarly, financial sociales here agained that the nepola blace of somes has significant influences are exceemed inclinates, social structure, and even in supporting the binare activities of others (d. Lennada 1987; Thempson 1996).

The ties of traditional mutic sensions to institutions such as shocker or thursbest are not nearly as strong as the cheest and head groups that Frienques considers. These are also spilificately fewer municians engaged in the production of traditional music than women performing demonstic labour and other activities. Everewherees, part dries municians play an integral part in contributing to sessions, concerns, and other performances throughout the drie; I/a freid improducted musicians are without performance of the production of the contribution of the contribution of the performance of the contribution of the contribu or organizers at these. Anneons frequently attend concerts and performances as patrons and supercents, form the primary host of volunteers are events such as the annual Novelsonalistical and Labraker Foils Feriolists, the polimication "Cho, and attend sensions. Without these manificians participation, professional sessions and the traditional manic scene would be much be not entire in their current form. The participation of partition emotions within the board manic scene in the effect essential to a notationing and supporting a volve viewing of encounter and only the processes.

In sum, as seen with Alex's comment above that he wants to maintain the "fun" in music, representations of traditional music as a leisure activity are significant for musicians. Some refuse to even talk about "practicing" music because they want to reframe their playing of the music in terms of enjoyment instead of work. These conceptualizations of music contribute to part-time musicians' struggles to find time to play music and to distinctions in status and authority between amateur and professional musicians. While the performance of music as an amateur activity follows ideas of an "authentic" leisurely pursuit, it is professional full-time musicians who are recognized for their dedication and musical abilities. Yet, part-time musicians also assert that this leisure activity is of great importance in their lives, reinterpreting the music's representations in subtle but important ways. Earning an income is then not the only way that musicians "make a living" at their music, as these musicians organize their lives in various ways to accommodate their musical pathways as much as possible; their performance of this music contributes significantly to both full- and part-time musicians' sense of happiness and well-being; and the lives and actions of these musicians contribute significantly to

the overall traditional music scene and therefore are of social, as well as individual, significance. The performance of this music is therefore a serious leisure endeavour that

For all musclean, the performance of multional this leads Newdomland music is therefore as integral part of 'both "aiminar existence" and of "sitality"—of 15th. Across all muscle and leads backgrounds, thill levels, eage, and gardner, musicient expressed their leve for the music they play. Playing music, of course, in not always an epipophie experience. I have also discussed freezinghout this chapter has emangement to mission and tradiation should be performed and of leve and self-expension contribute to many struggles experienced by full—and part time musicians. Neverthelean, musicians continue to learn and play with overall enthuliasm each work, or as often as they are able. As Firenesses and its:

One common impression given by very many perticipants was that their musical pathways were of high value among the wiscou path within their lives... music-making was one of the habitual roates by which they identified themselves as worthwhile members of society and which hey regarded on of nomelow deep-seated importance to them as human-beings... From the point of view of both individual puricipants and the leadlist formous which they pursualism immical pathway) ran, they contained one set of purposite actions— an invitable resource—action from the contract of the con

As discussed in the introduction to this thesis, when I asked Gerry Strong why he played this music, he responded that "it's like eating and drinking and breathing... just one of those things you got to do." None of "eating," "drinking" or "breathing," to which Gerry compares his performance of Irish (and) Newfoundland music, are optional activities. To the contrary, they are essential to sustaining life and are therefore of "deep-scated importance to them as human beings."

Chapter 9: Conclusion - Living with music

St. John's. Newfoundland has an active and vibrant traditional music scene. This scene developed, in part, through the influence of the cultural revival movement that was active throughout Newfoundland, and particularly in St. John's, during the 1960s and 1970s. This period was the culmination of long-standing efforts beginning in the late 1800s to collect, document, and promote Newfoundland culture and traditions. Irish and Irish-American music imported to Newfoundland from the early years of European settlement and more recently through radio, recordings, and Irish musicians who moved to the Island in the 1960s and the 1980s had a strong influence on the local music scene. The later arriving of these musicians, for example, started the first formal scheduled sessions in Newfoundland. The practice of sessions was then adopted and embraced by musicians in St. John's leading to an "explosion" in the number held throughout the city in the late1990s. During my fieldwork in the spring and summer of 2009 there was, at one point, as many as seven regularly scheduled public sessions per week, in addition to private and less regular musical gatherings that occurred. Reflecting the various influences on the local music scene, musicians at these sessions play what I have termed "traditional Irish (and) Newfoundland music": a mix of music with historical origins in Ireland and elsewhere, music that was more recently imported to the Island, and music that was composed or evolved locally.

This thesis has offered an ethnographic portrayal of the lives of musicians who play this music and of their participation in sessions. These musicians come from a wide variety of local and musical backgrounds, ages, and genders. They also participate in this matic in diverse ways, playing in different types of places, and attending with varying frequencies. Liver rought to domination the deep personal and so tail menting that do mention materials that its mention materials that it is more in the other conscious of the other charget, or set of chapters, considers an aspect of runnicious. These where this music plays a part. Have registed how, through pileip qikh massin, mathem of the death chapter, or set of chapters, considers an aspect of runnicious. These where this music plays a part. Have registed how, through pileip qikh massin, mathem of the death of the playing qikh massin, mathem of the death of the playing qikh massin, mathem of the death of the playing qikh massin, mathem of the playing the playing the play of the other playing at a season of place, rathem, and belonging in Noceoloumland solutions; plays to the other playing and or will be play and playing the chapters of the playing the playing the playing the playing the first them to a blanch length of "deep seasond input the playing and based on a falson that of "deep seasond input the playing and based on the blanch and of "deep seasond input the playing and based on the blanch and of "deep seasond imputement the best a blanch beingt" ("deep per 1992-207).

Ver, musiciant' experiences in learning and playing are also much more complex, that this "rounsate" image of the music and of sessions (1958az 2006-2007, 2009b). They struggle with learning traditional music and its leades (obspect of; negotiate the publics of musicianship and stone (obspect 5); contend with exclusions embedded in the structure of the music and its social conventions (obspect 6); dather what and when clockope" (highers on 47); and surguely a bottome playing music with other responsibilities in their lives, such as raising a family (obspect 8). These publics, biterachies, and exclusions are as significant to understanding the role and importance of this music is musician. The similar of the similar o

The core of my analysis has therefore centred around three themses that weavest throughout the different chapters and that address these complexities. The first has considered the reliational between being "one!" in minimal tend being a "pool" mustican (they and 2005). This relationship is based on the process of emperement, discussed in chapter 4. That is, learning to poly realizational frish darily Newtoniandat music involves learning a reportise of times, exts, techniques, sounds, and technical skills. Yet, in the process amontains and learn to become a "continuity ney of persons" with a particular set of earthcase, exhibits, and embodied behaviour. Musicians also learn and share in ideal "image" of what this vernin type of persons' should be and the ideal reuse to getting these.

In proteining, the process of empressments in svaluble to all manicisms, but a maintain fieldilly should item through the aural process, ineming almost by somosis from their muicia and social environment, generally as a clifd. Following use has noted, a maintain and old term to play expressively and dynamically. They should also become integrated into lineages of them and manicisms. These lineages develop a municism integrated into lineages of them and manicisms. These lineages develop as manicisms chosen part of the system of reciprocely involved in assession, sharing tunes, intens, detriks, and exciting which others. At municism horn madifound manic, they also have loss to distinguish between different sples of performance and different sub-genera and the significance of doing no. In St. John's, for example, municisms form to distinguish. "Newfoundland music," as a distinct gener from "fish music." Through those distinctions and through playing music in perfocult prace, musicisms also device conceives no them plays and though playing music in perfocult prace, musicisms also device conceives no temperature municism ser example.

therefore creating themselves and being created according to the image of the ideal traditional musician.

Musicians are also evaluated on their musical and personal performances of these bloth. Through such aerobeic and ethical palgements, sower missions are note to be forwer of "musica" and "review and palgements, and predictional medicing a three of "musical street" musicians from them. Only of lease such as preportional ability, talont, musicality, and authoriticy also contribute to such evaluations. Chapter 8 discussed how, for many, professional traditional musicians in 83. Daily come to represent the ideal musical life. Such musicians on the partial statum and atherity within the unfalsional musicia sories, giving them the influence to reinfluence or duffining purioscalar facult, after which the evenerating image. If here entitled. They do so as they set the direction for particular sension, excurrange particular individual performances or statum of the particular sensions.

In a defining data of performance, who the motion and mutations should be, however, municians are also string limits on who and what belongs. Considering affectives ways of "friendings" consistents a second but cloudy related theme explored throughout this thesis. The process of emperiorment provides a means of creating this "belongings". An associators are integrated into lineages of time and mutations, they are integrated into lineages of time and mutations, they are integrated into procedure section and conformations. Many mutations also speed ashorts a some of belonging in bre-colomation after byte first a they developed the into particular and any price on the Island. Belonging, however, it also predicted on the process of emperiorment, musitions must "get" it "and be able to observe the proper eliquidate and play according to the experior mountain and be able to observe the proper eliquidate and play according to the experiors mustical and be processed agree. By

implication, some people, ideas and places will be excluded, or at least not wholly included. Particular ways of defining "good" music thereby impose constraints on the musicians engaged in its performance. As outlined in chapter 6, the performance of "good" music at professional sessions, for example, is associated with performances of muscularity, thereby limiting the participation of women.

The boundaries of what "rebooks," however, are highly contented and in becoming "raditional musiciona" musicians do not become part of a homogeneous or even harmonism group, although ideally the music they produce is. Helen O'Shea argaes, referring to sessions in briand, that they are about engaging with "difference" as much as "aumences" (O'Shea 2006-2007-17). This statement certainly bolds to set in St. John's and characterizes may third key theme. Musicians differed and debated about how to define traditional brish (and) New foundation music, how it was related to Newfoundation, how it bushed be ployed in the context of sessions; what constituted a Newfoundation, the wit bushed by larged in the context of sessions; what constituted a proof "session and "good" music how "res" checked of learning, such as recording and sheet music, should be used, and whether and how traditional music should be used an a source of forcome, to more a fee. Thus, even as musicians share ideals, there is much variation in how they deads are accurated.

It is through the process of segulating those difference lines of "samenees" and
"difference" that musicians negotiate their pathways through the traditional music scene.
Musicians thereby demonstrate that they "get it" and "belong" as they have empersoned the ideals necessary to understand and participate. Vet, in the process, they are also negotiating where they belong and creating themselves as the particular type of

"traditional musician" they want to be. As discussed in chapter 4, when I questioned one musician, Chris, about why he played this music, he responded that it was how he "defines" himself. There were other musicians present for this discussion and one of them

followed up by making a joke of Chris's serious comment:

Steve: Would you be a reel now or a jig? Chris: Γ m a slide man.

Neve Wickel, right on.

Stor's comment reveals should understandings shout the music and its significance
between Store and Griffs. While a juke. Store was also unling Chris to choose how bet
defined himself through this music, by relating his selfhood directly to specific types of
tunes. Thus, as musicious are led also exemin notes; choose to follow others or crust
trace, because of the comments, they crust their own spirit.

The public of the musicious comments are self-of-their comments of the comments

Bibliography

Abel, Emily K., and Margaret K. Nelson 1990 Circles of Care: Work and Identity in Women's Lives. Albany: State University of New York Press.

Abu-Lughod, Lila 1990 Can There be a Feminist Ethnography? Women and Performance: A

Journal of Feminist Theory 5(1):7-27.

1991 Writing Against Culture. In Recapturing Anthropology: Working in the Advanced Seminar Series. Santa Fe: School of American Research Press. Distributed by the University of Washington Press.

2006 TheSession.org, Auntie Crae's/Comments [Forum]. Available from http://www.thesession.org/sessions/display/1478 (accessed December 5, 2009).

Amit-Talai, Vered

1994 Urban Pathways: The Logistics of Youth Peer Relations. In Urban Lives: Fragmentation and Resistance, Vered Amit-Talai and Henri Lustiger-Thaler, eds.

Appadurai, Ariun

1986 The Social Life of Things: Commodities in Cultural Perspective. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.

1985 Noise: The Political Economy of Music. Minneapolis: University of Minnesota Press. 2005 Irish Scene and Sound: Identity, Authenticity and Transnationality among

Young Musicians. Stockholm Studies in Social Anthropology, 57. Stockholm: Universitet Stockholms.

1982 Art Worlds, Berkeley: University of California Press.

Ben-Amos, Dan 1984 The Seven Strands of Tradition: Varieties in Its Meaning in American Folklore Studies. Journal of Folklore Research 21(2-3):97-131.

Bendix, Regina 1997 In Search of Authenticity: The Formation of Folklore Studies. Madison: University of Wisconsin Press.

Best, Anita
N.d. About the Folk Arts Society. Newfoundland and Labrador Folk Arts
Society. Available from http://www.nifolk.com/aboutthesociety.html (accessed
Southeaper 76, 2010)

Bioenho, Michelle

2008 Why I'm Not an Ethnomusicologist: A View from Anthropology. In The New (Ethno)musicologies. Henry Stobart, ed. Pp. 28-39. Europea, 8. Lanham: Scarcrow Press.

Bill, Roger 2009 Culture vs. Policy vs. Culture: The Evolution of Cultural Policy in Newfoundland and Labrador, 1967 - 2007. Newfoundland and Labrador Studies 24(1):91-109.

Blacking, John 1973 How Musical is Man? Seattle: University of Washington Press.

Bronner, Simon J. 2000 The Meaning of Tradition: An Introduction. Western Folklore 59(2):87-104.

Browne, Peter
2003 Island to Island: Traditional Music from Ireland and
Newfoundland. Ossian OSSCD 131 Cork: Ossian Publications Ltd.

Brubaker, Rogers 2004 Ethnicity without Groups. Cambridge: Harvard University Press.

Brubaker, Rogers, and Frederick Cooper 2004 Beyond "Identity". In Ethnicity Without Groups. Rogers Brubaker, ed. Pp. 28-63. Cambridge: Harvard University Press.

Bryant, Rebecca 2005 The Soul Danced into the Body: Nation and Improvisation in Istanbul. American Ethnologist 32(2):222-238.

- Butler, Judith 1988 Performative Acts and Gender Constitution: An Essay in Phenomenology and Feminist Theory. Theatre Journal 40(4):519-531.
 - 1993 Bodies that Matter: On the Discursive Limits of "Sex". New York: Routledge.
 - 1999 Gender Trouble: Feminism and the Subversion of Identity. 10th anniversary edition. New York: Routledge. Available from http://lib.mvilibrary.com/TID=31683 (accessed October 1, 2010).
 - Byme, Put 1991a "Stage Irish" in "Britain's Oldest Colony": Towards an Analysis of the
 - Influence of the McNulty Family on Newfoundland Music. Caradian Folklore 13(1):59-68.
 - 1991b Tickle Harbour: A Musical Journey Through Newfoundland's Heritage. Memorial University of Newfoundland. Available from http://www.heritage.mf.ca/urts/tickleharbour/default.html (accessed December 3, 2009).
 - Chambers, Deborah 1986 The Constraints of Work and Domestic Schedules on Women's Leisure. Leisure Studies 5(3):309-325.
 - Clifford, James, and George E. Marcus, eds. 1986 Writing Culture: The Poetics and Politics of Ethnography. A School of American Research Advanced Seminar. Berkelev: University of California Press.
 - Cohen, Sura 1993 Ethnography and Popular Music Studies. Popular Music 12(2):123-138.
 - 1994 Identity, Place and the "Liverpool Sound". In Ethnicity, Identity, and Music: The Musical Construction of Place. Martin Stokes, ed. Pp. 117-134. Oxford: Berg.
 - 1995 Sounding out the City: Music and the Sensuous Production of Place. Transactions of the Institute of British Geographers 20(4):434-446.

Colton, Glenn
2007 Imagining Nation: Music and Identity in Pre-Confederation
Newfoundland. Newfoundland and Labrador Studies 22(1):9-49.

nquergood, Dw

2003 Rethinking Ethnography: Towards a Critical Cultural Politics. In Turning Points in Qualitative Research: Tying Knots in a Handkerchief, Yvonna S. Lincoln and Norman K. Denzin, eds. Pp. 351-374. Walnut Croek: AltaMira Press.

Cope, Peter 2005 Adult Learning in Traditional Music. British Journal of Music Education 22(2):125-140.

Corcoran, Sean 1992 What is Traditional Music? In Traditional Music - Whose music?: Proceedings of a Co-operation North Conference, 1991. Peter McNamec, ed. Pp. 2-9. Belfest: The Institute of Irish Studies, Operey University of Belfast.

Cox, Gordon S.A. 1980 Folk Music in a Newfoundland Outport. Mercury Series - National Museum of Man. Ottawa: National Museums of Canada.

Dale N.d.-a Chiff & Fipple. Available from http://www.chifflandfipple.com/ (accessed June 26, 2010).

N.d.-b Chiff & Fipple, Whistle Obsession Acquistion Disorder (WhOA) Explained. Available from http://www.chiffandfipple.com/whox.html (accessed June 26, 2010).

Deem, Rosemary 1982 Women, Leisure and Inequality. Leisure Studies 1(1):29-46.

DeVault, Marjorie L.

1991 Feeding the Family: The Social Organization of Caring as Gendered
Work. Chicaso: University of Chicago Press.

Devlin Trew, Johanne
2005 The Engotten Irish?: Contested Sites and Narratives of a Nation in
New Youndland Ethnologies 27(2):43-77.

di Lasando Micaela

2001aTOO, MICARIA 1987 The Female World of Cards and Holidays: Women, Families, and the World of Kinshin, Signs 17(3):440.453

Dowling Martin

Jowling, Martin 2004-2006 Rambling in the Field of Modern Identity: Some Speculations on Irish Traditional Music. Radhare 5-7:107-134.

office the deaths

Durkheim, Emile 1976 The Elementary Forms of Religious Life. 2nd edition. Joseph Ward Swein transl London: Allen and Llowin.

Edensor, Tim 2002 National Identity, Popular Culture and Everyday Life. Oxford: Berg.

Fabian, Johannes 2000 Out of Our Minds: Reason and Madness in the Exploration of Central Africa, Berkeley: University of California Press. Available from http://site.abrary.com/www/lib/unemerial/docDetail.action?docID=10064727 (accessed November 10, 2010).

Fair, Doris Maul

Button Accordion. Ph.D. dissertation, Folklore and Folklife, University of Pennsylvania.

Fairbaim, Hazel 1994 Changing Contexts for Traditional Dance Music in Ireland: The Rise of Group Performance, Practice, Full. Music Journal 6(5):566:599.

Wostern Folklore 42(1):208-215

Feintuch, Burt 1981 Evarwining Musical Motivation: Why Days Sammie Play the Fiddle?

1995 Learning Music in Northumberland: Experience in Musical Ethnography.

The Journal of American Folklore 108(429):298-306.

eld. Steven

2004 A Sweet Lullaby for "World Music". In Popular Music: Critical Concepts in Media and Cultural Studies, vol. 2: The Rock Era. Simon Frith, ed. Pp. 62-85. London: Routledge.

Fife, Wayne 2004 Penetrating Types: Conflating Modernist and Postmodernist Tourism on the Great Northern Peninsula of Newfoundland. Journal of American Folklore

117(464):147-167.

 Doing Fieldwork: Ethnographic Methods for Research in Developing Countries and Beyond. New York: Palgrave Macmillan.

Countries and Beyond. New York: Pangrave Macmilian.

Finnegan, Ruth H.

1989 The Hidden Musicians: Music-Making in an English Town. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.

Fitzpatrick, Jamie 2001 Music. Memorial University of Newfoundland. Available from http://www.heritage.nf.ca/arts/music_arts.html (accessed May 18, 2010).

Ik Arts Society 2009 The 33rd Annual Newfoundland & Labrador Folk Festival: Festival

Program Guide: Folk Arts Society.

For, Barry

1999 Field Guide to the Irish Music Session: A Guide to Enjoying Irish Traditional Music in its Natural Habitat! Boulder, CO: Robert Rinehart Publishers.

Fraser, Ingrid A. 1981 Public Tradition in an Urban Context: An Occupational Folklore Study of Musicians in St. John's. M.A. thesis, Department of Folklore, Memorial University of Newfoundland.

Frith, Simon 1996 Music and Identity. In Questions of Cultural Identity. Stuart Hall and Paul du Gay, eds. Pp. 108-127. London: Sage.

Gan, Gregory dir. 2007 Session Talks, Canada.

Gardner, Katy 1999 Location and Relocation: Home, "the Field" and Anthropological Ethics. In Being There: Fieldwork in Anthropology. C.W. Watson, ed. Pp. 49 - 73. London: Pluto Press.

Gaztambide-Fernández, Rubén

2010 Wherefore the Musicians? Philosophy of Music Education Review 18(1):64-84

Geertz, Clifford

1973 The Interpretation of Cultures: Selected Essays. New York: Basic Books.

2005 Deep Play: Notes on the Balinese Cockfight. Daedalus 134(4):56-86.

Ginsburg, Faye

1989 Dissonance and Harmony: The Symbolic Function of Abortion in Activists' Life Stories. In Interpreting Women's Lives: Feminist Theory and Personal Narratives. The Personal Narratives Group, ed. Pp. 59-84. Bloomington: Indiana University Press.

Gregory, E. David

2002 New Proposals for Anthropologists. In The Anthropology of Politics: A Reader in Ethnography, Theory, and Critique. Joan Vincent, ed. Pp. 110-119. Malden: Blackwell Publishers.

1920 - 1955. History of Intellectual Culture 4(1). Available from

2004 Verracular Song, Cultural Identity, and Nationalism in Newfoundland, http://www.ucalgary.ca/bic/issues/vol4/1 (accessed February 9, 2010). Gueta, Akhil, and James Ferguson. 1992 Beyond "Culture": Space, Identity, and the Politics of Difference. Cultural

Anthropology 7(1):6-23. 1997 Discipline and Practice: "The Field" as Site, Method, and Location in Anthropology. In Anthropological Locations: Boundaries and Grounds of a Field Science, Akhil Gupta and James Ferguson, eds. Pp. 1-46. Berkeley: University of

California Press. Hall, Stuart

1996 Introduction: Who Needs "Identity"? In Questions of Cultural Identity. Stuart Hall and Paul du Gay, eds. Pp. 1-17. London: Sage.

1988 Nationalism and the Politics of Culture in Quebec. Madison: University of Wisconsin Press.

Handler Richard and Josefan Linnekin

1984 Tradition, Genuine or Spurious. The Journal of American Folklore 97(385):273-290.

Haraway, Donna

1991 Situated Knowledges: The Science Question in Feminism and the Privilege of Partial Perspective. In Simians, Cyborgs and Women: The Reinvention of Nature. Pp. 183-202. New York: Routledge.

Hart, Susan, and Clara J. Murphy

1986 Sunday Night at the Ship Inn: The History and Operations of the St. John's Folk Music Club. Canadian Folk Music Bulletin de Musique Folklorique 20(1):28-32

1902 Writing Ethnography: State of the Art. In Anthropology and Autobiography. Judith Okely and Helen Callaway, eds. Pp. 116-133. London: Routledge.

Henderson, Karla A.

1996 One Size Doesn't Fit All: The Meanings of Women's Leisure. Journal of Leisure Research 28/3):139-154.

How. Shoukang

2006 Irish Music in Central Oklahoma: An Ethnographic Study. Ph.D. dissertation, School of Music, University of Oklahoma.

1998 Folkus: Frank Maher, Available from

Hewson, Jean

http://www.nlfolk.com/bsidearch/nov98/folkus.html (accessed December 3, 20000

Heyes, Anthony

2005 The Economics of Vocation or "Why is a Badly Paid Nurse a Good Nurse"? Journal of Health Economics 24(3):561-569.

Higgins, Jenny from http://www.heritage.nf.ca/society/scottish.html (accessed May 18, 2010).

2009 Scottish in NL. Newfoundland and Labrador Heritage Web Site. Available 1992 Introduction: Inventing Traditions. In The Invention of Tradition. Eric Hobsbowm and Terence Ranger, eds. Pp. 1-14. Cambridge: Cambridge University Hobsbawm, Eric, and Terrence Ranger, eds. 1992 The Invention of Tradition. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.

Huizinga, Johan 2000 Homo Ludens: A Study of the Play-Element in Culture. London:

http://site.ebrary.com/lib/memorial/docDetail.action?docID=10017348 (accessed December 2, 2010).

Jagger, Gill 2008 Indith Butler: Sexual Politics, Social Change and the Power of the Performative London Routledon Available from http://lib.mvilibrary.com?ID=110264 (accessed September 10, 2010).

Johnson, Sherry

2006 "If you want to win, you've got to play it like a man": Music, Gender, and Value in Ontario Fiddle Contests. In Play It Like It Is: Fiddle and Dance Studies from Around the North Atlantic. Ian Russell and Mary Anne Alburger, eds. Pp. 94-101. Aberdeen: The Elebinstone Institute, University of Aberdeen.

Kaul, Adam R.

2007 The Limits of Commodification in Traditional Irish Music Sessions. Journal of the Royal Anthropological Institute 13(3):703-719.

Kearney, David

2007 (Re)locating Irish Traditional Music: Urbanising Rural Traditions. Unpublished Working Paper, Department of Geography, University College Cork

Kingsbury, Henry 1988 Music, Talent, and Performance: A Conservatory Cultural System. Philadelphia: Temple University Press.

2009 Ethnicity, Culture, and Globalization: Exploring the Memorandum of Understanding Between Newfoundland and Labrador and Ireland. Newfoundland

and Labrador Studies 24(1):25-53.

Leonard, Marion 2005 Performing Identities: Music and Dance in the Irish Communities of Coventry and Liverpool. Social & Cultural Geography 6(4):515-529.

Lindholm, Charles 2008 Culture and Authenticity. Malden: Blackwell Publishing.

December 2, 2009).

1983 Defining Tradition: Variations on the Hawaiian Identity. American

Luxton, Meg 1980 More Than a Labour of Love: Three Generations of Women's Work in the Home Toronto: Women's Press.

M'Closkey, Kathy 2002 Swept Under the Rug: A Hidden History of Navajo Weaving. Albuquerque: University of New Mexico Press.

The Mahery Rahory: Front Maher N.d., Sordid history, Available from http://www.mahersbahers.com/frank.html

(accessed December 3, 2009). Mahmood, Saba 2005 Politics of Piety: The Islamic Revival and the Feminist Subject, Princeton:

Mannion, John N.d. Tracing the Irish: A Geographical Guide. Ireland Newfoundland Partnership. Available from http://www.inp.ip/?g~tracing-irish (accessed

More Korl 1990[1976] Capital: A Critique of Political Economy, vol. 1. Ben Fowkes, transl. London: Penguin Books.

Mauss, Marcel 1990 The Gift: The Form and Reason for Exchange in Archaic Societies. W.D. Halls transl New York: W.W. Norton.

Maynand, Lara 2001a Traditional Dance. Memorial University of Newfoundland. Available from http://www.heritage.nf.ca/society/dance.html (accessed June 11, 2010).

2001b Traditional Instrumental Music. Memorial University of Newfoundland. Available from http://www.heritage.nf.ca/society/trad_instru_music.html (accessed August 19, 2010).

McCann, Anthony 2001 All That Is Not Given Is Lost: Irish Traditional Music, Copyright, and Common Property. Ethnomusicology 45(1):89-106.

McCarthy, Marie 1999 Passing It On: The Transmission of Music in Irish Culture. Cork: Cork

Mellow Muriel

University Press.

McNamee, Peter, ed.

1992 Traditional Music - Whose music?: Proceedings of a Co-operation North Conference, 1991. Belfast: The Institute of Irish Studies, Queen's University of Belfast.

2006 Defining Work: Gender, Professional Work, and the Case of Rural Clergy. Montreal: McGill-Queen's University Press. Available from http://site.ebrary.com/fib/fibrarytitles/Doc/fid=10264292 (accessed January 27, 2011).

erriam, Alan P. 1964 The Anthropology of Music, Evanston: Northwestern University Press.

1964 The Anthropology of Music. Evanishin: Northwestern University Preser, Karl Hagstrom 2008 Working Musicians: Exploring the Rhetorical Ties Between Musical

Labour and Leisure, Leisure Studies 27(4):427-441. Jarayan, Kirin 1993 How Native is a "Native" Anthropologist? American Anthropologist

95(3):671-686. Nautical Nellie's

N.d. The Story of Nautical Nellies. Available from http://www.nauticalnellies.ca/story.html (accessed December 5, 2009).

Negus, Keith, and Patria Román Velázquez 2002 Belonging and Detachment: Musical Experience and the Limits of Identity. Poetics 30(1-2):133-145.

Nelson, Julie A., and Nancy Folbre 2006 Why a Well-Paid Nurse is a Better Nurse. Nursing Economics 24(3):127-130. Available from http://emm4.www.umb.edu/academics/cla/dept/economics/faculty/documents/Wh

http://temp4.www.umb.edu/academics/cla/dept/economics/faculty/documents/w/y a Well Paid Nurse.pdf (accessed January 27, 2011).

Nemec, Thomas F.

1991 Irish Sentement in Newfoundland. In The Encyclopaedia of Newfoundland and Labrador, vol. 3. Joseph Roberts Smallwood, Cyril F. Poole, and Robert Cuff, eds. Pp. 71-77 St. John's: Harry Cuff Publications Ltd. Available.

Nettl, Bruno

2005 The Study of Ethnomusicology: Thirty-One Issues and Concepts. Urbana: University of Illinois Press.

Newfoundland and Labrador Folk Arts Society

2010 This Week's News. Available from http://www.nlfolk.com/news.html (accessed September 18, 2010).

O'Connell, Bridget 2007 A Comparative Study of Newfoundland and Irish Fiddle Styles. In Transcultural Perspectives on Canada. Klaus-Dieter Ertler and Paulina

Mickiewicz, eds. Pp. 89-111. Canadian Studies in Europe, 7.

O'Flyun, John

2009 The Irishness of Irish music. Ashgate Popular and Folk Music Series.

Famham, UK: Ashgate.

OSbea, Helen
2006-2007 Getting to the Heart of the Music: Idealizing Musical Community
and Irish Traditional Music Sessions. Journal of the Society for Musicology in

2008a "Good man, Marv?". Women Musicians and the Fraternity of Irish

Traditional Music. Journal of Gender Studies 17(1):55-70.

2008b The Making of Irish Traditional Music. Cork: Cork University Press.

20000 116 1944

Ó Súilleabháin, Micheál 1981 - Irish Music Defined. The Crane Bag 5(2):83-87.

OED Online

2010 June 2010 edition. Oxford: Oxford University Press. Available from http://dictionary.oed.com (accessed December 3, 2009).

ÓbAllmhuráin (

Ullmhuráin, Gearóid 2008 Soundscape of the Wintermen: Irish Traditional Music in Newfoundland Revivined. The Canadian Journal of Irish Studies 34(2):33-46.

Olaveson, Tim

2001 Collective Effervescence and Communities: Processual Models of Ritual and Society in Emile Durkheim and Victor Turner. Dialectical Anthropology 26(2):89-124.

Osborne, Evelyn

2003 "We Never Had a Bed Like That for a Violin! We Had a Bag!": Exploring Fiddlers and Dance Music in Newfoundland: Red Cliff, Bonavista Bay and Bay de Verde, Conception Bay, M.A. thesis, Canadian Studies, Carleton University.

2007 Fiddling with Technology: The Effect of Media on Newfoundland Traditional Musicians. Newfoundland and Labrador Studies 22(1):187-204.

2010 Crossing Over Through the Recording Studio: The Island to Island: Traditional Music from Fedand and Novifoundland CD Project. In Crossing Over: Fiddle and Dunce Studies from Around the North Atlantic 3. In a Russell and Arana Kenney Guigne, eds. 7p. 49-67. Aberdeen: Elphinstone Institute,

Overton, James 1996 Ma

Peace, Adrian J.

1996 Making a World of Difference: Essays on Tourism, Culture and Development in Newfoundland. Social and Economic Studies, 56. St. John's: ISER Books.

PaddyKeenan.com 2002 Na Keen Affair, Available from

http://www.paddykeenan.com/nakeen.htm (accessed September 30, 2010).

2001 A World of Fine Difference: The Social Architecture of a Modern Irish Village, Dublin: University College Dublin Press.

Personal Narratives Group, ed. 1989 Interpreting Women's Lives: Feminist Theory and Personal Narratives. Bloomington: Indiana University Press.

Pocius, Gerald L.

1988 The Mummers Song in Newfoundland: Intelloctuals, Revivalists and Cultural Nativism. Newfoundland and Labrador Studies 4(1):57-85.

Posen, Sheldon, and Michael Taft

1973 The Newfoundland Popular Music Project. Canadian Journal for Traditional Music 1. Available from http://cjtm.icaap.org/content/1/v1ar44.html (accessed December 1, 2009).

Quigley, Colin

1985 Close to the Floor: Folk Dance in Newfoundland. Memorial University of Newfoundland Folklore and Language Publications. Monograph Series, 3. St. John's: Memorial University of Newfoundland.

1995 Music from the Heart: Compositions of a Folk Fiddler. Athens: University of Georgia Press.

Rapuano, Deborah L.

2005 Every Drop Hollows the Stone: An Ethnographic Study of Traditional Irish Music Pub Sessions. Ph.D. dissertation, Department of Sociology, Loyola University Chicago.

Rawls, Anne Warfield

2004 Epistemology and Practice: Durkheim's The Elementary Forms of Religious Life. Cambridge: Cambridge University Press. Available from http://lib.myilibrary.com?ID=41756 (accessed September 10, 2010).

Ray, Celeste

2005a Introduction. In Transatlantic Scots. Celeste Ray, ed. Pp. 1-20. Tuscaloosa: University of Alabama Press.

2005b Transatlantic Scots and Ethnicity. In Transatlantic Scots. Celeste Ray, ed. Pp. 21-47. Tuscalcosa: University of Alabama Press.

Reddy, Deepa S.

2009 Caught! The Predicaments of Ethnography in Collaboration. In Fieldwork is Not What it Used To Be: Learning Authropology's Method in a Time of Transition. James D. Faubion and George E. Marcus, eds. Pp. 89-113. Ithaca: Cornell University Press.

Rodman, Margaret C.

1992 Empowering Place: Multilocality and Multivocality. American Anthropologist 94(3):640-656.

Rosaldo, Renato

1993[1989] Culture & Truth: The Remaking of Social Analysis. Boston: Rencon Press

Rosenberg, Neil V.

1991 Omar Blondahl's Contributions to the Newfoundland Folksong Canon. Canadian Journal for Traditional Music 19. Available from http://citm.icaan.org/content/19/v19art4.html (accessed December 1, 2009).

Rostow, W.W. 1991 The Stares of Economic Growth: A Non-Communist Manifesto. 3rd edition, Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.

Rowe, Frederick William

1980 A History of Newfoundland and Labrador, Toronto: McGraw-Hill

1999 What is Anthropological Enlightenment? Some Lessons of the Twentieth Century. Annual Review of Anthropology 28:i-xxiii.

1978 Orientalism. 1st edition. New York: Pantheon Books.

Saugeres, Lise 1991 Figgy Duff and Newfoundland Culture. M.A. thesis, Department of Folklore, Memorial University of Newfoundland.

Scahill, Adrian

2009 Riverdance: Representing Irish Traditional Music. New Hibemia review /

Seeger, Anthony 1987 Why Suya Sing: A Musical Anthropology of an Amazonian People. Cambridge Studies in Ethnomusicology, Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.

Seron, Carroll, and Kerry Ferris 1995 Negotiating Professionalism: The Gendered Social Capital of Flexible Time. Work and Occupations 22(1):22-47.

Smith, Christina

2007 Crooked as the Road to Branch: Asymmetry in Newfoundland Dance Music Newfoundland and Labrador Studies 22(1):139-164.

2009 STEP News Become a Fiddler with STEP STEP of St. John's MI. Sentember 25, 2009, Available from http://suzukinl.ca/2009/09/become-fiddlerwith-sten htm (accessed February 15, 2010).

Smith, Christonber Smith Dorothy E.

2006 Reclaiming the Commons, One Tune at a Time, New Hibernia Review / Iris Eireannach Nun 10(4):9-20.

1987 The Everyday World as Problematic: A Feminist Sociology. Toronto:

Critical Concepts in Media and Cultural Studies, vol. 4: Music and Identity. Simon Frith, ed. Pn. 164 - 181. London: Routledge.

2004 "My love is in America": Migration and Irish music. In Popular Music: Soanes, Catherine, and Angus Stevenson, eds. 2008 The Concise Oxford English Dictionary, 12th edition, Oxford University Press Online: Oxford University Press, Available from

http://www.oxfordreforence.com/ (accessed September 23, 2010). 2009 Learn More, SOCAN, Available from http://www.socan.en/ign/en/rob/murie_useru/how_it_works.ign/f (accessed October 12, 2010).

Sommers Smith, Sally K. 2001 Irish Traditional Music in a Modern World, New Hibernia review / Iris

Stebbins, Robert A.

1992 Amateurs, Professionals and Serious Leisure. Montreal: McGill-Ouren's University Press.

2007 Serious Leisure: A Perspective for our Time, New Brunswick, NJ: Transaction Publishers

Stock, Jonathan P.J.

2004 Ordering Performance, Leading People: Structuring an English Folk Music Session. The World of Music 46(1):41-70.

Stokes, Martin, ed. 1994a Ethnicity, Identity and Music: The Musical Construction of Place. Oxford: Berg Publishers.

1994b Introduction: Ethnicity, Identity and Music. In Ethnicity, Identity and Music: The Musical Construction of Place, Martin Stokes, ed. Pn. 1-28. Oxford:

Story, G. M. 1988 *A Tune Beyond Us as We Are': Reflections on Newfoundland Community Song and Ballad. Newfoundland and Labrador Studies 4(2):129-144.

Story, G.M., W.J. Kirwin, and J.D.A. Widdowson, eds. 1999 Dictionary of Newfoundland English Online. 2nd edition: University of Toronto Press Available from

http://www.heritage.nf.ca/dictionary/azindex/pages/309.html (accessed January 21, 2011).

1991 Systems of Articulation, Logics of Change: Communities and Scenes in Popular Music Cultural Studies 5(3):368-388.

Suzuki Talent Education Program of St. John's, Newfoundland 2008 About the Suzuki Method. STEP of St. John's, NL. Available from http://suzukinl.ca/suzukimethod.htm (accessed August 24, 2010).

Taft, Michael 1975 A Regional Discography of Newfoundland and Labrador, 1904-1972. Memorial University of Newfoundland Folklore and Language Publications. Bibliographical and Special Series, 1. St. John's: Memorial University of Newfoundland, Folklore and Language Archive.

2007-2009 Discussions, 2 Row Accordion Tunings for Newfoundland Traditional Music* [Forum]. Available from http://www.thesession.org/discussions/display/13294/comments#comment274031 (accessed November 23, 2010).

Thomas, Nicholas 1992 The Inversion of Tradition. American Ethnologist 19(2):213-232.

Thompson, Shona
1990 "Thank the Ladies for the Plates": The Incorporation of Women into
Sour Leisure Studies 9(2): 135-143.

Thome, Cory W.

2007 Gone to the Mainland and Back Home Again: A Critical Approach to

Parion Politics and Identity in Contemporary Newfoundland Sons.

Newfoundland and Labendor Studies 22(1):51-73.

Tickle Harbour

N.d. Bard Bios. Available from http://www.domeshib.com/TickleHarbourthio.html (accessed December 3, 2009).

mer, Victor

2008[1969] The Ritual Process: Structure and Anti-Structure. New Brunswick, N.J.: Aldine Transaction.

1994 The Teacher's Role in Transmission of Irish Traditional Music. International Journal of Music Education 24(1):21-30.
Waldron, Junior L., and Kari K. Vehlen

2008 The Medium is the Message: Cyberspace, Community and Music Learning in the Irish Traditional Music Virtual Community. Journal of Music Technology and Education 1(2-3):99-111.

Walsh, Kristin Harris
2008 How Irish is Irish? Identity in Irish-Newfoundland Step Duncing, Paper
presented at the Canadian Dance Studies Conference, St. John's, Newfoundland:
University of Lethéridge, Available from
http://neocle.uleth.ea/~seds.sedf/English/Resources/KristinHarris/Walsh.pdf

http://people.uleth.ca/~sods.secd/English/Resources/KristinHarrisWalsh.pl (accessed September 26, 2010).

2008a TheSession.org, Shannock City/Comments [Forum]. Available from http://www.thesession.org/sessions/display/2093 (accessed December 5, 2009).
2008 TheSession.org, Nutrical Nellis/SComments [Forum]. Available from http://www.thesession.org/scales/sifession/2006 (accessed December 5, 2009).

-

Wearing, Betsy, and Stephen Wearing

aring, Betsy, and Stephen Wearing 1988 "All in a Day's Leisure": Gender and the Concept of Leisure. Leisure

Webb, Jeff, A.

2008a Repertoire and Reception: Radio and Music in St. John's, Newfoundland, 1930-45. Journal of Canadian Studies / Revue d'Études Canadiannes 42(2):117-139.

2008b The Voice of Newfoundland: A Social History of the Broadcasting Conversion of Newfoundland. 1939-1949. Toronto: University of Toronto Press.

Veston, Kath 1990 Production as Means, Production as Metaphor: Women's Struggle to Enter the Trades. In Uncertain Terms: Negotiating Gender in American Culture. Paye Girobure and Anna Lowechauset Tisine, eds. Pp. 137-151. Issuen: Beacoe Press.

Whitaker, Robin
In press The Politics of Friendship in Feminist Ethnography. Anthropology

in Action 18(1).

Wilk, Richard R., and Liss Cliggett
2007 Economics and Cultures: Foundations of Economic Anthropology. 2nd

edition edition. New York: Westview Press.

1977 Marxism and Literature. Oxford: Oxford University Press.

1983[1976] Keywords: A Vocabulary of Culture and Society. Rev. edition edition. New York: Oxford University Press.

Williams, Sean 2006 Irish Music and the Experience of Nostalgia in Japan. Asian Music 27(1):103–119.

Wolf, Eric 1982 Europe and the People Without History. Berkeley: University of California Press.

1999 Contested Concepts. In Envisioning Power: Ideologies of Dominance and Cricis. Pn. 21-68. Berkeley: University of California Press. 2002 National Liberation. In The Anthropology of Politics: A Reader in Ethnography, Theory and Critique. Joan Vincent, ed. Pp. 120-126. Malden: Blackwell Publishing.







